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Officers and Board Members 

General Officers 
Moderator . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Co rl Cheshier 
Assistant Moderator ... .. . .. ..... . .......... Tim York 
Clerk ....... . ................... . .. John Hibbard 
Assistant Clerk . . ...... . ............... Randy Bryant 
Executive Secretary-Treasurer ........ . ... . .. Keith Burden 

2003 
North Carolina: Jim Marcum 
Northeast: Jim Nason 
Northwest: Dorrell Smith 
Ohio: Mike Stokes 
Oklahoma: Ernest Harrison, Jr. 
South Carolina: Sigbee Dildo 
Tennessee: Charles Thigpen 
Texas: Keith Woody 
Virginia: Glen Johnson 
West Virginia: Carl Vallance 

General Board 
2004 

Alabama: Rick Cosh 
Arizona: Charles Marshall 
Arkansas: David Joslin 
Assn. of Mexico: 

Luis Felipe Tijerina 
Atl. Canada: Fred Hanson 
California: Doice McAlister 
Colorado: Mark Thomas 
Florida: Tim Owen 
Georgia: William Smith 
Idaho: Earl Jenkins 
Illinois: Ernie lewis 

2005 
Indiana: Chris Cloy 
Kansas: Zone Brooks 
Kentucky: James Patton 
Mexico Assn: Carlos Rubio 
Michigan: Gene Norris 
Mid-Atlantic: Joy Baines 
Mississippi: J. L Gore 
Missouri: Nathan Ruble 
New Jersey: William Brown 
New Mexico: Mark Shores 

Executive Committee 
Moderator: Carl Cheshier, P.O. Box 7208, Moore, OK 73153 
Assistant Moderator: Tim York 12708 Copley Rood, Ashland, KY 41102 
Clerk: John Hibbard, 928 Yellow Brick Rood, Modesto, CA 95351 
Assistant Clerk: Randy Bryant, 2156 54th Avenue, Vero Beach, Fl32966 

2003 
Ernest Harrison, Jr. (OK) 
Glen Johnson (VA) 
Charles Thigpen {TN) 

2004 
Rick Cosh (Al) 
David Joslin (AR) 
Doice McAlister (CA) 

2005 
J. L Gore (MS) 
Gene Norris (MI) 
Nathan Ruble (MO) 

Board of Trustees of Free Will Baptist College 
Chairman: Gary Fry, 401 South Main, Mountain Grove, MO 65711 

2004 2006 
Terry Pierce (MS) Richard Barnes (VA) 
Billy Hanna (GA) Gory Fry (MO) 
Steve Ashby (OK) A. C. Allen (SC) 
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2008 
Archie Ratliff (NC) 
Greg Kettemon (TN) 
Gene Outland (ll) 

Board of Foreign Missions 
Chairman: Doug Little, 1103 East L Street, Russellville, AR 72801 

2004 2006 
David Shores (IL) Randy ~ilson (OK) 
Donny Williams (Al) Doug Little (~R) 
Sherwood Lee (SC) Milton Worthmgton (NC) 

Board of Home Missions 
Chairman: Jim Puckett, P.O. Box 7527, Moore, OK 73153 

2003 2005 
Ron Porker (LA) Harold Blankenship (NC) 
loyd Locklear (MI) Robert Thebeau (MO) 
Jim Puckett (OK) lynn Wood (OK) 

2008 
Bill Jones (TX) 
David Williford (TN) 
Bill Von Winkle (TN) 

2007 . 
Matt Upton (CA) 
Jerry Atwell (MS) 
Bobby Shepherd (AR) 

Board of Retirement and Insurance 

Chairman: Ron Barber, 525 S. Main, Ste. 500, Tulsa, OK 7 4103 
2003 2005 

William Ferguson (MI) Ron Barber (O~ 
Roger Harwell (MO) Henry Von Kluyve (NC) 
James lowe (OH) Milburn Wilson (TX) 

2007 
Bobby Bowers (SQ 
Craig Cook (TN) 
Jock Word (NC) 

Master's Men Board 

Chairman: Cliff Donoho, 4029 Calumet Drive, Antioch, TN 37013 
2003 2005 

Cliff Donoho (TN) Mike Mounts (OH) 
Clarence lewis (TN) Don Neal (IN) 
Thurman Pate, Jr. (TN) Ernie Taylor (ll) 

2007 
Roy Copeland {OK) 
Charles Wolden (MS) 
Rudy Taylor {MI) 

Board of Trustees of the Free Will Baptist Foundation 

Chairman: Henry Van Kluyve, P.O. Box 568, Beaufort, NC 28516 
2003 2005 

James Lowe {OH) Ron Barber (OK) 
Roger Harwell {MO) Henry Von Kluyve (NC) 
William Ferguson {MI) Milburn Wilson (TX) 
Plus diredors of national agencies: 

James Forlines (FM) 
larry Powell (HM) 
Kenneth Akers (MM) 

Keith Burden (Exec. Off.) 
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2007 
Bobby Bowers {SC) 
Craig Cook (TN) 
Jock Word (TN) 

Matt Pinson (FWBBC) 
Marjorie Workman {WNAC) 
Ron Hunter (SS & G) 



. Sun~a~ School and Church Training Board 
Chatrman: Denms Wiggs, 206 Briorwood Lone, New Bern, NC 28560 

2004 2006 
~ill Harmon (AR) Edwin Hayes (OH) 
Tl~ Owen (FL) Dennis Wiggs (NC) 
Michael Waddell (TN) Jeff Crabtree (Canada) 

2008 
Donny Dwyer (AL) 
David Reece (VA) 
Nuel Brown (CA) 

. Commission for Theological lnte rity 
Chanman: Leroy Forlines, 3606 West End Avenue, Nashville, TN 372~5 
2003 Matt Pinson (TN) 2006 Paul Harrison (TN) 

~~~~ ~~~r~l~i~i(?LtQ 2007 Leroy Forlines (TN) 

. Historical Commission 
Chairman: Dorrell Holley, 3606 West End Avenue, Nashville, TN 37205 
2003 Paul Kennedy (CA) 2006 Joe McKni ht {SC) 
2004 Robert Picirilli (TN) 2001 Jock Williogms (TN) 
2005 Dorrell Holley (TN) 

Media Commission 
Chairman: Steve Faison, 719 N. Cleveland Street, Arlington, VA 22201 
2003 St_eve Faison (VA) 2006 Monte McKenzie (TN) 
2004 Mike Jones (SC) 2007 Kevin Norris (MI) 
2005 Doug Kite (NC) 

Music Commission 
Chairman: Randy Sawyer, 12 4 General Pemberton Street, Stanley, NC 28164 
2003 Jerry Carraway (TN) 2006 Scott Bullman (OK) 
2004 Ro~dy Sawyer (NC) 2007 Doug Little (AR) 
2005 Chns Truett (NC) 
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Proceedings 
The 66th annual session of the National Association of Free Will 

Baptists met July 21-25, 2002, at the Memphis Convention Center 
in Memphis, Tennessee. "Obedience: Our Obligation" was the 
theme for the meeting. Dean Jones served as the convention man­
ager and Scott Bullman coordinated the music. 

Sunday School-July 21, 2002 
The Sunday School session began at 1 0:00 a .m. as Leroy 

Scudder led the congregation in singing, " I Am Thine, 0 Lord" and 
"I Just Keep Trusting My Lord." David Sutton welcomed the assem­
bly, introduced the Sunday School teacher and led in prayer. 

The Fields Family sang, "He Took Me ln." Gary Head from 
Cedar Hill, Tennessee, presented the Sunday School lesson. The les­
son topic was ''An Example in Service." The scripture text was 
Philippians 2:3- 16. The session concluded at l 0:50a.m. 

Sunday Morning-July 21, 2002 
The morning worship service was called to order at 11 :00 a.m. 

as the Fields Family sang, "That Day At Calvary." Leroy Scudder led 
the congregation in singing, "Thou Art Worthy" and "Majesty." 

David Sutton called for the convention offering and led in 
prayer. The Fields Family sang, "Everything You Need." 

Alton Loveless from Nashville, Tennessee, was introduced as the 
speaker for morning worship. Before he spoke, Brian Hughes sang, 

"These Are They." 
Dr. Loveless read his text from Ephesians 4 and spoke on the 

subject "The Church" or "Plug into the Church for the Shock of Your 
Life." David Sutton prayed the benediction. 

Sunday Evening-July 21, 2002 
The Sunday evening service began at 7:00 p.m. The Convention 

Choir and various groups or soloists ministered in music. The follow-

ing is an overview of the program: 
"God's Wonderful People" 
"Since Jesus Came Into My Heart" 
''A New Name In Glory" 
"I'm So Glad Jesus Lifted Me" 
"Where Could I Go?" 
"I'm Feeling Fine" 
"Who Am I?" (Soloist-Bobby Lee Thomas) 

A · 17 



"A Child of the King" 

;;SHe Knbowds My Name" (Soloist-Chris Lewis) 
ome o y Loves Me" 

"Springs of Living Wat " (M · 1 
Scott Bullman called fo e;h USICO .Messenf!ers Quartet) 
"Wonderful Is He" IM r . e/cMonventron offenng and led in prayer. 
"0 \A/ Fl. h I• US/CO essengers Quartet) ne-vvay rg t" 

;;I'll Meet You In The Morning" 
, Robe of White" (Men's Quartet) 
Ten Thousand Years" (Choir with soloist Doug Little) 

Carl Ch h· ·d 
. t d d esb '.er, presr ent of Hillsdale Free Will Baptist Coli 
rn ro uce to nng the evenin ege was 
his text and spoke on the subl.;dm~~sag~. Hehread Hebrews 12: l-2 for 

"¥~ I k " , ' unnrng t e Race with Patience." 
es, now (Mens Trio) 

"He Touched Me" 

;;The Blood Will Never Lose Its Power" 
I Wanna Know More" 

"I Am Thine, 0 Lord" 

;,Dra.w Me, Lord" (Donelson Trio) 
Pr01se and Worship" 

"I Stand In Awe" 

;;Blessed Be the Lord, God Almighty" 
How Great Thou Art" 

"Shout To The Lord" 

Th . Monday Evening-July 22, 2002 
e l.OO p.m. Monday evening · b 

Missions director Lorry Powell t servrce egan when Home 
prayer. Longe Patrick led th gree ed !he ~onvention and led in 
v e congregatron rn · · "L d 
rour Name On High " 'f\11 H .I Th p srngrng, o~ ' I Lift 

Sing Praises" and "BI~ss Th Lord Oe Mow'r of Jesus' Name," "We 
Th . e or, ySoul." 

e musrcol group Movin' U son "O 
Thigpen, promotional director f: the ;~te ~e1f Drop of Blood." Charles 
convention to Memphis. 0 ennessee, welcomed the 

Clerk Keith Burden called the 66th . 
Association into official session and introd con;ehtron _of the Notional 
Carl Cheshier announced the . t uce f e offrcers. Moderator 
C d . opporn ments to rour commiffees. 

re ent•als Committee: . 

Jim Morcum- North Carolina 
(Chairman) 

Gene Norris- Michigan 

Ernie Lewis- Illinois 
Tim Owen- Florida 
Tim Hall- Kentucky 
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Nominating Committee: 

Nathan Ruble-Missouri 
(Chairman) 

Tim Campbell-Arkansas 
Billy Hanna-Georgia 

Resolutions Committee: 
Paul Thompson-Arizona 

(Chairman) 
Nuel Brown-California 

Obituary Committee: 
Herbert Waid-Georgia (Chairman) 
Danny Williams-Alabama 
James Brewer-Kansas 

Glen Johnson-Virginia 
Terry Eogleton-Tennessee 
Ron Helms-Michigan 
David Sutton-Oklahoma 

Russell Wright-West Virginia 
Edwin Hayes-Ohio 
Bill Van Winkle Tennessee 

Charles Marshall-Arizona 
Bobby Shepherd-Arkansas 

Larry Powell called for the 

convention offering and led in prayer. The group Movin' Up, and the 
Convention Choir sang, "God Bless America Once More" as an 
offertory. The Convention Choir, along with narrator Mike Mounts, 
presented a musical tribute to the armed forces titled, "Stars and 
Stripes Forever." 

As the United States flag was unfurled, Lange Patrick led the con­
gregation in singing, "The Star- Spangled Banner" and 'f\merica, The 
Beautiful." Larry Powell introduced the military chaplains who were 
present and the speaker for the service. 

The Convention Choir performed an arrangement of "Let Freedom 
Ring" and the congregation sang, "I'm Free" and "Thank You, Lord." A 
men's trio sang, "Soldiers Again." Colonel Kerry Steedley read II Timothy 
2:1-4 for his sermon text and spoke on the subject, '1\n Operations 
Order." Larry Powell led the prayer of benediction. 

Tuesday Evening-July 23, 2002 
The service began at 7:00p.m. with the Men's Chorale singing, 

'f\ Mighty Fortress Is Our God." Keith Burden welcomed the con­
gregation and led in prayer. 

Thurman Lucas led the congregation in singing, "Blessed Assurance," 
"Great Is Thy Faithfulness" and "Great Is The Lord." Soloist Tim Kaufman 
sang, "I Asked The Lord" and '!\Few Good Men" (accompanied by the 
Men's Chorale). 

Keith Burden called for the evening offering and led in prayer. The 
convention orchestra presented the offertory. The congregation sang, 
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"Tum Your Eyes Upon Jesus," "He Is Here," "In The Presence Of 
Jehovah," "Tis So Sweet To Trust In Jesus" and "Because He Lives." 

Tim Kaufman song, "His Mercies Are New." Keith Burden intro­
duced the speaker- retiring executive secretory Melvin Worthington­
who read luke 5:1-11 for his text and spoke on the subject "Obedi­
ence: Our Obligation." Keith Burden announced a reception honoring 
Dr. Worthington and his family and led the prayer of benediction. 

Wednesday Morning-July 24, 2002 
Moderator Carl Cheshier called the meeting to order at 9:00a.m. 

and welcomed the delegates. Wade T. Jernigan read Matthew 12:46-
50, Mark 3:31-35 and Matthew 5:43-48. He brought devotional 
thoughts on the subject, "This Mon." Carl Cheshier led in prayer. 

The clerk read the report of the Credentials Committee. Motion 
carried to receive the report and seat the delegates. 

The clerk read a partial report of the General Boord. Motion 
carried to receive Item # l of this report. 

The clerk read a portio/ report of the Nominating Committee 
recommending the election of board members at the conclusion of 
each report. Motion carried to adopt this recommendation. 

Executive secretory Melvin Worthington gave the report of the 
Executive Office. Motion carried to receive the Executive Office 
report and adopt the budgets contained in the report. 

In honor and recognition of his retirement, members of the 
Executive Committee mode presentations to Dr. Worthington. Charles 
Thigpen announced that Worthington was being awarded the title, 
"Executive Secretory Emeritus." Tim York presented the keys to a 2001 
Ford Taurus (company cor) as a gift. J. l. Gore unveiled the August 
2002 issue of Contact that was a tribute issue to Dr. Worthington. Gore 
read excerpts from articles written by members of the Worthington fam­
ily. Delegates gave the retiring executive secretory a standing ovation. 

The clerk read Item # 2 of the General Boord report recom­
mending the election of Keith Burden as executive secretory. Motion 
carried to adopt Item # 2. 

Melvin Worthington presented a plaque to Keith Burden in 
recognition of 21 years (1981-2002) of service as assistant clerk 
and clerk of the Notional Association. He also presented the new 
executive secretory a lifetime subscription to Contod and a leather 
bound copy of the Re;oice hymnal. 

Director William Evans gave the report of the Free Will Baptist 
Foundation. David Brown gave the financial report. Motion carried 
to receive the report and adopt the budget. 
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h rt of the Board of Retirement. 
Director William Ef~ans ~~vet e ~e~otion carried to receive the Ray Lewis gave the rnaneta repo . 

report and adopt ~he ~~dget. the report of the Home Missions Deport-
Director lorry . owe gave h ort and adopt the budget. 

ment. Motion earned to rdecj've t e t~efhe following Home Missionaries Larry Powell presente P aques . 
whose churches have become self-supportrng: 

Darrell Smith-Portland, Oregon . 
Russell Johnson-Cheyenne: Wyoming 
Jeff Sloan-Fort Wayne, lndrana 
Tim Osborn-Memphis, Tennessee 
Kerry Gandy-Maumelle, Ar~an~as 
J Cannon-Mascoutah, lllrnors 
on k M. h. 

Bob Trimble Bottle Cr~tt' V. IC IT~: ness for 25 years of serv­A plaque was also presente o erge 

ice to Home Mis~~ns. # 8 f the General Boord report pertaining 
The clerk reo tem o E f Committee regarding the 

to the investigative report of ,thed x~cu ~~ith James Munsey. Motion 
Home Missions Department s eo rngs 

carried to adopt Item # 8. f th G nero/ Board report recommend-
The clerk read Item # 9 o ef Fe Will Baptists place the Mexican 

ing that the National AssoCiation o r~obotion for one year, allowing 
Association of Free Wdl Boptls~ ton p f rrnily with the Treatise regard­
them to bring their documents lh o ~~~~n carried to adopt Item # 9. 
ing autonomy of the locol;h1u~c f the General Boord report recom-

The clerk read Item . . of the Free Will Baptists of Mexico 
mending that the Assoclatr~:>n dof embership within the National 

· d · ·ty) be rece1ve or m · {aggn~v~ mlfn oFn w·ll Baptists as a district association. Motron Assoetatron o ree 1 

carried to adopt Item # 1 Oh rt f the Moster's Men Deportment. 
Director Ken Akers g.ave t e repo o this includes recommendations 

Motion carried to receive the reporth ( d d t the budget. 
th ~ed M ster' s Men c arter} an a op f 

regarding e re-sta,, a d t t nt on behalf of the Board o Ch . Gary Fry rea a s a eme h p· 
airman . B.bl C II e President Matt ew rnson 

Trustees of Free Will Boptl~·lll B~ ti~t ~~b l~ College. Treasurer Tom 
gave the repo~ of F.rele ' rt J'otion carried to receive the report Sass gave the frnancla repo . 

and adopt the. budget. Ia ue to lorry Montgomery for 12 
President Pmson prese~jd Co'lie ~ Boord of Trustees. Delegates 

years of servr~e o~d the ~b' te t the late L. C. Johnson, the first pres­viewed a special VI eo tn u e o 
ident of Free Will Baptist Bible College. 
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~- ----~----------------------------------------------

(TBiNbl)~e~~~!~~eB~;~ :f\~:~:~t~:~~~n ~~~{f(i~~)2~4 te~ on the 
and Gene Outla d (IL) I ' reg "etteman 

College Board of Tru; were e ected to six-year terms on the Bible 
Th ees. 

e moderator declared a lunch break at 11 :45 a.m. 

. Wednesday Afternoon-July 24, 2002 
Assrstant moderator Tim York II d h 

order at 1 :30 p.m. He read II Timo~h ~. /9 e afterno~:>n session to 
Treasurer Rob Conle resented th Y. . . and led rn prayer. 

sions. Director James FoJ,Pes gave !he ~ flnoncf~ report. for Foreign Mis­
partment. Motion carried to . th eport 0 e Forergn Mrssrons De-

Donn Williams recerve e repo.rt and adopt the budget. 
on the F y . M· .(AL) was elected to frll an unexpired 2004 term 

orergn rssrons Boa d B'll J ( 
a.nd Bill Van Winkle (TN) we;e · 

1
' ~nes .TX), David Williford (TN) 

ergn Missions Board. e ecte to srx-year terms on the For-

Retiring director Alton Loveless d d' 
gave the Sunday School and Ch hnTi . r~ector-elect Ron Hunter 
Motion carried to receive the repou~c dardnrng Dhepbartment report. 

Tim Owen (FL) 1 .an ° opt t e udget. 
th S d S h 

was e ected to frll an unexpired 2004 t 
e un ay c ool and Ch h li . . erm on 

David Reece (VA) and Nu~rcB rarnrng Board. Danny Dwyer (AL), 

terms on the Sunday School ando~h (C~)li w~r~ elected to six-year 
Ron Hunter presented a Ia ue t ur~ :ornrng Board. 

service on the Sunday Scho~l ~nd ~h avhd iu~~n for 15 years of 
Sutton presented t h. u.r~ rarnrng Board. David 
and his wife Delo~a c rng watches to retrnng director Alton Loveless 

Leroy Forlines gave the report of th C . . 
Integrity. Motion carried to receive the ~epoortmm~srdn for ~hebological 

Leroy Forlines (TN) was elected t . an a opt t e udget. 
mission for Theological Integrity. o a frve-year term on the Com-

Steve Faison gave the report of th M d. . . 
carried to r~ceive the report and ado;t th: b:~oe~mrssron. Motion 

Steve Farson made 0 present f t R g · 
service to the Media Commissio~.ron o on and Pam Hunter for their 

Monte McKenzie (TN) 1 d . 
term on the M d. C . ~as e ect.e to frll an unexpired 2006 
f. e ra ommrssron Kevrn N · (MI) 
rve-year term on the M d. C . . . orns was elected to a 

Ch 
. e ra ommrssron 

ns Truett gave the re rt f th M .. 
ried to receive the report. po o e usrc Commission. Motion car-

Doug Little (AR) 1 d . 
mission. was e ecte to a frve-year term on the Music Com-
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The clerk read Item # 3 of the General Board report that called 
for making registration badges mandatory for all 2003 convention 
events. Motion carried to adopt Item # 3. 

The clerk read Item # 4 of the General Board report recom­
mending that Liberty Free Will Baptist Church in New Berlin, Wiscon­
sin, be given membership in the National Association of Free Will 
Baptists. Motion carried to adopt Item # 4. 

The clerk read Item # 5 of the General Board report increasing 
national representation fees to $1 00 per church per year effective 
2004 . Motion carried to adopt Item # 5. 

The clerk read Item # 6 of the General Board report authorizing 
the Executive Office to secure finances to fund the 2003 convention 
if necessary. Motion carried to adopt Item # 6. 

The clerk read Item # 7 of the General Board report referring to the 
grievance filed by Dale Weaver to the Free Will Baptist Bible College 
Board of Trustees for resolution. Motion carried to adopt Item # 7. 

A partial report of the Nominating Committee for General Board 
members was read. Mike Stokes (OH) was elected to fill an unexpired 
2003 term on the General Board. The following were elected to serve 
terms expiring 2005: Chris Clay (IN), Zane Brooks (KS), James Patton 
{KY), Carlos Rubio (Mexico), Gene Norris {MI), Jay Baines {Mid­
Atlantic), J. L. Gore {MS), Nathan Ruble (MO), William Brown (NJ) 
and Mark Shores {NM). Luis Felipe Tijerina (Association of the Free 
Will Baptist of Mexico) was elected to serve a term expiring in 2004. 

The clerk read a partial report of the Nominating Committee. J. 
L. Gore {MS), Gene Norris {MI) and Nathan Ruble (MO) were elect­
ed to serve three-year terms on the Executive Committee. 

Jack Williams gave the report of the Historical Commission. 
Motion carried to receive the report and adopt the budget. 

Jack Williams was elected to serve a five-year term on the His­
torical Commission. 

The moderator declared a recess until 9:00a.m., July 25, 2002. 

Wednesday Evening-July 24, 2002 
The evening service began at 7:00 p.m. with the Convention 

Choir and members from Truth and Peace singing, "Forever." Worship 
leader Don Myers led the congregation in singing, "Holy, Holy, Holy," 
"Holy Ground" and "I Worship You, Almighty God." 

David Joslin gave the welcome and called on Harold Blankenship 
to pray the invocation. The Truth and Peace choir sang, "Yes, I Believe," 
as the congregation saw photos of deceased Free Will Baptist mission­
aries displayed on large screens. 
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- ~----------.. -------------
Larry Powell introduced home missionaries present for the serv­

ice and had them stand as their names were called. James Forlines 
introduced foreign missionaries present for the service and had 
them stand as their names were called. 

David Joslin called for the convention offering. Jose Rodriquez 
led in prayer. For an offertory the Convention Choir sang, "By The 
Way of the Cross." 

The congregation sang, "The Old Rugged Cross," "0 How He 
Loves You and Me" and '~esus, We Crown You With Praise." 

David Joslin introduced the speaker for the evening service. 
Connie Cariker led in prayer. A ladies trio from First FWB Church in 
Gastonia, North Carolina, sang, "Hasten The Day." 

Tulsa, Oklahoma, pastor Curtis Linton read Romans 12:1-2 for 
his text and delivered the evening message. Lorenza Stox dismissed 
the service in prayer. 

Thursday Morning-July 25, 2002 
The meeting was called to order at 9:00 a.m. Assistant clerk 

John Hibbard read Hebrews 1 0: 18-25 and led in prayer. 
Dean Jones gave the report of the National Youth Conference. 

Motion carried to receive the report as information. 
Executive secretary-treasurer Marjorie Workman gave the report 

of Women Nationally Adive for Christ. Motion carried to receive the 
report as information. 

David Womack (FL) was elected to fill an unexpired 2004 term 
on the General Board. 

Tim Eaton gave the report of the Educational Task Force. Motion 
carried to receive the report. 

Nathan Ruble gave the report of the Publications Committee. 
Motion carried to receive the report. 

Melvin Worthington gave the report of the Budget Committee. 
Motion carried to receive the report. 

The clerk read the Obituary Committee report. Motion carried 
to receive the report. Herbert Waid led in prayer. 

The clerk read Item # 1 of the Resolutions Committee report. 
Motion carried to adopt Item # 1 . 

The clerk read Item # 2 of the Resolutions Committee report. 
Motion carried to adopt Item # 2. 

The clerk read Item # 3 of the Resolutions Committee report. 
Motion carried to adopt Item # 3. 

Motion carried to adopt the following motion: 
"Be it resolved that we, the National Association of Free Will 
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Baptists, request our clerk to write a letter of thanks and comhenda­
f to President George W. Bush for his bold opposttton to. uman 
~l;nin and for appointments to United Nations family planm~g con­
ferenc~s which resulted in dramatic reversals. and t~e protectton and 
preservation of lives of millions of unbo:n chddr.en .. 

Motion carried to adopt the followtng motion. 
"We, the body of believers of the Lyons Free Wil~ B?ptist Church, 

along with other believers ask the National Assooatlon to word a 
resolution to be sent to our president and congress expresstng ohr 
b l'ef that our nation was formed and founded by me~ w o 
b:l~eved in one God. These men held in their hearts t~e belief that 
th e was one God who blessed and directed the affatrs of men. 

er We do not believe that it should be judged illegal for anyo~e to 
sa the pledge of allegiance simply because of the phras~ . on~ 
ndtion under God.' Our constitution grants us 'free~om of rellgton, 
not freedom from religion. We know that ou~ Prestdentkahd man~ 

overnment leaders hold with our view and wtsh to than t em an 
;up port them in their fight against this movement to. r~movehth_e v~r;t 
mention of God from any public, government ~r Cl~tc gat en~g. 

The clerk read the final report of the N~mtnattng Commtttee. 
Carl Cheshier (OK) was elected moderator. Ttm York (KY) was ele~­
ed assistant moderator. John Hibbard (CA) was elected clerk. Ran y 

Bryant (FL) was elected a_ssistant clerk. 
Motion carried to ad1ourn. 
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I ~--------------------~-------------

The Executive Secretary's Report 
2001 

The Free Wrll Baptist Hymn Book: Rej oice and The Rejoice Hymnal For The 
Church At Worship are experiencing steady sales. The Free Wrll Baptist Hymn 
Book: Rejoice may be ordered from Randall House Publications. Tempo Music 
Publications, Inc., distributes The Rejoice Hymnal For The Chwch At Worship. 

The Free Will Baptist Leadership Conference m et December 3-4, 
2001 , at Regal Maxwell House Hotel in Nashville, Tennessee. Dr. Larry 
Reesor, president of Global Focus spoke during the conference. The theme 
for the conference was Growing a Great Commission Denomination. 

The 2001 convention in Detroit, Michigan, registered 5,031. The 
music, messages and meetings were outstanding. We commend the 
Michigan State Association for their excellent job hosting the convention. 
Preparations for the 2002 convention in Memphis, Tennessee, are on 
schedule. Convention Manager Dean Jones is making a significant impact 
on the convention planning and preparation process. 

During their December 2001 m eeting in Nashville, Tennessee, the 
Executive Committee selected speakers and a theme for the 2002 national 
convention. The theme chosen was Obedience: Ow Obligation. The speakers 
include Alton Loveless (TN), Carl Cheshier (OK), Chaplain Kerry Steedley, 
Melvin Worthington (TN), Curtis Linton (OK) and Stan Toler (OK). 

The reporting forms (50 1, 502, 503 and 504) need to be used when 
reporting statistical data. These forms are carefuJiy designed to report 
denominational data that enables us to compile accurate statistical infor­
mation. The reporting forms are supplied at no cost and may be ordered 
from the Executive Office. Perhaps we need to be reminded of the follow­
ing Treatise excerpt (page 59, Section 3): 

It shall be the duty of each body directly affiliated with the National 
Association to send a letter to every annual session of the Association, 
reporting its statistics on a form provided by the National Association. Any 
body which fails to do this for two successive sessions may be dismissed 
from the Association by a majority vote of m embers present. 

We encourage local church, district and state association clerks to take the 
necessary time to accurately fill out these National Association reporting forms. 

Contact provides current information regarding denominational life. 
Lifetime subscriptions cost $500. We now have 38 lifetime subscribers. Lifetime 
subscribers receive a leather-bound copy of the Free Will Baptist Hymn Book: 
Rejoice (1 988). We encourage each church to purchase a lifetime subscription. 
Complimentary copies are provided for students at Free Will Baptist Bible 
College, Hillsdale FWB College, California Christian College and Southeastern 
FWB College. The December 2001 distribution of Contact totaled 5, 7 40. 

The Treatise of the Faith and Practices of the National Association of 
Free Will Baptists, Inc., has been updated and reprinted. A Millennium 
Edition of the Treatise is available in hardback . Treatises may be ordered 
from Randall House Publications. 

The Rest of the Family Offering totaled $14,038.68 through December 31, 
2001 . After expenses, the balance was disbursed to participating national agen­
cies. September 29 has been designated as Rest of the Family Sunday. 
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. . Office totaled $354,421.10 in 2001. Of this 
Gtfts for the Executwe t' d $23 202 73 w as Designated. The 

~~~:;1~k~~~~~O~~~~~~~~%r$390,00o, thus leaving a 2001 budg-

et shortfall of $35~5 7~ . . tri . n 2001 totaled $12,545,809.99. Per capita 
Gifts for nation nurus ~s 1 PI n ifts through the Executive Office 

giving was $63.39. 2T<9oggr~ ~o~t f736,040.45 was Cooperative a~d 
totaled $3,906,123. · s . rifi ial and systematic 
$3,170,082.84 pesigna_t~d . . We appr~~: ~~u;t~!~ W~ Plan in 2001. 
support of natloralnalAsmmmbtstnly~f :~~femationaT Fellowship of Free Will Baptist 

The Gene se 2001 tponed due to the 
Chwches scheduled to convene October 8-12, ting h:S :e~ rescheduled for 

terrorist attacks on September 
1~~ ~:.::~ickson, Tennessee. The Mon?ay 

Octo?er 7-11 '. 2002, .at Camp ga:lson Free Will Baptist Church in Nashville, 
everung servtce will be. at 0 rth of Tmst Speakers include Robert 
Tennessee. The theme ts Ste(r~s ~~on \vo~ton (USA), Jose Perurena 

r=~~~~i!~~=on (USA) and Daniel Dorati (Panama) . 

Together Way Totals 
1992 - 2001 

Total 
Year 
1992 
1993 
1994 
1995 
1996 

Total 
$7,832,441.46 
$7,864,572.01 
$8,750,648.37 
$8,777,067.71 
$9,687,919.11 

Year 
1997 
1998 
1999 
2000 
2001 

$10,020,229.65 
$11,279,076.53 
$11,474,176.13 
$12,166,581 .11 
$12,545,809.99 

Tracking The Together Way Totals 
(Through The Executive Office) 

~or ~~~D~es~ignTm~ed~M\O.W 
1992 $1480,847.51 {+31.16%) 86% 
1993 $1,786,527.81 {+20.64) 86% 
1994 $2:071,808.59 { + 15.97%) 87% 
1995 $2,128,315.33 { + 2.73%) 85% 
1996 $2110,182.97 (-0.85%) 85% 
1997 sh75,292.31 {+31.52%) 86% 
1998 $3,004,636.43 (+8.26%) 83% 
1999 $3:066,552.21 ( + 2.06%) 82% 
2000 $3 289,076.32 (7.26%) 82% 
2001 $3:170,082.84 {-3.62%) 81% 

Cooperative 
$243,195.98 {-26.09%) 14% 
$278,925.67 {+ 14.69% 14% 
$313,198.40 { + 12.29%) 13% 
$362,694.52 ( + 15.80%) 15% 
$375,760.11 {+3.60%) 15% 
$442,453.17 (+ 17.75%) 14% 
$608,297.49 (+37.48%) 17% 
$676,020.36 {+11.13%) 18% 
$708,470.54 {4.80%) 18% 
$736,040.45 (3.89%) 19% 

The Together Way Totals increase from 1992-2001 
Designated 114.07% Cooperative 202.65% 
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Total 
$1,724,043.49 ( + 18.24%) 
$2,065,453.48 ( + 19 .80%) 
$2,385,006.99 { + 15.47%) 
$2,491,009.85 (+4.44%) 
$2,485,943.08 {-0.20%) 
$3,217,745.48 { + 29.44%) 
$3,612,933.92 { + 12.28%) 
$3,742,572.57 ( +3.59%) 
$3,997,546.86 {6.81%) 
$3,906,123.29 (-2.29%) 
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Executive Office Retirement and Insurance 
Year Designated Cooperative Total Year Designated Cooperative Total 1992 $123, 182.46 $180,694.62 $303,877.08 1992 $16,509.81 $ 8,750.10 $25,259.91 1993 $128,789.88 $175,087. 19 $303,877.07 1993 $12,344.65 $14,537.48 $26,882.13 1994 $111,598.53 $214,822.00 $326,420.53 1994 $ 9,579.30 $13,772.71 $23,352.01 1995 $11 7,223.58 $217,616.55 $334,840.13 1995 $10,066.31 $20,310.94 $30,377.25 1996 $113,665.59 $206,667.60 $320,332.19 1996 $10,481.55 $23,672.89 $34,154.44 1997 $100,925.33 $221,226.99 $322, 1 52.32 1997 $13,634.99 $30,971.63 $44,606.62 1998 $ 36,680.05 $273,733.63 $310,413.68 1998 $ 6,654.14 $46,838.93 $53,493.07 1999 $ 23,462.71 $304,209.03 $327,671.74 1999 $ 5,198.57 $52,053.61 $57,252.18 2000 $ 23,222.62 $318,811.67 $342,034.29 2000 $ 5,677.40 $54,552.23 $60,229.63 2001 $ 23,202.73 $331,218.37 $354,42 I .1 0 2001 $ 6,023.96 $56,675.18 $62,699.14 

Foreign Missions Master's Men 
Year Designated Cooperative Total Year Designated Cooperative Total 1992 $ 850,776.88 $14,375.28 $ 865, 152.1 6 1992 $17,388.70 $ 8,750.10 $26,138.80 1993 $1,053,812.57 $23,882.82 $1,077,695.39 1993 $20,807.95 $14,537.48 $35,345.43 1994 $1' 179,663.50 $22,626.46 $1,202,289.96 1994 $20,928.93 $13,772.71 $34,701.64 1995 $1,219,696.08 $33,367.82 $1 ,253,063.90 1995 $22,607.06 $20,310.94 $42,918.00 1996 $1 '164,284. 76 $38,891.12 $1 ,203,175.88 1996 $19,034.94 $23,672.89 $42,707.83 1997 $1,652,641.05 $50,882.05 $1 , 703,523.1 0 1997 $20,526.60 $30,971.63 $51,498.23 1998 $1,758,589.14 $76,949.58 $1,835,538.72 1998 $ 8,734.39 $46,838.93 $55,573.32 1999 $1,795,075.28 $85,516.57 $1 ,880,591.85 1999 $ 5,427.86 $52,053.61 $57,481.47 2000 $1,939,178.62 $89,621.49 $2,028,800. 11 2000 $ 5,690.39 $54,552.23 $60,242.62 2001 $I ,8I3,179.36 $93,109.11 $1 ,906,288.4 7 2001 $ 5,287.14 $56,675.18 $61,962.32 

Free Will Baptist Bible College Free Will Baptist Foundation 
Year Designated Cooperative Total Year Designated Cooperative Total 1992 $ 81,669.82 $14,375.28 $ 96,045.10 1992 $11 ,036.40 $ 3,750.10 $14,786.50 1993 $105,536.09 $23,882.82 $129,418.91 1993 $11,281.73 $ 6,230.32 $17,512.05 1994 $1 I 9,264.56 $22,626.46 $141,891.02 1994 $ 9,482.16 $ 5,902.52 *$15,384.68 1995 $157,993.66 $33,367.82 $I 91,361.48 1995 $ 9,927.89 $ 8,704.77 *$18,632.66 I996 $150, 132.44 $38,891.12 $189,023.56 1996 $ 9,513.75 $10,145.63 *$19,659.38 I997 $I57,522.68 $50,882.05 $208,404.73 1997 $13,162.31 $13,273.56 *$26,435.87 1998 $245,940.89 $76,949.58 $322,890.47 1998 $ 5,254.24 $20,073.90 *$25,328.14 1999 $213,519.34 $85,516.57 $299,035.91 1999 $ 4,001.29 $22,308.66 *$26,309.95 2000 $226,236.7 4 $89,621.49 $315,858.23 2000 $ 4,003.99 $23,379.55 *$27,383.54 2001 $276,023.85 $93, 109. I 1 $369,132.96 2001 $ 4,072.43 $24,289.33 *$28,361. 76 

*This balance represents endowment gifts made through The Together Way that 
Home Missions do not benefit the Foundation. 

Year Designated Cooperative Total 
Historical Commission 1992 $293,769.40 $1 1,250.25 $305,019.65 

1993 $368,660.04 $18,690.90 $387,350.94 Year Designated Cooperative Total 1994 $442,380.26 $17,707.66 $460,087.92 1992 $1,137.01 $ 312.52 $1,449.53 1995 $539,687. I 1 $26, 1 14.04 $565,801. 15 1993 $1,118.66 $ 519.14 $1,637.80 1996 $590,400.81 $30,436.66 $620,837.47 1994 $ 966.21 $ 49 1.97 $1,458.18 1997 $723,293.97 $39,820.70 $763, I 14.67 1995 $1,161.46 $ 725.41 $1,886.87 1998 $824,074.15 $60,221.42 $884,295.57 1996 $1,060.83 $ 845.55 $1,906.38 1999 $879,042.73 $66,926.03 $945,968.76 1997 $ 867.70 $1,106.14 $1,973.84 2000 $923,481.04 $70,138.52 $993,619.56 1998 $ 374.95 $1,672.88 $2,047.83 2001 $885,213.41 $72,868.01 $958,081.42 1999 $ 288.81 $1,859.07 $2,147.88 
2000 $ 303.63 $1,948.34 $2,251.97 
2001 $ 392.60 $2,024.04 $2,416.64 
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Commission For Theological Integrity 
Year Designated Cooperative Total 1992 $1,193.44 $ 312.52 $1,505.96 1993 $1,267.94 $ 519.14 $1,787.08 1994 $1,140.95 $ 491.97 $1,632.92 1995 $1,296.68 $ 725.41 $2,022.09 1996 $1,276.01 $ 845.55 $2,121.56 1997 $1,077.90 $1,106.14 $2,184.04 1998 $ 635.44 $1,672.88 $2,308.32 1999 $ 883.46 $1,859.07 $2,742.53 2000 $1,213.45 $1,948.34 $3,161.79 2001 $1,092.37 $2,024.04 $3,116.41 

Media Commission 
Year Designated Cooperative Total 1992 $1,042.42 $ 312.52 $1,354.94 1993 $1' 136.55 $ 519.14 $1,655.69 1994 $1,039.04 $ 491.97 $1,531.01 1995 $1,113.75 $ 725.41 $1,839.1 6 1996 $1,322.22 $ 845.55 $2,167.77 1997 $ 885.05 $1 '106.14 $1,991.19 1998 $3,073.57 $1,672.88 $4,746.45 1999 $ 434.69 $1,859.07 $2,293.76 2000 $ 901.82 $1,948.34 $2,850.16 2001 $1,825.52 $2,024.04 $3,849.56 

Music Commission 
Year Designated Cooperative Total 1992 $ 920.26 $ 312.52 $1,232.78 1993 $1,017.59 $ 519.14 $1,536.73 1994 $ 899.06 $ 491.97 $1,391.03 1995 $ 978.22 $ 725.41 $1,703.63 1996 $ 985.74 $ 845.55 $1,831.29 1997 $ 808.02 $1 '106.14 $1,914.16 1998 $ 378.07 $1,672.88 $2,050.95 1999 $ 260.51 $1,859.07 $2, I 19.58 2000 $ 214.03 $1,948.34 $2,162.37 2001 $ 110.78 $2,024.04 $2,134.82 

The Executive Office continues to operate smoothJy. The staff does its 
work efficiently. We applaud the quality work of Steve Pate, Melody Hood, 
Dari Goodfellow, Marilyn Pritchard, AJtha Keifer, Angie WiiJiams, Dean 
Jones and Jack Williams. 

Thank you for the privilege of serving as executive secretary for the 
National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. 

May God's abundant, abiding and abounding grace be yours as you 
Jive, labor and look for the return of the Lord Jesus Christ. 

Rejoicing and Resting in the Redeemer, Your Servant, 

Melvin Worthington, Th.D., Ed.D., CMP 
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Statistical Summary 
1988- 2001 

Beginning Ending 
Year Membership Baptisms Members Members Net Membership 

Totals Added Lost Increase Totals 

1988 204,382 7,910 12,436 6,454 5,982 210,364 

1989 210,364 8,678 12,726 7,511 5,215 215,579 

1990 215,579 7,946 12,537 6,583 5,954 221,533 

1991 221,533 8,703 12,931 7,240 5,691 227,224 

1992 227,224 9,283 12,123 7,223 4,900 232,124 

1993 232,124 8,828 12,246 6,011 6,235 238,359 

1994 238,359 7,804 12,393 7,508 4,885 243,244 

1995 243,244 8,089 12,701 6,232 6,469 249,713 

1996 249,713 8,436 12,155 5,985 6,170 255,883 

1997 255,883 8,971 11,946 6,660 5,286 261,169 

1998 261,169 10,169 14,089 6,345 7,744 268,913 

1999 268,913 10,200 13,965 7,715 6,250 275,163 

2000 275,163 10,549 12,932 5,841 7,091 282,254 

2001 282,254 8,982 12,252 5,365 6,887 289,141 

Totals 124,548 177,432 92,673 84,759 
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We have audited the statements of financial position of the Executive Office 
of the National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. as of December 3I, 
2001 and 2000 and the related statements of activities and changes in net 
assets, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended. These 
financial statements are the responsibility of the Executive Office's 
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 

statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we 
plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting 
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our 
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all 
material respects, the financial position of the Executive Office of the 
National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. as of December 31, 2001 and 
2000, and its changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 

of America. 

;k 
I 

May 7, 2002 
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EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF THE 

EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF F R EE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets 

Statements of Financial Position For the yean ended December 3 1, 2001and 2000 

December 31, 2001 utd 2000 

Asset& 2001 
Current auets: 

2000 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Executive Contact Special Convention 2001 2000 

Funds held by Free Will Baptin Foundation 
s 103,721 168,560 Reve nues: Office Ma,aziae Projects Fund Totals Totals 

Receivables: 
16,200 10,500 The Together Way Plan S 3,906,124 3,906,124 3,997,547 

Hymnal sales 

Disbursed to agencies 

Other departmental and agency charges 
14,816 20,912 

and departments {3,551, 703} (3,551,703} (3,655,.513) 

1,818 6,020 
3.54,421 

Total receivables 

354,421 342,034 

Inventory, at lower of cost (first- in, first-out method) 
16,634 26,932 

Subscriptions LO Contact 

or market 

Magazine 61,866 61,866 54,173 

Prepaid expenses 
104,.561 133,654 Sales of hymnals 47,48.5 47,485 49,934 

Total current assets 
32,219 36,097 

Gifts and oCferings 2,759 6,828 9,587 9,820 

Office eqajpmeat and furmtarc 

273,.'135 375,743 Interest income 5,646 945 6,591 10,n3 

Less accumulated depreciation 
124,653 124,427 

Convention fees 13,000 182,739 195,739 175,682 

114,150 
Other income 1,233 23.5 808 17,927 20,203 34,.550 

108,204 
Total revenues 364,059 76,046 48,293 207,494 695,892 676,966 

Net office equipment and furniture 10,.503 16,223 

s 283,838 391,966 Cost of hymnal sales: 

U.bilities and Net Assets 
Current liabilities: 

Beginning inventory 133,654 133,654 167,352 

Other costs 17,880 17,880 2,056 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses s 35,495 
Deferred subscription revenues 

17,n4 

Total current liabilities 
24,913 18,661 

Total cost of inventory 151,534 151,534 169,408 

Net assets: 

60,408 36,385 
Less ending inventory 104,561 104,.561 133,654 

Cost of hymnal sales 46,973 46,973 35,754 

Elrecutive OffJCe 
Net investment in equipment 

274,705 265,546 

Contact Magazine 
10,503 16,223 

Gross profit 364,059 76,046 1,320 207,494 648,919 641,212 

Special Projects 
(33,305) (24,417) 

Expenses o f operations: 

Convention Fund 
99,122 130,008 

Executive Office 360,620 360,620 338,G63 

Total net assets 
(127,.595) (31,n9) 

Contact Magazine 84,934 84,934 79,173 

223,430 355,581 
Special Project~ 32,206 32,206 21,661 

s 283,838 391,966 
Convention Fund 303,310 JOJ,:n o 180,618 

See ac:companyiJII notes to fiaancial statements. 
Total expenses 360,620 84,934 32,206 303,310 781,070 619,515 

Increase (decrease) 
in net assets 3,439 (8,888) (30,886) (95,816) ( 132,151) 21,697 

Net assets, beginning 
of year 281,769 (24,417) 130,008 {31,779) 355,.581 333,884 

Net assets, cud of year s 285.208 {33.,105) 99,122 {127.595) 223,430 355J81 

3 

2 
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EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF THE EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF THE 

NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. 

Statements of Functional Expenses Statements of Cash Flows 
For the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 For the years ended December 31,2001 and 2000 

Executive Contact Special Convention 2001 2000 
2001 2000 

Office Ma&azine Projects Fund Totals Totals Cash Flows from Operating Activities s (132,LS1) 21,697 Ezpeoses or operations: Increase (decrease) in net assets 
Salaries 135,061 15,934 33,251 184,246 157,577 Adjustments to reconcile increase (decrease) in oct assets to net 
Housing aUowance 45,000 45,000 42,000 operating activities. 

5,946 7,435 Employee fringe benefits Depreciation and amortization 
and general insurance 54,609 54,609 39,820 (Increase) decrease in; 

10,298 10,450 Payroll taxes 21,818 1,219 1,567 24,604 22,846 Receivables 
29,093 33,698 Travel 21,095 2,499 181 41,441 65,216 66,396 Inventories 
3,878 153 Executive Committee 1,837 5,871 7,708 1,631 Prepaid expenses 

Occupancy costs 29,892 29,892 29,892 Increase (decrease) in: 
17,771 (1,829) Depreciation 5,946 5,946 7,435 Accounts payable and accrued expenses 

( 14,559) Legal and audit 1,061 1,061 1,061 3,183 4,435 funds held for olhcr denominational agencies 
6,252 (4,204} Equipment maintenance 655 655 302 Deferred subscription revenue 

Supplies, office expense 11,908 3,346 820 16,456 32,530 25,609 Net operating activities 
(58,913) 52,841 

Printing and promotion (51) 55,825 111 28,693 84.578 87,129 Cash Flowa from lavesliDg Activities Postage I mail services 1,125 16,980 14 584 18,703 17,686 Funds held by Free Will Baptist Foundation 
(5,700) (l.SOO) 

Telephone 3,726 20 3 322 4,071 3,087 (226) (9,372) 
Purchase of equipment Writer's fees 4,265 4,265 3,585 (5,926) (10,872) Auditorium and other Net investing activities 

convention services 160,001 160,001 58,887 Cash Flows from Financing Activities 
Leadership Conference 2,120 2,120 Prepayments of notes payable 
International FelJowship 1,200 1,200 2,200 Net financing activities 
Educational Task Force 7,608 7,608 2,454 

Net increase ( decreaseO in cash (64,839) 41,969 
The Together Way Plan 178 178 346 

168,560 126,591 Auto and copier leases 17,730 17,730 16,228 Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 
Executive Search 1,724 1,724 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year s 103,721 168,560 
Church directory 3,962 3,962 
Mexican Arbitration 7,889 7,889 
Other 3,986 938 1,012 7,516 13,452 29,970 Sec accompanying notes to financial statements. 

Total expenses $ 360,620 84,934 32,206 303,310 781,070 619,515 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

4 5 
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EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2001 and 2000 

The Executive Office operates unde the · f · ove . . r auspJCCS o the National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc and is 
gi rned by the Execuuve Comnuttee of the General Board of the National Association of Free Will llaptists 
nc. • 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
Basis of Presentation 
The financ~l stltements of the Executive Offtee have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. 

The ~~ut~ Office follows the provisions of Stltement of Financial Accounting Stlndards SFAS No 
117, ~•nancm! Stltements ~f Not-.for-Profit Organizations". Under SFAS No 11\ thj ~ulive 
~t!e IS /eqwred ~ report _mfonnation regarding its fmancial position and activities according to three 
net ::reo net ~~ts. unrestncte~ net asse~ temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently restricted 

ts. In addition, the Executive Office IS re(Juired to present a stltement of cash flows. 

Further, the Executive Office follows the · · C SFAS 
Received and Contnbutions Made. w.!~VISIOns. 0 No: 116• • ~untiog for Conmbutions 

. • reqwres contributions receJVCd to be recorded 
unrestriCted, temporarily restricted, or permanently restricted su n depe . . as 
or nature of any donor restrictions. ppo nding on the emtence and I 

The Executive Office also follows the provis. r . . 
;-o~~:~~:~Pr~;i~d a~d ~n~utions ~:=)~Ina~;~~~::~:~ ~;, s;.~;~ ~: ~~~:ti~:: 
Interpretltion No. 42,rga= r~ive: ~ma~::~n~h~·~tee·~~ IntermediAry". In accordance with 
to third parties are accounted for as liability tr~"~~ u· ( re tgnated by the donor to be transferred 

....... c ons. see note 6) 

Office Equipment and Furniture 
Office equipment and furniture are stlted at cost De reciat" · · · 
asset using the straight-line method Expe dit p ~ JOn. IS prOVIded over the useful life of the 

be 
. n ures •Or mamtenaoce and repairs Is 

tterments that do not significantly extend the fuJ 1. f . , renewa , and use lVCS o assets are expensed as IJICutred. 

Income Taxes 
'_IlJe Executive Office is exempt from 1::" de 1 d re ra an stlte income tlxes; accordingly, no prOVJS· 1•0 n 'or 
mcome tiXes is made in the accounts. L' 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
For purposes of the statement of cash flows the Exec t" 0 
accounts and highly liquid debt instruments 'u u_ Jve m<;e. considers. all cash funds, cash bank 
to be cash and cash C(Juivalents. p rchased With an ongmaJ matunty of three months or less 

~ecognition of Subscription Revenue from Contact M · 
Cbe amount of subscriptions collected are recorded as liabili" ~gazhme 
revenu R · a ty 10 1 e account deferred subscription 

es. evenues are recogruzed ratlbly over the life of the subscription. 

Use of Estimates 
The preparation of financial stltements in nf< · · · 
the United States of Ame . . co ormJty With accounung principles generally accepted in 

rJCa reqwres management to make estimates d · 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclos C • an assumptiOns that affect the 
the financial stltements and the reported ure ~ conllngent assets and liabilities at the date of 
period. Actual results could differ from those es=:~ o revenues and expeTJSCS during the reponing 
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EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 
Compensated Absences 
EmployeeS of the Executive Office are entitled to paid vacation, paid sick days and personal days off. 
depending on job classification, length of service and other factors. It is impracticable to estimate the 
amount of compensation for future absences, and accordingly, no liability bas been recorded in the 
accompanying fir~ancial statements. The Executive Office's policy is to recognize the cost of 

compensated absences when actually paid to employees. 

Presentation of Financial Statements 
Certlin amounts as reported in the 2000 financial statements have been reclassified to conform to 

current year presentation. 

(2) Inventory of Hymnals 
The Executive Office has an agreement with Sunday School and Church Training and Randall House 
Publications ("Randall HoWle"), whereby Randall House warehouses and distnbutes Free Will Baptist 
and "generic" hymnals. Further, Randall House invoices the cWJtomer, collects funds and remits to the 
Executive Office $6.32 for each Free Will Baptist Hymnal sold. A third party distnbutor sales the 
"generic" hymnal and remits to the Executive Office approximately $5.00 for each "generic" hymnal sold, 
at which time Randall House is paid an amount equal to 5% of the sales price for shipping and handling. 
Randall House, as of December 31, 2001, warehoused hymnals valued at a cost of $104,561. 

The leather hymnals remaining from the first printing (approximately 470) valued at $23,111 have been 
transferred to the Contact Magazine Fund and recorded as prepaid expenses. These leather hymnals will 
be given as incentives to subscnbers who purchase a life time subscription to Contact Magazine . 

(3) Pension 
The Executive Offtee participates In the master pension plan of the Board of Retirement and Insurance 
of the National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. The plan is contributory and is matched up to a 
maximum of 5% of compensation. Employees may participate at date of employment Pension 
expenses amounted to $10,150 in 2001 and $9,038 in 2000. The pension plan is a defined contribution 
plan. Under the plan, an account is maintained for each participant and upon retirement the participant 
can either receive a lump-sum distnbution or purchase one of several types of annuity contracts. 

( 4) Operating Leases 
The Executive Office has entered into non-cancellable lease arrangements relating to a copy machine 
and two automobiles. Total expenses amounted to $17,729 for 2001 and $16,228 for 2000. lbe 
minimum payments required are; $13,367 for years 2002 and 20<1'; $9,517 for 2004; and $3,384 for 2005. 

Further, the Executive OITice rent, office space from the National Offtee Building located in Antioch, 
Tennessee. The lease agreement is cancelable with 90 day written notice. Office lease expense 

amounted to $29,892 for 2001 and 2000. 

(5) The Together Way Plan 
The Executive OffJCC is responsible for receMDg and disbwsing funds received from The Together 
Way Plan program. Designated contnbutions are disbursed to the named Department or ageucy, and 
cooperative funds are disbUl"'SI:d based on the proportionate sharing arrangement. The following 
summarizes these transactions for the year ended December 31,2001 as compared to 2000 totals. 
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EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements, continued ' 

(5) The Tot;ether Way Plan, continued 
2002 2001 

Rcuipts: Dcaizaated Cooperative Tot.al Tot.al 
Alabama $ 5,.112 1,941 7).53 6,617 
Arkansas 301,164 200,658 501,822 368,879 
California 884 13,479 14,..163 9,815 
Florida 400 15,996 16,.196 12,836 
Georgia J79,490 19,086 398,576 397,476 
Illinois 108,245 24,426 132,671 128,091 
Indiana 23,432 2,641 26,073 18,569 
Iowa 2,189 2,189 4,101 
Kentucky 7,203 12,079 19,282 26,744 
Michigan 241,039 28,610 269,649 319,004 
Mississippi ~,S27 7,671 107,198 85,14S 
Missouri 495,851 170,922 666,m 661,280 
New Mexico 6,176 593 6,769 7,6SO 
North Carolina 19,387 33,.131 52,718 50,830 
Ohio 172,685 35,858 208,543 206,457 
Oklahoma 502,871 B4,468 637,339 817,033 
South Carolina ~24.186 1,258 525,444 529,108 
Tennessee 155,253 2.1,922 179,175 185,282 
Texas 86,646 3,294 89,940 122,448 
Virginia 4,505 1,316 5,821 7,351 
West Virginia 26,958 1,409 28,367 21,921 
Canada 1,fiXJ 1:W 7,734 7,749 
Contnbulions totaling $2,500 01 less 1,269 760 2,029 2,561 

Total receipts s 3.170,083 736,041 3,906,124 3,m,S47 

Disbursements: 
Executive Office s 23,203 331,218 354,421 342,034 
Foreign Missions 1,813,179 93,110 1,906,289 2,028,800 
Free Will Baptist Bible College 276,024 93,110 369,134 315,858 
I lome Missions 885,213 72,868 958,081 993,623 
Retirement & Insurance 6,024 56,675 62,6~ 60,229 
Master's Men 5,281 56,675 61,962 60,242 
Commission for Theologicallntegrity 1,092 2,024 3,116 3,161 
Foundation 4,072 24,289 28,361 27,384 
Historical Commission 393 2,024 2,417 2,252 
Music Commission 111 2,024 2,135 2,162 
Media Commission 1,826 2,024 3,8.50 2,850 
Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College 22,635 22,6.15 21,163 
Other, including the Capital 

Stewardship Campaign 131,024 131,024 137,789 

Total disbursements $ 3,170,083 736,041 3,906,124 31m.S47 
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2003 
Executive Office Budget 
2001 2002 2003 

Administrative 
Convention 
Contact 

$ 390,000.00 $ 411 ,000.00 
217,535.25* 240,056.30** 

93,105.00 93,105.00 

$ 425,000.00 
278,792 .91 *** 

93,105.00 

Totals 
------~-----------

$ 700,640.25 $ 744,161 .30 $ 796,897.91 

*2000 **2001 ***2002 

2003 
Administrative Budget 

Proiected Expenses 2001 

Salaries s 154,365.25 

Housing 45,000.00 

Social Security 23,133.09 

Retirement 7,340.11 

Employees Insurance 28,604.20 
(Dental/Disability /Health/life/Travel) 

Auditing/Legal 5,000.00 

Automobile Lease (2 Cars) 10,355.56 

Copier Lease 4,500.00 

Equipment Maintenance 3,000.00 

Computer Supplies 11,000.00 

Executive Committee 7,500.00 

General Insurance 5,000.00 
International Fellowship of Free Will Baptist Churches 2,400.00 

Leadership Conference 2,000.00 
Office Rental ($1.00 per sq. ft. x 2,491) 29,892.00 

Office Supplies/Expense 7,500.00 

Other 796.93 

Postage 1,500.00 

Printing 3,000.00 

Promotion 3,000.00 

Books/Dues/Registrations 3,000.00 

Telephone 4,000.00 
Together Way Plan/Stewardship Education 1,500.00 

Travel 22,500.00 
Christmas Bonus (Extra Week's Salary) 1,852.63 
Extra Week Retirement in lieu of 4th week vacation 2,260.23 

beginning with the 16th year of service. 
Totals s 390,000.00 

2002 
s 160,n5.80 

46,561 .06 
24,058.19 
7,645.67 

37,424.32 

5,000.00 
11,000.00 
7,000.00 
2,000.00 

10,000.00 
5,000.00 
5,000.00 
2,400.00 
2,000.00 

29,892.00 
10,000.00 
2,452.56 
1,500.00 
3,000.00 
3,000.00 
3,000.00 
4,000.00 
1,500.00 

22,500.00 
1,926.68 
2,363.72 

s 411 ,000.00 

s 330,000.00 
81,000.00 

s 411 ,000.00 

2003 
s 166,631.99 

49,000.00 
25,020.65 
7,922.67 

40,763.71 

3,500.00 
11,100.00 

8,000.00 
2,000.00 
7,000.00 
5,000.00 
5,500.00 
2,400.00 
3,000.00 

29,892.00 
10,000.00 
4,428.47 
1,500.00 
3,000.00 
3,000.00 
3,000.00 
4,000.00 
1,000.00 

24,000.00 
2,003.78 
2,336.73 

s 425,000.1!Q_ 

s 350,000.00 
75,000.0JL 

s 425,000.00 

Proieded Income 

The Together Way Plan 
Cooperative Gifts 
Designated Gifts 

Totals 

s 300,000.00 
- 90,000.00 
s 390,000.00 
~==============~~ 
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Salary Breakdown 

Executive Secretary 
2001 2002 2003 

Salary S 291270.25 (4%) S 301000.00 (4%) S 36194350 (4%) 
Housing and Utilities 281000.00 (4%) 29,561.06 (4%) 25,000.00 (4%) 
Social Security 81762.35 (15.30%) 91112.84 (15.30%) 9,477.36 (15.30%) 
Retirement 1,46351 (5%) 1,500.00 (5%) 11847.18 (5%) 
Insurance (Health/Dental/life) 41248.61 81311.20 12

1
000.00 

Disability!fravel S 894.49 S 520.20 421.03 
Health 31116.12 7,374.48 
Dental 238.00 41652 

Note: Office car furnished -------------____ _ 
s 711744.72 s 781485.10 s 851689.07 

Administrative Assistant/Contact Editor 

Salary S 28,758.00 (4%) S 30,588.32 (4%) S 25,491.85 (4%) 
Housing and Utilities 17,000.00 (4%) 17,000.00 (4%) 241000.00 (4%) 
Social Security 71000.97 (15.30%) 71281.01 (15.30%) 7,572.25 (15.30%) 
Retirement 11437.90 (5%) 11529.42 (5%) 1127459 (5%) 
Insurance (Health/Dental/life) 7,169.41 81314.67 9

1
000.00 

Disability(fravel $807 54 $523.67 347 56 
Health 51925.48 71374.48 
Dental 436.39 41652 

Note: Office car furnished --------------·----
s 61,366.28 s 64,713.42 

Executive Bookkeeper 
Salary 
Social Security 
Retirement 
Insurance 

s 67168615 

s 331103.94 (4%) s 341428.10 (4%) s 351805.22 (4%) 
2,532.45 (7.65%) 21633.75 (7.65%) 21739.10 (7.65%) 
1,655.20 (5%) 1,721.41 (5%) 11790.26 (5%) 
61742.99 81187.33 61478.88 Disability/life 

Health 
Dental 

$381.12 $396.33 $409.37 
5,925.48 71374.48 5,547.46 

_ 436.3_2_ 41652 522.05 
s 441034.58 s 46197059 s 461813.46 

Editorial Assistant/Secretary 

Salary S 271835.09 {4%) S 281948.49 {4%) S 301106.43 {4%) 
Social Security 21129.38 (7.65%) 2121456 (7.65%) 2,303.14 (7.65%) 
Retirement 1,391.75 (5%) 1,447.42 {5%) 1,505.32 (5%) 
Insurance 31716.16 4,456.12 61132.18 

Disability/Life $362.04 $350.80 $300.03 
Health 3,116.12 31878.16 5,547.46 
Dental 238.00 227.16 28...;.:;.4.6~9 ___ _ 

s 351072.38 s 371066.59 s 401047.07 
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k Coordinator/Registration Coordinator 
Yearboo S 27 835 09 (4%) S 28,948.49 (4%) S 30,106.43 (47•1 

Salary . 2~129 ·38 (7.65%} 2121456 (7.65%} 21303.14 (7.65 Yo) 
Soc~al Secunty 1:391:75 (5%} 11447.42 (5%} 1,505.32 (5%} 
Retirement 6 727.03 81155.00 6,384.06 
Insurance $ 65 16 

1 $ 364 00 $ 314.55 
Disability/life 3 · 

7 37
4.48 5,547.46 

Health 5~925.48 1 · 41652 522.05 436.39 
Dental S 381083.25 --,.S 401765.47 $ 401298.95 

Part-time Help 

Salary (104 days} 
Social Security 

S 7 562 88($9.09 hr.) S 71862.40($9.45 hr.} S 81178.56($9.83 ~r.} 
1578:56 (7.65%} 601.47 {!.6~ 625.66 7.65~ 

s 81141.44 s 81463.87 s 81804.22 

Convention Budget 
National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. 

July 21-25, 2002 
Memphis, Tennessee 

Projected Receipts 

Booth Fees 
Host State (Tennessee} 
local Church Delegate Fees ($50} 
Offerings 
State Assoc. Representation Fees ($50 per church} 

Total 

Projected Expenditures 

Auditorium 
Printing and Promotion 
Convention Office 
Convention Personnel 

Meals 
Travel 
lodging 

Convention Officials 
Volunteer Staff 
Honorariums 
Decorator Services 
Meal Functions 
Executive Committee Meal and Motel Expenses 
Pre-Convention Expenses 

Sub-Total 

National Committee Expenses 
Convention Manager/Graduate School 

Total 

2000 2001 2002 

s 111050.00 s 24,500.00 s 241500.00 
15,000.00 351000.00 25,000.00 
2,500.00 31750.00 2,500.00 

651185.25 531206.30 1031292.91 
123,800.00 123,600.00 123,500.00 
217,535.25 240,056.30 278,7921!_ 

681800.00 691225.00 78,67~.~~ 
28,997.00 41,087.50 38,~~2.73 
351150.00 35,090.00 53,666.72 
16,022.00 121275.00 13, . 

21805.00 3,708.00 31744.00 
81404.50 31746.20 2,948.00 
4181250 41820.80 6,974.72 

8,547.00 6,971.75 6,908.89 
51637.50 3,958.30 4~~~~·~~ 
2,900.00 2,550.00 21 91 .00 

171103.00 25,195.00 24,010.70 
31128.75 3,1 28.75 2,9 ·oo 
3,150.00 3,375.00 313~~·00 

1MO_O.OO 16.000.00 10+-0 
0

..___
56 --206,035.25 218,856.30 238,58 . 

11 ,500.00 21,200.00 23,700.00 
0.00 0.00 16,512.3951 

217,535.25 240,056.30 2781792. 
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Convention Budget 2000 2001 2002 
Office Expense/Supplies s 3,500.00 s 2,500.00 s 2,500.00 

National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. Paper and Printing Supplies 400.00 400.00 400.00 
July 21-25, 2002 

Memphis, Tennessee Postage 800.00 800.00 2,000.00 

Proiected Receipts Pre-Registration Salaries 3,000.00 3,000.00 7,500.00 
2000 2001 2002 Pre-Registration Stoff 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 

Booth Fees s 11,050.00 s 24,500.00 s 24,500.00 Pre-Registration (Supplies, Postage) 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 
Host State (Tennessee) 15,000.00 35,000.00 25,000.00 Registration (Supplies, Postage) 7,500.00 4,500.00 3,000.00 
local Church Delegate Fees ($50) 2,500.00 3,750.00 2,500.00 Registration Computers/Printers 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 
Offerings 65,185.25 53,206.30 103,292.91 Telephone 800.00 1,000.00 500.00 
State Assot Representation Fees ($50 per church) 123l800.00 123l600.00 123,500.00 Total 35,150.00 35,090.00 53,612.73 

Total 217,535.25 240,056.30 278,792.91 Convention Personnel 

Proiected Expenditures Meals 
Dori Goodfellow (27 meals @ $12.00 each) 264.00 324.00 324.00 

Auditorium Melody Hood {30 meals @ $12.00 each) 363.00 360.00 360.00 
Rental 20,500.00 10,500.00 17,640.00 Dean Jones {36 meals @ $12.00 each) 0.00 432.00 432.00 
Meeting Rooms 0.00 0.00 0.00 Steve Pate (18 meals @ $12.00 each) 264.00 252.00 216.00 
Convention Bonner 0.00 150.00 1,500.00 Angie Williams (27 meals @ $12.00 each) 0.00 288.00 324.00 
Convention Topes 250.00 300.00 250.00 Jack Williams (30 meals @ $12.00 each) 396.00 324.00 360.00 
Flowers 150.00 150.00 200.00 Anne Worthington (24 meals @ $12.00 each) 297.00 288.00 0.00 
Other 42,900.00 53,125.00 55,080.00 Melvin Worthington (36 meals @ $12.00 each) 396.00 432.00 432.00 

First Aid Stoff 1,500.00 1,500.00 2,500.00 Convention Interns (9) 0.00 1,008.00 1,296.00 
liability Insurance 1,000.00 Office Worker 297.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 300.00 
Music/Equipment/Fees 1,600.00 1,400.00 5,000.00 Pre-Registration 231.00 0.00 0.00 
Music Stand Rental (Decorator) Security Officer 297.00 0.00 0.00 200.00 900.00 0.00 
Offering Buckets 0.00 25.00 200.00 Total 2,805.00 3,708.00 3,744.00 
Signs 400.00 400.00 1,000.00 Travel 
Sound System/AV Equipment 25,000.00 36,200.00 43,380.00 Dori Goodfellow 209.00 195.70 146.00 
Union Personnel 13,000.00 12,000.00 2,500.00 Melody Hood 230.00 195.70 146.00 
Usher Badges 200.00 200.00 200.00 Dean Jones 0.00 195.70 146.00 

Police Security 5,000.00 5 000.00 4,000.00 Steve Pote(Trons.Coord.,rentol) 6,000.00 2,500.00 2,000.00 
Total 68,800.00 69,225.00 78,670.00 Meals on rood (6 meals @ $12.00 each) 831 .00 72.00 72.00 

Printing and Promotion Angie Williams 0.00 195.70 146.00 
Convention Brochure 0.00 0.00 8,000.00 

Jack Williams 230.00 195.70 146.00 

Convention Materials Anne Worthington 230.00 0.00 0.00 
9,297.00 12,387.50 12,892.00 Digest of Reports Melvin Worthington 230.00 195.70 146.00 

6,842.00 8,625.00 8,580.00 
Programs Office Worker 0.00 0.00 0.00 

1,955.00 3,162.50 3,312.00 
Song Sheets/CCLilicense Press Officer 214.50 0.00 0.00 

Photos 
500.00 600.00 1,000.00 Security Officer 230.00 0.00 0.00 

200.00 200.00 
Pre-Convention Printing/Publicity 

200.00 Total 8,404.50 3,746.20 2,948.00 
3,500.00 3,500.00 17,500.00 Publicity/Art Work Lodging 16,000.00 25,000.00 0.00 Total 28,997.00 41,087 50 38,592.00 Dori Goodfellow (8 nights @ $144.14) 1,237 50 1,058.00 1,153.12 

Convention Office Melody Hood (9 nights @ $144.14) 1,375.00 1,190.25 1,297.26 

Audit 0.00 
Dean Jones 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Convention Manager 
0.00 1,200.00 Steve Pate (7 nights @ $125.24) 1,100.00 1,002.80 876.68 

Courtesy Car 
12,000.00 15,000.00 20,423.00 Angie Williams (8 nights @ $144.14) 0.00 523.25 1,153.12 

Equipment Rentals 
150.00 150.00 200.00 Jack Williams (9 nights @ $125.24) 0.00 0.00 1,127.16 

Computers, Printers (Office) 
4,000.00 4,740.00 4,889.73 Melvin Worthington 0.00 0.00 0.00 

500.00 0.00 1,889.73 Convention Interns (14 nights @ $97.67) 0.00 1,046.50 1,367.38 
Copiers (2)/Poper 
Tables/Choirs/Trash Cons, eft (Office) 

2,100.00 3,000.00 2,000.00 Office Worker 1l100.00 0.00 0.00 
1,400.00 1,740.00 1,000.00 Total (Includes applicable tax and parking) 4,812.50 4,820.80 6,974.72 
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Convention Officials 2000 2001 2002 Moderator- Carl Cheshier $3,080.00 $2,541.00 $2,025.98 Travel (From Oklahoma City, OK to Memphis, TN) 975.00 759.00 365.00 (1 ,000 miles @ $.365 per mile) 

Meals {21 meals @ $12.00 each) 330.00 324.00 252.00 lodging (7 nights @ $144.14) 1,375.00 1,058.00 1,008.98 Honorarium 400.00 400.00 400.00 Clerk - Keith Burden 3,080.00 2,339.75 2,855.54 Travel (From Tulsa, OK to Memphis, TN) 975.00 690.00 438.00 (1 ,200 miles @ $.365 per mile) 
Meals (36 meals @ $12.00 each) 330.00 324.00 432.00 lodging (11 nights @ $144.14) 1,375.00 925.75 1,58554 Honorarium 400.00 400.00 400.00 Assistant Moderator - Tim York 1,193.50 1,045.50 1,127.68 Meals (18 meals @ $12.00 each) 231.00 252.00 216.00 lodging (7 nights @ $130.24) 962.50 793.50 911.68 Assistant Clerk - John Hibbard 1,193.50 1,04550 899.69 Meals {18 meals @ $12.00 each) 231 .00 252.00 216.00 lodging (7 nights @ $97.67) 962.50 793.50 683.69 --Total (Includes applicable tax and parking) 8,547.00 6,971.75 6,908.89 -- --Volunteer StaH 

Music Coordinator - Scott Bullman 1,100.00 44850 781.44 lodging (6 nights @ $130.24) 
Organist-Jamie Patrick I lodging (6 nights @ $130.24) 1,100.00 626.75 781.44 Photographer - Danny Conn 825.00 626.75 586.02 lodging (6 nights @ $97.67) 
Pianist-Jerry Carraway I lodging (6 nights @ $130.24) 687.50 752.10 781 .44 Press Officer I lodging 962.50 0.00 0.00 Toping- Mike Anderson I lodging (6 nights @ $126.39) 0.00 752.10 758.34 Usher Coordinator - Billy Walker 962.50 752.10 864.84 lodging (6 nights @ $144.14) 

Total (Includes applicable tax and parking) 5,637.50 3,958.30 4,55352 
Honorariums 

Ed Cook ............ 150.00 David Bishop .......... 175.00 Carl Cheshier .......... 0.00 
Paul Kennedy ........ 150.00 Danny Dwyer .... . ..... 175.00 Gory Head .......... 175.00 
Doug King .......... 150.00 Carlisle Hanna . . ....... 175.00 Curtis linton ......... 175.00 
H.B. london ....... 2,000.00 Pot Mcloughlin ....... 1 ,500.00 Alton loveless .. . .... 175.00 
Tim Owen ........... 150.00 Gene Norris ... . ....... 175.00 Kerry Steedley ....... 175.00 
David Shores ..... . .. 150.00 leonard Pirtle ......... 175.00 Stan Toler ......... 1 ,500.00 
Winston Sweeney_. ·~ 150.00 Charles Walden_ ........ 175.00 _Melvin Worthington . .. .. 0.00 
Total 2,900.00 2,550.00 2,200.00 

--~================~ -================= Decorator Services 
Booth (75) Installation/Drape Tables/Exhibit Hall Rental 
Convention Office (Two-way radio) 
Exhibitor Badges 

2,600.00 
1,334.00 

300.00 Registration 
Choirs 
Counters 
Easels/Trash Cons/Carpet 

2,730.00 
850.00 
500.00 
280.00 
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13,125.00 
2,000.00 

300.00 
5,390.00 

600.00 
3,000.00 

150.00 

18,175.00 
400.00 
300.00 

2,250.00 
200.00 
600.00 
400.00 

Electricity/Masking Drape 
Skirted Tables 

Stage 
Carpet 

Total 

Hanging Bonner 
Risers 
Skirted Tables/Choirs 
Skirting/Draping/Stage Set-Up 

Meal fundions 
Executive Committee 

Coffee Breaks (2) 
Luncheon (30 people @ $26.12) 

General Board Breakfast (55 people @ $14.22) 
State leaders Breakfast (45 people @ $14.22) 
State ExetSec./Promo.Directors' Breakfast 

(25 people@ $14.22) 
Presidents' Breakfast I (6 people @ $16.60) 

Total 

2000 2001 2002 
s 300.00 s 300.00 s 650.00 

800.00 1,340.00 400.00 
10,139.00 4,380.00 2,966.00 

900.00 3,500.00 1,500.00 
500.00 200.00 100.00 

0.00 0.00 1,200.00 
200.00 180.00 46.00 

8 39.00 500.00 120.00 
17,103.00 25,195.00 24,091.00 

1,000.00 
250.00 
750.00 

893.75 
731.25 
406.25 

9750 
3,128.75 

1,000.00 
250.00 
750.00 

893.75 
731.25 
406.25 

9750 
3,128.75 

1,033.60 
250.00 
783.60 

782.10 
639.90 
355.50 

99.60 
2,910.70 

Executive Committee I Meal and Motel Expenses . . 
(For the Executive Committee Meeting prior to the 2002 National Conventlon)G N . 375 00 

Gene Norris 375.00 ene oms · · · · · · · · · Gene Norris .. . .. · · .350.00 th R bl. · · · · · · ·375 OO Nathan Ruble ...... 375.00 
Nathan Ruble ...... 350.00 N~k Can hu e ...... 375.00 Rick Cash .......... 375.00 
J k R. h 350 00 Ric as · ...... · .. · 375 00 ac 1c ey · · · · · · · · · 1 J h 375 00 Glen Johnson . . . . . . · D I S ks 350 00 G en ° nson .. .. .. · 375 00 e mar par · · · · · · D 'd J 1. 375 00 David Joslin .. .. . .. · D 'd J 1· 350 00 OVI OS IO • .. .. .. • 375 00 

av1 os 10 · • • · • • · • h 1 Th' 375 00 Charles Thigpen . . . . · Ch I Th. 350 00 C or es lgpen .. .. · 375 00 or es 1gpen .. .. · 375 00 J. L Gore .. . .. .. .. · J l G 350 00 J L Gore .... · .. .. · J 375 00 . . ore · · · · · · · · · · · · H . J 375 00 Ernest Harrison, r. . . . M'll d s 350 00 Ernest arnson, r. · · · 
3
,7

5
: no 1 or asser ... · · · · . McAI'st 375 00 Doice McAlister . . I . _ . tL ~ 

D_g& l'ster . .350.00 D-.Mi 1 er I I· 3·
375

·
00 

3,375.00 
Total 3,150.00 ' · ---

Pre-Convention Expenses 
Pre-Convention Meetings/Site Inspections 
Advance Convention Center Deposits 

Total 

National Committee Expenses 
Educational Task Force Committee 
Executive Committee 
National Board Chairman Committee 
Nominating Committee 
Publications Committee 

Total 

Convention Manager 
Educational Expense/Graduate School 

14,000.00 
__t600.00 
16,600.00 

0.00 
10,000.00 

0.00 
1,500.00 

0.00 
11,500.00 

0.00 

A- 47 

16,000.00 10,000.00 
0.00 0.00 

16,000.00 10,000.00 

8,000.00 8,000.00 
12,000.00 15,000.00 

200.00 200.00 
1,000.00 500.00 

0.00 O.OQ_ 
21 ,200.00 23,700.00 

0.00 16,512.35 



2003 
Contact Budget 

Proiected Expenses 2001 
Printing s 50,000.00 Postage 
Art 15,000.00 

Writers' Fees and Photos 1,500.00 

Promotion 4,000.00 
3,000.00 

Computer Services/Supplies 3,500.00 Moil Services 
Telephone 5,000.00 

Office Supplies 200.00 
3,000.00 Travel 

Books/Dues/Registrations/Bound Copies 
3,000.00 
2,500.00 Audit 

Other 1,000.00 

Convention Truck 1,205.00 

Total Expenses 200.00 
s 93,105.00 

Proiected Income 

Convention coverage s 15,000.00 Subscriptions 
Total Income 78,105.00 

93,105.00 

* Three issues 
**Based on 5,207 subscriptions@ $15.00 per year 

A- 48 

s 

s 

s 

2002 2003 
50,000.00 s 50,000.00 
15,000.00 15,000.00 
1,700.00 1,200.00 
4,000.00 4,500.00 
3,000.00 5,000.00 
3,500.00 3,500.00 
5,000.00 4,500.00 

200.00 200.00 
3,000.00 2,000.00 
2,500.00 2,500.00 
2,500.00 2,000.00 
1,500.00 1,500.00 
1,005.00 1,005.00 

200.00 200.00 
93,105.00 s 93,105.00 

15,000.00 ' s 15,000.00* 
78,105.00 78,1 05.00** 
93,105.00 93,105.00 

2002 
Gift Goals for Executive Office 

States 
Alabama 
Arizona 
Arkansas 
California 
Canada 
Colorado 
Florida 
Georgia 
Hawaii 
Idaho 
Illinois 
Indiana 
Kansas 
Kentucky 
Louisiana 
Mid-Atlantic Assoc. 
Mexico 
Michigan 
Mississippi 
Missouri 
Montana 
New Jersey 
New Mexico 
North Carolina 
Northeast Assoc. 
Northwest Assoc. 
Ohio 
Oklahoma 
Puerto Rico 
South Carolina 
South Dakota 
Tennessee 
Texas 
Virgin Islands 
Vrrginia 
West Virginia 
Wisconsin 
Totals 

Membership 
I7,060 

297 
20,564 
2,834 

432 
I25 

6,374 
9,293 

49 
245 

3,624 
550 
282 

15,807 
7 

627 
0 

2,577 
3,609 

I5,7I9 
16 

I08 
59 

22,317 
223 
178 

I 0, I68 
23,032 

0 
4,86I 

0 
19,594 
2,556 

199 
5,459 
9,040 

34 
197,919 

Gift Goals Per Person 

A- 49 

Gift Goals 
$ 35,426.93 

616.75 
42,703.35 
5,885.IO 

897.09 
259.58 

13,236.29 
19,297.91 

101.75 
508.77 

7,525.62 
I,I42.13 

585.60 
32,824.93 

14.54 
1,302.03 

0.00 
5,351.42 
7,494.48 

32,642.I9 
33.23 

224.27 
122.52 

46,343.64 
463.08 
369.64 

21 ,1I4.94 
47,828.4I 

0.00 
10,094.39 

0.00 
40,689.04 

5,307.81 
4I3.24 

II ,336.20 
18,772.53 

70.60 
$4II ,000.00 

$2.08 
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llllllrll~ Hill, Harper & Associates 
l ~ Certified Public Accountants 

Terry A. Hill 
Ernest R. Harper 

Independent Auditors' Repon 

Executive Committee of the 
General Board of the National 
Association of Free WiD Baptists, Inc. 

81ft\1Wood Eucu!Jw Center 
761 Old H.kkory Boulevard 
Sw~206 
81ft\1Wood, TN 'I!027 
TEL: 615/ 377-3435 

We have audited the statements of financial position of Building Services 
Fund of the National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. as of December 
31, 2001 and 2000, and the related statements of activities and changes in net 
assets and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are 
the responsibility of the Fund's management. Our responsibility is to express 
an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the Unitied States of American. Those standards require that we 
plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes 
examining, on a test bas~ evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in. 
the financial statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting 
principles use(,! and significant estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our 
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all 
material respects, the financial position of the Building Services Fund of the 
National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. as of December 31, 2002 and 
2001, and its changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America. 

~ ~ 1 a"4,r~ .. ~ 
May7, 2002 

1 

A· 54 

BUILDING SERVICES FUND OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF F~EE ~~L BAPTISTS, INC. 

Statements of Financtal Pos•tion 
December 31,2001 and 2000 

Asata 
16,106 $ 

Cash and interest bearing depOSits 14,966 
AccOunts receivable 9,824 
Marketable securities. at market value 

Prepaid expenses 

209,671 

52,929 

52,412 

4,067 

209,671 Property and equipment: 
Land and land improvements 1,408,881 1,314,240 

Building n;ZIJ8 70,140 

Building services equipment 65,060 65,060 

Departmental workstations 1,755,880 1,659,1 I 1 

nt.330 646,475 
Less accumulated depreciation 

1,034,550 1.012,636 
Net property and equipment 

$ 1,075,446 L,l22,044 

Liabilities and Net Assets 
$ 16,780 25,768 

Notes payable and long-term debt 21,984 
Al::counts payable and accrued expenses 16,780 47,752 

Total liabilities 

Net assets: 40,896 109,312 

Operations . 1,017,770 986,868 
Net investment in property, plant and eqwpment 

1,058,666 1,096,180 
Total net assets 

$ 1,075,446 1,143.932 

See accompanyiDg notes to financial statements. 
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T 
BUILDING SERVICES FUND OF THE 

NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. 
Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets 

For the yean ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 

Unrestricted Funds Capital 

Revenues: Services for Stewardship 

Buildi.o 
Operations Oepartmenta Cam . 

. g r~ntal and other revenues S 243,948 paJp 

Contnbuoons, net of campaign expenses 
Reimbursement from departments 
Other 
Net assets released from restrictions 

220 
471,624 

12,685 

2001 
Totals 

243,948 
220 

471,624 
12,685 

2000 
Totals 

243,948 
2,393 

400,88.c; 
734 

and departmental reimbursements 
Net revenues 

471,844 (471,624) __ J.:(220~) ~--- ----

llipeii.IC8: 

Expenses incWTCd for departmenta: 
Employee benefits 
The Together Way Plan 
Leadership Conference 
Property and liability insurance 
Telephone 
Mailroom and other 
Depreciation - telephone system 
Interest expense - telephone 

Buildiat operatiq e:zpenses: 
Salaries 
Payroll taxes 
Employee benefits 
Janitorial services 
Depreciation 
Audit and legal 
GeneraJ insurance 
Interest expense 
Supplies and office expense 
Utilities I telephone 
Repairs and maintenance 
Mailroom and other 

Total expenses 
lncreue (deaease) in net assets 
Net useta at betianint of year 
Net assets at end of year s 

283,763 
11,713 
31,567 
38,480 
22,426 
83,534 
9,793 
1,846 

483,122 

52,42.1 
3,994 

23,385 
27,717 
65,062 
4,500 

13,818 

9,778 
24,093 
14,458 
21,753 

260,981 
744,103 
(15,626) 

1,074,292 
1,058,666 

See acc:ompaayint notes to fimux:ialatatemeats. 
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283,76..1 
11,713 
31,567 
38,480 
22,426 
83,534 
9,793 
1,846 

483,122 

52,423 
3,994 

23,385 
27,717 
65,062 
4,500 

13,818 

9,'n8 
24,093 
14,458 
21,753 

260,981 
744,103 
(15,626) 

1,074,292 
1,058,666 

647,960 

'l1J7,307 
6,482 

32,.568 
26,325 
21,577 
68,671 
9,793 
2,575 

375,298 

54,653 
4,181 

14,326 
'1:1;1.64 
65,990 
7,792 

13,182 
651 

8,758 
28,094 
11,.190 
14,493 

250,774 
626,072 
21,888 

1,052,404 
1,074,292 

BUILDING SERVICES FUND OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. 

Statements of Cash Flows 
Years ended December 31,2001 aad 2000 

Cub F1owa from Opera tin& Activities 
Net increase (decrease) in net assets 

Adjustments to reconcile net increase in net assets to 

net operating activities : 

Depreciation and amortization 
lnvestment securities received from conversion of insurance 

carrier from a mutual company to a stock company 

(Increase) decrease in: 
Receivables 
Prepaid expenses 

Increase (decrease) in: 
Accounts payable and accruals 

Net operating activities 
Cash Flows from Investinr Activities 
Purchase of property and equipment 

Net investing activities 
Cash F1ows from Fmaacin& Activities 
Repayment of debt 

Net financing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash 
Cash and cash equivalents, at beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents, at end of year 

Supplemental disclosures: 
Interest paid 

See acc:ompanyia~ notes to (inaJJ<:iaJ statements. 

4 

A- 57 

s (15,626) 

74,855 

(9,824) 

37,446 
4,067 

{21,984} 

68,934 

{96.769} 

(96,769) 

(8,988} 

{8,988) 

(36,823) 
52,929 

s 16,106 

21,888 

75,783 

(41,816) 
(1,899) 

21,756 

75,712 

(5,.100) 

(5,300} 

(42,483) 

(42,483) 

'1:1,929 
25,000 

52,929 



BUILDING SERVICES FUND OF 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BTHAPE 

N 
. TISTS INC 

otes to Fmancial Statements ' · 

December 31, 2001 and 2000 
The Fund operates de . un r the auspiCeS of the National Ass . . 
by a management committee which is .. _,_ed by OCJation of Free Will Baptists Inc and . 
Will Ba . Cwur the F..xecutive Seer C • • IS governed 

plJSts, Inc. The management committ . etary o the National Assocation f F 
the National Offices Facility. ee IS composed of the directors of the Departments which oocc:: 

(1) Su~ary of Significant Accounting Policies 
BasiS of Presentation 
The financial statements of the Fund ha bee 

Th 
ve n prepared on the accrual basis of acco ti 

e Fund follows Statement of the . . un ng. 
"F' . prOVISIOns of Finane. 1 Alx;o . 
maoc~l Statements of Not-for-Profit Or an· . • Ja untmg Standards (SFAS) No. 117 

report .mformation regarding its financial rx!iti=~~ · ~?~r SFAS No. 117, the Fund is required ~ 
unrestriCted net assets temporaril . acllVitJes according to three classes of 
ddi · • Y restricted net assets, d net assets: 

a bon, the Fund is required to present a statement of cash flo: permanently restricted net assets. In . 

Further the Fund r ll . 
• tO ows the provisions of SFAS 

Contributions Made" which . . . No. 116, "Alx;ounting Cor Contnbutio R . 
. . • reqwres contnbutions received be ns eceJVed .. od 

restrrlcact~ or permanently restricted support dependi thto . recorded as unrestricted, temporarily 
rest lions. ng on e eXJStence and 1 or nature r o any donor 

Marketable Securities 
The Fund received marketable · · mutual sccunt.Jes from one of its insurance . 

~pany to a stock company which is val earners upon its conversion from a 
Accounlmg Standards No. 124, "Accountin f< Cc ~d at quoted market prices to comply with Fi . I 

P 
g or rtam Investments of Not for Profit O....,.n~"ti IMDCJa 

roperty and Equipment ·o- ons. 

Property and equipment are stated a t cost . 
betterments that do not s;~";"---tly • Expenditures for maintenance and re . ~ extend the useful lives of assets . paus, renewals, and 

Depreciation is provided using tbe straight-line method. are e.q>ensed as IIICUCTed. 

Income Taxes 
The Fund is exempt from Federal and state inco 
made in the accounts. me taxes; accordingly, no provision for income taxes is 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
For purposes of the statement of cash fl 
highly li~uid debt instruments purchased = ~:e ~~d lconside.rs all cash funds, cash bank accounts and 
cash equMients. ongm.a matunty of three months or less to be h cas and 

Use of Estimates 
·me preparation of financial statements . 
the United States of America requires O:na~e~::i~ with acco~nling principles generally accepted in 
reported ~unts of assets and liabilities and disci make C:SLJ.mates and assumptions that affect tbc 
the financial statements and the osure of contingent assets and liabilif th 

iod 
reported amounts of aes at e date of 

per . Actual results could diJfer from ... __ . revenues and expenses during th . ~estimates. e reportmg 

5 
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BUILDING SERVICES FUND OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 
Presentation of Financial Statements 
Certain amounts as reported in the 2000 financial statements have been reclassified to conform to 

current year presentation. if applicable. 

Compeosated Absences 
Employees o( the Fund are entitled to paid vacation, paid sick days and personal days off. depending on 
job classification, length of service and other factors. It is impracticable to estimate the amount of 
compensation for future absences, and accordingly, no liability bas been recorded in the accompanying 
financial statements. The Fund's policy is to recognize the cost of compensated absences when actually 

paid to employees. 

(2) Notes Payable and Long- term Debt 
A summary of notes payable and long- term debt and capitalized lease obligations is as follows: 

Notes payable and long- term debt consist of the following: 2001 
8.5% installment note to the Free Will. Bapti<lt Foundation secured by 

telephone system. This installment obligation requires monthly 
payments of $903 including principal and interest. with final payment 
scheduled for August 2003. $ 16,780 25,768 

Less scheduled current maturites of notes payable, 

long-term debt 9,781 8,988 

Long- term portion $==:=!,6 999=== ====la6,780=== 

Maturities of long-term debt is $9,781 in 2002 and $6,999 in 2003. 

(3) Pension 
The Fund participates in the master defined contribution pension plan of tbe Board of Retirement and 
Insurance of the National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. 'lbe plan is contributory and is 
matched up to a maximum of 5% of earned compensation. Employees may participate at date of 
employment. Pension expenses amounted to $2,348 in 2001 and $2,290 in 2000. Under the plan, an 
account is maintained for each participant and upon retirement t11e participant can either receive a 

lump-sum distribution or purchase one of several types of annuity contracts. 

(4) Operating Lease 
The Fund bas entered into a non-cancellable lease arrangement relating a truck. Total expenses 
amounted to $3,985 in 2001 and $1,328 in 2000. The minimum payments required are $3,985 for 2002; 

and $2,656 for year 2003. 

(5) Rentallncome 
The Fund rents office space of the National Office Building located in Antioch, Tennessee to various 
denominational agencies. The lease covers the period from September 1 through August 31 of each 
year, to be renegotiated and renewed by mutual agreement from year to year. Each lease agreement is 
cancelable by either party with a 90 day written notice. Rental income amounted to $243,948 for 2001 
and 2000. Subject to the renegotiation and renewal provisions of the each lease agreement. rental 

income for 2002 is elq)CCted to be S2A8,948. 
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2003 Proieded _ B "ld" S . 
Proiected Income Ul •ng erv1ces Budget 
Square Footage (20,329 @ $1.00 = $20 329 00 ) S 2001 2002 
Total Income ' · mo. 243,948.00 S 243,948.00 

.L 243,948.00 s 243,948.00 
Proieded Expenses 
Audit & legal 
General Supplies 
Insurance (Plant) 
Janitorial Services 
Janitorial Supplies 
Mail Room 
Mail Truck 
General Maintenance/Contingency Fund 
Payroll Taxes (Employer's S.S.) 
Postage Meter/UPS 
Retirement 
Salaries 
Telephone 
Utilities 
Insurance (Employee) 
Network Expense 
Christmas Bonus/Extra Week's Salary 
Other 
Total Expenses s 

s 10,000.00 
5,000.00 

18,000.00 
30,000.00 
2,500.00 

12,000.00 
3,000.00 

40,000.65 
3,882.21 
1,500.00 
2,348.32 

50,747.88 
4,500.00 

29,000.00 
17,208.04 
10,000.00 

903.20 
3,357.70 

243,948.00 

s 10,000.00 
5,000.00 

18,000.00 
30,000.00 
3,500.00 

12,000.00 
4,000.00 

36,946.11 
4,037.50 
1,500.00 
2,442.26 

52,n7.8o 
5,500.00 

28,000.00 
19,156.27 
7,000.00 

939.33 
3,148.73 s 243,948.00 s 

2003 

s 243,948.00 
s 243,948.00 

-~ 

s 7,000.00 
5,500.00 

15,000.00 
30,000.00 
3,500.00 

12,000.00 
5,500.00 

37,469.58 
4,273.68 
1,000.00 
2,539.94 

54,888.19 
5,000.00 

25,000.00 
21,299.71 
8,000.00 

976.90 
5,000.00 

243,948.00-

Building Services Salary Brea-:-k--::d-ow_ n ____ -
Mainten~nce Superintendent/ 

Mad Room Supervisor 2001 2002 
Salary S 
Social Security 24,663·85 (4%) $25,650.40 (4%) 
Insurance (Health/Dental/life) ~~~:~·~: (7.65%) 1 ,962.26(7.65%) 

Dental S 626 87' · 11,035.22 
Health · S 598.32 

2003 

$26,676.42 (4%) 
2,040.75 (7.65%) 

12,000.00 

D. b'l' 8,109.29 1009236 
ISO I lty 361 20 ' . 

Retirement · 34454 157 39 
3~,~~:·~:_j5%) 1,28252 (5%) 1,333~82 (5%) 

Receptionist/Phone System Administ t '/C 39,930.40 • . 42,208.38 
Salary ra or ontact C•rculatton Manager 

Social Security 
2i';~~·~; 7 (

4~) 23,194.70 (4%) 24,122.49 (4%) 
Insurance (Health/Dental/life) 8'110·68 ( ·

65 Yo) 1 ~774.39(7.65%) 1,845.37 (7.65%) 
Dental 416 52' · 8,121.05 9,000.00 
Health 7 374:48 416.52 0.00 
Disability '319 68 

7,374.48 0.00 
Retirement · 330.05 142 32 

Part-time Worker 
Salary 
Social Security 

1,115.13 (5%) 1,159.74 (5%) 1206.12 (5%) 
52 d 33,23455 34,249.88 36:316:30 

ays 52 days 52 d 
3 781 44 (4olc /9 09 h ) ays 
'289:28 ° (l 6sol) 3'93210 (4%19.45 hr.) 4,089.28 (4%/9.83 hr.) 

4,070.72 . 300·85 (7.65%) 312.83 _(7.65%) 
4,233.55 4,402.11 
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Board of Retirement 
Director's Report 

Our job as the Board of Retirement is to understand what we do and how 
we do it-the theories and methods of retirement planning and the how 
involved in accomplishing it We must see how our actions will play out in the 
lives of those we serve. This means we are called on to walk through the mine­
field of governmental regulations, the present responsibilities of managing 
money for others, and foreseeing the needs and wishes of these same partici­
pants five, ten even thirty or more years in the future. Thankfully, we are not 
expected to foresee the minutia of all the events ahead, but we certainly are 
required to keep informed and make good decisions. 

An easy task? Certainly not It is only possible if we use the best information 
we can get and have the help of the Heavenly Father so bountifully promised: If 
any man lack wisdom, let him ask . . . . Who giveth to all men liberally ... . 

Let me reassure you that many steps along the way will require 
adjustments. Hopefully these will not involve major directional changes, only 
minor correcting adjustments to keep us on course or even slight changes of 
course to move forward to the goal we see out there in the distance. 

How do we go about doing it? 
Advancing means we must first know where we are now. Then ana­

lyze what we are presently doing to determine if we are indeed moving in 
the right direction. Some adjustments may be simple, easy and quick; oth­
ers may be more radical, difficult and slow. 

To determine exactly where we are requires a look into our past. The 
first steps in the journey to a denominational retirement program began in 
the 1930 s when our national body began the Superannuation Program. It 
was an excellent idea, but our funding vehicle was flawed. The denomi­
nation understood some of the dynamics involved in retirement apparent­
ly, women generally outlive men, and elected women to the first board. 

That program hobbled along while several state or local associations 
conceived what they considered to be better programs, or at least manage­
able ways. Most of these were the old every one contribute X dollars and the 
spouse of the first contributor to die takes all. Immediately after the first death 
the remaining members and any new members contributes again and repeat 
the cycle. There are still several of these programs being offered across the 
nation in spite of the problem of recruitment, investing and timing. 

lhrough the years the Superannuation Program was tweaked and 
squeaked in vain efforts to make it healthy. This program was funded through 
commercial insurance policies for each participant with the individual paying 
half the premiums and the denomination paying the other half. The policies 
were expensive and an adequate funding base never developed. 

In desperation to develop a workable plan a group in North Carolina 
led by Rev. Herman Hersey devised a new approach in 1968 based on the 
dollar purchase concept and individual accounts. Rev. Hersey was chosen 
to direct this effort. It was received with excitement and enthusiasm that 
spread to the national scene. The state program was adopted by the 
National in 1969, and Brother Hersey was elected Director to continue the 
program s development and expansion. 

The office was maintained in Brother Hersey's home for the first 
years while he continued to pastor. It was evident that the work required 
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more time and attention than he could give it part time. As a result the giant 
step of going full time and moving the office to Nashville was made. This 
meant that the department would operate in deficit until such time as the 
denomination would grasp the vision and burden of support, or the fund 
would grow to sustain it. Brother Herman never faltered in his faith that the 
latter would happen even if the first did not. Those early board meetings 
were often taken up by his pep rallies with that concept. He was correct. 

The denomination has never accepted responsibility for operating or 
funding the retirement program of pastors and other church workers. 
Unfortunately the percentage of operating costs provided by the denomi­
nation is not much greater than it was several years ago. 

Our Plan is organized under the 1986 Internal Revenue Code Section 
403 (b)(9). It applies to non-profit organizations such as churches, hospitals 
and schools. There are many advantages of being under this particular sec­
tion of the annuity Code. 

This sub section gives us the advantage of investing in insurance con­
tracts, mutual funds, stocks, bonds, church loans and bonds and almost 
any other investment. 

An additional advantage involves our exemption from ERISA regulations as 
a church controlled 403 (b)(9). However, it has been our goal to operate the plan 
under many of the ERISA principles without making them part of our document 

The different rules governing the various sections of the 403 (b) code sections 
or other similar programs such as 401 (k)s or lRAs have often confused our people. 

I firmly believe that our story is one where the whole is greater than 
the sum of the parts but consider some of our parts. 

Consider enrollments. The life of any retirement plan is getting 
enrollees. They are the reason we exist To examine enrollments we must 
know who are our prospects are. We serve men and women employed by 
a Free Will Baptist Church or agency. That includes licensed ordained min­
isters, missionaries, lay employees of a church or other agency. They may be 
full-time or part- time but they must be paid, and beginning in 2002 that even 
includes those whose entire income is designated as housing allowance. 

I am frequently asked how many prospects do we have. Only the Lord 
knows the correct answer. Our denominational yearbook lists 2,471 churches. 
We have only 901 pastors enrolled so there are possibly 1 ,5 70 more preachers. 
Then there are those serving as associates, music ministers, Christian school 
teachers, secretaries, janitors, etc. so we have a lot of prospects. 

Enrollments for the past few years have been at record highs. Last year 
we enrolled 84 new members. A month-by-month comparisons with the prior 
three years indicate September 11th had a negative impact on people joining. 
Only two enrolled in September and both of them did so by the 11th or before. 

There is reason to believer the continued emphasis of several of our 
state leaders will assist us getting more participants. Our efforts from the 
office is focused on articles, letters and personal presentations but we are 
willing to make appointments to present the plan to your church or board. 

Consider returns. This is one subject that almost always comes up in 
any conversation. Many of our participants are keenly aware of the impor­
tance of earnings. 

Last year we reported the first negative return in the history of our plan It 
caused some real concern for a few. Thankfully, the vast majority of our partici­
pants and many prospects saw a small negative as a very good return in the 2001 
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f turnS that follows to see the actual results. 
_,...vet Review the two-year study o rei Earnings Actual gain 
1 11a1 N Account va ue 

0 
(Lossl S 

~ At end of period (J,ossl Vo u:=u~ 

1/ 1/2000 $1 ,000.00 6 5o/c $32.50 
6/ 30/2000 $1 ,032·50 

18· 0% $92.93 
12/31/2000 $$~ ,~~~·!~ (3~9%} ($21.95} 

6/30/2001 ' . 1 5% $8.28 
12/31/2001 $1 ' 111 ·~ualized i2.54% 

The return for: 2000 was an ali d (1 22%) 
2001 was an annu ze · . · 

will be a reflection of the diversifi­
The investment results at. ~y time 

. tyl and market conditions. 
cation, s e, . ntinue to be very good: 

Plan earrungs co 2001 - (1.215%} 
1 year - 7 813o/ 
3 1999-2001 = . 10 

5 year - 1997-2001 = 10.557% 

0 
year - 1992-2001 = 9.620% 

1 years - 001 = 8.726% 
Life of Plan - .1969-2 i h returns we often overlook cost. 

Cost of operation. In tt~es of h g Thankfully the overhead has go!le 
This past year it became very Important. ave moved David Brown s e!ltire 
down through the past few years. ~e ~ 2002 so that will be a consider­
salary package over to the Foundation or 

able decrease in the years ~ea~~ f the market Things continue to look up 
It has been a good year m spl e .o tion and individual participants. Thank 

as far as the response by our dena:: to improve and advance the program. 
you for all you have done and are o 

Wtlliam Evans 

Director f M"•nutes-May 1-2, 2001 Summary o 
as iven and MSC to accept report. 

The Director's report w g . MSC to accept report and 
Financial and budget report was given 

adopt the budget mana er representatives 
Received Reports from money . . bg d members Wayman Fields 

MSC to recognize and appreciate retinng oar 
(12 years) and Jack Daniel (16 years) 

Officers were elect~d 
Ron Barber, Chrurman . 
Roger Harwell, Vice Charrman 
Bill Ferguson, Secretary 
Jim Lowe, Asst Secretary 

MSC to adjou; of Minutes December 5, 2001 
Summ ry . nand MSC to accept report. 

The Director's report ~as g~~C to accept report. 
Financial report was gtve!l MSC to adopt the car policy 
A car P.olicy rep~rt wThas g~~~dation was received 
Financial report .or e 
MSC to adjourn 
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The Board of Directors 

HINTON. WARREN. 
DENNEY & WALLACE 
CERTIF1ED PU8UC ACCOUHTAHTS 

THE 1/0t.UNTEEA IILDO. 
sum: too 

311 PlUS- Ll/0. 
N.'SHVIU.£. TN 37217-10De 

(t15) :Me-4100 

Independent Auditors' Report 

Board of Retirement and Insurance of the 
National AsSOCiation of Free Will Baptists 

AMERICAN INSTI'll.ITE OF 
CERTIAED PU8UC ACCOUNTANTS 

TENNESSEE SOCIETY OF 
CERTIFIED PUfiUC ACCOUNTANTS 

We have auchted the accompanying statements of financial position of the Board of Retirement 
and Insurance of the National Association of Free Will Baptists (the "Board") as of December 31, 2001 
and 2000, and the related statements of activities and changes in net assets and cash flows for the years 
then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Board's managements. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An 
audlt includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estrmates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We 
beheve that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opiruon. 

In our opiruon, the finanClal statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the Board of Retirement and Insurance of the National Association of Free Will 
Baptists as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the changes in 1ts net assets and its cash flows for the 
years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

March 6, 2002 
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BOARD OF RETIREMENT AND INSURANCE OF 

THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION 0FFREE WILL BAPTISTS 
Statements of Financial Position 

December 31. 2001 and 2000 

ASSETS 

Operating Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Funds invested with the Free Will Baptist Foundation 
Prepaid lease 

Total operating assets 

Retirement Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investment in marketable securities and instruments, 
at fair market value -Note 3 

Accrued investment income receivable 
Notes receivable, net of allowance for doubtful 
accounts - Note 2 

Total retirement assets 

Office Furruture. Equipment and Automobiles, 
at cost, net of accumulated depreciation - Notes 1 & 4 

Total assets 

December 31. 
2001 20QQ 

$ 31,449 $ 30,134 
13,161 
6.812 

14,056 
2.004 

47.509 

567,079 

22,444,492 
121,968 

931.329 
24.064.868 

35.404 

$24.}47,781 

50.107 

1,796,704 

21,436,886 
131,724 

1.075.902 
24.441.216 

23.367 

$24.514,690 

LIABILITIES & NET ASSETS 

Liabilities 
Annuities payable - Note 6 
Unearned loan origination fees 
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Net Assets 
Unrestricted: 
Operations: 
Operating funds 
Designated for future asset purchases 
Net invested in equipment 

Operating net assets 

Retirement accounts: 
Net assets available for participants 
Designated as reserve funds 
Designated as annuity reserve funds 

Retirement net assets 

Total net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets 

See accountants' report and accompanying notes 
to the financial statements, 

-2-
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$ 1,962,393 
4,163 

21.988 
1.988.544 

22,526 
14,056 
35.404 
71.986 

22,059,876 
14,375 
13.000 

22.087.251 

22.159.237 

$24,]47.781 

$ 1,351,731 
11,231 
17.226 

1.380.188 

25,254 
13,161 
23.367 
61.782 

22,885,549 
175,171 
12.000 

23.072.720 

23.134.502 

$24,514,690 
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BOARDQFRETIREMENTANPINSVRANCEOF 
THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATIQN OF FREEm!i BAPTISTS 

Statements of Activities and ChangE; iilNetAssets 
For the Years Ending December aL 2Q01 and 2000 

Support. Revenue and Other Addition§ 
Contributions from participants 

Investment income: 
Gains of investment portfolio: 
Net realized gains 
Net unrealized gains (losses) 

Interest and dividends from 
investments (net of investment fees) 

Total investment income (loss) 

Income earned from interest bearing notes: 
Interest income 
Loan origination fees earned 

Total income earned from interest 
and loan origination fees 

Forfeitures and late charges 
Gifts 
Reimbursement from Free Will 
Baptist Foundation 

Miscellaneous income 
Total other income 
Total additions 

Allocation for operations 
Net additions after allocation 
for operations 

See accountants' report and accQmpanving nQtes 
tQ the financial statements. 
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( 

Retirement 
A~ount§ 

i 1.~12~.~a1 

730,683 
< L!299,2oa> 
( 968,520) 

774,928 
( 19a,s92) 

116,318 
Z.Q!2~ 

t23,a87 

1,002 

ZQ 
l,Q72 

1,900,798 

2~2.SBS) 

1,!2QZ.~1Q 

20Ql 

Qperi!tiQn§ 

i 

66,537 

40,000 
2.498 

10~,032 
109,035 

2~2.B6S 

4Ql.~23 

TQtal 

$1,969,931 

730,683 
( 1.699,203) 
( 968,520) 

774.926 
( 19a,s92) 

116,318 
7.069 

123.367 

1,002 
66,537 

40,000 
2,566 

110,107 
2,009,833 

2,009,833 

Retirement 

$ 

( 

Accounts 

1.582.312 

872,673 
773.912 

1,646,585 

1.405.657 
3.052.242 

138,607 
7,520 

146,127 

2,698 

109 
2,801 

4,783,488 

261.121) 

4,522.367 

200Q 

Operations 

$ 

58,430 

40,000 
~.~27 

1Q7,357 
107,357 

261,121 

368,478 

Total 

$ 1.582.312 

872,673 
773,912 

1,646,585 

1.405.!257 
a.Qs2.242 

138,607 
7.520 

146,127 

2,698 
58,430 

40,000 
~.oa2 

11Q,164 
4,890,845 

4.89Q,845 
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BOARD OF RETIREMENT AND INSURANCE OF 
THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets 
For the Years Ending December 31. 2001 and 2000 

E!:Qense§ ang Oth~r D~ductiQns 
Withdrawals by participants 
Transfers to annuities by participants 
Insurance deductions from participant's accounts 
Income allocated to annuitant obligations 
Salaries 
Housing 
Fringe benefits 
Travel and promotional 
Office supplies and expense 
Occupancy 
Board members expense 
Legal and auditing 
Depreciation 
Miscellaneous 

Total deductions 

Increase (decrease) in net assets 

Net assets at beginning of year 

Net assets at end of year 

See accountants' report ang accompanying notes 
to the financial §tatements. 
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20Q1 
Retirement 
Accounts Operations 

$ 1,801,985 $ 
695,446 

44,114 
49,525 

110,517 
51,744 
71,311 
22,163 
39,792 
48,571 
18,890 
13,237 
14,532 

2.3Q9 962 
2,593.379 391.719 

( 985,469) 10,204 

23.072.720 61.782 

$22.087.251 $ 7L986 

Total 

$ 1,801,985 
695,446 

44,114 
49,525 

110,517 
51,744 
71,311 
22,163 
39,792 
48,571 
18,890 
13,237 
14,532 
3.271 

2.985.098 

( 975,265) 

23.134.502 

$22.159.237 

20QQ 

Retirement 
Operations Total 

Accounts 

$ 1,032,398 $ $ 1,032,398 
71,844 

71,844 47,021 
47,021 
97,863 

97,863 

106,790 106,790 

49,754 49,754 

62,428 62,428 

25,164 25,164 

43,576 43,576 

48,862 48,862 

11,996 11,996 

13,455 13,455 

14,970 14,970 

1.214 1.965 3,179 

378.96Q 1.629.3QO 
1.250.340 

3,272,027 ( 10,482) 3,261,545 

19.800.693 72,264 19.872.957 

~23,!.l72.:Z2Q $ 61.782 i23,134,502 

• 
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BQARD OF RETIREMENT ANP INSURANCE OF . 
THE NATIONAL AssociATION OF FREEWlLLJiAPTisrs 

Statements of Cash flows 
For the Years Ending December 31. 2001 and 2000 · 

Retirement 
2QQ1 

AQCOJ!!\ts QI!§r~ti!;m§.! Total 

Ca§h flow§ from Q~~rating ll~tiviti~~ 
Cash received from: 
Contributions from participants and employers $ 
Gifts 

1,969,931. $ $ 1.969,931 

Income earned from interest and loan 
origination fees 

Investment income 
Forfeitures and late charges 
Reimbursement from Free Will 
Baptist Foundation 

Miscellaneous income 
Cash paid for: 
Supplies and employees 
Withdrawal of funds by participants 
Income allocated to annitant obligations 

Net cash provided (used} by 
operating activities 

Cash tlQws {rQm inv~~ting ~~tivitie~ 
Purchases of office furniture and equipment 
Investments: 

Purchases of investment securities 
Funds invested with Free Will 
Baptist Foundation 

Proceeds from sale of investment 
securities 

Notes receivable: 
New loans made 
Collection of notes receivable 

Net cash provided (used) 
by investing activities 

See accountants' re~ort and accom~anving notes 
to the financial statements. 

116,319 
784,684 

1,002 

70 

( 40,896) 
{ 2,497,431) 
( ~~~!!2Q) 

za4,tri~ 

( 27,406,671) 

25,430,545 

( 148,031) 
292,210 

( 1.831.553) 

A .. 72 

66,537 66,537 

116,319 
784,684 

1,002 

40,000 40,000 
2,498 2,568 

( 372,973) . ( 413,869) 
( 2,497,431) 
( 49.525) 

( 223.~~8) 20.216 

( 26,740) ( 26,740) 

( 27,406,671) 

( 895) ( 895) 

25,430,545 

( 148,037) 
292.61Q 

\ 

( 27.635) ( 1.859,188) 

200Q 
Retirement 

Accounts Operations 

"' 

$ 1,582,312 $ 
58,430 . 

138,607 
1,412,353 

2,698 

40,000 
109 8,927 

{ 47,693) { 366,532) 
( 1,104,242) 
( s1.~2a> 

1,886.281 ( 259,175) 

( 12,170,662) 

5,754 

11,762,054 
- . . 

( . 115,549) ' 
232,222 

( 2~U~~!:i) 5.754 

Total 

$ 1,582,312 
58,430 

. 138,607 
1,412,353 

2,698 
. . 
40,000 

9,036 

(' 414,225) 
( 1,104,242) 
( 91.S63) 

1.627.106 

( 12, 170,662) 

5,754 

11,762,054 

( 115,549) 
232,222 

( 286.181) 
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BOARDOFRETIREMENTANPINSUHANCEOF 
THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Statement of Cash Flows (continued) 
For the Years Ended December 31. 2001 and 2000 

C~~ll flQW§ ftom financing activities 
Allocation for operations 
Net additions to annuities payable 

Net cash provided by financing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents of end of year 

R~~Qn~ilil!tiQn Qf increas~ (decrease) in net a~§ets 
to ~a§h flQw~ frQm Qperating activitie~ 

Increase (decrease) in net assets 
Adjustments to reconcile increase (decrease) 

m net assets to net cash provided (used) by 
operating activities: 

Depreciation and amortization 
Allocation for operations 
Loss (gains) on investment transactions 
Decrease (increase) in accrued investment 
Income 

Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable, 

accrued expenses and other 
Decrease in loan origination fees 

Total adjustments 

Net cash provided (used ) by 
operating activities 

See accQuntants' repQrt and accompanying nQtes 
to the financial statements. 
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20Q1 
Retirement 
Accounts Operations Total 

($ 292,888) $ 292,888 $ 
61Q.662 61Q.662 
317.774 292.888 610.662 

( 1,229,625) 1,315 ( 1,228,310) 

1.796.7Q4 3Q. 134 1.826.838 

$ 567.079 $ 31.449 $ 598,528 

($ 985.469) $ 10.2Q4 ($ 975.265) 

14,532 14,532 
292,888 ( 292,888) 
968,520 171 968,691 

9,756 9,756 
4,808 4,808 

5,527 ( 765) 4,762 
( 7.068) ( 7.068) 

1,269.623 ( 274.142) 995.481 

$ 284,154 <i 2fi~,aas> i 20,216 

2000 
Retirement 
Accounts Operations Total 

($ 261,121) $ 261,121 $ 
76.8Q6 76.8Q6 

( 184.315) 261.121 76.8Q6 

1,410,031 7,700 1,417,731 

386.673 22.434 4Q9.1Q7 

$ 1,796.704 $ 30134 $1,826.838 

$ 3.272.Q27 ($ 10.482) $3.261,545 

14,970 14,970 
261,121 ( 261,121) 

( 1,646,585) 176 ( 1,646,409) 

6,696 6,696 
( 6,812) ( 6,812) 

542 4,094 4,636 
( 7.520) ( 7.520) 
( 1,385,746) ( 248.693) ( 1.634.439) 

$ 1,886,281 ($ 259,175) $1,627,106 
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Note -1 

BOARP OF RETffiEMENT AND 
THENATIONALASSOC~ 

Notes to Financial Statemen~ STS 
December 31. 2001 and 2000 

Summary ofstenificant accountine polictes 

Organization 

The Board of Retirement and Ins f h N . 
Baptista (the "Board") is operated under ~ance o. t eof attonal ~sociatioc of Free Will 
Will Baptists, Inc. The purpose of the Boar~ ~W:tces. t?e Nati~nal Association of Free 
accounts for licensed or ordained ministe . d l mamtam contnbutory retirement 
denominational agencies of the National Asrs an . ti~y emfpFloyees ~f churches, schools and 
B d . . sOCJa on o ree Will Baptists I Th oar mamtains this retirement pens· 1 . ' nc. e 
Revenue Code of 1986 which . Ion pan pursuant to Section 403(b) of the Internal 

' ts an exempt church plan under the provisions of the code. 

Accrual basis and financial statement presentation 

The financial statements of th B d ha be 
accounting. e oar ve en prepared on the accrual basis of 

The Board classifies its revenue, expenses . . 
net assets based on the existence of ab f d • g~, and losses mto three classes of 
the Board and changes therein are cia seifincedo £onUor-rmposed restrictions. Net assets of 

ss e as o ows: 

Unrestricted net assets _ N t ts ha . 
stipulations. e asse t tare not subJect to donor-imposed 

Temporarily restricted net assets - N t · . 
stipulations that ma or will ~ assets S~Ject to donor-rmposed 
passage of time. Y be met etther by actions of the Board and/or the 

Permanently restricted net assets N t . . 
stipulations that are maintained e asseltabsubJ. ect to donor-tmposed 
d f permanent Y y the Board Gene ally th 

onors o these assets permit the Board to all . . r ' e 
on the related investments for general us:6 or part ofthe mcome earned 

or spe c purposes. 

The amount for each of these c1a f . 
of financial position and the amount of ~es o ~et assets 1.8 presented in the statements 
the statements of adtivities and change . ang: m each class of net assets is displayed in 
permanently restricted net assets at De:e:~:r ~~;~;::dB;~. had no temporarily or 

. Further, contributions received are recorded as 
restricted, or permanently restricted su ort d . unrestn~d, temporanl,y 
of any donor restrictions. PP epending on the eX18tence and/or nature 

-7-
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Note -1 

BOARD OF RETIREMENT AND INSURANCE OF 
THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31. 2001 and 2000 

Summarv of significant accounting policies - (continued) 

Retirement Pension PJan 

Under the terms of the retirement pension plan which the Board maintains, 
contributions may be made to the Plan through employer contributions, salary reduction 
contributions, voluntary employee contributions and general contributions. The 
partiCipant may elect from two plan types. Plan 1 requires employer contributions for 
such employee to be at least 5% of the employee's compensations. Plan 2 requires the 
total of employer contributions, salary reduction and voluntary employee contributions 
to be at least 3% of the employee's compenastion. A third plan exists that members may 
enter initially upon employment or when they lose eligibility to participate in Plan 1 or 
2. Minimum contributions required by this plan are $10 per month and can be made by 
any of the plan's contribution means. Total employer contributions and salary reduction 
contributions that may be made for a participant in any year shall not exceed the limits 
imposed by IRS Code Sections 402(g), 403(b) and 415. 

Each participant's account is credited with contributions made by and on behalf 
of the parttcipant. Allocations of Plan earnings are based on account balances and the 
plan elections made by each participant, as defined in the Plan, on the last day of each 
adjustment period. The benefit to which a participant is entitled is the benefit that can 
be provided from the participant's account. 

On retirement, death or disability, participants receive payments of their 
individual vested account balances based on options and provisions as defined in the 
Plan. Benefits are recorded when paid. 

Although it has not expressed any intent to do so, the Board has the right under 
the Plan with the approval of the Association, to terminate the Plan. In the event of 
Plan termination, participants will become 100% vested in their accounts. 

Investments 

Investments in marketable securities are reported at fair value with gains and 
losses included in the statement of activities and changes in net assets. Investments in 
marketable securities are valued at current quoted or estimated market value. Non­
marketable investments are carried at cost unless a permanent loss of value has 
occurred. 

Office furniture, eouipment and automobiles 

Office furniture, equipment and automobiles are recorded at cost. Depreciation 
is provided on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the respective 
assets, generally 6 years for automobiles and 5- 10 years for furniture and equipment. 

Income Taxes 

The Board is exempt from income taxes; accordingly, no provision for income 
taxes has been made in the accompanying financial statements. 

-8-
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Note - 1 

Note-2 

BOARD OF RETIREMENT AND INSURANCE OF 
THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31. 2001 and 2000 

Sum mary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

Cash and cash equivalents 

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Board considers all cash on 
hand, deposits in financial institutions a.nd highly hquid debt instruments with an 
original maturity of three months or less to be cash and cash equivalents. 

Loan originatjon Fees 

A one-time origination fee for 4% for each new church loan is charged to 
borrowers to cover service fees throughout the life of the loan. These loan origination 
fees are amortized to revenue over the life of the related loan. 

Uses of estimates in the preparation of financial statements 

Judgment and estimation is exercised by management in certain areas of the 
preparation of financial statements. The more significant areas include the collectibility 
of notes recetvable, the determination of fair value of investments, and the recovery 
period for office furniture, equipment and automobiles. Management believes that such 
estimates have been based on reasonable assumptions and that each estimates are 
adequate. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Notes receivable 

Followmg is a summary of notes receivable: 

Participant notes (net) secured by retirement 
account balances 

Churches and agency notes secured by related 
real property 

Less allowance for doubtful accounts 

$ 

( 

i 

2001 2000 

2,137 $ 6,368 

SfH~.l~2 UlSS.t23~ 
961,329 1,105,902 

30,000) ( 30,QQQ) 

aa1~a2a ll~llZfi~ag2 

The notes bear interest at various rates from 3.0% to 15% and mature at various dates 
from 2002 through 2012. 
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Note- 3 

TIREMENTANDINSVRANCEOF 
THE :=~SoCiATfuNoFFREE WJLL BAPTISTS 

Notes to Financtal Statements 
December 31, 2001 and 2000 

Investments in marketable securities and instruments 

2001 
(Depreciation) 
Appreciation 

Investments: 
Certificate of deposit 
Mutual funds 
Common stocks 
U.S. Government issues 
Corporate bonds 

Total Investments 

$ 

Market 
value Cost 

462,206 $ 
2,882,899 

10,959,164 
7,370,139 

770.084 

450,000 
3,343,827 

10,697,071 
7,102,218 

884.830 

$ 
( 

( 

12,206 
460,928) 
262,093 
267,921 
114.746) 

2 "'22 477 946 (1;~~5:...__..3~3.bi!4;w.5~4) $ 22 444,49 i) I I - --·---· 

'ti d 
For 2001 total investment loss relating to marketable secun es an 0 and 

' ted to $193 592 and consisted of investment losses of $9~8,63 
~strumtentds dia~vt?due:ds of $774 928. Investment income (loss) represented Ylf eldshof 
mteres an ' k al d average cost o sue 
(0.88%) and (0.91%) based on the average mar et v ue an 
investments for 2001. 

2QQQ 
Market (Depreciation) 

Vg,lye Cost Appreciation 

Investments: 
$ 285,000 $ 285,000 $ 

Certificate of deposit 
3,297,085 3,161,598 135,487 

Mutual funds 10,119,088 8,976,748 1,142,340 
Common stocks 

7,428,125 6,956,027 472,098 
U.S. Government issues 

20,025 25,000 ( 4,975) 
Fixed income bonds 

287.563 525.031 ( 237,468) 
Corporate bonds 

$ 2114361886 s1a 92aAo4 $ 1.507 482 
Total Investments 

. 1 .:~ to marketable securities and 
For 2000 totalmvestment mcome re a ....... g . 646 585 

' 052 242 and consisted of investment gams of $1, • 
instr.uments amdoundi t:edd tods$!£ $1 ,405 657. Investment income represented yields of 
and mterest an Vl en • ' d cost of such 
14.96% and 15.80% based on the average market value an average 
investments for 2000. 
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Note- 4 

Note - 5 

Note- 6 

Note - 7 

BOARD OF RETIREMENT AND INSURANCE OF 
THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31. 2001 and 2000 

Office furniture. equipment and automobiles 

A summary of office furniture, equipment and automobiles is as follows: 

2001 2000 

Office furniture and fixtures $ 39,319 $ 39,319 
Computer equipment 41,663 42,947 
Automobiles ~2.QQQ l~.f2QQ 

122,982 101,766 
Accumulated depreciation ( 132.1!713) ( za.afil~> 

$ 35,404 $ 23 367 

LeB!l!il f!nd. ~!:!.!PBD~ !illrn!ilD§!il 

Under the terms of a lease agreement with an affiliate, the Board leases 3,933 
feet of office and storage space for $1.00 per square foot per month. The lease can only 
be terminated after any and all mortgages are paid in full on the premises. In addition, 
the Board pays additional expenses related to their share of operating and maintenance 
costs of the building. Total lease payments, additional operating, and maintenance costs 
related to the lease were $48,571 and $48,862 for the years ended December 31, 2001 
and 2000, respectively. 

Annuitie§ Payable 

Upon attaining retirement age, the retiree has the option, among others, to 
convert lus participant account into an annuity to provide retirement benefits over his 
remauring life. The periodic benefit 1.8 calculated based on morality tables considering 
life expectancy. As of December 31, 2001 and 2000, the recorded liability amounted to 
$1,962,393 and $1,351,731. The actuary has determined that the current periodic 
benefit exceeded the reserve account at December 31, 2001 by $189,658 ($-0- at 
December 31, 2000), accordingly, management has determined that there will be no 
pension benefit increases for 2002. 

Information regarding finBnciBl instruments 

The Board has an accounting risk of loss in the areas of cash and cash 
equivalents, investments and n otes receivable to the extent cash funds are not insured 
by a governmental agency, or notes receivable and investments are not secured by 
mortgages or guaranteed by the United States Government. 
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T AND INSURANCE OF 
HE ~m=lcmofFREE WJLL BAPTISTS 

T Notes to FinanciBl Statements 
Pe;ember 31. 2001 jlnd 2000 

Note -9 
jteclassU'icatioD§ . 

. ade to the December 31, 2000 ~anClal 
Certain reclassificattons were m £ to annuities from other Withdrawals by 

statement presentation to separate trans ers ted by the Board in order to conform 
h tate nt of activities as reques u t 

particlpants in t e s me . The reclassifications had no euec on 
to the 2001 financial statement presentation. 

mcome. 
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Board of Retirement and Insurance 
Salary and Benefits Breakdown 

Bill Evans: 

Salary 
Housing/Utilities 
Social Security/Medicare 
Retirement 
Insurance 

life 
Hospitalization 
Dental 
Disability 

Note: Office Car Furnished 
Total 

Ray lewis 

Salary 
Housing/Utilities 
Social Security/Medicare 
Retirement 
Insurance 

life 
Hospitalization 
Dental 
Disability 

Note: Office Car Furnished 
Total 

Diana Harris 

Salary 
Social Security/Medicare 
Retirement 
Insurance 

life 
Hospitalization 
Dental 
Disability 

Total 

**Disability Insurance is .059 per $100 

2001 

27,600.89 
24,747.01 
9,456.00 
3,664.35 
7,312.57 

841.20 

2002 2003 

29,941.00 31,138.64 
25,736.89 26,766.36 
9,834.23 10,459.81 
3,897.45 4,053.35 
8,948.04 11,977.42 

841.20 756.12 
5,710.01 

396.72 
364.64 

7,374.48 10,357.42 
416.52 453.96 
315.84 409.92 

72,780.82 78,357.61 84,395.58 

19,205.84 21,065.04 21,907.64 
26,996.74 28,076.61 29,199.67 
8,345.92 8,679.76 9,231.90 
3,161.50 3,439.92 3,577.51 
4,201.97 5,045.04 6,360.66 

660.96 660.96 574.92 
3,002.81 3,878.16 5,176.38 

216.36 227.16 247.56 
321 .84 278.76 361.80 

61,911.96 66,306.37 70,277.38 

24,398.40 25,862.31 26,896.80 
1,866.48 1,941.14 2,210.61 
1,674.40 1,77620 1,882.78 

361 
3,724.32 4,599.67 6,033.30 

.20 36120 418.92 
3,002.81 3,878.16 5,176.38 

216.36 216.36 247.56 
143.95 143.95 190.44 

31,663.60 34,179.32 37,023.49 
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Board of Retirement and Insurance 
Proposed Budget for 2003 

Salaries 
Employee Benefits 
Housing 
Travel/Promotion 
Auto Maintenance 
Future Purchases/ Auto 
Hardware/ Software Future Purchases 
Plant Fund 
Office Expense 
Equipment 
Education/Training 
Publications 
Board Expense 
Legal 
Auditing 
Equipment Lease 
Software Maintenance 
Board Insurance 
Miscellaneous 
Total 
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2001 
Budget 

110,642 
62,382 
51 ,744 
19,250 

1,500 
3,000 

12,000 
53,000 
28,000 

4,000 
8,000 

12,250 
15,000 
3,500 

12,000 
0 
0 

2l000 
398,268 

2002 2003 
Budget Proposed 

76,868 79,943 
48,161 60,000 
53,814 55,967 
20,250 20,250 

1,500 4,500 
3,000 7,200 

12,000 12,000 
52,000 52,000 
28,000 28,000 

5,000 5,000 
10,000 8,500 
12,250 8,000 
17,000 18,000 

8,500 10,000 
12,000 12,000 

4,000 0 
7,000 3,000 

5,000 
2l000 2l000 

373,343 391 ,359 



• 
Free Will Baptist Foundation Report 

2002 
What did the Foundation accomplish in 2001? In a market that for the 

second year was in decline and faced the severe shock of September 11 we 
saw assets under management increase over $900,000. The volume of 
increase was not the real promise though, it was the number of those who 
sought us for help. 

The most frequently used tool in our chest is the Revocable Trust, also 
known as the Money Management Trust. Deposits in these accounts are up 
almost ten fold since 1993. Managing these funds provides a major portion of 
our operational costs. This also provides a vehicle for our various ministries 
to deposit reserve funds and earn a very good rate of return. 

The prime reason for the Foundation to exist through is the placement man­
agement of irrevocable charitable agreements. Three of these instruments can be 
tailored to meet individual and family needs for tax advantages, life-time income 
and significant ministry gifts following a period of years or death of the donors. 

A third area of our ministry focuses on endowments. These are out­
right gifts managed to provide a steady stream of income to designated 
ministries and a immediate full income tax charitable deduction. 

In light of the estates that will transfer from one generation to another 
during the next ten to fifteen years we need to seize the opportunity. Many of 
our most loyal members will need help in that transfer process. Some will def­
initely want to leave significant gifts possibly to their church or another ministry. 

The Foundation is limited in its effort to reach our people will you please 
help us help you? Advise your donors of our service. We promise that we will 
not harm your donors or your ministry in our work. We will assist each individ­
ual to meet his needs while benefitting the ministry or ministries of his choice. 

Together we can fund the work God has called us to do. 

Summary of Foundation Minutes April 30, 2001 

The Director's report was given and MSC to accept report. 
MSC to move David Brown's salary package from Board of 

Retirement to The Foundation and name him as Associate Director. 
Financial and budget report was given MSC to accept report 

and adopt the budget 
Officers were elected 

Henry VanKiuyve, Chairman 
Bobby Bowers, Vice Chairman 
Bill Ferguson, Secretary 

MSC to adjourn 
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Independent Auditors' Report 

M-AMERICAN INSTITVTE OF 
CERT1AEO PVBUC ACCOUNTANTS 

TENNESSEE SOCI£TY OF 
CERTlAEO PUBliC AOCOUNTANTS 

We have audited the accompanying statements of financial position of the Free Will Baptist 
Foundation, Inc. (the "Foundation") as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the related statements of 
activities and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of 
the Foundation's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audita in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of matenal misstatement. An 
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We 
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the Free will Baptist Foundation, Inc., at December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the 
changes in its net assets and 1ts cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

March 6, 2002 
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WJI 1 BAPTIST FOJJNDATION, INC. fREE H •• 

g;:;tements of Financial Pot!JtiQD 
DeC;mber 31. 2001 & 2000 

Callh and cas~ equivalents 
d earru.ngs recetvable 

.AcerUB . b} 
Other accounts recetva e 

ts 
at fair market value - Note 2 

Investmen , . 
Certificates of depOSll 
U.S. Government instruments 
Common Stoeks 
Real estate investments 
Mutual funds 
Corporate bonds 
Trusts 

Total investments 

Notes receivable - Note 3 

Total assets 

ASSETS 

I lABILITIES AND NET A$SETS 

IJabilities . . 
Ltabilities to benefiClal owners. . s trusts - Note 4 
Interest bearing revocable and savmg 
Future gift interests payable - Note 5 
Funds held in trust- Note 6 

Total liabilities 

Net Assets 
Unrestricted 

Total net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets 

d accomnanving notes See accouptanta' report an · 
to the finaqcial statements. -2-
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2000 2001 
$ 349,592 

67,709 
1,319 

$ 645,565 
63,218 

1,830,709 
4,565,125 

982,966 
567,010 
488,683 
163,988 
69.564 

8,668,045 

16.780 

231,028 
5,164,942 

868,558 
567,010 
449,299 
109,504 

73.504 

7.4§3.845 

26.910 

$ 9.103,445 i 8 199 538 

$ 6,536,597 
1,183,705 
1.274.887 

8.995.189 

108,256 
}08.256 

$ 5,775,160 
991,126 

1.352.834 

8,119.120 

80.418 
8Q.418 

s 9 103 445 i 8 199 538 



• 

FREE WILL BAPTIST FOUNpATION. INC 
Statements of Activitie · 

For the Years Ended ne<;e;;b;'3i01 
2001 and 200Q 

Revenue and Support 
Investment income: 
Interest and di · d d Vl en s, net of investment fiees 
as restated -

Realized net gains (1 ) 
Unrealized net gainsoOses of~ale ~!investments 

Total investment in::: om mvestments 

Support through "The Together Way'' 
Plan and other contributions 

Interest income - note receivabl 
Endowment income e 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenue and support 

All~tions of earnings to revocable trusts 
savmgs trust, beneficiaries and annuitan'ts 

Revenue and support after allocations 

Exnenses 
Reimbursement to the Board ofRetir 

National Associati f F ement of 
Salaries and benefi~n o :ree Will Baptists 

Equipment expense 
Travel and promotion 
Office expense 
Publications 
Training and education 
Legal and auditing 
Miscellaneous 

Total Expenses 

Increase (decrease) in net assets 

Net assets at beginning of year 

Net assets at end of year 

See accountants' report and . 
to the financial Statements. accompanymg notes 
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( 

( 

( 

$ 

$ 

2001 

377,794 
75,671 
52.455) 

401.010 

27,450 
1,845 

19 
82) 

430.242 

324,220) 
105.992 

40,000 
533 

4,810 
16,294 
2,188 
4,540 

7,375 
2.414 

78,154 

27,838 

80.418 

108,256 i 

$ 
( 

( 

2QQQ 

186,326 
4,972) 

557.89& 
739.249 

26,575 
1,767 

648 
4.545 

772,7~H 

665,161) 
107.623 

40,000 
1,139 

16,155 
2,124 
3,647 
6,838 
7,375 

247 
77,525 

30,098 

&0,320 

aa~Ja 

FREE WIT.J. BAPTIST FOUNDATION, INC, 
Statements of Cash flows 

For the Years Ended December 31. 2001 and 2000 

Cash flows for operating activities 
Cash received for: 

Contributions 
Interest and dividends 
Other income 

Cash paid to suppliers and employees 
Allocations of earnings to revocable trusts, 

savings trusts, beneficiaries and annuitants 
Net cash used by operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities 

Principal payments re<:eived on notes receivable 
Proceeds from sale of investment securities 
Purchases of investment securities 

Net cash provided (used) by investing activibes 

Qa.11b flQ!ill from UlliUJgnK octiriti~:11 
Proceeds from additions, net of withdrawals, to future 

gift interest, revocable and savings trusts 
Contributions to funds held in trust 
Net change in funds held for Free Will Baptist Foreign Missions 

Net cash provided (used) by financing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 

Recom;ilia.ti2n 2f increa.11~ in nl'lt AIIKYI 
t2 1<111h .tlgw11 from m1~rating a~viti!'la 

Increase (decrease) in net assets 
Less increase in net assets considered capital additions 
Realized and unrealized gains on investment transaction 
Decrease (increase) in accrued investment income 

Net cash used by operating activities 

See accountants' repgrt and DCC()mpanyjng 
nQtes t2 the financial mtement§, 
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$ 

( 

( 
( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

$ 

($ 
( 
( 
( 

($ 

2001 2000 

26,131 $ 28,262 
266,987 281,261 

1,782 6,960 
78,154) ( 77,525) 

32~.~2Q) ( §65.161) 
lQZ.§Qi) ( ~2§.2Qa> 

10,130 11,827 
7,134,904 1,671,600 
8.al2,888) ( 1221,888) 
1.170,854) 1.131.539 

961,288 ( 398,363) 
28,369 109,638 
1.212) §18 

982,a82 ( 288.207) 

295,973) 417,129 

645,565 228.436 

349,592 $ 645,565 

50,109) $ 211,827 
28,369) ( 109,638) 
23,216) ( 552,923) 

5,810) 24,§31 

1Q1 g04) (i ~2ti.21lll) 



Note 1-

FREE W]LI. BaPTIST FOUNDATION. INC. 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31. 2001 and 2000 

Summarv of Sirnjficant Accounting Policies 

Free will Baptist Foundation, Inc. (the Foundation) ia operated under the 
auspices of the National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. 

Accrual Basis and Financial Statement Presentation 

The financial statements of the foundation have been prepared using the accrual 
basis of accounting. 

The Foundation classifies its revenue, contributions, expenses, gains, and losses 
into three classes of net assets based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed 
restrictions. Net assets of the Foundations and changes therein are classified as follows: 

Unrestricted net assets - Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed 
stipulations. 

Temporarily restricted net assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed 
stipulations that may or will be met either by actions of the Foundation and/or 
the passage of time. 

Permanently restricted net assets- Net assets subject to donor-imposed 
stipulations that they be maintained permanently by the Foundation. 
Generally, the donors of these assts permit the Foundation to use all or part of 
the income earned on related investments for general or specific purposes. 

The amount for each of these classes of net 8.8Sets is presented in the statement 
of financial position and the amount of change in each claBS of net asaets is di&played in 
the statements of activities. The foundation had no temporarily restricted net assets at 
December 31, 2001 and 2000. 

Income Taxes 

The Foundation is exempt from federal income tax under section 601(c) (3) of the 
Internal Revenue Code under a group exemption of the National Association of Free Will 
Baptist, Inc. In addition, the foundation has been determined by the Internal Revenue 
Service not to be a "private foundation "within the meaning of 509 (a) of the Internal 
Revenue Code. There was no unrelated business income for 2001 and 2000. 

Cash and Cash Eauiyalents 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Foundation considers all cash 
on hand, depomts in financial institutions and highly liquid debt instruments with an 
original maturity of three months or less to be cash and cash equivalents. 

Use of Estimate& in the Preparation of Financial Statements 

Judgment and estimation is exercised by management in certain areas of the 
preparation of financial statements. The more significant areas include the collectibility 
of notes receivable and determination of fair value of investments. Management 
believes that such estimates have been based on reasonable aBSumptions and that such 
estimates are adequate. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
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Note 1· 

Note 2-

FREE WILL BAfTIST FOUNPAT10N. INC. 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

necember 31. 2001and 2000 

f s· ' ficant Accounting Policies (continued) 
Summarv o lffD' 

Investments . . 
. . re orted at fair value Wlth gams and 

Investments in marketable sec~titi:s 'r:vesrments in marketable ~ties are 
losses included in the stateme~t of a~Vl ~~t value. Nonmarketable investments are 
valued at current quoted or estimate mar d 
carried at cost unless a permanent loss of value has occurre . 

Liabilities to Beneficial Owners 
li biliti t: r assets they held as trustee, 

The Foundation has recorded a -es o f income or remainder interests. 
intermediary, custodt~ or. agen~ ~or ~e~=~~ c::::::: held within a specific truSt or 
Generally, the Foundation sliability 18 1 

account. 

J.nyestments 

A summary of investments at market value and cost. ia as follows: 

Investments: 
Marketable Secunties: 

Certificate of deposits 
U.S. ~vernment instruments 
Common stocks 
Mutual funds 
Corporate bonds 
Trusts 
Real estate investment trust 

Total Investments 

Investments: 
Marketable Securities: 

Certificate of deposits 
U.S. Government instruments 
Common stocks 
Mutual funds 
Corporate bonds 
Trusts 
Real estate mvestment truSt 

Total Investments 

Market/ 
Stated 
Yalue 

$ 1,830,709 
4,665,125 

982,966 
488,683 
163.988 
69,564 

5f27,Ql!l 
i 8 668 045 

Market/ 
Stated 
YalYil 

$ 231,028 
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6,164,942 
868,558 
449,299 
109,504 

73,604 
561-010 

$ 7 463 845 

2001 

Appreciation 
(depreciation) Cost 

$ 1,827,375 
4,401,359 

982.100 
596,995 
166.530 

69,564 
5QQ,OOQ 

$ 8,543,923 

zooo 

Cost 

$ 227,370 
6,071,765 

809,578 
509.855 
111,594 
73,504 

§{)()_000 

$ 7 303,666 

$ 3,334 
163,766 

866 
( 108,312) 
( 2,542) 

-0-
f27,QlQ 

$ 124 122 

Appreciation 
(depreciation) 

$ 3,658 
93,177 
58,980 

( 60,556) 
( 2,090) 

-O-
f27,Ql0 

$ 160 179 



Note 2-

Note 3 · 

Note 4-

Note 5-

Note 6-

FREE WILL BAPTIST FOUNPATION. INC. 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31. 2001 and 2000 

Investments (continued) 

Total investment income amounted to $294,694 for 2001, consisting of investment 
gains of $23,216 and interest and dividends of $271,478. This investment income represents 
yields of 3.65% and 3. 72% based on the average market value and average cost of such 
investments for 2001. 

Total investment income amounted to $811,340 for 2000, consisting ofinvestment 
gains of $552,293 and interest and dividends of $258,417. This investment income 
represents yields of 10.47% and 10.48% based on the average market value and average cost 
of such investments for 2000. 

Notes Receivable 

Notes receivable consist of obligations from related parties as follows: 

11.5% note receivable due in monthly installments 
of $230 through 2001, relating to the purchase 
of a copy machme by the Board of Retirement and 
Insurance of the National Association of Free Will 
Baptists. 

8.5% note receivable due in monthly installments of 
$903 through 2003, relating to the purchase of a 
phone system by the National Association of the 
Free Will Baptista, Inc. 

Interest Bearing Revocable and Saving Trusts 

2001 2000 

s -0- $ 1,142 

16.780 25.768 

$ 16.780 $ 26 9 10 

The Foundation maintains revocable trusts and savings truate which totaled 
$6,536,597 and $5,767,888 at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The trusts pay 
interest to the trust beneficiaries. The rate of interest paid is dependent upon the amount of 
income earned from the related investments. Withdrawal from the accounts, which may 
require a 30-90 day notice, is without penalty, and the trusts are without maturity. 

Future Gift Interests Payable 

The foundation maintains charitable unitruste amounting to $320,321 and $281,680 
and gift annuities amounting to $863,384 and $709,446 as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, 
respectively. These future gift interests pay interest at specified rates ranging from 5.0% to 
8.7%. 

Funds Held in Trust 

The Foundation holds in trust that are subject to restrictions by the donor requiring 
that the pnncipal, and in certain instances earnings, be invested in perpetuity, and only the 
income be distributed to the beneficiaries of the endowment. The rate of interest paid is 
dependent upon the amount of income earned from the related investments. As of December 
31, 2001 and 2000, the permanently restricted endowment funds totaled $1,274,887 and 
$1,352,834, respectively. 

-7-
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Note 7 · 

Note 8 · 

Note 9 · 

FREE WILL BAPTIST F01JNDATION. INC. 
~the Financial Statements 

p;c;mber 31. 2001 and 200Q 

Related Partv Transactions . 
f the National Association of Free Will 

The Board of Retirement and In~uran~ ~ ti. rvices to the Foundation for fees 
. and certalll admUll8tra ve se 

Baptists proVlded office space d 2000 respectively. 
of $40,000 and $40,000 for 2001 an • 

£ t' Regarding Fjnancia}lpetnamenta In oxma 100 

. . k of loss in the areas of cash and cash 
The Foundation baa an accounting:;: not insured or guaranteed by a 

equivalents and investments to the ~xtsnt :lao~ at risk of loss with respect to the 
governmental agency. ~e Foundatio~~!uowing table summarizes the Foundation's 
market values of other mvestmebente.S1 2001 and 2000: 
accounting risk of loss at Decem r • 

December 31. 2001 
Amount Amount of 

Cash and cash equivalenta 
Short term liquid investments 
Certificates of deposit 
U.S. Government instruments 
Common stock 
Mutual funds 
Corporate bonds 
Real estate investment 
Trusts 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Short term liqwd investments 
Certificates of deposit 
U.S. Government instruments 
Common stock 
Mutual funds 
Corporate bonds 
Real estate investment 
Trusts 

Account 
Balance 

$ 257,976 
91,616 

1,830,709 
4,566,125 

982,966 
488,683 
163,988 
567,010 

69.664 
$ 9,017 631. 

Insuredl Accounting 
Sewred RiBk of Loes 

$ 100,000 $ 157,976 
91.616 

1,686,424 
4,665,125 

1 6A43,)65 

144,285 

982.966 
488,683 
163,988 
567,010 

69.564 
i 2.574.472 

pecember Sl. 2000 
Amount Amountof 

Account 
Balance 

$ 230,377 
416,188 
231,028 

5,164,942 
868,558 
449,299 
109,504 
567,010 

73.504 
i 8109 410 

Insuredl Accounting 
Sfcured Risk of Loss 

$ 100,000 $ 130,377 
415.188 
231,028 

5,164,942 

$ 5.91115& 

868,558 
449,299 
109,504 
567,010 
73,504 

$ 2.198 252 

Restatement of Prior Years 
. . . ined that amounts previously sho~ as 

During the audit lt was determ ctuall liabilities to the Foundation. 
permanently restricted net asseta were ~fin ~position and activities have been 
Accordingly, the prior yflear statem:::. :ndo~ent funds held. 
restated to properly re ect amoun 

-8· 
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Free Will Baptist Foundation Salaries 

David Brown 

Salary 
Social Security/Medicare 
Retirement 
Insurance 

Total 

Ufe 
Hospitalization 
Dental 
Disability 

Data Entry Person 
(new position, part time) 

Salary 
Social Security/Medicare 

Total 

2000 2001 
Retirement Retirement 

Approved 
2002 

Foundation 

Proposed 
2003 

foundation 

$34,533.57 $36,730.34 $44,045.00 $45,366.35 

S$~,431779.3659 S$26,548147.58 $3,369.00 $3,470.53 
' . ' .04 $3,029.00 $3,618.30 

$8,432.04 $9,037.65 $11,468.20 $11,468.20 
$403.20 $403.20 $403.20 $403.20 

$7,227.48 $7,814.40 $10,691.00 $10,691.00 
$585.84 $569.88 $227.00 $227.00 
$215.52 $250.17 $147.00 $147.00 

$51,762.65 $54,769.61 $61,911.20 $63,923.38 
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$10,400.00 
$795.00 

$11,195.00 

Free Will Baptist Foundation Budget 

Income 

The Together Way 
Gifts 
Interest Income 
Endowment 
Miscellaneous 
Management Fees 
Total 

Expenses 

Salaries 
Employee Benefits 
Salary Reimbursement 
Travel 
Promotion 
Office Expense 
Rent 
Printing 
Publications 
Training & Education 
Auditing 
Legal 
Bonk Fees 
Postage 
Equipment 
Miscellaneous 

Total 

Actual 

1999 

Actual Approved Actual Approved Proposed 

2000 2001 2001 2002 2003 

24,310 
965 

2,720 
562 
183 

- 78,391 
107,131 

23,839 
1,646 
9,080 

648 
4,545 

67,865 
107,623 

19,675 1,139 

0 0 
22,000 35,000 
14,740 10,218 

N/A 5,937 
1,708 1,663 
5,000 5,000 

0 3,281 
738 366 

1,075 6,838 
6,825 7,200 

27 175 
N/A 95 
N/A 366 

1,295 0 
_ _,!2!,-.C!.0:.!..!!!.95_~247 

75,178 n ,525 
31,953 30,099 
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25,000 27,126 26,000 29,000 
1,000 325 1,500 1,600 
4,500 8,191 6,900 4,250 

500 19 500 250 
100 {82) 100 100 

85,000,.__~70,4:-:-:14;__~85:;..t-:,0~00~1~00~,000-=-7---
116,100 105,993 120,000 135,200 

29,150 0 44,045 55,766 

0 534 17,866 19,353 
35,000 35,000 0 0 
12,000 10,013 14,000 14,000 
8,000 6,282 9,000 8,000 
3,450 620 2,264 3,081 
5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 
6,000 4,305 6,000 6,000 
1,200 235 1,000 1,000 
6,000 0 9,000 9,000 
7,500 6,300 6,500 7,000 

250 1,075 250 1,000 
125 981 125 500 
425 586 450 1,000 

1,000 4,810 2,000 2,000 
1 .000 __ ..,.2.1..!.!41..!-4 -~2.5=00~...-2~5=00~ 

116,100 78,155 120,000 135,200 
27,838 



Greetings: 

Home Missions 
Report on 2001 

• This has been an exciting and fulfilling year for the National Home 
Missions Department. The Home Missions Board approved the fol­
lowing missionaries for the harvest fields: 
Scott and Rebecca Cheatham-Northglenn, Colorado 
Bill and Christy Reynolds- Exeter, Rhode Island 
Dave and Rebecca Franks, Jr.-Madison, Alabama Hispanic Ministries 
Fred and Barbara Janes-Cullman, Alabama Hispanic Ministries 
Wayne and Jeanette Wilson-Prattville, Alabama 

• Our Free Will Baptist military chaplains have been serving around the world 
in Germany, Spain, Macedonia, and Kuwait as well as in the United States. 

• We had two home mission churches to become self-supporting. They 
were Russell Johnson, Cheyenne, Wyoming, and Darrell Smith in 
Oregon City, Oregon. 

• Two of our Home Missionaries, Mark Braisher, Overland Park Kansas 
and Rick Morris, Queen Creek, Arizona, received $35,000.00 each 
from the "Build My Church" fund to help in purchasing land. 

• The Church Extension Loan Fund has made 210 loans to churches and 
missions to build facilities and purchase land. During this year CELF 
loaned out $2,409,000.00. 

• Benjamin Randall Day offering for this year was $301,460.00. The total 
income to Home Missions for the year was $4,902,000.00. 

• Our home missionaries set several records this year. They made 211 ,000 
contacts and over 1,000 souls were saved during this period. For 
Sunday morning worship we had an overall average attendance in 
our mission churches of 2,200 people. For churches in the beginning 
stages, that is a wonderful answer to prayer. 

Our department needs your consistent prayer and financial sup­
port ~ we seek to continue to plant strong, self-supporting Free Will 
Baptist churches throughout North America, Canada, the United 
States and ~e U .. s. territ?ri~s. Thank you, dear friends, for helping us 
to pl~t sohd, B1ble-believmg churches in Jerusalem, Judea, and 
Samana so that we may reach the world for Christ. 

In His Service, 

Larry A. Powell 
General Director 
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A Synopsis of Minutes of 
Home Missions Board Meetings for 2001 

April 30, 2001 S tt and Rebecca Cheatham to be approved for the 
MSC to approve co 

Northglenn, CO work. a·u d Christy Reynolds to start a new work in 
MSC to approve 1 an 

Exeter, Rhode Island. d L pita Wilson as Joint Project wor~-
MSC to recommend ShaneMc;m. u Board to open a Hispanic work m 

ers with Tennessee State Home 1SS10ns 

the Johnson City, TN are~ B b Jones be approved to relocate to the 
MSC that Fred an ~ ~a a work among the Hispanics. 

Northern part of Alabama to egm 

June 1, 2001 . h ll sm· kland as a National Home Missionary to 
MSC to approve Mttc e c 

Milwaukee, WI. 

July 18, 2001 t the city of Fredericton and 
MSC to allow Jeff Crabtree to r~lo~t~ ~ding The Board will review 

to permit him to raise funds .for Ian an U1 . 

his progress at the May meeting. 

August 15, 2001 . d as our missionary and coordinator 
MSC that Dr. Paul Park be retame on desi nated funds as asso-

and that all other Korean pastors b~ ~a~~e Korec! pastors will receive 
date missionaries. It is understoo 5 2~0 1. 
their last salary check on OctobM~r ~ ' will not participate in Global Focus. 

MSC that National Home lSSions 

October 30,2001 d J anette Wilson as Joint Project workers 
MSC to approve Wayne an e 

to Prattville, AL. 

December 3-6,2001 . ends that the National Home 
The Personnel Committee re~o~ s who are in the Armed Forces 

Missions Department only sp.onsor c ap am 
of the United States of Amenctha. MSC d f r a Slavic Russian Coordinator, w_e 

Since we no longer see e nee lo d from his duties as the SlaVIc 
L ·d M rgan be re ease · 

recommend that eoru oN . al Home Missions Department effective 
Russian Coordinator for the atlon 
January 1, 2002. MSC . length ofloans from 15 years to 20 years. 

MSC to adjust scale of ~urn th B ·ld My Church fund be split 
MSC that the accrued mt~rest fro~ e U1 

between Mark Braisher and Rick Moms. 
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To the Board of Trustees of the 

HlNTON. WARREN. 
DENNEY& WALLACE 

CERTIFIED PUBUC ACCOUNTANTS 
THE VOlUNT££R IIIJ)G. 

SUITE 100 
318 PLUS I'AAI< III..VO. 

NASHVIU.£, TN 37217·10015 
(115) 31&-5100 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Board of Home Missions of the National 
Assoclation of Free Will Baptista of the 
United States of America, Inc. 

Antioch, Tennessee 

...... .,.,. 
AMERICAN fHSTlTUTE OF 

CEI'mAEO PUBUC ACCOUNTANTS 
TENNESSEE SOC1ETY OF 

CEJmAEO PUBUC ACCOUHTANTS 

We have audited the accompanying statements of financial position of the Board of Home 
Missions of the National Asaociation of Free Will Baptists of the United States of America, Inc. (a 
nonprofit organization) as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the related statements of activities and 
cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the 
Organization's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements 
based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audita to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An 
audit mcludes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statements presentation. 
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the Board of Home Missions of the National Association of Free Will Baptista of 
the United States of America, Inc. as of December 31, 2001 and 2000 and the changes in its net assets 
and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America. 

February 11, 2002 
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Assets 
Cash- Note 9 
Investments 
Investments in Church Extension 
Loan Fund . Note 6 

Accounts receivable - related party - N te 6 
Inventory - Note 1 o 
Property and equipment, at cost 
less($accumula~d depreciation of $137,253 

117,461 m 2000) _Notes 1 & 2 

ASSETS 

JJABILITIES ANP NET ASSETS 

Liabilities 
Bank overdraft 
Line of credit . Note 12 
Accounts payable and accrued expense 
Deferred compensation - Note 4 s 

Total liabilities 

Commitment§ _ Notes 7 

Net assets 
Unrestricted 

Operating 
Board designated _ Note 8 

Temporarily restricted- Note 5 

Total net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets 

See accountants' report and . 
notes to the finanCJa} Btatem:::panvmg 

-2-
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2001 

$ 112,817 
72,404 

692,914 
149,351 

14,462 

146.369 

u 188.317 

$ 
128,831 
24,910 

8.144 

161.885 

669,440 
165.000 
834,440 

191.992 

1.026.432 

$1 188,317 

2000 

$ -0-
163,278 

1,161,446 
93,000 
36,760 

155.684 

IUUQ,l:il 

$ 26,925 

26,063 
115.391 

168.379 

747,153 

747,153 

694.625 

1.441,778 

$J 610 157 

BOARD OF HOME MISSIONS OF THE 
NA~~iATION OF fREE WILL BAPTISTS 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA. INC. 
Statements of Activities 

For the Years Ended December 31. 2001 and 200Q 

Unrestricted 
Revenue: 

Cooperative program 
Designated contributions 
Management fees - Note 6 
Interest income 
Dividend income 
Gain (loss) on sale of investment 
Unrealized gain (loss) on value of investment 
Net assets released from restrictions: 

Restrictions satisfied by payments 

Total revenue 

Expenses: 
Administrative expenses 
Missionary expenses 
Missionary land & building 

Total expenses 

Increase (decrease) in unrestricted net assets 

Temporarily restricted 
Revenue: 

Cooperative program 
Designated contributions 
Net assets released from restrictions: 

Restrictions satisfied by payments 
Missionary expenses 
Missionary land & building 

Increase (decrease) in temporarily 
restricted net assets 

Total increase (decrease) in net assets 

Net assets - beginning of year 

Net assets - end of year 

See acoountants' report and aCQ()mpanying 
notes to the financial statement§. 

-3-
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2001 

$ 193,450 

( 
( 

736,650 
170,000 

81,581 
2,813 

573) 
93,114) 

~.1!21.11§ 

5,241.922 

1,003,520 
3,344,492 

806.623 

5.154.635 

87,287 

764,662 
2,883,820 

( 3,344,492) 
( 806,623) 

( 502.633) 

( 415,346) 

1.441.778 

ll Q2§,j32 

2QQ() 

$ 205,031 
578,364 
120,000 
150,432 

( 252,454) 

4,078,918 

4,880.291 

930,714 
3,358,034 

720,884 

5.009,632 

( 129.341) 

895,720 
2,798,245 

( 3,358,034) 
( 720.884) 

( 384.953) 

( 514,294) 

1.956.072 

ll.~1.2ZS 



Operating acgpties 
In~rease (decrease) in net assets 
A(ljuatments to reconcile increase . 
net cash provid d ( 10 net assets to 

D . . e used) by operating activitie"· 
epreaation "· 

Amortization 
(G~) loss on disposal of investment 
&~am) ~~ on value of investment 

anges m operating assets and liabilities: 
(Increase) decrease in receivables 
(Increase) decrease m mventories 
:ncrease (decrease) in bank overdraft 

a
ncreasde (decrease) in accounts payable and 
ocrue expenses 

Increase (decrease) in deferred compensation 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 

Investing actiyjtje11 
Rede~?tion of investments 
Acquuntton of investments 
Purchases of propert d . 

Net cash ro · Y an . eqwpment 
P vided (used) by mvesting ~ .. acuVIties 

Finagcing actiyities 
Proceeds from the line of credit 
Repayments on the line of credit 

Net cash used by financing activities 

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash eQUivalents at be.,;,..,..;_ f .. ~go years 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of years 

See 8 1'&9untants' reoort d . an acmmoanvmr 
notes to the financial stateii!;$; 
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2001 

($ 415,346) 

19,791 

573 
93,114 

( 56,351) 
22,288 

( 26,925) 

( 1,153) 
( 107.247) 

( 471.256) 

1,007,403 
( 541,685) 
( 11M76> 

455.242 

1,447,499 
( 1.318,668) 

128.831 

112,817 ( 

·Q-

( 

( 

( 

( 
( 

2000 

($ 514,294) 

20,470 
2,914 

252,454 

15,000 
31,621) 
26,925 

6,335 
43.1!9Q) 

265.40'D 

711,979 
425,480) 
23.948) 

262.551 

·0· 

2,856) 

2.856 

s 11 2 stz ... s __ ,;J-9~:.· 

Note 1 • 

BOARD OF HOME MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF fREE WILL BAPTISTS 

OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA. INC. 
Notes to the Financial Statement§ 

December 31. 2001 and 2000 

Organization and summary of aimificant accounting policies 

The Board of Home Missions of the National Association of Free Will Baptists of 
the United States of America, Inc. is a nonprofit organization affiliated with the 
National Association of Free Will Baptists located in Antioch, Tennessee. The purpose 
of the Organization is to establish and support Free Will Baptist Mission churches in 
the United States (including U.S. Virgin Islands and Puerto Rico) and Mexico. The 
Organization's support comes primarily from donor contributions. 

The Organization is exempt from federal income tax under section 50l(c){3) of 
the Internal Revenue Code under a group exemption of the National Association of Free 
Will Baptists, Inc. In addition, the Organization has been determined by the Internal 
Revenue Service not to be a "private foundation" within the meaning of 509(a) of the 
Internal Revenue Code. There was no unrelated business income for 2001. 

The following significant accounting policies have been followed in the 
preparation of the financial statements: 

Basis of accounting 

The Organization prepares its financial statements using the accrual basis of 
accounting, which involves the application of generally accepted accounting principles; 
consequently, revenues and gains are recognized when earned, and expenses and losses 
are recognized when incurred. 

Basis of presentation 

Financial statements presentation follows the recommendations of the Financial 
Accounting Standards Board in ita Statements of Financial Accounting Standards 
(SFAS) No. 117, Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Organizations. Under SFAS No. 
117, the Organization is required to report information regarding its financial position 
and activities according to three classes of net assets; unrestricted net assets, 
temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently restricted net assets. 

Use of estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles includes the use of estimates that affect the financial statements. 
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Investments in Church Extension Loan fund 

Investments consist of investments in the Church Extension Loan Fund. 
Investments are stated at cost, which approximates market value at December 31, 2001 
and 2000. 

·5· 
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Note 1-

BQARD OF HOME MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA INC. 
Notes to the Financial Statement§ 

December 31. 2001 and 2000 

Organization and s11m mary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 

Contributions 

The Organization accounts for contributions in accordance with the 
recommendations of the Financial Accounting Standards Board in SFAS No. 116, 
Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions Made. In accordance with 
SFAS No. 116, contributions received are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily 
restricted, or permanently restricted support, depending on the existence or nature of 
any donor restrictions. 

All donor-restricted support is reported as an increase in temporarily or 
permanently restricted net assets depending on the nature of the restriction. When a 
restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction 
is accomplished), temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net 
assets and reported in the statements of activities as net assets released from 
restrictions. The Organization bas no permanently restricted net assets. 

Property and equipment and depreciation 

The Organization follows the practice of capitalizing, at cost, all expenditures for 
property and equipment in excess of $500 and an estimated useful life of at least two 
years. Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the useful lives of the 
assets generally as follows. 

Automobile 5 years 
Office furniture and equipment 3 - 20 yea.rs 

The net property and equipment balance has been recorded as a separate component in 
unrestricted net assets. 

Cash equivalents 

The Organization considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of 
three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. 

Inventory 

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost (first in, first out method) or market. 

Investments 

Investments are composed of equity securities and are valued at fair value. 

-6-
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Note 2-

Note 3-

Note 4-

Note 5-

ARD OF HOME MISSIONS OF THE 
~FREE WU.LBAPTISTS 

N~HiifNiTEi)sTATES OF AMERICA INC. 
0 Notes to the Financial Stat,ements 

December 31. 2001 and 2000 

fropertv and equipment 

A summary of property and equipment is as follows: 

Land - Puerto Rico 
Automobile 
Office furniture & equipment 

Less: Accumulated depreciation 

Capitalized leases and change in accounting eetjmate 

2001 
$ 105,000 

52,375 
126.247 
283,622 

( 137.253) 
Sj 146.369 

2000 
$ 105,000 

52,375 
115,770 
273,145 

( 117.461) 
5j 15§.684 

Will B ti ts purchased an office buil~ to 
The National A880ciation of Fx:ee f th :p smina.tion The Board bas entered 

house various departments and a~en~es ow b~~:g and a~eed to contribute to the 
into an agreement to lease space m ~ ne . od d to continue until the debt bas been 
debt service costs d~g the ~onstructl~n$~:~02 ':re capitalized in 1991 and we~ to be 
retired. The constru~on penod costs o ~ Board of Home Missions voted to begm 
amortized over a penod of twenty years. . od f five years beginning in 1996. 
amortizing the remaining balance after a p:;i to ~-0- ($2,914,in 2000). 
Amortization expense for the years amoun 

Deferred. compensation 

The Board of Home Missions provides deferred compe;sati~n fo~:cb employee 
b · · ercent of salary and years o sel'VlC6. 

based on a formula com lDUlg a P l he employment is terminated. The 
compensation is payable to the emp o~ee w :aa,tion account. This account was 
following i9 a summArY of the deferre compe 13) 
replaced by a pension plan during the year (see note . 2001 2000 

$ 115,391 $ 158,981 
Balance at beginning of the year 
Contribution for the year: 

Missionaries 
Transfer and terminations 
Balance at end of the year 

Restrictions on net assets 

( 
$ 

7,387 
114,634} 

8,144 

36,334 
( 79.924) 
$ 11§ 391 

11 · urposes· 
aril tn'cted net assets are available for the fo oWJ.Og p . Tempor y res 

2001 200Q 
$ 189,794 $ 685,905 

2.198 8.720 
i 19L992 $ 694 625 

Missionaries 
Church Extension Loan Fund 

These net assets are restricted due to donor restrictions. 

when the donor restriction is satisfied. 

They are released 

f. -7-
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Note 6-

Note 7-

Note 8-

Note 9-

BOARD OF HOME MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA INC. 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31. 2001 and 2000 

Related party transactions 

The Board of Home Missions provides office space for and pays the salaries of 
the employees of a related party, the Church Extension Loan Fund. During the year, 
the Church Extension Loan Fund paid the Board of Home Missions a management fee of 
$170,000 ($120,000 at December 31, 2000) to reimburse the coat of the office apace and 
salaries. The Board of Home Missions has invested money in a demand note of the 
Church Extension Loan Fund. The balance in this investment at year-end was $692,914 
($1,161,445 at December 31, 2000). This investment is uncollateralized. The Board of 
Home Missions' management constantly scrutinizes the monthly financial statements of 
the Loan Fund to make sure that the Loan Fund is solvent and to minimize the credit 
nsk of the investment. This investment is short term in nature and the interest can be 
changed, therefore cost approximates fair value. 

The Board of Home Missions has a receivable from the Church Extension Loan 
Fund for unrestricted earnings during the year. The balance on this receivable at year­
end was $149,351 ($93,000 at December 31, 2000). 

I&ase 

The Board of Home Missions entered into a lease agreement on October 1, 1990 
with the National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. for office and storage space. 
The term of the lease expires when all mortgages on the building are satisfied, the 
mortgage was retired in 2000. The Organization entered into a new lease agreement 
on July 1, 2001. The term of the lease was July 1, 2000 to August 31, 2000, then 
beginning September 1, 2000 the lease became a year to year lease. The rent expense 
for the year amounted to $50,220 (S50,220 for the year ended December 1, 2000). 

Desirnation of unrestricted net assets 

During 2001 the Board designated $165,000 in unrestricted net assets to reduce 
the deficits in missionary accounts. 

Concentration of credit risk 

The Board maintains cash deposits in excess of the federally insured amount of 
$100,000. At December 31, 2001, the excess amount over the federally insured limit was 
$12,817 ($-0- in 2000). The Board has a cash management agreement with a local 
bank which invests any excess cash overnight in U.S. Government Securities under a 
repurchase agreement. Any cash not insured should, under the terms of this agreement, 
be collateralized by U.S. Government Securities. 

The Board also has $692,914 ($1,661,445 in 2000) invested in a demand note of 
the Church Extension Loan Fund. This note is uninsured. 

-8-
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Note 10 -

Note 11-

Note 12 · 

BOARD OF HOME MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIOmr;:SsaciATioNQF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

QFrrjiE UNITEQSTATES OF AMERICA, INC. 
Notes to the Fmancial Statements 

December 31. 2001 Apd 2000 

Fair yalues of financial im•tnlments 

The following methods and assumptioz:u' ~ere used by. the Organization in 
• tin' 'ts fair value disclosures for financialmsttuments. estuna g1 

. . Cb b Loan Fund receivables and 
Cash, cash equivalents, mvestments mrted ~the statement of financial position 

b1 . The ca......,;ng amounts repo w . 
paya es. UJ- f th sh rt maturities of those mstruments. 
approximate fair values because o e 0 

ts
. The fair value of investments is based on quoted market price for 

Investmen . 
those investments. 

Investments 

Investments are stated at fair value and consist of equity securities: 

Equity securities 

Cost 
$360,671 

December 31. 2001 

Fair 
Value 

$ 72,404 

Investment return is summarized as follows: 

Net realized and unrealized income 

Equity securities 

Cost 
1360 400 

December 31. 2000 

Fair 
Yalue 

$163 278 

Investment return is summarized as follows: 

Net realized and unrealized income 

Line of Credit 

Unrealized 
Appreciation 

<Depreciation) 
($ 288 267) 

( 93 687) 

Unrealized 
Appreciation 

(Depreciation) 
($197 122) 

($ 252,454) 

. di ' th a bank in the amount of $200,000. 
The Organization bas a line of ere_ t Wl A ril 30 2002 As of December 

· th bank' , e rate and 1t matures on P • · . 
The interest 18 e . . s prun $128 831 ($-0- at December 31, 2000) against the line. 
31, 2001, the Orgamzation owes ' 
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Note 13. 

BOARp OF HOME MIS 
NATIONAL ASSOCIA'i'iONQF~~ n:f 

Pension plan 

The Board Participates in the maate · 
and Insurance of the National Association oi ::::o~ plan of the Board of Retirement 
5% of gross salary for miaaionaries and d . . ~ill Baptists. The Board contributes 
of service and 2% of gross salary for mi~o::~:native em~l~yees .with 5 or more years 
leSB ~an 5 years of service. Pension e nses s and admUU8trative employees with 
pensJOn plan is a defined contributi i U amounted to $17,195 ($0 in 2000). The 
f~r e~ch ~articipant and upon retireC:e~~ nde.r .the plan, a~ account is maintained 
dlatribution or purchase one of seve al t e pfartiC1~ant can elther receive a limp-sum 

r ypes o anmuty contracts. 

·10-
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To the Board of Trustees of 

HJNTON. W ARR.EN. 
DENNEY& WALLACE 

CER'T1F1ED PIJ8UC ACCOUNTANTS 
THE YOI.IJNTeER et.OO. 

SUITE 100 
$18 PlUS PARI< elVD. 

NASHVIUE. TN 37217·10Cle 
{$15) 3M-5100 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
ON SUPPLEMENTARY I NFORMATION 

the Board of Home Missions of the 
National Association of Free Will Baptists 
of the United States of America, Inc. 

AMERICAN INSlTTIJTE OF 
CERTIFIED PUBUC ACCOUNTANTS 

TENNESSEE SOCIETY OF 
CERTIFIED PUeUC ACCOUNTANTS 

Our report on our audita of the basic financial statements of the Board of Home Missions for 
2001 and 2000 appears on page 1. We conducted our audita in accordance with generally accepted 
auditing standards for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a 
whole. The schedule of functional expenses is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a 
required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audita ofthe basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in 
all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

February 11, 2002 
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Home Missions Department Proposed Faith 
BOARD Of HOME MISSIONS Qf THE Budget for 2003 

NATIONAL ASSOCIATION 0:: FREE w.ILL BA~ISTS 
OF 'l'HE UNITE~ STATES Qf AMERIQA, INQ, 

~b~dul~ Q(FYD~QIJBl EG!:D~fl 
2002 2003 

fQr the Years Ended December 3L 2001 and 2000 Missionary Maintenance 

Salaries $ 2,750,000.00 $ 2,750,000.00 

Ad.milliflt[Qtiy~ ~G~Dll~!l 
2001 2000 

Travel & Promotion 250,000.00 250,000.00 

Salaries and wages $ 
Employee Savings 35,000.00 35,000.00 

Payroll taxes 
308,310 $ 285,065 Postage and Printing 175,000.00 175,000.00 

Housing allowance and employee benefits 
14,624 17,365 

Employee savings 
95,900 81,100 Miscellaneous 20,000.00 20,000.00 

Retirement 
5,502 13,259 Land & Building Fund 525l000.00 525£000.00 

Cost of literature 
7,703 Total $ 3,755,000.00 $ 3,755,000.00 

Promotion expense 
5,537 8,097 

Utilities 49,919 41,620 

Office expense 
16,119 10,067 Missionary Assistance 

Printing and postage 
26,787 28,734 

Rent expense 
163,448 170,434 Printing & Postage $ 175,000.00 $ 175,000.00 

Professional fees 
50,220 50,220 Telephone 12,000.00 12,000.00 

Auto and travel expense 
13,768 8,983 
59,909 67,741 Board Member Expense 15,000.00 15,000.00 

Board meeting expense 
Insurance expense 

24,508 16,779 Auditing & legal 10,000.00 10,000.00 
79,339 52,459 Telephone literature 5,000.00 5,000.00 

Amortization 
7,625 11,071 

Together Way Office 2,914 Together Way Office 3,000.00 3,000.00 
Ml.acellaneous 

2,061 3,817 Supplies 30,000.00 30,000.00 
Depreciation 52,450 40,519 

Missionary Training 25,000.00 25,000.00 19.791 20.470 

Total administrative expenses 1,003,520 
Total $ 275,000.00 $ 275,000.00 

930.714 

M.iatJi!2DiilO! I:G!:Dfll:li Administration Salary and wages 
Employee savings 

2,706,682 2,756,874 
Salaries 20,266 30,134 $ 276,500.00 $ 276,500.00 

Retirement 
Promotion expense 

9,492 Housing 73,500.00 73,500.00 
1,438 9,938 Printing and postage Payroll Taxes 20,000.00 20,000.00 

Literature 
129,206 165,850 

Auto and travel expense 
50,718 46,375 Employee Savings 15,000.00 15,000.00 

Insurance expense 
228,312 194,420 Insurance 55,000.00 55,000.00 

Des1gnated contributions 
24,317 26,073 

Miscellaneous other expense 
79,444 79,793 Utilities 12£000.00 12,000.00 
94,617 48,577 Total $ 452,000.00 $ 452,000.00 

Total missionary expenses 3.344.492 3.358'.034 
Evangelism and Church Growth 

MiasiQnaa land & buildings Auto & Travel $ 70,000.00 70,000.00 aoo.ti2a 720,884 

Total expenses 
i5 154.635 $5 009,632 

Promotion 45,000.00 45,000.00 
Revivals 20,000.00 20,000.00 
Roll Call Sunday 2l000.00 2l000.00 

See accountants' report Qn supplementary informatiQQ, Total $ 137,000.00 $ 137,000.00 

·12- Plant 

Office Space $ 51 ,000.00 51 ,000.00 
Equipment & Supplies 15,000.00 15,000.00 
Depreciation 20l000.00 20l000.00 

Total $ 86,000.00 $ 86,000.00 

Cross-Cultural Ministry $ 295,000.00 $ 295,000.00 

Total Faith Budget $ 5,000,000.00 $ 5,000,000.00 
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Proposed State Goals for 2003 
Salaries 

National Home Missions Department 2001 2002 2003 
General Director: 

2002 Goal 2003 Goal $45,273 .35 $47,084.28 
$43,954.71 

Alabama $ 390,000.00 $ 390,000.00 Salary 
15,600.00 15,600.00 15,600.00 

Housing 
Alaska $ 10,000.00 $ 10,000.00 1,900.00 2,100.00 2,200.00 

Utilities 
Arizona $ 25,000.00 $ 25,000.00 2,994.84 3,067.06 3,134.21 

Arkansas $ 275,000.00 $ 275,000.00 Savings 

California $ 195,000.00 $ 195,000.00 Insurance: 
60.00 60.00 60.00 

Travel 
Canada $ 5,000.00 $ 5,000.00 283.20 283.20 283.20 

CELF $ 100,000.00 $ 100,000.00 Life 
7,374.48 7,600.00 8,500.00 

Health 
Colorado $ 85,000.00 $ 85,000.00 500.00 600.00 

Dental 416.52 
Florida $ 70,000.00 $ 70,000.00 $72,583.75 $74,483.61 $ 77,461 .69 

Totals 
FWB Foundation $ 8,000.00 $ 8,000.00 Office car furnished 
Georgia $ 145,000.00 $ 145,000.00 
Hawaii $ 500.00 $ 500.00 Director of Development: 
Idaho $ 15,000.00 $ 15,000.00 $32,051.82 

$28,485.72 $29,988.29 
Illinois $ 115,000.00 $ 115,000.00 Salary 

21 ,600.00 21 ,600.00 21,600.00 
Indiana $ 60,000.00 $ 60,000.00 Housing 2,300.00 2,400.00 
Iowa $ 5,000.00 $ 5,000.00 Utilities 2,100.00 

2,579.41 2,682.59 
Kansas $ 30,000.00 $ 30,000.00 Savings 2,504.28 

Kentucky $ 85,000.00 $ 85,000.00 Insurance: 60.00 60.00 
louisiana $ 40,000.00 $ 40,000.00 Travel 60.00 

283.20 283.20 
Maine $ 5,000.00 $ 5,000.00 life 283.20 

4,000.00 4 ,700.00 
Maryland $ 40,000.00 $ 40,000.00 Health 3,878.16 

300.00 400.00 
Massachusetts $ 5,000.00 $ 5,000.00 Dental 227.16 $64,177.61 
Michigan $ 175,000.00 $ 175,000.00 Totals $59,138.52 $61 ,110.90 

Mid-Atlantic $ 5,000.00 $ 5,000.00 Office car furnished 
Mississippi $ 130,000.00 $ 130,000.00 

Director of Church Growth and Evangelism: Missouri $ 230,000.00 $ 230,000.00 
Montana $ 1,000.00 $ 1,000.00 Salary $33,285.72 $34,788.29 $36,851.82 

New Hampshire $ 2,000.00 $ 2,000.00 16,800.00 16,800.00 16,800.00 
Housing 

New Jersey $ 1,500.00 $ 1,500.00 2,000.00 2,200.00 2,300.00 
Utilities 

New Mexico $ 18,000.00 $ 18,000.00 Savings 1,001 .64 2,579.41 2,682.59 

North Carolina $ 355,000.00 $ 355,000.00 
Ohio $ 175,000.00 $ 175,000.00 

Insurance: 60.00 60.00 
Travel 60.00 

Oklahoma $ 425,000.00 $ 425,000.00 283.20 283.20 
Life 283.20 

Oregon $ 25,000.00 $ 25,000.00 11,500.00 12,500.00 
Health 10,092 .36 

Other Income $ 280,000.00 $ 280,000.00 650.00 750.00 
Dental 598.32 

Other States $ 20,000.00 $ 20,000.00 $68,860.90 $72,227.61 
Totals $64,121.24 

Pennsylvania $ 75,000.00 $ 75,000.00 Office car furnished 
Puerto Rico $ 8,000.00 $ 8,000.00 
South Carolina $ 160,000.00 $ 160,000.00 Director of Missionary Assistance: 
South Dakota $ 2,000.00 $ 2,000.00 $32,051.82 $37,188.29 
Tennessee $ 550,000.00 $ 550,000.00 Salary $35,685.72 

14,400.00 21,600.00 
Texas $ 125,000.00 $ 125,000.00 Housing 14,400.00 

3,100.00 3,200.00 
Utah $ 4,000.00 $ 4,000.00 Utilities 3,000.00 

Virginia $ 160,000.00 $ 160,000.00 Savings 2,379.06 2,579.41 2,682 .59 

Virgin Islands $ 60,000.00 $ 60,000.00 Insurance: 60.00 60.00 
Washington $ 5,000.00 $ 5,000.00 Travel 60.00 

283.20 283.20 
West Virginia $ 80,000.00 $ 80,000.00 Life 283.20 

11,500.00 12r500.00 
Wisconsin $ 55,000.00 $ 55,000.00 Health 10,092.36 
WNAC $ 130,000.00 $ 130,000.00 Dental 598.32 650.00 750.00 

$73,127.61 
Wyoming $ 35,000.00 $ 35,000.00 Totals $66,498.66 $69,760.90 

Total $ 5,000,000.00 $ 5,000,000.00 Office car furnished 
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To the Board of Trustees of the 
Church Extension Loan Fund 
Antioch, Tennessee 

HlNTON. WARREN. 
DENNEY & WALLACE 

CE!mFlED PUBLIC ACCOUNT.I.HTS 
THE VOI.UNTEEIIIILOG. 
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31t PUJ8 .w.< III.VO. 

HASH\IIU.E, TN 17217·1005 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

WuuDwa 
AMERICAN tNSTmJTE Of' 

CERTlFTEO PU8liC Aero INTANTS 
TENNESSEE SOCIETY OF 

C£AT1FTEO PUBUC ACOOUNTANTS 

We have audited the accompanying statements of financial position of the Church Extension Loan 
Fund (a nonprofit organization) as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the related statements of 
actiVIties and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of 
the Organization's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statements based on our audita. 

We conducted our audita in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audita to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes 
exanurung, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our 
audita provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in aU material respects, 
the financial position of the Church Extension Loan Fund as of December 31, 2001 and 2000 and the 
changes in ita net assets and ita cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting 
prmciples generally accepted in the United States of America. 

February 11, 2002 
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CHURCH EXTENSION LOAN FUND 
Statements of Fmancial Position 

December 31. 2001 and 2000 

.Aasets 
Cash- Note 6 
Notes receivable • Notes 1 4 & 8 
Bonds receivable ' 
Accrued interest receivable 
Property and equipment - at cost less 
accumulated depreciation of $26• 506 

($22,600 in 2000). Notes 1 & 2 • 

Total assets 

ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

Liabilities 
~unts payable - related party - Note 4 

un~ payable. Build my Church Pro'ect 
Accrued mterest ~ 
Revocable and irrevocable trusts- Note 9 
Deferred compensation - Note 10 
Notes payable - Notes 3, 4 & 8 

Net assets 
Unrestricted 

Total liabilities 

Total net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets 

See accountants' rePort and accompanvin 
notes to the financial Statements. g 
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2001 

$ 1,584,925 
14,626,009 

91,627 
117,544 

3.662 

$16.423.767 

$ 149,351 

128,638 
1,616,750 

286,409 
12.717.016 

14.898.164 

1.525.603 

1.525.603 

2000 

$ 989,588 
14,092,285 

84,309 
113,470 

7,568 

$15.287.220 

$ 93,000 
70,000 

123,068 
1,631,858 

440,967 
11.278.410 

13.637.303 

1.649,917 

1.649.917 

$16,423·767 $15.287.220 

CHURCH EXIENSION LOAN FUND 
Statements of Activities 

For the Xeara Ended December 31. 2001 and 2000 

Qperatjog 
Revenue 

Investment income 
Interest income on notes receivable 
Management fee 

Expenses 
Interest expense 
Office expense 
Auto and travel 
Management fee - Note 4 
Promotion 
Postage 
Professional fees 
Depreciation 
Build My Church Project expense 
Transfer to Free Will Baptists Home Missions 

Increase (decrease) in operating net assets 

Build My Church - Note 5 
R.evenue 

Designated contributions 

Expenses 
Transfer to Free Will Baptist Home Missions 

Increase (decrease) in Build My Church net assets 

Total increase (decrease) in net assets 

Net assets - beginning of year 

Net assets - end of year 

See accountants' report and accompanving 
notes to the financ1al statements. 
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Unrestricted 
2001 2000 

$ 33,955 $ 83,040 

( 

( 

1,365,438 
7,034 

1.406.427 

972,567 
8,951 

21,839 
170,000 

6,625 
2,176 
1,012 
3,906 

70,000 
149.351 

1.406.427 

-0-

125,686 

250,000 

124.314) 

124,314) 

1.649.917 

II 1 ri2Ci §Q3 

1,282,415 
13.126 

1,378.581 

935,496 
11,264 
23,752 

120,000 
8,254 
1,810 
4,960 
4,913 

70,000 
198.000 

1,378.449 

132 

89,813 

89,813 

89,945 

1.559,972 
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CHURCH EXTENSION LOAN FUNp 
Statements of Cash Flowe 

For the Yeara Ended Decembei3i:ioOI and 2000 

Ooeratmg actiVltiea 
Increase (decrease) in net assets 
Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets 
to net cash provided by operating activities· 

Depreciation · 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 
(Increase) decrease in accrued interest receivable 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest payable 
Increase (decrease) in deferred compenaatioo 

Net cash (used) provided by operating activities 

Investing activities 
Proceeds from sale of investments 
Collection on notes receivable 
Additions to notes and bonds receivable 

Net cash provided (used) in investing actiVlties 

Financing activities 
Addition to trusts 
Termination of trusts 

2001 

($ 124,314) 

3,906 

( 4,074) 
( 13,649) 

5,570 
( 154.558) 

( .2BZ.ll~) 

( 2,646,331) 
2.105,289 

( f2~l.Q4g) 

41,513 

( 

Additions to notes payable ( 56,621) ( 
Repayment of notes payable 

Net cash provided by financing activities 

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash eqwvalents at beginning of year 

Cash and cash eqwvalents at end of year 

Sunplemental disclosures 
Interest received 

Interest paid 

See accountants' report and ar,rompanving 
notes to the fipancial Statement&, 
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( 

$ 

$ 

$ 

3,456,686 
2,Q18.QBQ) ( 

M23.~~B 

595,337 

flB~.~BB 

l ~a~ ~2~ ~ 

J.aaa wn ~ 

fl!i§ WlZ ~ 

2000 

$ 89,945 

4,913 

( 11,316} 
( 15,000) 
( 8,585) 

66.550 

126,507 

1,546,823 
3,175,852 
4,589.076) 

1aa.~~fl 

6,968 
43,600) 

2,422,485 
2.1Z1.62~) 

2U,22~ 

474,335 

~lfi.2§3 

~aa !iaa 

1 a~z ~~ 

~~.QIU 

Note 1-

CHURCH EXTENSION LQAN FUND 
Notes to the FinanciAl Statements 

December 31, 2001 and 2000 

Orgppjz.atjon and s1unmary of significant accounting policies 

The Church Extension Loan Fund is a nonprofit organization under the direction 
of the Board of Home Missions of the National Association of Free Will Baptiste of the 
United States of America, Inc. located in Antioch, Tennessee. The purpose of the Fund is 
to loan money to Free Will Baptist Churches, primarily Home Mission Churches, for 
purchase of land and buildings. The Organization's support comes primarily from 
interest on notes receivable. 

The Fund is exempt from federal income tax under section 501(c)(3) of the 
Internal Revenu.e Code under a group exemption of the National Association of Free Will 
Baptista, Inc. ln addition, the Fund has been determined by the Internal Revenue Service 
not to be a "private foundation" within the meaning of Section 509(a) of the Internal 
Revenue Code. There was no unrelated business income for 2001 and 2000. 

The following significant accounting poliCies have been followed in the 
preparation of the financial statements: 

Basis of accounting 

The Fund prepares ita financial statements using the accrual method of 
accounting which involves the application of U.S. generally accepted accounting 
principles; consequently, revenues and gaina are recognized when earned, and expenses 
and losses are recognized when incurred. 

Basis of presentation 

Financial statement presentation follows the recommendations of the Financial 
Accounting Standards Board in ita Statements of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) 
No. 117, Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Organizations. Under SFAS No. l17, the 
Fund is required to report information regarding ita financial position and activities 
according to three claeaee of net assets; unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net 
assets, and permanently restricted net assets. 

Use of estimates 

The preparation of finanCial statements in conformity with U.S. generally 
accepted accounting principles includes the use of estimates that affect the fmancial 
statements. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Contributions 

The Fund accounts for contributions in accordance with the recommendations of 
the Financial Accounting Standards Board in SFAS No. 116, Accounting for Contributions 
Received and Contributions Made. ln accordance with SFAS No. 116, contributions 
received are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently restricted 
support, depending on the existence or nature of any donor restrictions. 

-5-
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CHURCH EXTENSION LOAN FUND 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31. 2001 and 2000 

Organization and summarv ofsignjficant accounting policies (Continued) 

Contributions (continued) 

All donor-restricted support is reported as an increase in temporarily or 
permanently restricted net assets depending on the nature of the restriction. When a 
restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction 
is accomplished}, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net 
assets and reported in the statements of activities as net assets released from restrictions. 
The Fund has no temporarily restricted or permanently restricted net assets. 

Propertv and equipment and depreciation 

The Fund follows the practice of capitalizing, at cost, all expenditures for property 
and equipment in excess of $500 with a useful life of at least two years. Depreciation is 
computed on a straight-line basis over the useful lives of the assets generally as follows: 

Automobile 
Office equipment 

5 years 
5 years 

The net property and equipment balance has been recorded as a separate 
component in unrestricted net assets. 

Investments 

Investments are composed of equity securities and are valued at quoted market 
pnce. 

Notes receivable 

The Fund loans money to Free Will Baptist Churches, primarily Home Mission 
Churches, for the purchase of land and buildings. Each church is required to give a first 
mortgage on the property or sign a deed of trust. Principal and interest on the loans is 
payable monthly at 9.5% over a fifteen year period except for churches still under 
construction which are required to pay interest only. The Board of Trustees changes the 
rate on these notes receivable as other interest rates change. The carrying value of these 
loans approximates market value. The churches are located throughout the United 
States. Effective January 1, 2002 the interest was reduced to 8.5% and the maximum 
length of new loans was increased to twenty years. 

The aggregate maturities of these notes are as follows: 

2002 
2003 
2004 
2005 
2006 

Thereafter 
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$ 641,284 
704,930 
774,892 
851,799 
936,337 

10.716.767 
$14.626.009 

Note 1 · 

Note 2 • 

Note 3 · 

Note 4-

CHURCH EXTENSIOr\ LOAN FU;® 
~tes to the FinanCial Statements 

December 31, 2001 and 2000 

d of significant accounting policies (Continued) 
Qrgamzatwn an summary 

Allowance for doubtful accounts . 
"d accounts and notes receivable to be fully collectible; 

Management cons1 crs . . d 

d
. l no allowance for doubtful accounts 19 requtre . 

accor mg y, 

Cash eauivalents 

The Fund considers all highly ~iqmd investments with a maturity of three months 

or less when purchased to be cash equtvalents. 

Property and equipment 

A summary of property and equipment follows: 

20Ql 2QQQ 

$ 18,200 $ 18,200 
Automobile 11,96~ 11.a~~ 
Office equipment 30,168 30,168 

( 2§,50§) ( 22.§00) 
Accumulated depreciation i 3,662 § 7,568 

Notes payable 
o ured demand notes from individuals and 

Notes payable consist of 5 1/2 • 7 *' unsecl d to hurches to help them purchase 
d f th notes are then oane c 

churches. The procee s o ese the interest rates on these notes 
land and buildings. The Board ofTruste~;/ht~ng~anuary 1, 2002 all rates were reduced 
payable as other interest rates change. ec lVe 

1/2%. 

Related party transactions 
Home Missions of the N a tiona! Association of Free 

The Fund paid the Board of 70 000 ($120 000 at December 31, 2000) to 
Will Baptists, Inc. a manageme~t f~e of:~ s;l rent ~d other expenses paid by the 
reimburse the Board of Home ~.aston~ o inve::d in the note payable of the Fund. The 
Board. The Board of Home MlsSions as eMissions at year end was $243,410 
balance of this note payable to t~e TBhoarFd ofdHhao~ accounts payable to the Board of Home 

D mber 31, 2000,. e un ) 
($~8~,884_ at eoe f $149 351 ($93,000 at December 31, 2000 . 
MlSSlons m the amount o ' 
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Note 5-

Note 6-

Note 7-

Note 8-

CHURCH EXTENSION LOAN FUND 
Notes to the Ftnancial State~nt~ 

December 31. 2001 and 20 0 

Designated contributions 

The designated contributions are amounts given to the "Build My Church" 
program. The monies given to this program are loaned to churches in the same manner 
that other funds are loaned to churches. The total amount given for the first phase of the 
Build My Church program has reached $1,000,000. fn accordance with the provisions of 
the program payments totaling $70,000 were made subsequent to year-end to the land 
funds of two Home Mission's Churches from the interest earned on loans made with Buud 
My Church contributions. A second phase of the Build My Church program has begun. 
When the total amount given through the second phase of Build My Church program 
reaches $1,000,000, then the interest earned from the loans made with the program will 
be used to assist the Cross Cultural Ministry and the Home Missions General Fund. 
During the year $250,000, from the second phase was transferred to the Horne Missions 
General Fund. This money was originally transferred from the Home Missions General 
Fund to start the second phase after the itrst phase was completed. The total amount 
given through the end of the year is $1,487,554 ($1,611,868 at December 31, 2000). 

Concentration of credit risk 

The Fund maintains cash depos1ts in excess of the federally insured amount of 
$100,000. At December 31, 2001, the excess amount over the federally insured limit was 
$1,484,925 {$889,588 in 2000). However, the Fund has a cash management agreement 
with a local bank which invests any excess cash overnight in U.S. Government Securities 
under a repurchase agreement. The amount mvested under this agreement was 
$1,449,000 ($1,061,000 in 2000). Any cash invested under this agreement should, under 
the terms of this agreement, be collateralized by U.S. Government Securities. 

Fair value of financial instruments 

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Organization in 
estimating its fair value disclosures for financialmstruments: 

Cash, accrued interest receivable, investment in Free Will Baptist Foundation, 
payables, accrued interest payable and deferred compensation: The carrying amounts 
reported in the statement of financial position approximate fair values because of the 
short maturities of those instruments. 

Notes receivable and bonds receivable: Based on current interest rates, the 
carrying value approximates the fair value of the notes receivable and bonds receivable at 
December 31, 2001 and 2000. 

Notes payable and trusts: Based on current interest rates, the carrying value 
approximates the fair value of the notes payable and trusts at December 31, 2001 and 2000. 

Concentration 

Included in notes receivable at December 31, 2001 are eighteen loans which total 
$7,030,161 {seventeen loans which total $6,427,975 in 2000). This balance represents 
48.07% (45.61% in 2000) of total notes receivable. 

-8-
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Note 8 · 

Note 9-

Note 10 · 

Note 11-

CHURCH EXTENSION LOAN FUND 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31. 2001 and 2QQO 

Concentration (continued) 

te hi h total $7 971 054 or 62.68% (forty­
Notes payable include fifty no ;; . c 2000) of ~tal ~otes payable. Of these 

six notes which total $7,205,614 or 63.8 :tal $1 000 000 or 7.86% (two notes total 
(fort -six in 2000) notes payable, two • • ::6.884~r 8.75% in 2000) of total notes payable. 

Revocable and irrevocable trust§ 

bl charitable remam er P . d trusts ay interest at 6-
Nine irrevocable and four revoca e d to make mortgage loans. Interest 

9% per year. The principal of the~ tr~~ts2:: ::ounted to $139,519 ($134,813 at expense for the year ended Decem er • 
December 31, 2000). 

Deferred compensation 

vin s trusts transferred from the Board ?f Deferred compensation repre~~ta saf Frg Will Baptista for the benefit of therr 
Home Missions of the National AsSOCUl~on ~e;:nt or departure from Home Missions. 
principal and other employees upon f~e~r~O% per year. Interest expense for the year 
These trusts pay interest at a r$a~ ~84.($3~ 695 at December 31, 2000). ended December 31, 2001 was • • 

Restatement of prior years . . . h d to separate the operating revenue and 
The statement of actlVlties was c ange d enses Accordingly, the 2000 

h Build My Church revenue an exp . expenses from t e fl ct this change. 
statement of activities was restated tore e 
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Master's Men 
The Men's Ministry of the National Association of Free Will Baptists 

2001 was another year of changes in the Master's Men Department. 
As we try to keep up with the demands of our men we are constantly ini­
tiating new and better programs. 

In 2001 we added eleven new chapters. We initiated our Father's Day 
project by offering free bookmarks to all Free Will Baptist churches as 
Father's Day gifts. 

We also introduced another Direction Bible Study, Blessed is the Man. 
Our sports fellowship continued to be successful as we saw an 

increase in the number of participants. 
Our National Men's Retreat was well attended with forty seven men 

from several different states gathering at Trinity Camp in Guin, AL to hear 
Bro. Danny Dwyer, pastor in Florence, AL. 

Operation Saturation was another success. For the second year we 
teamed with Home Missions to recruit our people to gather at Home 
Mission churches across America to help spread the word about the local 
Free Will Baptist church and the Gospel of Jesus Christ. In conjunction with 
Operation Saturation, I led a group of fifteen people to St. Croix, U.S.V.I. 
While on the island we conducted three revival services each day. During 
the morning we held services in both the elementary and high schools and 
at the church at night. We saw twelve decisions to accept Christ during the 
week. We also participated in door to door evangelism. 

The Master's Men Board approved several events for 2002. Rather 
than one National Retreat we will conduct three regional retreats. We will 
team with WNAC to sponsor a National Couples Retreat. We will be work­
ing with Foreign Missions on projects home and abroad. 

Fmally 2001 ended with Bro. Tom Dooley resigning as Director of the 
Master's Men Department Bro. Tom has felt called to return to the pastorate 
and has taken that position at F'rrst FWB Church in Austintown, OH. We appre­
ciated the hard work Bro. Tom did while serving the Master's Men Department 

In closing let me ask for your continued prayers and support as I lead 
our department. I feel God has a plan for our men and we need to provide 
the opportunities for them to serve. 

Your fellow servant, 

Kenneth W. Akers, General Director 
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The Board of Directors 

MICHAEL JOHNSTON 
Certified Public Accountant 

13166 Lake Benton Road 
Benton, Illinois 62812 

Telephone: (618)439-0610 

The Master's Men, a Department of the 
National Association of Free Will Baptists 

Antioch, Tennessee 

I have audited the accompanying balance sheets of The Master's Men, a Department of 
the National Association of Free Will Baptists, as of December 31 , 2001 and 2000, and the 
related statements of activity and changes in fund balance and cash flows for the years 
then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Board of Directors. 
My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. 

I conducted my audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those 
standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the finan­
cial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and sig­
nificant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial state­
ment presentation. I believe that my audit provides a reasonable basis for my opinion. 

In my opinion, the aforementioned financial statements present fair1y the financial position of The 
Master's Men, a Department of the National Association of Free Will Baptists, at December 31, 
2001 and 2000 and the results of its operations and the cash flows for the years then ended, in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles applied on a consistent basis. 

Benton, Illinois 
May 17, 2002 

Certified Public Accountant 

Member of American Institute of Certified Public Accountants 
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, A DEPARTMENT OF THE 
NA~5:~~::o~:~~N OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

BALANCE SHEET 
December 31, 

2001 2000 

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash · 
Trust account - Build A House campaign 
Trust account - Lifetime membership 
Investments . 
Accrued interest receivable 
Inventories . 
Cash value of endowment tnsurance 

Total current assets 

NOTES RECEIVABLE (Note 4) 

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, net (Note 2) 

CAPITALIZED LEASE, net (Note 3) 

Total assets 

$ 6,947 
977 

100,598 
26,869 

2,399 
505 

3,594 

$141,889 

53,000 

18,426 

1,908 

$196,797 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 
Deferred revenue (Note 5) 
Accrued expenses 

Total current liabilities 

FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT) (Note 6) 
Unrestricted 
Restricted 

Total capital 

Total liabilities and capital 

$ 2,576 
2,270 

109 

$ 4,955 

$ 33,605 
176,663 

$210,268 

$ 4,955 

$ 8,177 
928 

110,075 
56,164 

539 
0 

3,691 

$ 179,574 

53,000 

23,324 

2,109 

$ 258,007 

$ 4,270 
1,200 

180 

$ 5,650 

$ 77,765 
174,592 

$ 252,357 

$258,007 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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THE MASTER'S MEN 

NATIONAL ASSOCIATIO~\~:~~~~':,~[ ~::::iTs 
STATEMENT OF AS,TIVITY AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

• ears ended December 31 
I 

2001 
2000 

Total TomJ 
Unrestricted Restricted 

EXPENSES 
Salaries and wages 
Payroll taxes and employee benefits 
Cost of sales and printing 
Travel expense 
Conferences and ronvenfions 
Office expense 
Postage 
Promotion expense 
Rent expense 
ProtessionaJ fees 
Bookkeeping expense 
Oeprec;afion 
Amortization 
Insurance expense 
Dues, subsaiptions and fees 
~er's Hands oonstrudion e~o 
MISSIOnS projects "r'' ~ 

$ 105,348 
19,208 
7,565 

18,218 
7,336 
5,475 
3,259 

33,181 
18,601 

950 
~ 

4,898 
201 

0 
1,559 

0 
0 

$ 226,699 $ 

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENSES $ 441 
FUND BALANCE (DEACIT) AT BEGINNING ( I 60) $ 

OF YEAR 
n.765 

$ 0 $ 105,348 $ 98,887 
0 19,208 20,465 
0 7,565 11,308 
0 18,218 17,632 
0 7,336 4,851 
0 5,475 4,853 
0 3,259 4,973 
0 33,181 25,631 
0 18,601 21,983 
0 950 1,175 
0 ~ 900 
0 4,898 4,263 
0 201 201 

97 97 103 
0 1,559 961 
0 0 0 13.653 13,653 9,796 

13,750 $ 135,101 $ 227,982 

2,071 $ 47,419 $(128,429) 

174,592 252,357 380,786 
RETAINED EARNINGS, ENDING 

$ 33•605 $ 176.663 $ 299, n6 $ 252,357 

The accompany· 
Jng notes are an integral part of the fi . I 

nanc1a statements. 
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THE MASTER'S MEN, A DEPARTMENT OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
Years ended December 31, 

2001 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Revenue over (under) expenses $ 47,419 
Adjustments to reconcile to net cash 

Depreciation 4,898 
Amortization 201 
Loss (gain) on sale of investments 26,687 
Loss in market value of investments 39,920 
Changes in assets and liabilities 

Change in inventories (505) 
Change in accrued interest receivable (1,860) 
Change in accounts payable (1 ,694) 
Change in deferred revenue 1,070 
Change in accrued expenses (71 ) 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 26,557 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Reductions (additions) to trust accounts $ 9,428 
Reductions (additions) to investments (116,024) 
Sales of investments 78,712 
Reductions (additions) to cash value of insurance 97 
Additions to property and equipment 0 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) 
INVESTING ACTIVITIES $ (27,787) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Addition to notes receivable $ (53,000) 
Proceeds from notes receivable 53,000 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES $ 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH 

0 

EQUIVALENTS ($ 1,230) 

8,177 

2000 

$(128,429) 

4,263 
201 

(45,061) 
95,661 

0 
0 

1,172 
(360) 
(334) 

$ (72,887) 

$ (6,571) 
27,161 
72,549 

103 
(18,027) 

$ 75,215 

$ 0 
0 

$ 2,328 

5,849 CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 

CASH AT END OF YEAR 

---·-------
$ 6,947 $ 8,177 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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THE MASTER'S MEN, A DEPARTMENT OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2001 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Following is a summary of the significant accounting policies of The Master's Men, a 
Department of the National Association of Free Will Baptists, hereafter referred to as 
the Department. 

GOVERNMENT -The Department operates under the auspices of the National 
Association of Free Will Baptists and is governed by a Board of Directors. 

RECEIVABLES AND ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS - Receivables are 
presented in the financial statements at the amount deemed collectible by management. 
Any provision for doubtful accounts is recognized using the direct writEH)ff method. 

INVESTMENTS - The investments are valued at the lower of cost or market. For gifts, 
the cost is determined by the fair market value of the security at the time of the gift. 

INVENTORIES - The inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market, with cost 
being determined by using the first-in , first-out method. 

PROPERTY, EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION - Property and equipment are 
presented in the financial statements at cost and are depreciated by the straight-line 
method over the estimated useful lives of the assets of 3-20 years. 

INCOME TAXES - The Department is exempt from federal and state income taxes; 
accordingly, no provision for income taxes is made in the financial statements. 

NOTE 2 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

The following is a summary of property and equipment owned by the Department at 
December 31 , : 

Equipment and furniture 
Less: accumulated depreciation 
Property and equipment, net 

NOTE 3 - CAPITALIZED LEASES 

2001 2000 
$ 45,487 $ 45,487 

27,061 22,163 
~$==1=8,=42=6=====$~23~,31! 

The National Association of Free Will Baptists purchased an office building to house various 
departments and agendes of the denomination. The Board of Directors has entered into an 
agreement to lease space in this nfN.I building and agreed to contribute to the debt service costs 
during the construction period and to continue until the debt has been retired. The construction 
period costs of $4,018 were capitalized and will be amortized over a period of twenty years. 
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EPARTMENT OF THE 
THE MASTER0'SC~~~: gF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

NATIONAL ASS ""' 

NOTES TO FINANClAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2001 

NOTE 4 • NOTES RECEIVABLE . 

. . f the Department's notes receivable at December 31 , . 
Following IS a summary o 

2001 ~000 

. H ward Gwartney, Locust 
Note receivable from. 7~ . dated 5/10/01; due on 

Grove, Oklahoma, o, $ 53,000 $ 0 
demand 

. bl from John Fowlkes, Vilonia, 53 000 
Note recelva ~~ . d t d 11/8/99· due on demandL=-=--::~0-----c:~~· .ao 

Arkansas; 7 to, a e ' ~$~5~3~,0~0;;;0===-~$==5=3=,0== 

NOTE 5 - DEFERRED REVENUE 
. s olf tournament fees, and meal tickets 

Deferred revenue consists off gue 'mgber 31 2001 and 2000. 
received for future years as o ece ' 

NOTE 6 - RESTRICTED FUND BALANCE 

The restricted fund balance is revenue designated for specific projects and 

consists of the following as of December 31, . 
2001 2000 

Mission projects . 
Build A House campaign 
Lifetime Membership 
Master's Hands projects 
Endowment insurance 

-6-

A- 129 

6 922 $ 5,174 $ I 

48,676 48,676 
106,678 106,258 

13,950 13,950 
437 5~ 

$-1-7-6.~66~3:------;t$:-:;1-=;7 4Ai2.92 
---



The Charter 
of 

. Master's Men of the 
National Association of Free Will Baptists I 

. Pursuantto TCA 48-67-101 & 102, and the Tennessee G I . ' nc. 
hovl~g capacity to contract and acting as the Incorporators o~~ro C~rporotlon Act, the. undersigned natural persons, 
Bophsts, Inc., a Tennessee Nonprofit Religious Corporation ad tso~er / l~e~ of thhe Notional Association of Free Will 

1 th f h ' op e o owmg C orter for such Corporation· 
· e nome o t e Corporation is: · 

Moster's Men of the Notional Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. 
2. The ~orporotion's ~rincipol office is located at: 

233 Mount VIew Road, Antioch, Davidson County, Tennessee 37013 
3. The Corporation's registered agent and address: 

Kenneth W. Akers, 5233 Mt. View Rood, Antioch, TN 37013 

4. The duration of this Non-Profit Religious Corporation is perpetual. 
5. The Corporation shall hove no members. 

ARTICLE I 
The Corporation is a Nonprofit Religious Corporation a d fi d b h 

48-51-101 etseq.,ondmorespecificall as aNon r f .s e ne Y! eTennesseeNonprofitCorporationAct TCA 
Corporation shall have and be entitled ~o exercis:a~ lto~!i~l:u~ Corporation ~s set. f~rth in TCA 48-67-101 & 102., This 
have and exercise under the laws of the State of Ti p h~eh ~ Nonprofit Rehglous Corporation of its nature may 
totions contained in the Internal Revenue Code to~:~~~~:,: ,now '" effect or her~atter amended, subject to the limi-

1 s a us as on exempt rehglous organization. 

ARTICLE II 
Corporate Purposes 

The purpose for which the Corporation is or . d . 1i 
our Heavenly Fothet gamze IS: o magnify Christ Jesus as our Lord and to glorify 

. To implement this chief purpose the Corporation shall ro . . . 
Men'" accordance with the tenets and doctrines of th Fr W~J B mot.e, corry on and mamtam the program of the Moster's 
Baptists, Inc., as described in Treatise of the Faith & ;act~es If fl opN~/~ set. forth by the National Association of Free Will 

The support of public worship, the building and moi;enree apfisfs and all other purposes incident thereto. 
and su~ o~her religious, educational or benevolent institutionsa;ce of c~urches, parsonages, schools, hospitals, chapels 
ory bodl~s ~~ the United States or in any forei n count a s m~ e necessary or p~o~er to the work of mission­
Corporation IS organized exclusively for chorita:J ,. ~· n~ the ~amtenance of all miSSionary undertakings. This 
Section 501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code ~f r; ~:~ot, ~h ucot~anol an~ scientific purposes within the meaning of 
Internal Revenue law) and its regulations (as th . or e correspondmg provision of any future United States 

ey now exist or may hereafter be amended). 

ARTICLE Ill 
Management of Corporation 

The overall direction of the Corporation shall be vest d . 
accordance with the overall direction of the Corporation sh:ll m a Board of ~~~ees. The management and operation in 
shall be elected by the Notional Association of Free Will Ba r ts~ the .responsibility o! th~ Corporate officers. The Trustees 

P IS , nc., m accordance wrth 1ts Constitution and By-laws. 

ARTICLE IV 
. Corporation's Powers As Trustee 

th The C~'P?roNon shall receive and administer funds and ro . f . 
e ~rporoNon IS authorized to take and to hold b b u d p . pe~es o all kmds for the above purposes, and to that end, 

for SOld purposes or any of them, any property, re:, ~ est, I evlse, .gedift, pu.rchose,. ID?n ~r lease, either absolutely or in trust, 
, , rsono , or mrx , Without hmltDNon a.s to amount or value, in occor-
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donee with such limitations, as may be imposed by low or by this Charter: to sell, convey and dispose of any such property or 
to invest and reinvest the principal thereof, and to deal with and expend such principal or the income therefrom for any of the 
purposes of the Corporation, either by direct action of the Corporation or by means of trust created by it, without limitation, 
except such limitation, ~any, as may be contained in the instrument under which such funds or property ore received; to receive 
any property, real, personal, or mixed, in trust, under the terms of any deed, will, deed of trust, or other trust instrument con­
sistent with the purposes of the Corporation, in administering the some to carry out the directions and exercise the powers con­
tained in the instrument under which the property is received, induding the expenditure of the principal as well as the income 
for one or more such purposes, if authorized and directed in the instrument under which it is received, to receive, take title 
bonds, obligations, and other securities of any person or persons, corporation or corporations, domestic or foreign for the pur­
poses of the Corporation. The Corporation is specifically authorized to serve as a Trustee of any and all funds donated to its 
use upon specified tenns and conditions consistent with its nonprofit religious and educational purposes. Furthennore, it may 
serve as Trustee under specific tenns and conditions of any and all funds so long as it is a beneficiary. 

ARTICLE V 
Dissolution 

In the event of he dissolution of this Corporation, any assets of the organization then remaining shall be conveyed to 
the Notional Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc., which organization is exempt under section 501 (c)(3) of the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1986 as amended or under successor provisions of the Code as may be in effect at the time of dissolution. 

ARTICLE VI 
Amendments 

This Charter may be amended upon a two-thirds majority vote of the entire Boord of Trustees mnsistent with the dedared gen­
eral programs, objeds, <llarter, By-laws and purposes of the National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc., in the following manner: 

1) The written amendment shall be submitted at a regular or special meeting of the Board and upon the pro­
posed written amendment being included in the notice for said meeting; and 

2) Upon its adoption, the same will be included in the Boord's Report to the next regular annual session of the 
National Association for discussion only; and 

3) Thereafter, the Board will reconsider the Charter amendment in light of the discussion at the annual session 
of the Notional Association and the Board must again approve the Charter amendment thereof and present the some 
to the next regular annual session of the Notional Association for approval; and 

4) Only upon the approval of said proposed amendment at the next regular annual session of the Notional 
Association shall the Charter amendment be finally approved by the Boord and filed of record with the Secretory of State. 

We, the undersigned, as the Incorporators and the Trustees constituting the Boord ofTrustees for the Master's Men 
of the National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc., do hereby acknowledge that this Charter was adopted at the rec­
ommendation of the General Boord by the convention of the Notional Association of Free Will Baptists, lnt, meeting on 
the day of , , at _________ _ 

By affixing my signature hereto, I, Kenneth W. Akers, certify that I witnessed the signatures of the foregoing 
Incorporators and the members of the Board of Trustees for the Master's Men of the National Association of Free Will 
Baptists, Inc., dated this day of 

------------------~ 

Kenneth W. Akers, General Director 

Sworn and subscribed to before me on the day of ______ _. _____ _ 

Notary 
My Commission Expires: -----------------
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By-laws and Rules of Decorum 
Of 

Master's Men of the 
National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. 

I 
Organization, Obiective, and Purposes 

1. OrgonizoHon. Moster's Men of the NoHonol AsSO<iotion of free Will BopHsts, Inc., (the "CorporoHon") is a non­
profit Corporation organized under the lows of the State of Tennessee. 

2. .off@. The Corporation shall maintain its principal office at 5233 Mountain View Rood, Antioch, Tennessee 
37013 or such other place within the State of Tennessee as determined by the Boord of Trustees. 

3. Objedive and purposes. To implement, promote, corry on and mointoin the progrom of Master's Men, induding the 
entiSfment of laymen and pastors in their local churches to encourage stewardship and fellowship to deepen their spiritual lives, in 
oaordonce with the tenets and doctrines of the free Will BopHsts os set forth by the Notional ~otion of Free Will Baptists, Inc. 

II 
Board of Trustees 

The Boord of Trustees shall be known as the Moster's Men Notional Boord and shall be considered the some as 
a Boord of Directors. 

l. Number. election. and authority ofTrustees. The Boord ofTrustees shall be composed of nine members who are elect­
ed by the Notional Association for a term of six years. These terms ore to be arranged so that they expire in groups of three bien­
nially. A Trustee shall serve no more than two full consecutive terms. The Trustees shall ad in their Trustee capacity only os o Boord 
and individual Trustees hove no power to oct for the Corporotion without prior specific Boord authority. Membership on the board 
shall be mode of laymen and ordained ministers, but at no Hme shall ordained ministers constitute more than one-third of the 
board. The Boord shall institute the overall program of the CorporoHon and the officers shall supervise and administer its oper­
ation. The Boord shall be responsible for the actions of the Corporooon to the NoHonal Association of free Will BopHst, Inc. 

2. QuolificoHon of Trustee. Each Trustee shall hold membership in a regular free Will BapHst Church that belongs to a 
Free Will Baptist District or State Associooon, or to a church which is recognized by the Notional AssocioHon os being affiliated. 

3. Reports to the National Association. The Boord shall prepare an annual budget of its proposed financial 
expenditures at the beginning of each fiscal year and shall present the same for approval to the Notional Association 
along with a properly qualified independent audit with on unqualified opinion on the Corporation's fiscal condition. The 
corporation financing shall include: Moster's Men Day Offerings; membership dues; the percentage of Co-op moneys 
as designated by the Notional Association; any and all contributions made to the corporation. 

4. Vacancies. The Boord of Trustees may seek to replace on on ad interim basis irregular vacancies that may 
occur among its members for any reason by requesting the General Boord of the Notional Association of Free Will 
Baptists, Inc., to fill said vacancies. 

5. Removal of Trustees. The Notional Association at any regular annual session shall have the power and right 
to declare the Trustee position vacant for any cause deemed valid by said Association and to elect successors to those who 
may thus be removed from office. 

6. Executive Committee. The Board of Trustees is authorized to create an Executive Committee to oct with such 
authority as the Boord of Trustees shall grant when the Board of Trustees is not in session. The number, election and 
meetings of the Executive Committee is to be determined and changed as the Boord of Trustees may from time to time 
direct. The General Director shall be a non-voting Ex Offlcio member of this Executive CommiHee. 

7. Regular and special meetings. The Board of Trustees shall set the time, but not less than semi-annually, occa­
sion or place of the annual meetings of the Boord of Trustees, which thereaher may be held without notice. Special meet­
ings may be held at any time upon the call of the General Director or upon the call of three Trustees. Notice the pur­
pose of such special meetings shall be in writing postmarked at least two weeks before the meeting. 

8. Quorum. A Quorum shall consist of at least six duly elected Trustees and a majority vote of the Trustees pres­
ent shall decide the issues brought before the meeting except as other-wise required by the Charter, By-laws or the Board 
of Trustees of this Corporation and/or by the National Association. 

9. Compensation and expenses. Trustees shall serve os such without compensooon. Expenses incurred in connection 
with the performance of their official duties may be reimbursed to Trustees upon approval of the Board of Trustees. A Trustee 
shall not be precluded from serving the Corporooon in any other capacity nor from receiving compensation for such services. 
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IU 
Officers of the Board of Trustees 

IJedion qnd Duties . f th B d f 1i stees shall be the Chairman of the Board, Vice Chairman, an~ ~eto.ry. 
l. Offic~rs. The officers o h e f :or o~ice~ shall be elected by the board of Trustees for one year begmnmg With 
2. ElectiOn and term. Eac o e h II serve until their respective successors ore elected. 

the regular annual meeting of thed B;~rdC~n~ they sf ~he Board shall preside at all meetings of the Board of Trustees 
3. Chairman of t~e B.oar . e Ol~man o. II reside. The Chairman shall perform all the duties and 

eKcept when he directs or m his .ab~ence th~ YIC~ho~~~~~tocairy out the directions of the Board of Trustees and shall 
have all the powers com~onl~ mclde~t to ~~ o ce for u on the inability of the General Director. 
oct as Chief Executive Officer, I.e. President, m tht ~bs~nce o oti ~hall perform all the duties and have all the powers 

4 Vice Chairman. The Vice Chairman o e .orpor o; h II have other powers and perform other duties as 
commo~ly incident to the office of ~orporotedV/ice C~ol~mo~ a~ Trsu;ees The Vice Chairman shall preside at the meet-
may be assigned to him by the ChOirmon on or t. e oar. oh. b . 

d f 1i t h the Chairman d1rects or m IS a sence. d h ff' 
ings of the Boar o rus ees w en rf II h d r d have all the powers commonly inci ent tot e o ICe 

5. Secretary. The Secretary shall pe orm o t: u~e:;nother duties as may be assigned to him by the Boord 
of corporate secretory and shall have other powers a~ pe o d f Trustees 
of Trustees. He shall keep the minutes of ~II the ~e~:'~s of r~~ob~r th~ Board of Trustees. The General Director shall be 

6. General Director. The General Director s a . ~p Ge I Director shall perform all the duties and have all the 
the Chief Executive Officer, le. President, of the Corporation. e nero d rform other duties as may be assigned 
powers commonly incident to the office of President ondhs~~~have othe~pow~rs ~ember of the Board of Trustees. 
to him by the Board of Trustees. The Genera~ ~~rectors ha II h ld :~~~ ~e pleasure of the Boord of Trustees. Any elected or 

7. Removal of Officers. The Gene~ lr~or s ~th ~ upon the affirmative vote of the majority of the Board. 
appointed officer may be removed at any time WI or WI ou cause 

IV 
Corporate Officers 

I D' Associate D'rector Se<retory and Treasurer. The ofti-
1. Offirers. The officers of the Corporation shall : ~; Genero ~re::~ ofT~ rna/ from time to time eled other offi-

cers of the Corporation shall not be members of the= of ~irector and Secretory, may be filled by the same person. . 
cers os ft my deem proper. AAy two officers, exrept ffi h II be elected by the Boord of Trustees and shall serve until 

2. Election and term. Each of the corporate o . ce~ s of h B d f '1: stees 
h subject to the d1rect1on o t e oar o .ru · 1 their respective successors are c osen . . h II rf all the duties and have all the powers common Y 

3. Associate Directors. The Assooote Director sh a pe orm nd perform other duties as may be assigned to him 
incident to the office of Vice President and shall havet' er .pow:rsra e elect Associate Directors assigning to their office 
by the General Director. The Boord of Tru.stees may rom time o lm 
such responsibilities as they may deem WI~ and ~~~ss~1es and have all the powers commonly incident to his office and 

4. Secretary. The Secretory shall pe o~ o e u . ned to him b the General Director. He shall have charge 
shall have other powers and perform other duties ~s mar be ass~ and records :s ore the responsibility of the Treasurer. 
of all corporate books and records except l~o~ sut finanoo'.~·ef fiscal agent and shall perform all the duties and have 

5. Treasurer. The Treasurer s~o . e t e corpora e I owers and erform other duties as may be assigned 
all the powers commonly incident to hiS office on? shall hoveBo;~;J ~f Trustees t~ give bond for the faithful performance 
to him by the General Director: He may be. reqUired b~ the . d As the Corporate chief fiscal agent, he shall have the 
of his duties, in the sum and With t~~ sureties as may e req~lr:cc~unts of the Corporation. 
care and custody of all funds, secuntles, valuable po~ers, odn th G era! Director shall be fixed upon the recommen-

6. Salaries. The salary of all employees servmg un er e en 
dation of the General Director by the Board of Trustees. 

v 
Contracts, Loans and Checks . 

. ffi r or officers agent or agents to enter mto any con-
1. Contracts. The Boord of Trustees ~oyhauthonze fny ~ ce behalf of th'e Corporation, and such authority may 

tract or execute and deliver any instrument m t e name o an on 
be general or confined to specific instances. beh If f the Co roHon and no evidences of indebted~ shall be issued in 

2. Loans. No ~oans shall be ~ntrocted on d a flio :authority may be general or confined to specific instances; 
its name unless authorized by a resolutiondofbtheth~ o ~st~ its Trustees or officers which ore prohibited by TCA 48-sm. 
provided, however, no loans shall be rna e Y e rpo on 
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3. Chec:ks and other instruments. All che<ks, drafts or other orders for the payment of money, notes or other evi­
dences of indebtedness issued in the name of the Corporation shall be signed by such officer or officers, agent or agerm 
of the Corporation and in such manner as shall from time to time be determined by resolution of the Board of Trustees. 

VI 
Limiting, and Indemnifying the Liability of Trustees 

The Trustees and/or Officers of the Corporation shall be immune from suit arising form the conduct of the affairs of the 
Corporation. The Trustees and/or Officers shall not be personal~ liable to the Corporation for monetary damages for breach of 0 
fiduciary duty provided; however, this provision shall not eliminate or lim~ the liabil~ of a Trustee and/or Officer for any bream 
of the Trustee's and/or Officer's duty of loyalty or for ads not in good foith or which involve an intentional miscondud or a know­
ing violation of law or for an unlawful distribution pursuant hereunder TCA 48-58-601. Further, the Trustees are, indemnified by 
the Corporation from personalliabil~ to the full extent as allowed by the Tennessee $taMe as set forth in TCA 48-58-501 et seq. 

VII 
Transadions with Trustees 

1. No contract or other transaction between this Corporation and any of its Trustees shall be void or voidable if 
such contract shall be approved or ratified by an affirmative vote at any meeting of the Board of Trustees by a majori­
ty of the Trustees. The subject Trustee shall have no voice or vote concerning the approval or ratification of his adion. 
Further, no Trustee shall be liable to account to the Corporation for any profit realized by him from or through any such 
contract or transaction ratified or approved as a foresaid. 

2. Not withstanding anything herein to the contrary, the Corporation shall not lend money to or use its credit to 
assist its Trustees or officers, whether or not employees. 

VIII 
Miscellaneous 

1. Written Consent. Whenever the Trustees of this Corporation are required or permitted to take any action by 
vote, such action may be taken without a meeting, upon written consent setting forth the action so taken, and signed by 
all of the Trustees entitled to vote thereon. 

2. Contracts and Notes. Contracts in the regular order of business shall be executed by the General Director or by a 
person designated with that authority by the Board of Trustees or its Executive Commmee as directed by written resolution. 

3. Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Corporation shall begin on the first day of January of each year and shall 
end on the last day of December next following. 

IX 
Amendments 

These By-lows may be amended by a two-thirds majority vote of the Trustees at any regular annual meeting or 
at a spe<ial meeting called for that purpose which call includes the proposed amendment(s). Such amendment(s) shall 
become effective upon approval by the National Association of Free Will Baptists, lnt 

Certification 
These By-laws and Rules of Decorum, amending all previous By-laws of Master's Men, were du~ adopted by a two-thirds 

mojo~ vote of the Board ofTrustees at m du~ mlled meeting on day of , 2001, 
at ------------------

Secretary 
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Director 
Salary 

• Hous1ng 
Retirement 
Insurance 
Total 

Associate 

Salary Breakdown 

2000 
28,200 
19,800 

1,945 
8,000 

58,400 

2001 
30,600 
19,800 

2,400 
8,400 

61 ,260 

2002 
30,600 
19,800 

2,460 
8,400 

61,260 

Proposed Budget for 2003 

Office Operations 
Rent 

Expenses 

Equipment & Supplies 
Telephone 
Postage 

Total 
Accounting 

Bookkeeping 
Audit 

Total 
Resource Development 

Printed Materials 
Postage 

Total 
Deportment Travel 
Salaries 

Director 
Salary Package 
So lory 
Housing 
Re~rement 

Insurance 
Associate (contract) 
Secretory (40 hrs/wk@8.50} 

FICA 
MEO 

Total 
Total Salaries 

Total Expenses 

20,292 
3,000 
2,000 
1,600 

26,892 

900 
1,000 
1,900 

7,000 
2,400 
9,400 

10,000 

58,494 
31,880 
20,400 

2,614 
3,600 

10,200 
17,680 
1,097 

257 
19,034 
87.72L 

135,920 

Income 
Dues 
Father's Day Offering 
Together Way 
Softball 
Golf 
Gifts 
Promotional Soles 
Resource Soles 
Endowment Income 

Total Income 

A- 135 

2003 
31,880 
20,400 

2,614 
3,600 

58,494 

10,200 

17,000 
4,000 

74,920 
4,000 
4,000 

22,000 
2,000 
2,000 
6,000 

135,920 



Free Will Baptist Bible College 
For sixty years Free Will Baptist Bible College has been fulfilling its 

mission "to equip men and women, through Bible-based education, to 
serve Christ and His Church." The college is entering a new era with 
momentous challenges. In order to face these challenges, we must main­
tain a healthy balance between tradition and innovation. 

We want to be a truly Christian community of faith and learning: a 
community where Scripture serves as the foundation for all teaching and 
learning, a community where Christian teachers and Christian students 
come together to search out and find God's truth and apply that truth to the 
whole of life. The Great Commission motivates us to educate ministers, 
missionaries, and other vocational Christian workers to proclaim the Good 
News of salvation in Christ to a dying world. The Great Commandment 
motivates us to educate laypeople to serve God and their neighbor, living 
out the gospel in a non-church-related career and endeavoring to take 
every thought captive to the obedience of Christ. 

The financial condition of the college has presented an enormous 
challenge. We entered the 2001-02 academic year with a ten-year -low enroll­
ment of 281 . This severely affected our financial condition: we faced a 
$600,000 budget deficit That deficit has been greatly reduced in two ways. 
First, our dedicated faculty and staff drastically cut the college's operating 
expenditures. This reduction in our operating budget was neither easy nor 
painless, but I commend our faculty and staff for it. Second, our supporting 
churches, alumni, and friends responded to our need by increasing their giv­
ing by an amazing 18% over the previous year. Our sincerest thanks go to our 
faculty and staff at FWBBC and our supporters in the denomination. Without 
all of you, we could not have dealt with this financial concern. 

Because of the downward trend in enrollment and the resulting 
financial difficulties the college is facing, as well as the withdrawal of 
Watkins Institute's offer to purchase our current campus, the Board of 
Trustees has voted to postpone relocation until some of these problems 
can be addressed. Money given for relocation has been well invested. The 
progress and work that has occurred up to this point will enable us, when 
the time is right, to proceed with relocation. Funds received for relocation 
will continue to be wisely invested. We are poised for growth, and reloca­
tion is still a part of our long-range plan. 

As you know, in March Brother Tom Malone became chancellor of the 
college and I assumed the position of president I am honored to be the fifth 
president of Free Will Baptist Bible College and will seek to build wisely on the 
labors of L. C. Johnson, L. R. Ennis, Charles A. Thigpen, and C. Thomas Malone. 

Noticeable changes are occurring on campus. We are renovating 
several of our older buildings. We have begun repaving our parking lots. 
We are reconditioning and landscaping our grounds. We want everything 
we do to reflect a desire for excellence. 

The beauty of our current campus will complement our endeavor to 
build our student body. We are intensifying our efforts to recruit new stu­
dents and retain our current students. Please call 1-800-76-FWBBC and 
give us the names and contact information of students who are prospects 
for enrollment at the college. Your help in student recruitment will enable 
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students to further the kingdom of God in the many fields of 
us to prepare. h ailed them 
service to which ~e w!s;e retooling ~ur Pastoral Ministry program to meet 

In that regar , h Th hrinking number of pastors 
ds of Free Will Baptist churc es. e ~ W making 

the nee ak efforts vitally Important. e are 
for our churches m es. <_>ur ro am to make it more effective and rei-
changes in our Pastor~r~~~~ 8ap~ts today. Chief among these changes 
evant for the needs ~ d . 'ting faculty members who are currently 
is the ~ddition ?f aFdJunCWit ~ B;p~st churches. A new brochure describing 
Pastonng growmg ree · vailable 

Mi · try ogram IS now a · our Pastoral rus pr . ·ng harvest field laborers for world 

'ssi~r:~\~~~~~~~e~~~~':::~~~t::foa: of a ~ew missionary-i~~~~de~~~ 
~me. Free Will Baptist ~oreig~ ~issi~~~~o~:~~ ~~:~:~e fin~cial 
residence each ¥ear. ~hi~ pro

0
JeC 'artmw ent will help us ensure that world 

help of the Fo~e1gn M1~S10ns. ~p BC. 
missions remams a m~Jor. pnonty a\ FWB ew programs to equip laypeople 

We are als~rt~~~?~~~rgl~~~h:~~es and senders of o~ n:ussi?nary 
as servant-supp . . f~ . the coursework for a ma1or m Htstory, 
force. This fall we ~~~~et~~~ne~~re teacher licensure in History as well. 
and we are comrru d . for pastoral ministry those 
We want all o~ . students-~ose ~t~ ~i rest in their various fie'tds-to 
preparing for miSSionary servtce, c:m . the will be engaged. 
be well-equipped for the=~~ 1~c~~:hip tnding for our students, we 

In order to secure a . d tions and other sources. We have 
are seeking grant~ from pnva~e f<_>un al agrant-writer with broad experience 
obtained the servtces of a pro.ession . 
in the funding of Christian highe~ edu~ati~~· our job without your help. By 

As always, we carm?t con nue ? b sendin students to us, you 
praying for us, by su~porting us. fin~ctally, s~dents t~ find their places of 
enable us to do the JOb of eqwppmg our 

service in the church and in the w?tyrl~~ serve the National Association of 
Thank you for the opporturu b tter serve you your 

Free Will Baptists. Please let us know how we can e , 
families, and your churches. 

Respectfully submitted, 

J. Matthew Pinson 
President 
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Free Will Baptist Bible Colle~e Board of Trustees 
Synopsis of M1nutes 

December 5-6, 2001 
The Board met on campus with President Malone and President-elect 

Pinson Minutes were approved The action of the Executive Committee to estab­
lish a line of credit with AmSouth for the remodeling of several campus buildings 
was approved. The resignation of Stewart Oark, acting director of enrollment 
management, was received and Jeff Caudill was approved to fill the vacancy. A 
line of credit for operational expenses, to be used only if essential, was approved. 

Approval was given to delete the major in Church Music-Pastoral 
Associate in Music Ministry Emphasis, and to add majors in Church Music 
Ministries and History leading to licensure. 

Reports were heard from the various heads of departments. The 
salary of the President-elect was set at $1 ,000 per month; a job description 
for the Chancellor was adopted. 

May3,2002 
By means of conference call The Institutional Plan: 2001-2004 was 

adopted. Approval was given to hire David Williford for the position of 
Director of Advancement. 

May 13-15, 2002 
The Board met on campus May 13-16, 2002. Minutes were approved; 

the financial statements were received; the 2002-03 budget was adopted; 
departmental reports were received from all department heads. 

A proposal for the Teacher Education Center and early childhood 
education program was considered and tabled for further investigation. 
Included in the investigation is the possible purchase of property at 3622 
West End Avenue to house the center. 

A statement placing relocation on hold was adopted. The President 
presented measures to increase enrollment; the Chancellor discussed 
efforts to increase giving. Board officers to make up the executive com­
mittee were elected. 

Financial Aid Report- 2001-2002 
Tvoe of Aid No. of recipients Amount of Aid 

Institutional loans issued . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 42 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . S 50,433.84 
Student worker earnings . .. .. .. . .. . .. . .. .. . .. .. 70 .................... . S 110,721 .00 
Scholarship recipients . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 209 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . S 212,128.43 
Tennessee Grant Programs. ..................... 15 ..................... S 40,209.00 
Federal SEOG ......... ... ...... . ............. 19 ..................... $ 14,386.00 
Federal Work Study Program .................... 16 ..................... S 20,748.00 
Federal Pell Grant . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 98 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . S 207,576.00 
Federal Subsidized Stafford loan Program ......... 145 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . S 468,076.00 
Federal Unsubsidized Stafford loan Program . . . . . . . 54 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . S 183,003.00 
PLUS loan Program . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 35 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . S 181,560.00 
Alternative loans .. . .. . .. .. .. . .. .. .. . .. .. . .. .. 10 ..................... S 44,887.00 

Total Financial Aid Administered 2001-2002 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,533,728.27 
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Annual Registration Report 2001-2002 

306 ~<>llrrl~Ilt . • . • • • • • • . • . • • • . • • . • • . • . . • . . • . 
Enrollment Breakdowns by: 

State: 
19 23 Mississippi 7 I Tennessee 

Alabama Illinois 
7 Missouri 7 Texas 

Arizona 1 Indiana 
Arkansas 23 Kansas 3 I North Carolina 19 Virginia 

California 3 Kentucky 6 Ohio 4 Virgin Islands 

Florida 12 \ louisiana 1 Oklahoma 6 West Virginia 

Georgia 16 Michigan 11 South Carolina 10 I Foreign (B) 

Classification: 

Freshmen 87 Juniors 64 Special 3 

Sophomores 98 Seniors 54 

Other Categories: 
I Free Will Baptist New 58 

Returning 19 

Continuing 189 
Transfer 37 
Special 3 

*Maior: 

I Male 
Female 

Full-time 
Port-time 

Postoral 
YM/CE 
Missions 

160 1 Dormitory 
146 Town 

255 Single 
51 Married 

40 I Other Majors 
27 I Undecided 
34 Special 

202 
104 

259 
47 

181 
21 
3 

1 Other 

The student body represents 23 states and 8 foreign countries. 

*Please be aware that student majors can change 
from semester to semester. 

Welch Library 

91 
5 

12 
1 
3 

16 

272 
34 

Total books, bound volumes, microforms, sound recordings, 
video-casse1tes, instructional materials, etc ............... 123,780 
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Free Will Baptist 
Bible College 
3606 West End Avenue 

No~vm • . r~a..372osf~~~==~~~~~~~~~==~~~~t=~~~~~~~~~~~ 
615/383-1~ 

Fax: 615/269-6028 
www.fwbbc.~ 

(adepcodeat Auditora• lteport 

Tile Board of Tnutcca 
Free WUJ Bapn.t Bi ble CoUc&e: 

We COIIducted our alld~ m ACCOrdiliiCe • • • 
accepted m the Ulliled Sl.ttea of Am . ~udKma atudards aenerally 
plan &Del puform the au~ 10 obi.IJ.a enca. studard.s require tb.t we 
financial sbltemeu•• Cr reasonable assuraoc:e about whether the 

.. are ee of lllAterial m:1u1a 
Cltlllllllling. oa a 1e11 bMa, evldcDCe JUpponiD ~~t.DL A.o u~it includes 
the ~JICl&.l ltatemeots. A.o audit a1ro ~ea ~~ alld dilcloJurea. io 
principles ~ aod aipitlcaot eatioutea mad b tal2ll the accouotill& 
evaluatioa the OYtRlJ &aocial e Y maoa~eat, 11 9ldJ u 
auditl provide a reaaouble ., __ ,_ ~tcmeat preacaratioa. We beJic,le that our 

.,... "'' our opinloa. 

Ia our op'·'- th ,__ . """"' e ...,..aciaJ atatemeor. referred to •'---
matenaJ reapccta, tile fioaaaaJ • ..,.,... preae:ot 6Urly, io aU 
of May 31. 2002 &Del 2001 &Del'::: of ~ree WiD &ptilt Bille CotJer u 
~ then eaded ta co~rmity witb .:;;:. oct ~ aod cash floM for the 
m tbe Ulliled Statea of America. till& pnDCipla JCDCRlly accepted 

~ ,,t.,.,. 1?2.- .4· 

lilly 9. 2.002 
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FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 

Statements of Financial Position 

May 31, 2002 and 2001 

carreat aaets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments in marketable securities, at market value 
N;counts receivable: 

Student accounts 
Employee and other 
Pledges receivable 
Less allowance (or doubtful accounts 

Prepaid expenses 
Inventories 

Total current assets 
Non current assets: 

Cash: 
Restricted for endowments 
Resuicted for student loans 

Investments in marketable securities, at market value: 
Restricted for endowments 
Held under liCe income agreements 

Campaign pledges 
Loans to Shldents, less aiiowaoce for doubtful loans of $15,000 

Total ooJl CIUTCllt assets 

Property, pint &Ad equipment: 
Investment in property, plant and equipment 
Aa:.umulated depreciation 

Net property, plant ud equipment 

Total assets 

Liabilities and Net Assets 
<Arrent liabilities: 

Accounts payable and accrued expen.ws 
Current portion of Jong-term debt 
Notes payable 
Student deposits and agency funds 
Aa:.rucd salaries 
Deferred revenues - summer school and other 

Total c:urreatliabilites 
LooJ-term debt 

Total liabilities 
Net assets: 

Unresuieted funds 
Temporarily restricted funds 
Permanently restricted funds 

Total net assets 

Total liabilities aad act assets 

See ac:c:ompaayiaJ aotes to finaneial statements. 
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2 

s 

s 

s 

2002 2001 

344,068 330,032 
3,114 4,900 

36,414 36,851 
35~ 30,957 
37,100 28,500 

(16,000) (6,000) 
5,496 32,036 
6l~l5 431822 

506.696 'i() I 09X 

133,.()26 57,305 
558,182 567,400 

495,200 570,268 
3,404 4,.'\52 

108,800 253,100 
161.726 1711989 

1,460,338 1,624.414 

7,003,653 6,.'i53,176 
2.947J91 2.8241804 

4,056.262 3.728.372 

6.023,296 S~;\.884 

117,822 73,807 
3,991 3,611 

4{17,327 149,062 
70.100 56.H09 

105.812 m .2n 
12z.l23 2.\910 

717.375 4:\0,412 
47,079 51,070 

764,454 481,482 

3,759,674 3,80$,530 
2&),953 352,015 

1,218,215 1.214.857 

5,258,842 5.3'n.402 

6,f113,296 5,853.884 



FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 

Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets 

For tbe years ended May 31, 2002 and 2001 

Revenues: 
Tuition and fees 
Federal grants and contracts 
Private gifts 
Endowment income 
Investment income 
Loss on investment transactions 
Sales and services of 
auxiliary enterprises 

Other sources 

Net assets released from restrictions 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 

flducalioaul and &encral: 
Instruction 
Academic support 
Student services 
Institutional support 

Total educational and general 
expenditures 

Auxiliary enterprises: 
Dormitories 
Dining hall 
Bookstore 
Snacks bop 

Tolal auxiliary enterprises 
expenditures 

Total e:rpenditUJ'es 

Increase (decrease) in net assets 

Net assets at be&iJlning of year 

Net asseta at end of year s 

2002 
Temporarily Permanenlly -----

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total 
Funds Funds. Funds ~ 

s 1,639,730 

1,152,710 
1,682 
6,660 

(1,786) 

919,133 
31,007 

3,749,136 
294,336 

4p43,472 

1,132,649 
340,795 
474,410 

_!_,216,8 18 

3,164,672 

400,412 
420,810 
91,738 
11,696 

924,656 

4,089,328 

(45,856) 

3,805,530 

3,759,674 

32,209 
187,419 

2,952 
1,643 
(949) 

87,546 

7,026 
(85,632) 

1,639,730 
32,209 

1,427,675 
4,634 

15,329 
(88,367) 

919,133 

-- ~.582) --=2.~.425 

22.1,274 3,358 3,975,768 
(294,336) 

(71,062) 3,.158 

(71,062) 3,.158 

352,015 

280.953 

_ 1,214,857 

3,975,768 

1,132,649 
340,795 
474,410 

1,216,818 

3,164,672 

400,412 
420,810 
91,738 
11,696 

924,656 

4,089,:~28 

(l13,S60) 

5,372,402 

See ac:companyin& notes to financial statements. 
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Total 
2001 

1,681,970 
35,965 

1,565,227 
17,968 
20,510 

(61,214) 

938,574 
:n,086 

4,232,086 

4,2.12.086 

1,201,184 
1<;!!.767 
448,469 

1,096,640 

3,105,060 

412,200 
420,358 
90,463 
L1,056 

936,on 

4,041,137_ 

190,949 

5,181,453 

5,372A02 

FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 

Statements of Cash Flows 

For the yean ended May 31, 2002 and 2001 
2002 

Temporarily Permanently 

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted 
FWlds Funds fllnds 

Cash Oowl from operalin& activities 
Cash coUccted from students S 2,.~1,004 
Federal grants 
Federal Pell grants considered to be agency 

fund transactions 
Private gifts and grants 
Endowment income 
Investment income 
Other revenues 

1,144,110 
1,682 
6,660 

2.1,400 

35,484 

207,2.~1 
130,672 

2,952 
1,643 

Total 
2002 

2,561,004 
35,484 

207,2.'i 1 
1,274,782 

4,634 
8,303 

2.l,400 

Total 
2001 

2,699.212 
35,402 

175,173 
1,2.12,131 

17,9(1S 
10,308 
36,628 

Cash paid for scholarships, to vendors 
and for payroll (3,717,004) (165,842) 

(207J2.ll) 
(3,882,846) (4,063r151) 

(207,251) --- (175,173) ('ash paid for Federal Pell grants 

Net operatin& activities cash flows 19,852 
Cub flows from investin& activities 

Marketable securities purchased 
Proceeds from sale of marketable securities 
Expended for plant assets (359,665) 
Student notes receivable advances 
Student note receivable collections 

Net inves1in& activities cash flows _ (359,665) 
Cash flows from capital activities 

Campaign pledges receivable collected 
Gifts received for: 

Endowments and student loans 
Proposed new campus 

Otber student loan transactions: 
Interest income on student loans 
Investment income 
Collection costs and other transactions 

Net capital activities cash flows 
9asb flows Crom financing activities 

Proceeds from long-term debt 280,000 
Repayment of long -term debt (3,611) 
lntcrfund activities 77,460 
Notes payable for student loans, net 

Net financing activities cash flaw~ 353,849 
Net increase (decrease) in cash 

and cash equivalents 14,036 
Cub and cash equivalents at 

begillDin& of year 330,9J~ 
Cub and cash equivalents at 

at ead or year s- 344,068 

4,909 

(128,496) 

64,697 

136,350 

201,04~ 

4 

(77,460) 

{_77,460} 
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- 24,761 (31,702) 

(231,488) 
220,925 

(62,917) 
65,895 

(7,585) 

87,546 

7.026 
-4,316 

98,888 

(24.800) 

(24,800) -

66,503 

691,208 

(231,488) 
220,92.~ 

(488,161) 
(62.917) 
65,895 

(495,746) 

(612,300) 
109,137 

(441,474) 
(154,329) 
_169,656 

(929,.110) 

64,697 98,678 

87,546 
136,350 

7,026 
-~.316 
299,935 

280,000 
(3,611) 

(24,800) 

251,589 

80,539 

954,737 

1,035,276 

76,442 
116,976 

7,404 
10,202 

_(1993) 

5~709 

57,15!S 
(2,476) 

{16,483) 

38,1!?2_ 

(416,104) 

_ 954,737 



FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 

Statements of Cash Flows, continued 

For the years ended May 31, 2002 and 2001 
--- 2002 

. Temporarily Pe~neaUy 
Unreatncted Restricted Restricted 

f~ds Funds fltl2ds 

Cash aod cash equivalents conaist of the foUowin&: 
CurreDt assets s 344,068 
Noo current assets: 

Cash rcatricted for endowments 
133,026 

Cash rcalricted for student loans 
558,182 

Total cash and cash equivalents s =-~·~- 6~208 .:::.- -
Rccoaciliatioa of increase (decrease) ia net assets 10 
net ODCratiaK activitie.t cash Oowa 

Increase (decrease) in net assets s (45,856) (71,062) 3,.158 
Transactions considered to be capital additions: 

Gifts for endowments and student loans 
(87,546) Proposed new campus 

Campaign pledges receivable collected 
(136,.150) 
(64,697) 

Change in Campaign pledges receivable 144,.l00 
Net other transac tions from 

student loan funds 
Depreciation 160,271 

(992) 

loss on investment transactions 1,786 
Net inter(und transfers 949 85,632 

(I ncrcasc) decrease in current assets: 
(128,496) 128,496 

Accounts receivable: 
Student accounts 10,437 
Pledges receivable (8.600) 
Employee and other (7,607) 3,273 

Investments in marlcetable securities 
Inventories (17,.193) 
Prepaid expenses 26,540 

Increase (decrease) in current liabilities: 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 44,467 (452) Student deposits and agency funds 13,291 
Accrued salaries (17,401) 
Deferred revenues (11,587) -

Net operating ac:tivitica cash Oows -

Tot.al 
2002 

344,068 

133,026 
558,182 

1.035,27~ 

( 113,560) 

(87,546) 
( 136,350) 
(64,697) 
144,300 

{992) 
160,271 
88,.'\67 

10,437 
(8,600) 
(4,334) 

( 17,393) 
26,540 

44,015 
13,291 

(17,401) 
i! 1,587) 

s 19,852 4,909 
- "~ )4.1~l 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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Total 
2001 

330,032 

57,.'lOS 
567,400 

-~~.737 
~ - -- --~ 

190,949 

(76,442) 
(J 16.97CJJ 
(9X,67tl) 
J 51!, 7110 

( IO,nJ) 
160,377 
61,214 

(578) 
5,200 
3,953 

(4,900) 
(2,810) 

(21,716) 

(97,624) 
4,497 

10r'i57 
3,.'\46 

01.702) 

FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 
Notes to Financial Statements 

May 31,2002 and 2001 

The Free Will Baptist Bible College operates under the auspices of the National 1\ssociation of Free Will 

Daptists, Inc. and is governed by a Board of Trustees. 

(1) Summarv of Significant Accounting Policies 

Basis of Financial Statement Presentation 
The financial statements of the CoUege have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. 

In order to ensure obscMncc of limitations and restrictions placed on the u.~c of resources ;Jvailable h) 

the CoUcgc, tbc accounts of the College are maintained in accordance with tbe principle.'> of "fund 
accounting". This is the procedure by which resources for various purposes are classified for accounting 
purposes into funds that are in accordance with activities o r objectives as specified by donors. in 
accordance with regulations, restrictions, or limitation.'> imposed by sources outside the institution, or in 
accordance with directions issued by the governing board. 

1bese fmancial statements, however, have been prepared to focus on the entity as a whole and t.o present 
transactions according to the existence or absensc of donor-imposed restrictions in conformity with 
Statements of Financial Accounting Standards {SFAS) No. 116 "Accounting for Contributions Received 
and Contributions Made" and No. 117 "Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Organizations". This 
has been accomplished by classifying fund transactions into three categories of net assets: unrestricted 
net assets which have no donor-imposed restrictions, temporarily restricted net assets which have 
donor-imposed restrictions that expire in the future, and pennanently restricted net assets which have 
donor imposed restrictions which do not expire. 

Expiration of Donor::~sed Res_!ric~ions 
The expiration of a donor-imposed restriction on a contribution is recognized in the period in whK:b thl· 
restriction expires and at that time the related resources are reclassified to unrestricted net asset'!. A 
restriction expires when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated purpose for whK:h the 
resource was restricted has been fulfilled, or both. 

Pledges Receivable 
These amounts, less an appropriate reserve, are recorded at their t.'stimatcd fair value with amount~ due 
later than one year at the present value of estimated future cash Oows. 

Property, Plant and Equipment 
Plant assets, consisting of land, buildings, other land improvements, equipment and furnishings, library 
books, and costs related to proposed new campus are stated at cost or estimated fair value at date of gift . 
Expenditures for acquistion of assets in excess of $250 arc capitalized as investment in plant. 

Depreciable assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets, 
ranging from 5 to !ro years. ' fbe current provision for depreciation is reported as an expenditure of the 
College. 

Inventories 
Inventories, consisting of books.and supply items, are valued at cost, with cost being determined on the 
first-in, first-out method 

Investments 
Investments arc reported at market value to comply with Financial Accounting Standards No. 124, 
"Accounting for Certain Investments of Not for Profit OrganiL:ltions." 
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(1) 

FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 
Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generaUy accepted in 
the United States of America. requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 

reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date 
of the financial statements and lbe reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting 
period. Actual results could differ from those es timates. 

Income Taxes 
The College is exempt from income taxes under l nternnl ltevenue Code Section 501(c)(3); accordingly, 
no provision fo r taxes has been made in the accompanying finnocial statements. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Por purposes o f the statement of cash Oows, the College considers aU cash on band, deposits in fmancial 
institutions and highly liquid debt instruments with an o riginnl maturity of three months or less to he 
cnsh and cash equivalents. 

Compensated Absences 
Employees of the College are entitled to paid v-.tcation, paid sick days and personal days off, depending 
on job classification, length of service and other factors. It is impracticable to estimate the amount or 
compensation for future absences, and accorc.liogly, no liability hAs been recorded in the accompanying 
financial statements. Tbe College's policy is to recognize tbe cost of compensated absences wbeo 
actually paid to employees. 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments 
The carrying vaJue of cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses approximate !'air 
value because of the short maturity of these instruments. The carrying values of liabilities are not 

matcriaUy different from the estimated fair values of these instruments. 

Contnouted Services 
ln kind contributions when made are recorded as contribution revenue and an offsetting expense if tbe 
contribution meets the requirements prescribed by accounting principles generally accepted in the 

United States o( America. Volunteers make s~nifx:ant contributions in the form of time donated for 
service to tbe College. 1ne value of such contributions arc no t reflected in these statements because 
they to not meet requirements. 

Scholarship Allowances I Tuition and Fees 
Colleges and Universities are required to report all tuition and fee revenue net of any scholarship 
allowance. A scholarship allowance is defined as tbe difference between the stated charge of goods and 

services provided by the institution and the amount that is billed to the student andfor third partil-.; 
malciog payments on behalf of the studcol. 

Operation and Maintenance of Plant 
Expenditures for operation and maintenance of plant are allocated among functionaJ expenditure 

categories based oo actual usage of buildings as determined based on square footage. 

Financial Statement Presentation 

Certain rcclassifations have been made to tbe amounts as reported in the prior year to conform to 
current year pn:sentat.ion. These reclassiGcalions bad no effect on reported net assets. 
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(2) 

(3) 

FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 
Notes to Fmancial Statements, co»tinued 

Investments - Marketable Securities 
·ues· ~- .... ted at martcet vaJue. 'The followin& table summariz.es by type the 

ln~llnCnt secun ...... "-

lat:.......hip be .. ·-n ,.,.......,;""value and market value of the investment assets. 
re ...,... , ......... -·r-o Ex«:ss of Unrealized Unrealized 

Colt or Market Market Over Cumulative Cumulative 
Basis Value (Under) Cost Gains l..osscs 

Balance May 31, 2002: 
Permanently Restricted Funds: 

Common stock S 
Bonds 
Variable annuity contracts 

Temporarily Restricted Funds: 

Variable annuity contracts 

Unrestricted Funds: 
Common stock 

5,000 

4,900 

Balance May 31, 2001 

$,==5=20=·=190= 
$==5=37=.!:,64==5 

Realized loss o n sale of securities 
Unrealized toss due to change in the cummulative 

change in market value pool's 
Loss o n investment transactions 

329,473 
69,190 
96.537 

3,404 

3,114 

501,718 

579,520 

s 

$ 

35,099 
355 

(50,544) 

( 1,.'596) 

36,504 
355 

(1,40.'i) 

(50,544) 

(1,596) 

( 1,786) - --- __ -l(.:.!l,7.;..;;86;..;J.) 

(18,4'n) ===36~,85===9 (55,331} 

41,875 63,194 (21,319} 

(28.01!>) 

(60,34?) 

(88~ 

Net Assets Released From Restrictions 
Donor imposed restrictions expired on temporarily restricted net as.~ts a~ follows: 

Expenditures made for donor imposed restriction$: 

Private scholarships 
Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grant 

Federal Work Study Program 
Equipment capitalized 
Other instructional and institutional 

Renovation expenditures 
Proposed new campus related costs: 

Capitalized e1penditures 
New campus land maintenance and c~nsc 

Campaign offtee expense 
Allocation to unrestricted gifts 

$ 41,644 
5,735 

95,668 

s 54,017 
15,611 
16,598 
13,101 
11,333 
40,629 

143,047 

Net assets released from restrictions S 294,336 

F de I PcD grants to students amounting to $207,251 and $175,173 for 2002 and 2001, respectively, are 
O:t i:tuded in expenditures Of net assets released from restrictions, as scheduled a~. Federal Pell 
grants are considered to be an •gency tra~tion in that the student payments are enutlements and tbc 

funds are not under the control of the CoUege. 
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FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 
Notes to Financial Statementa, continued 

Remaining Net Assets of Temporarily Restricted Funds 

(5) 

Net assets of temporarily restricted fim<k are available for the following purposes: 

Propelled DeW campus 
ScboJarships 
Life iDcome funds 
Other instructional and institutional 

Net Assets 
Net assets of the College consist of the following as of May 31, 2002 and 2001: 

2002 
Temporarily PcrmaocotJy 

Uoreatricted Reatriclcd Restricted 
Operations $ (65,518) 
Net investment in plant assets 3,825,192 
Life income funds 
Unexpended funds restricted for: 

3,128 

Operating purposes 104,950 
Plant facilities 172,875 

Student 1oao funds 
True endowment (vnds 

589,990 

Scholarship endowment funds 
131,184 
497,041 

Total net assets s 3,759,674 280,953 1,218,215 

2002 
s 172.$15 

74,536 
3,128 

30,414 

s 280,9S3 
====~== 

Total 
(65,518) 

3,825,192 
3,128 

104,9SO 
172,815 
589,990 
131,184 
497,041 

5,258,842 

2001 
2S9,17S 
74,057 
4,0'n 

14,706 

352,015 

2001 
Tt!_tal 

131,839 
3,673,69J 

4,cm 

88,763 
259,175 
587,284 
179,705 
447,868 

( 6) Property, Plant and Equipment 
Components of property, plant and equipment are as foUows: 

5,37l,402 

(7) 

Land 

Proposed new campus, land and costs incurred to date 
Renovation in progress (current campus) • • 
Buil~ 
Equipment 
Library books 

s 
2002 
296,519 

1,007,740 
70,2.54 

2001 
296,519 
966,096 

3~~70,214 3,412,885 
l,.'il9,927 1,372,113 

538,999 5Q:'i,563 
A -- u1a d de 7,tJO:l,6S3 6553,176 
'"""'wn te predation and amortization 9 
N t . 2, 47,:\91 2,H24,XO..J 

e mvestmcnt in plant $ 
D • O d O O n4,056,262 ~~1~,.p2 

eprccaat1on an amortJZation charged to expenditures s 160,271 -·Tro;TI6 
• •The College began a rcJlO\Iation project for certain buildings o n the existing campus during I be year. 

Th~ CoiJege expects to expend a total of approximately $400,000, of which $227,084 W.tS spend 
dunng the current year. 

Relocation Campaign 

The College began its Relocation Campig:n, to last five years, in March 1998, with the purpose to raise 
funds to enable the College to relocate to Joelton, Tennessee. It was antictP. ated that the Cam · 
would · · 'A"' $12,000 . . patgn 

. r.use approxuna ..... .1 ,000, mcluding $6,000,000 to provide an additional subsidy for 
operation of the College. Tbe remai ning fun<k to construct the new campus were to be ·ded by th 
sale of the · 1in.. prOVI e 

ens_ campus and any short fall through long term borrowing. 
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(7) 

(8) 

(9) 

FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 
Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

Relocation Campaip. coutioued 
Jn December 2001, the College's Board of Trustees approved a plan to place the relocation project nn 

hold. This postponement was necessary since the Campaign bad DOl raised the funds net:cs.-.ary, 
DOT was the College sucressfuJ in obtaining a suitable purchaser for the existing campus, to cnahlc the 
College to proceed with the relocation at this time. 

The following explanation was made by President Pinson in his 8rulual report to the denomination: 

"Because of the downward trend in e nrollment and the resulting financial difficulties the College is 
facing, as weU as the withdrawal of . .. (tbe) offer to purchase the current campus, the Board of 
Tnutecs bas voted to postpone reJocalion until some of these problems can be addressed. Money 
given for relocation bas been weU Invested. The progress and work that bas occurred up to this point 
will enable us, wben the time is right, to proceed with lhe relocation. Funds received (or re location will 

continue to be wisely invested. We are poised for growth, and relocation is still a part of our 
long- range plan.• 

Pledges ReceiYable 
Pledges receivable are recorded at estimated real.i7.able value after an allowance for potential 
uocolJcclible pledges. Further, pledges receivable expected to be collected in years after the nexl fiscal 

year are discounted to their present values of future cash flows using an 8% interest factor. The 
following summarizes pledges receivable as o f May 31, 2002 and 2001. 

Uoreatricte.d Operatioas: 2002 2001 

'fbe College receives post dated check books and bank draft 

agreements, deposited monthJy for general operations, which arc 
collectible over in one year period and are considered fully collectible. s 37,100 28~~ -

Relocation Cam~i&o aad Reoovatioo of EsisliD& Cam2us: 

Uocollected pledges s 272,000 S44,<XX> 

Less allowance for potential uncol.lect.Jble pledges (151,600) (264,900) 
Less present value of future cas,h flows discounted at8% {11,600} {26,000} 

s 108,800 253,100 

Notes Payable and Long- Term Debt 2002 2001 
Notca payable: 

Pcnnaocotly Realricted Funds - Stadcat Loan Funds 
5% unsecured demand notes payable to individuals $ 127rl27 149,062 

Uan:atricted F11ada: 
Non-interest bearing, unsecured demand notes to individual 100,000 

Unsecured demand note, for the purpose of renOYation of certain 
facilities on the existing campus, in the maximum amount of 

$400,000, bearing in1erest at 1.25% above the LIBOR rate. Tbe loan 
shall be repayable March 2003, if DOl demanded sooner. 180,000 

Unsecured demand note, for the purpose of operational cash needs, 
in the maximum amount of S600,<XX>, bearing interest at 1.2.S% above 
lhe UBOR rate. The loan sbaJJ be repayable March 2003, if not 

demanded sooner. 

Total DOles payable s 4(f1,3Z} _!~~06_2 
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(9) 

(10) 

FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 
Notes to Financial Statement~, continued 

Notes Parable and Lon&- Term Debt, continued 
Uareatrkted F'Udl - l..oa&-Tel"'ll Debt 

10.99% iosta.Ument obllption. with monthtJy payments of $786.89, 
including interest and principal, maturing September 2010, secured by a 
grand piano. s 51,070 54,681 

LesscurrentportionofJong-termdebt 3,991 3,6.!.!. 

Long-term debt S 47,Cf/9 __ $1_,070 
-~ - --Principal maturities of long-term areas CoUows: 2003 - S3,99l; 2004 - $4,444; 2005 - $4,974; 2006 

- SS,54J; 1iX17 - $6,182; and $26,245 in years thereafter. 

Pension Plan 

The College has a defined benefit pension plan which covers aU regular employees, except full-time 
students, hired prior to attaining age 61 following completion of one year of service and auainmcnl of 

age 21. Service for benefit and vesting purposes sbaU be the number of plan years in wh~eh the 
part:icipent completes at least l,(XX) bours. The benefits on retirement a rc determined based on average 
compensation during the three consecutive years during the last ten years prior to the participant's 
normaJ retirement date which produces the highest average. ElnpJoyees are not required to contribute 
toward the cost of the plan. The College's funding policy is to fund pension costs accrued. The plan 
assets consist of investments held and managed by Sun Trust, Inc., the plan administrator. 

The following table sets forth the plan's funded status and amounts recognized m the College's 
statement of financial position at May 31, 2002 and 2001. 
R«:(:(}JJeiliatio.a of beaefit obliptioas: 

Benefit obligation at beginning or year 
Service COSt 

Interest cost 

Participant contributions 
Plan amendments 

(Gain) loss due to actuarial experience 

Gain due to changes io actuarial assumptions 
Benefits paid to plan pan.icipants 

Benefit obligation at end of year 

s 2,329,829 
87,669 

178,162 

(~2,757) 

1,873,713 
68,152 

157,706 

Rc:coaciliatioa of asset value: 

63,624 
212.464 
~~.85CJ) 

?x~?2,H29 

Plan assets at beginning of year 
AcluaJ return of plan assets 
Employer contributiom 

Benefits paid to plan participants 
Plan assets at end of year 

RCCODciliatioa of faaded mtus: 

Funded status at end of year (liability) 

Unrecognized net transjtion obligation asset 
Unrcoogniud prior seTVice cost 

Unrecognized net {gain) or loss 

Amount included in prepaid expense I (accounts payable 
and accrued expenses) 

JI 

A- 150 

$ 2,158,684 
(90,226) 

.59,910 
(55,.~) 

s 2.072,988 

$ (384,.53.5) 
(49,826) 
21,628 

408,567 

2,099~'\69 

38,636 
66,529 

(45,850) 
2.L~.684 

(171,14.5) 
(74,737) 
43,259 

219,393 

s <4.166> =:a...::J=6·=no= 

FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 

Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

(10) Pension Plan. continued 
2002 2001 

!..rz2.ll2 
1,927,068 

(11) 

Acc:umulated bcaefit obliptioa at ead of year 

Vested beaefit obli,atioa at cad o{ year 

"liatio" a o{ 1Ul,...~i7.-.d act Josa: RCCODCI ·-o--;--
Unreoognized loss at beginnJng of year 

Amount of loss recognized during the year 
Loss due to actuarial experieoce . 
Gam due to changes in actuarial asswnpuons 
Gam due to assets 

Unm:ognized (pin) or loss at end of year 

Net periodic ben.cfit cost! 
Service costal end of year . . 
Interest cost on projected benefit obhgatiOn 

Expected return o n pi~ asse~ . 
Amortizatjon of transiuon obligaiJOn 
Amortization of prior service costs 
Amortization of oet loss 

Net periodic benefit cost 

_ __. , dete.nniaatioa o{ raet peasion coal: A.aamptious ...,... a.or 
Assumed discount rate 
Rate of compensation increase 
Expected long-term rate of return 
Actuarial valuation method 

Aalumptioaa used {or determillatioJJ of ead of year obliptioDI: 
Assumed discount rate 
Rate or compensation increase 
Expected long-term rate of return 
Actuarial valuation method 

s 2.149,517 

s 2,127,660 

S 219,.W3 

(82,757) 

271,931 
$ 408,567 

$ 87,669 
178,162 

(181,705) 
(24,911) 
21,631 

$ 80.~ 

7.15% 
4.00% 
8.50% 

Projected 
Unit Credit 

7.75% 
4.00% 

N/A 
Projected 
Unit Credit 

(194,882) 

63,624 
212,464 
138,187 
219,393 

68,152 
157,706 

(176,82."\) 
(24,911) 
21,6.11 

8.50'A 
4.00% 
g_c;o% 

Projected 
Unit Credit 

7.75% 
4.00% 

N/A 
Projected 
Unit Credit 

Concentration of Credit ~ . f th National Association o( Free Will Baptists, Inc. 
The O>llege is the institution o£ higher ~ucation o e f .... denomination. The College extends 

ed tiooal serY~CeS to members o we 
and offers Bible based uca ~ tionaJ costs and makes loans to students from the Loan 

credit io certain inslaDCe$ to s~~ts for ~.,.~unts {or sponsored groups, staff purchases, ~tudent 
Funds. 1be College also m.amlalnS ce bs .:. , amount of p'•A..es receivable whteh arc The College also bas a su ta a..... """"'6 
telephone charges, etc. Colle lhese accounts are not collateralil.cd and arc 
..ti ..... rsed no numereous supporters of the ge. . · · 
~.r- amo..,. . . amountin to the o utstanding balance at any pomt m tune. 
subject to accounting nsk of loss 8 fi :. ' ms· u·tuuo· ns and has risk uf accountintt 

b fun~ . ted at severalmanc,.. . 
Further, the College has cas . mves lXX> • the balance at certain fmancial institution.~ zs 
loss for funds amounting to apprOXImately $600, sm: marketable securities which arc subject 
greater than the FDlC insurable limit. The O>llege a o owns 

tin. ...:.. .. of loss amoun''"" to the recorded balance. to accoun g 'QA """6 
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FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 

Notes to Fmancial Statements, contioued 

(12) Recluaiticatioa of ~nditures 
Statement of activities ha.s been rec•--..:"'--' 10 -T 

~ COmOrm to the required reportin f fi 
to lludents aDd operation and maintenance of lant . g onaocjaJ aid grvcn 
Not-for-Profit Organizations issued ..., Ame . I P_ . The Audit and Al:counting Guide 

of u' ncan nsl.ltute of Cenified Public "-- • 
cost student fin•ocial aid 10 be netted 10 1 ...... _ ,. '""-"ounlan ts, requires 

• I Uuomt lCC n:venue, and expenses Jatino 
marntenaoce of plant be allocated to each fuoctional classifica . f re - to operation and 
has been to record student finaociaJ aid as an e Uon o expen.ses. The College's practice 
plant together for budgetary P"""'"'~ The . xpef~e and to gro up operation and maintenance of 
. -·r-· re IS no e lCCI on net asset bala . 
tn net assets, the correction is a reclassifacation in the ma . . nces or tncrcasc (decrease) 
presented. Further, tbe College changed its method of nncr . tn wbJCb ~e~nues and expenditures arc 

The following table indicates tbe e1Iect of the reclassi[ntion~ung deprectauon expense to actual usage. 

Rec:Jaasifacatiom 
AI Stadcat OperatiOA and 

PreYiomly FiD.aoc:iaJ Mamtenance As Reported Depreciation Rcveaaea: Aid ofPiut Reclassiiacd 
Tuition and fees s 1,753,.173 
AU other revenues combined 2,.SSO,l 16 

(71,403) 1,681,970 
2,.SSO,JJ6 

4,303,489 
~Ddilarea: (71,403) 4,232,086 

EdacatioaaJ a11d 1eaeral 
c:.peadit UJ"CS: 

r os truction 1,086,864 (20,859) 
Academic Support 135,179 1,201,184 

323,147 3,536 
Student services 431,102 (4,111) 

32,084 :\58,767 

Operation and mainte118Jlcc 21,478 448,469 
of plant 426,.157 (6~189) 

lnstitutiooaJ support (419,968) 
972.,373 22,236 

Scholarships and fellowships 102,031 1,096,640 71,403 (71,403) 
3,311,246 

Auxiliary cnterpdses: 
(5,587) (71,403) (129,196) 3,105,060 

Dormitories 291,132 3,632 Dining hall 116,836 
405,231 2,440 

412,200 

Boolc.store 12,687 420,358 89,419 (H2) 
Snacbbop 1,196 90,463 14,912 (333) (1,523) 13,056 

801,294 5,587 129,196 936,071 
4,112,540 (71,403) 

lac:reue ill aet aaets 4,041,137 s 190,949 
190~9 
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

This summarY is provided to help the denomination better understand the overall financial condition of Free WiU 
BaptiSt Bible College. 

Uartstricttd Fuels IWvenues ud ExpendJtures 

To&al Unrestricted Funds Revenues for the year ending May 31, 2002, amounted to $4,043,472. Total Unrestricted 
Funds Expenditures were $4,089,328, providing a $45,856 dccn:ase in net usets at the end of the fiscal year. 

While expenses were $4S,856 more tban revenues. we are pleased to be within I% of a balanced budget. As many 
may recall, FWBBC faced a potential $600,000 deficit last fall due to a drop in enrollment This large deficit was 
avoided by generous gifts, a strong second semester enrollment and sigrtificant cuts in budgeted expenditures. 

Positive Cash Flow Statement 

The combined cash flow of the College's operating, investing, capital and financial activities showed cash and cash 
equivalents increasing $14,036 in Unrestricted FWlds, unchanged in Temporarily Restricted Funds, and increasing 
$66.,503 in Permanently Restricted Funds for a cumulative cash flow increase of $80,539. (However, it must be 
noted that $280,000 was botTOwed during the year, without which the cash flow statement would have been a 
negative $199,461.) 

Uarutrided Givia& 

Private gifts provided SI,IS2,710 in Unrestricted Funds Revenues. Of that amount, Sl ,ll7,779 was provided 
from General FWld gifts, $34,160 from Estate gifts, and $771 from Special gifts. 

It is noteworthy that General FWld gifts were up 20.68-~ from last year, the largest increase in over a decade. This 
was due not from a single huge gift, but from an mcrea.se in gifts overall. FWBBC thanks aU wbo so faithfully 
and sacrificially gave to make this substantial increase a reahry. 

Gc:aeraJ Fuad Glvla& Keeps Tuition Costs Down 

BecaUJe of abov~mentioned General Fund gifts, tuition paid by FWBBC students was subsidized S I SO for every 
semester hour talten in 2001-2002. Or, unrestricted General Fund gifts kept the cost of tuition per semester hour at 
$230, instead ofS380. This gift subsidy saved eacb student taking 30 semester hours (IS bows per semester) a 
total of $4,SOO this past academic year. Without gifts. many of our students would be unable to attend FWBBC. 

Flaandal ObU&adons 

The College's long-term debt bas increased. Notes Payable to Individuals amounts to (A) $227,327, (divided as a 
S 100,000 interest-free note for unrestricted use, and S 127,327 in interest-bearing notes permanently restricted for 
student loans). FWBBC has also drawn (B) $180,000 on a new bank note desigrted to help fund renovation of 
various buildings on campus. Lastly, the College has a (C) $47,079 balo.nce for a grand piano, making the total 
long·tenn debt S4S4,406 as of May 31, 2002. 

(A) The College bas sufficient cash and savings to liquidate the Notes payable to Individuals, but chooses to keep 
the $100,000 av&lable for unrestricted use, and the S 127,327 as pa11 of its student financial aid program. 
(B) Campus ptoperty values have increased as a result of the S 180,000 renovation debt- more than the bono wed 
amount. Renovation debt will be paid through income earned on some of the affected properties. 
(C) The $47,079 grand piano note balance u scheduled for maturity by September 2010. 

THIS INFORMATION IS NOT PART OF THE AUDITOR'S REPORT 
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION (~oatbaaecl) 

FWBBC'• investments heavily involved in securities lost $88,367 due to unfavorable marlcet conditions. Of that 
amount. $28,020 was realized, or actual losa, while $60,347 was llll1Caliz.ed, or paper loss. 

Allets to Debt Ratio 

FWBBC's assets to debt ratio, while stiU good, bas slipped from previous years. Total assets amount to 
$6,023,296. Our long-term liabilities (listed in •Financial Obliptions• above) come to $454,406, giving a 13.26 
to I ratio. Adding all other liabilities brings the total to $764,454, and gtves a 7.88 to I ratio. 

Reloaldoa Campu,n Update 

In March, 1998, the college entered into a five-year, S 12 million capital campaign for the purpose of providing $6 
million in operating (General Fund/Unrestricted Fund) revenues and $6 million for relocating and constructing a 
new campus in Joelton, Tennessee. 

The Boanl of Trustees bas voted to postpone relocation efforts until timing and finances arc more favorable. 
(refer to the auditor's report, Note (7), page I 0). 

THIS INFORMATION IS NOT PART OF THE AUDITOR'S REPORT 
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FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 

Budget for the year ending May 31, 2003 

Unaudited _ Not Part of Audit . 
Alloc:alloa or 

Operation aod Ba~t 
/u MaiDteo.aoce After 

BadJetecl o( Pl.ut Allocations 

Reveaoe1: s 2,0C17.200 2.007.200 
Tuition and fees 
Private gifts: 

s 1,300,000 Together I Capital Campaign 
76.500 Estates and Miscellaneous 

100,000 J ,476r~OO 1,476.500 Grants & Foundation 
4,000 4,000 Endowment income 

8,000 8,000 
Investment income 

1.090r~90 1,090,390 Sales and services of auxiliary enterprises . . 
75,000 75,000 Other sources - net assets released from restncllons ---

s 4,661,090 4,661,090 
== 

Expenditures: 
Educational and &eaeral: 

s 1,153,826 119,767 1,273,.S93 
lostruction 

412,573 28,440 441,013 
Academic support 

522,114 19,021 541,135 
Student services 

455,041 (455,041) Operation and maintenance of plant 
1,176,740 90,417 1,267,157 

Institutional support 
Total educational and general 

3,720.294 (197,396) 3,522,898 expenditures 

Auxiliary coterpri.sc:s: 940,796 197,396 1,138,192 

Total expenditures s 4,661,090 4,661,090 
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1,639,730 

1,181,931 
1,682 
6,660 

919,133 
294,336 - --· ·-

:'~~472 

1,132,649 
340,795 
474,410 

1,216,818 

3,164,672 

92A,656 

4,089,328. 



Free Will Baptist Bible College Salary Breakdown 
, 2000-01 

President* 
2001-02 2002-oa 

Salary $59,172 $59,172 $ 60,000 Social Security 4,526 4,526 4,590 Retirement 2,958 2,958 0 .. Medical Insurance 2,528 2,500 6,960 life Insurance 240 263 240 $ 69,424 $ 69,419 $ 71 ,790 

Academic Dean 
Salary $ 47,266 $ 47,266 $ 48,684 Social Security 3,616 3,616 3,724 Retirement 2,363 2,363 2,434 Medical Insurance 2,528 2,500 2,940 life Insurance 240 263 240 

$ 56,013 $ 56,008 $ 58,022 

Advancement Diredor 
Salary $ 40,118 $ 40,118 $42,148 Social Security 3,069 3,069 3,224 Retirement 2,006 2,006 0** Medical Insurance 2,528 2,500 6,960 life Insurance 240 263 240 

$47,961 $ 47,956 $ 52,572 

Treasurer 
Salary $ 45,787 $ 45,787 $47,161 Social Security 3,503 3,503 3,608 Retirement 2,289 2,289 2,358 Medical Insurance 2,528 2,500 2 ,940 life Insurance 240 263 240 

$ 54,347 $ 54,342 $ 56,307 

*Campus housing provided (with Social Security variation). Vehicle provided. 

**Qualifies for pension benefits after one year of service. 

Note: Some adminish olors have chosen a voluntary reduction from listed salaries. 
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General Fund Gift Goals 2002/2003 

State 

Al Total . .... · · · · · · · · · · · .$ 
AR Total .... · · · · · · · · · · · · · $ 
AZ Total ... .. · · · · · · · · · · · · $ 
CA Total .. . . · · · · · · · · · · · .$ 
CO Total . .. · · · · · · · · · · · · .$ 
CT Total . . .. · · · · · · · · · · · · .$ 
DE Total . . . . · · · · · · · · · · · · .$ 
Fl Total . . . . · · · · · · · · · · · · · ~ 
GA Total ... . · · · · · · · · · · · · 
lA Total ... . · · · · · · · · · · · · .$ 
ID Total .. . . · · · · · · · · · · · · .$ 
IL Total . ... · · · · · · · · · · · · .$ 
IN Total . ... · · · · · · · · · · · · .$ 
KS Total .. .. · · · · · · · · · · · · .$$ 
KY Total ... . . · · · · · · · · · · · · 
LA Total · · · · · · · · .$ 
MA Total . : : : : : : : · · · · · · · · .$ 
ME Total . ... · · · · · · · · · · · .$ 
MD Total . . . · · · · · · · · · · · · · $ 
Ml Total .. .. · · · · · · · · · · · · · $ 
MO Total . . .. · · · · · · · · · · · .$ 
MS Total . .. · · · · · · · · · · · · .$ 
NB Total . .. · · · · · · · · · · · · ·~ 

~~ ;~~~ : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : :$ 
NJ Total 
NM Total ... . · · · · · · · · · · · .$ 

Amount 

72,600 
80,960 

1,460 
7,080 

720 
1,560 
2 ,240 

34,920 
80,520 

720 
100 

28,640 
7,000 

360 
17,160 

1,520 
120 

1,680 
600 

32,280 
50,760 
22,080 

840 
200,710 

360 

360 
NY Total $ 

18
,
840 OH Total . ... · · · · · · · · · · · · 

$ 22,140 OK Total .. · · · · · · · · · · · · . . 600 
PA Total .. .. · · · · · · · · · · · · .$ 

65
,
640 SC Total . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · .$ 1 00 

SO Total . . . .. · · · · · · · · · · · .$ 
275

,
480 TN Total ... . · · · · · · · · · · · .$ 

TX Total ... . .... . $ 10,000 
VA Total : : : : : : : : · · · · · · · · .$ 20,000 
VI Total . .. · · · · · · · · · · · · · .$ 1 ~~g 
WA Total .. · · · · · · · · · · · · .. $ 50 
WI Total .. · · · · · · · · · · · · .. . $ 7,520 
WVTotal . . . . · · · · · · · · · · · .$ 
WNAC ... .. . · · · · · · · · · · · ·~ 2~:~~g 
Other . . . · · · · · · · · · · · · _· _· ---:. :---:--:-::~-;;:;:-
Total .. .... . . . ... .. ... .. $ 1,100,000 
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Foreign Missions 

A Summary of the Activities on Our Fields 
As we look back over 2001 we have much for which we are thankful. 

On September 11, as a result of terrorist attacks and the military response by 
the United States, the landscape of world evangelism changed. American 
foreign missionaries around the world immediately became more vulnera­
ble. Military installations in and outside of the U.S. hardened their positions 
and raised their level of readiness. Businessmen in foreign countries began 
riding with security details in vehicles equipped with armor. But the mis­
sionaries continued on with their service in and among the people. That is 
their life. You cannot have an impact without contact. Things had changed! 

Free Will Baptist Foreign Missions had missionaries in 10 countries in 2001: 
Brazj}, France, India, Ivory Coas~ Japan, Panama, Russia, Spain, South Korea, and 
Uruguay. We have no missionaries in Cuba and Nepal, but work closely with 
national pastors. We also work in restricted access countries such as Mongolia 
and China by using non-traditional means to have a Christian witness. In addition, 
Free Will Baptist national pastors and evangelists are taking the gospel to other 
restricted access countries which are not here named for security reasons. We 
are thankful for the unwavering commitment of our missionaries. 

For the first time in history, Free Will Baptist foreign missionaries all gath­
ered in one place. In April of 2001 that place was outside of Atlanta, Georgia, 
at the Simpsonwood Conference and Retreat Center. The occasion was used 
to bring all the missionaries up to speed at one time concerning the plans for 
denominational mobilization and how that can have a positive impact on their 
ministries. Many said it was like a touch of Heaven. We are thankful for this 
unprecedented time together and the challenge we all received. 

In our year-end reporting we discovered that there are 289 organized 
churches and 335 mission works as a result of Free Will Baptist Foreign Missions. 
There are 66 ordained pastors and 304licensed and lay preachers. In addition to 
these workers there are 176 students in nine Bible institutes in seven countries 
around the world (Brazji, Cuba, India, Ivory Coast, Panama, Uruguay, and Russia). 
God is raising an army to take forth His Word to the ends of the earth. The total 
average Sunday attendance continues to climb: 18,892. We are thankful He 
allows us to be co-lalx>rers with Him for the harvest (see figure below). 

20,000 
18,000 
16,000 
14,000 
12,000 
10,000 
8,000 
6,000 
4,000 
2,000 

0 

Overseas Attendance Growth 
(Last 1 0 Years) 
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. . . d · hort term missionaries (with com-
Eight career nusstonanes an SLX s - d d . 2001 

mitrnents from ~ne-two y~ar~) o7'~~c:hp~~~~ bJe~ b~:fe . .;t:::'!fmct oi 
The France M- earn ~oJ~~~arren ln additio~ to these, Terry and D. D. 
Keefl:er, and Sean ~ t d to Ivory Coast. Short-termers appointed include: 
VandiVort were ad~~m !n) Alicia Hart (Japan), Shannon Little (~apan), 
Tony~:~~~~dt (~~p~), and Doug <l!ld Pa:tty Chamberlin (Spam). We 
::~ankful the Lord of the Harvest is still callmg forth laborers. 

2001-Financial Summary 
The call for financial involvement in the mission enterprise come~ 

. h Paul aid " And how shall they preac 
directly thfrom ~en~~~~ CR~~ans 1g:15~).· i~ 2001 the total giving w~s 
except ey e nL th t tal giving for 2000 Of this 
$5 494 911 18 This was down 2.8, o over e o Thi 
~ou~t, n~ly four million was given through local churches. s repre-
sents 73.8o/o of the total given (see figure below). 

2001 Sources of foreign Missions Income 
0.4°/o 

Interest, Gains, Mise· 
,133 

,~ 

. . was down 2 8o/o over 2000 through the combined efforts of 
'!h?ugh. gwmgd staff we we;e able to cut ~nses by 4.3% to $5, 718,535.17. 

our ffilSSio~es an in 2001 were $223 623.99 over income. To see how 
Because of this our expenses . ' e 160 
these expenses were categorized look at the pte chart on pag · d . 

In 2001 1 457 churches and hundreds of individuals support~ J?IS-
sions efforts ~ough Free Will Baptist Foreign ~s~io~s. The contrieb~~~: 
from each <:hurch ~ave allo~aled us to ·~~~ti~u~::~:;;~::;u;~t ~ave ove; 
We would like to gtve spea recogru · thi tegory 
$10,000. Pages 126 and 127 contain the list of 72 churches m s ca . 
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Foreign Missions Total Expenditures for 2001 
Missionary 

Stateside Ministry 
$283,240 ....--. 

$5,718,535 

.:r7o--.., 
Department 
Travel and 

Board 
$50,603 

2.1% 
MK Education 

$121,045 
Missionary 
Auto and 

Transportation 
$248,310 

Missionary Social 
Security 
$400,163 

Mlssionasry 
Medical and 
Insurance 

Missionary 
Travel and 
Shipping 
$251 ,373 

Field 
Housing 

$403,885 

2001 Churches Giving to Foreign Missions over $10,000 
Rank Name r:+.. c ....... 

1 F FWB Ch ~ ~ 4m!: Rank Name ~ c ....... 
rrst urch Russellville AR $143,265.00 I 27 Ina FWB Church ~ Am!: 

2 Donelson fWB Church Nashville TN $8B 848 25 28 Frst FWB Ina ll $19,844.00 
3 limestone FWB Church limestone TN sa2'452·76 1 29 ~ fW Church Jacksonville NC $19,021.20 
4 Unily fWB Church Greenville NC $6,-130·43 30 F;~B ~ Ch~ch Garner NC $18,561.37 
5 Norman First FWB Church Norman OK s53'697·42 J 31 p' fWBu~ Beaufort NC $18,362.65 
6 Macedonia FWB Church Purdy MO s44'983·51 I 32 Rr~ 1 

~rchh Dunn NC $18,333.03 
7 First FWB Church Charleston AR 544' 60 · u 5 ope B C urch New Bern NC $18,297.17 
8 Central fWB Church Royal Oak Ml s38' 17 ~·~j ~~ ~emt~ .:~~ch h Darlington SC $18,134.42 
9 Pleasant Acres FWB Church New Bern NC 534' 407 ·88 I 35 F~ ~B Ch urc Coward SC $17,968.11 

10 Cofer's Chapel FWB Church Nashville TN s32'845·75 / 36 ~ tt' Ch ur~B Ch Star Gly AR $17,029.62 
11 CrossTimbersfWBChurch Nashville TN S3o'362·55 37 ~~e s fW~~ ch urch Ooyton NC $16,835.39 
12 First FWB Church Alban GA 529' 97 4 ·63 I any ur Timmonsville SC $16 642 50 
13 Fellowship fWB Church Kingspo~ TN 529;377~78 ~~ :~~~ :~c~urch Ashland Oty TN $15;851 ~86 
14 H.annon FWB Church liberal MO s28 086.00 1 40 ~ dell FWB Ch ch ~ey Al $15,671.23 
15 PmeyGrove fWB Church Guin At s26'33 er 0 ur liberal MO $15,504.97 
16 Horse Branch FWB Church Turbeville SC S25,76;·fj / :~ ~n a;.;~~FWB Church Batesville AR $15,477.87 
17 Peace FWB Church florence SC $25;377~00 43 Firs~~B Ch ~ch ~lso~ NC $15,437.86 
18 First FWB Ot. N ~Rock N little Rock AR s2 4 283 98 ur . Mramr ft S 15,000.00 
19 Union. Chapel FWB Church Chocowinity NC s23;218:00 / ~ ~::nry~~~~ FWB Ch Fenton MD $14,725.00 
20 Westside FWB Church Johnsonville SC 522 408 7 6 46 U .ly fWB Ch ch Fulton MS $14,708.93 
21 Bethel FWB Church South Roxono It 522,09 · / ."' ur Smithfield NC $14,608.32 
22 F~ee Will Baptist Church Townsend DE s21 '72:·: :~ ~~= ~f ~~c~ Washington NC $14,369.78 
23 Frrst FWB Church Florence SC $21,072.62 I 49 ' ' e urch NewCastle IN $14,359.29 
24 Porker's Chapel FWB Church Greenville NC $20,992.00 50 ;~Hope FWB Church Grand Ridge fl S 14,103.89 
25 Bethel FWB Church Kinston NC S2o' 41 . I e any fWB Church Broken Arrow OK $13,918.00 
26 Faith fWB Church Goldsboro NC $20, l4ci·6t ~~ WtCo~noug~ FWB Church Fort Smith AR $13,829.59 

, · mueld Frrst FWB Church Winfield At $13,478.97 
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bDL Ngme ~ S!m Am!: 
S3 Porter FWB Church Portsmouth OH $13,274.00 
54 Bethlehem FWB Church Ashland Gly TN $13,106.50 
55 New Hope FWB Church Joelton TN $12,759.47 
56 Cornerstone FWB Church Whiteville NC $12,500.00 
57 Ook Pork FWB Church Pine Bluff AR $12,314.95 
58 FirstFWB Church Darlington SC $11,999.00 
59 Ballew's Chapel FWB Church Grubbs AR $11,859.25 
60 Red Boy FWB Church Red Boy Al $11,821.88 
61 First FWB Church Farmington MO $11,530.87 
62 Mt.Oiive FWB Church Guin Al $11,518.17 1 

Rqnk Nqme Y!x Slam Am!: 
63 Temple FWB Church Greenville NC $11,346.43 
64 Emmanuel FWB Church Jacksonville NC $11,097.50 
65 First FWB Church Tuckerman AR $10,959.23 
66 Gospel Ught FWB Church Bonne Terre MO $10,840.00 
67 First FWB Church Huntsville AR $10,804.24 
68 Freedom FWB Church lancaster SC $10,587.02 
69 Trinily FWB Church Bridgeton MO $10,526.95 
70 First FWB Church Vernon Al $10,207.40 
7l &xxl Springs FWB Church Pleasant View TN $10,205.71 
72 Immanuel FWB Church Durham NC $10,085.00 

Special recognition also is due the top 1 0 states in giving to Free Will 
Baptist Foreign Missions. 

2001 Top Ten States Giving to Foreign Missions 
bnk smt! Total bnk S!!!m I2!s!l 

1 Tennessee 817,258.79 6 Oklahoma 437,800.40 
2 North Carolina 684,579.84 7 Alabama 332,479.75 
3 Arkansas 651 ,852. 70 8 Georgia 216,066.62 
4 Missouri 473,679.78 9 Florida 187,265.21 
5 South Carolina 439,012.18 10 Michigan 155,248.76 

Churches Giving Over $500 to the 2001 World Missions Offering 
Each year the World Missions Offering is held on the final Sunday in 

April. The Foreign Missions Department urges pastors to take a sacrificial 
offering for the Support Services account. This offering is more crucial than 
ever in providing the funding necessary to continue the direction of the 
department in denominational mobilization. In 1999 there were 23 churches 
that gave over $500 for this offering. In 2000 that increased to 38 churches. 
And, in 2001 the upward trend continued with 40 churches participating with 
offerings over $500. Below is a list of those churches: 

2001 Church 2001 12001 Church 2001 
la.nk Nqme Y!x Slm Amount Rank Name Citv s.tm Amount 

1 Fellowship FWB Church Kingsport TN $8,519.70 16 First FWB Church of Chipley Chipley Fl $1,002.00 
2 Sordis FWB Church Eufaula Al $6,375.00 117 limestone FWB Church limestone TN $1,000.00 
3 Unity FWB Church Greenville NC $3,706.12 18 TOOmos1on Community Ch. Thomaston TX $1,000.00 
4 Horton Heights FWB Church Nashville TN $3,241.79 I 19 Rocky Pass FWB Church Nebo NC $1,000.00 
5 West Tulsa FWB Church Tulsa OK $2,200.00 20 Community IWB Church W£S Jab OH $1,000.00 
6 Allen Chapel FWB Church Batesville AR $1 ,989.00 21 North Volley FWB Church Phoenix f:J. $972.00 
7 First FWB Church Stanley NC $1,810.00 22 First FWB Church Russellville AR $970.16 
8 Horse Brooch FWB Church Turbeville SC $1,584.55 23 Woodbine FWB Church Nashville TN $910.67 
9 Porter FWB Church Portsmouth OH $1,470.00 24 New Hope FWB Church Kent WA $893.12 

10 Doilyville FWB Church Wover~ OH $1,368.00 25 Shollowford FWB Church Moriefto GA $880.00 
11 Ballew's Chopel FWB Church Grubbs AR $1,312.00 26 Calvary FWB Church Solem ll $842.59 
12 Sherwood Forest FWB ChurchNew BemNC $1,260.33 27 Mt. Gilead FWB Church Brinson GA $821.25 
13 Three Rivers FWB Church Wexford PA $1 ,130.00 28 Oakwood FWB Church Woodlawn TN $719.00 
14 Unity FWB Church Middleburg Hts OH $1,085.50 29 First FWB Church Batesville AR $717.00 
15 Heritage FWB Church Columbus OH $1,048.78 30 First FWB Church Ypsilanti Ml $705.50 
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2001 
&mk 

Church 
Name ~ c....... 200 I 1 200 I Church 

~ Amount &mk Ngm~ Citv ct ... - 2001 
31 Blue Point FWB Church 0 -=u IWl12 -., 

32 C~o~eville FWB Church Cooke~~~: }~ $698.10 / 36 Cedor Springs FWB Church Blakely GA S50QOO 
33 Trmrty FWB Church Bridgeton MO $640.00 37 Red Boy FWB Church Red Boy AL $500.00 
34 fost Nashville FWB Church Nashville TN $625.00 / 38 Good News FWB Church Chesterfield VA $500.00 
35 lake Hills FWB Church Hot Springs AR $565.00 39 Fulton FWB Church Fulton MS $500.00 

$525.00 40 Westside FWB Church Johnsonville SC $500.00 

$100,000 

$90,000 

$80,000 

$70,000 

$60,000 

$50,000 

$40,000 

$30,000 

$20,000 

$10,000 

Five-Year World Missions Offering 
(Support Services or Undesignated Only) 

$0~~-+~~~~-+~~t-~~ 1997 1998 1999 2000 
2001 

. The greatest transfer of w ealth ever in hi . 
agmg parents are passing their Jife . story IS occurring now as 
chi~dren. Free Will Baptists need to :a~gs do~ to their Baby Boomer 
vanous ways in which people can be cf~l z~ onthrthis tre~d by encouraging 
~d o~er instruments of planned i . essmg oug~ mvestments, wills, 
mcredible incentives in fund· g vmg. Through certatn tax laws there are 
Will B . mg non-profit organizati· Th .. 1 aptists to make a bold 2l t ons. e ab1hty for Free 
by educating our people to the:e ~~~:~.~s~ould be gre~Uy enhanced 
a more concerted effort toward th' . th I fues. e are determmed to make 

ISm e ture. 
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Endowments at Foundation to the benefit of 
Foreign Missions 

Year 

2001 
2000 
1999 
1998 
1997 

Endowed 
Amount 

343,640.42 
327,744.90 
325,837.93 
287,091.86 
282,753.65 

~s 
Received 

1,227.72 
39,973.04 
29,462.29 
21,180.00 
28,888.54 

Amount of Future Endowments upon Death of Donor 

Totol planned Gifts 
Amount of direct gifts 

~ ~ 1m 1m .1!!Z 
230,637.12 238,785.31 230,225.07 235,717.96 239,532.08 

14,489.39 16,067.49 18,107.49 22,500.00 22,500.00 
Amount towards endowments 216,147.73 222,71 7.82 212,11 7.58 21 3,217.96 21 7,032.08 

The table above shows that 2001 was not a very good year as far as 
investments go. The total endowment with the Free Will Baptist 
Foundation, however, continues to grow. 

Board Meetings and Actions 
Semi-Annual Meeting - December 5, 200 I 

The semi-annual meeting of the board was held at the National Offices 
building. Members present were: Milton Worthington, vice-chairman (acting 
chairman); David Shores, secretary; Sherwood Lee; Terry Eagleton; Bill Jones; Bill 
\an Wmkle; David Williford; and Randy Wilson The following actions were taken: 

The board approved releasing $50,000 from the Stateside Missionary 
Housing account to go toward renovating the Boyce House on the campus 
of Free Will Baptist Bible College with the understanding that it will be uti­
lized as the Missionary-In-Residence house in the future. 

The concept of an Advisory Council to the board was approved. This 
is meant to facilitate the involvement of laymen and laywomen with pro­
fessional skills into the missionary enterprise. 

The proposal to provide "significant gifts with world evangelism sig­
nificance for pastors who lead their churches to support the April Foreign 
Missions Month emphasis" was adopted. 

The board appointed field chairmen and vice-chairmen for existing 
field councils: 

France: 
Ivory Coa.st: 
Brazil: 
Panama: 
Uruguay: 
Japan: 
Spain: 
India: 
Russia: 
Korea: 

Dennis Teague, chairman 
Jerry Pinkerton, chairman 
Curt Holland, chairman 
Stan Bunch, chairman 
Dennis Owen, chairman 
Ken Bailey, chairman 
Jeff Turnbough, chairman 
Carlisle Hanna 
Mike Corley 
John Chang 
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Steve Riggs, vice-chairman 
Clint Morgan, vice-chairman 
Jim Combs, vice-chairman 
Eddie Bowerman, vice-chairman 
Jaimie lancaster, vice-chairman 
Don McDonald, vice-chairman 
Tim Johnson, vice-chairman 



Several VISION projects were d d 
proposed budget. a opte · They are found in the 2003 

Robert and Judy Br 
of absence. yan were approved to be reinstated from a leave 

T
Thhe rResig~ation .of Charolette Tallent was accepted 

e ussian Bible Institute VISION · · 
$109,000 to $112,000 for 2001 and 2002 A Rus ~roJect w~s amended from 
et ~~s approved for 2002 for $20 000 Thi sian Pastor s Awareness budg-
Anticipated Opportunities budget. ' · s would fall under the 2002 

The board approved that any fu d . . . 
field vehicle fund would be retumedn t~ ~~aJr:n~ m a ,missionary's on­
transfer of fields, resignation or retirem t ffilSslOnary s account upon 

Th ' en. 
e annual missionary retreat [! 2002 

financial strains and scheduling issues~r was suspended because of 

TEAM (Teens Equipped and Active in Mi · ) 
program for high school students, was renam~~~~s ' the .summer missions 
Eagleton, deceased missionary to Brazil It thr TEAM m. ~emory of Ken 
the program was initiated. · was ough his mfluence that 

The board approved a chang · r . 
debt. Candidates may have up to $2~0m po Icy as !t relates to educational 
educational debt. per month m payback expenses for 

. The board gave final approval to the F . 
of Micah Derby, Becky Hale Tim and D. K ranee M-Team, which consists 

Alicia Hart was appro~ed for a I eener, and Sean and Jill Warren. 
English teacher in Japan. two-year short -term assignment as an 

The board approved 39 college tud [! 
overseas this summer (including 18 s th ents or short-term opportunities 
Japan). Seventy-six high school stude~~ fri e World Cup 2002 Team going to 
try were selected to serve with E-TFAM . ~m 18 states and one foreign coun­
going to Chicago, France Japan Mexi mPu e sun:uner of 2002. TFAMs will be 

. ~e board agreed to provide th~oHeC::::::lc;:; ~d ~rrgin Islands .. 
Publications Committee of the National Assoc. . ~ ailing .list to the National 

Iation 10r a one-time survey ailing. 
Annual Meeting -April 23-24, 2002 m · 
. The annual meeting of the board was held at the N . 
mg .. Members present were: Doug Uttle ch . . . ational C?ffices build-
chairman; David Shores se t . Sh ' airman, Milton Worthington, vice­
David Williford; and ~dy ~~' Th erwood .Lee; ~ill Jones; Bill Van Wmkle; 

The first day of the meetin . we follo~ aCtions were taken: 
chairmen attending included: Ke~ ~e h~d WI~ the field chairmen. Field 
HoHand, Brazil; Clint Morgan (vice-chai~:an, Stan Bunc~, Pan~a; Curt 
Uruguay; _Dennis Teague, France; and Jeff Tur~b Ivor;;' Co~t, Denrus Owen, 

Joru Thomas and Ben ·arrun Bail oug ' Spa~n. 
assignments in Japan as E~lish teac~e~~~ both approved for two-year 
granted a transfer from Ivory Coast to Fr obert and Judy Bryan were 

Joel Collum of Hinton, \Vcuren, Denn ~~ 
The board approved the creation Y c~ ~~As presented the audit 

zational structure of Free Will B . of a.film ~VJ.sion within the organi-
film division has not been chos!~ti~tt F~~e~ ~JSSions. The name of the 
supervisi<;>n ?f the Director of Public. Re:ons ction under the immediate 

. Prehffilnary approval was iv · 
Directors instead of the current fig Jden to ~e concept of Regional or Field 

Ie council structure. 
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The following changes in 2002 project budgets were approved. All of 
these would derive their budgeting authority from the Anticipated 
Opportunities budget: Doropo Hospital budget from $10,000 to $22,000; 
Ivory Coast Bouake project from $72,000 to $79,000. New 2002 budgets 
include: film division, $75,000; France bookstore project, $10,000. 

As part of the exit strategy for Korea, a proposal for a three-year eval­
uation of our ministry there was adopted (July 2002-June 2005). The ulti­
mate goal remains that of training and deploying Korean missionaries into 
unreached areas in Central and South Asia and the Pacific Rim. 

The board approved the application of an Administrative Allocation 
for the following short-term missions opportunities: E-TFAM, $50; overseas 
apprentices, $1 00; short-term appointees, $100 per month on the field. 

The General Director was instructed to end the 2002 fiscal year in the black. 
All secretaries and administrative assistants were honored on 

Administrative Professionals Day. Administrative staff, board members, and 
field chairmen personally gave funds for their tokens of appreciation. 

The board accepted the resignation of board member Terry Eagleton. 
Appreciation and commendation were expressed for the time he served on 
the board. 

The board elected the following officers: 
Chairman - Doug little 
Vice-Chairman - Milton Worthington 
Secretary David Shores 

E-Mail Ballot- May 13, 2002 
To be included in the 2003 budget to be submitted to the National, the 

board approved $100,000 for the revolving church loan fund and $100,000 
for the national worker's fund for Spain. 

Special Tribute To Our Missionaries, StaH, and Board 
The year of 2001 will go down as a difficult one in many ways for those 

involved in world evangelism. The terrorist attacks of September 11 have had 
a significant impact on every walk of life. This certainly is felt by American 
missionaries serving overseas. Through the questions of security and the 
resultant decrease in fmances, your Free Will Baptist foreign missionaries 
have continued significant and sacrificial ministry around the world. We 
honor them for their undying faithfulness to the commission of our Lord. 

Perhaps there has not been a more involved foreign missions board 
than the one currently serving. Every single individual brings a passionate 
commitment for world evangelism to the task. You can tell by their lives and 
priorities that they possess the mind of Christ. Decisions are not always easy, 
nor are the lines always clearly drawn. Each of these men of God, however, 
takes his responsibilities very seriously, and they represent us all well. 

To achieve the goals of denominational mobilization, and the ongoing care 
of our missionary family, a great deal has been asked of the staff working at the 
office in Antioch. I do not know of a group of people anyvvhere who have such a 
sweet disposition through such stressful circumstances. The morale has 
remained high in the midst of budget shortfalls and decreased spending. The over­
an commitment is to "stay the course" and keep striving for the goal of total 
denominational mobilization for Great Commission evangelism. It is not possible 
for a more fitting tnbute to be expressed than simply to say, "Well done." 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Board of Directors of the 
Board of Foreign Missions of the 
National Association of Free Will Baptists 

Antioch, Tennessee 

-AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF 
CER'TlFlEO PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

TENNESSEE SOCIETY OF 
CERTIFIED PU8UC ACCOI..WTANTS 

We have audited the accompanying statements of financial position of the Board of Foreign 
Missions of the National Association of Free Will Baptists (a nonprofit organization) as of December 
31 , 2001 and 2000, and the related statements of activities and cash flows for the years then ended . 
These fmancial statements are the responsibility of the Organization's management. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the fmancial statements are free of material misstatement. An 
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and 
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the fmancial position of the Board of Foreign Missions of the National Association of Free 
Will Baptists as of December 31, 2001 and 2000 and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows 
for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. 

April 5, 2002 
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BOARD OF FOREIGN MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Statements of Financial Position 
December 31. 2001 and 2000 

Cash and cash equivalents - Notes 1 & 2 
Investments in trusts- Notes 1 & 2 
lnvestments - Notes 2 & 10 
A~o~nts ~eceivable from employees and 
rrusstonanes - Note 2 

ASSETS 

Prope~ ~d equipment, at cost, net of accumulated 
deprectation - Notes 1 & 3 
Prepaid expenses 

2001 
$1,040,979 

1,137,405 
19,637 

90,800 

185,392 

2000 
$ 977,457 

1,305,340 
80,021 

123,992 

158,938 
4.552 

Total assets 
$2.474 213 $2.650.300 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Supplemental retirement insurance payable 
Accrued severance pay payable 

Total liabilities 

Commitments - Notes 7 & 8 

Net assets (deficit) 
Unrestricted 
Temporarily restricted - Note 4 
Permanently restricted - Note 4 

Total 

Total liabilities and net assets 

See accountants' report and a ccompanying 
notes to the financial statements. 
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$ 210,545 
355,456 
146.773 

712.774 

( 315,004) ( 
2,050,202 

26.241 

1.761.439 

$ 209,978 
324,893 
148.104 

682.975 

167,828) 
2,108,912 

26.241 

1.967.325 

$2,474.213 $2.650.300 

BOARD OF FOREIGN MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Statements of Activities 
For the Years Ended December 31. 2001 and 2000 

Unrestricted 
Revenue: 

Contributions - Notes 1 & 5 
Investment income 

Gain (loss) on investments 
Projector lease income 
Gain on disposal of property & equipment 

Net assets released from restrictions: 
Restrictions satisfied by payments 

Total revenue 

Expenses: 
Support services 
Missionaries 
VISION campaign 

Total expenses 

Increase (decrease) in unrestricted net assets 

Temporarily restricted 
Revenue: 

Contributions- Notes 1,4 & 5 
Net assets released from restrictions: 

Restrictions satisfied by payments 

Increase (decrease) in temporarily restricted net assets 

Permanently restricted 
Revenue: 

Contributions- Notes 1 & 4 

Increase in permanently restricted net assets 

Total increase (decrease) in net assets 

Net assets - beginning of year 

Net assets- end of year 

See accountants' report and accompanying 
notes to the financial statements. 
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( 

2001 2000 

$1,118,382 
57,772 
60,476) 

5,700 
5,664 

4.426.106 

5,5~~.148 

1,274,218 
4,201,830 

224,276 

5,700,324 

147,176) 

4,367,396 

$ 1,068,342 
146,462 

( 95,778) 

10,498 

4.639.592 

~.Z§2,116 

1,119,498 
4,027,284 

§12,308 

5,759,090 

10.026 

4,495,526 

( 4,42§. 1 06) ( 4,§39,592) 

( 58,710) ( 144.066) 

25,031 

25,031 

( 205,886) ( 109,009) 

1.967,325 2,0Z§,334 

$L76L439 $ L967.325 



BOARD OF FOREIGN MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAP'fiSTS 

Statements of Cash Flow§ 
For the Years Ended December 31. 2001 and 2000 

Ooerating actiyities 
Increase (decrease} in net assets 

Adjustments ~ reconcile increase in net assets to 
net cash ~ro~ded (used) by operating activities· 

Depreciation · 
Loss (gain) on investments 
Gain on disposal of property and equipment 
Changes in operating assets and liabiliti . 

0 (' es. 
ecrease ~crease) in accounts receivable 

Decrea~e (mcrease) in prepaid expenses and 
depos1ts 

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and 
accrued expenses 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 

Investing activities 
Purchases of equipment 
Proceeds from sale of equipment 
Purchases of investment 
Proceeds of investment redeemed 

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 

Financing actiyities 

Net cash provided by fmancing activities 

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 

Supplemental noncash investing and financing information 

Purchases of equipment 
Less: accounts payable 

See accountants' reoort and accompanying 
note§ to the financial statements. 
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2001 2000 

($ 205,886) ($ 109,009) 

71,528 56,443 
60,476 95,778 

( 5,664) ( 10,498) 

33,192 38,645 

4,552 349,952 

29.792 ( 88.895) 

( 12.003) 332.41§ 

( 127,318) ( 108,278) 
35,000 39,145 

( 82,157) ( 197,747) 
250.000 6.896 

75,52~ ( 2Q2,9~4) 

-0- -0-

63,522 72,432 

277,457 905,025 

~1.g~a.2z~ i ~zz.~~z 

$ 127,318 $ 127,253 
( 18.975) 

$ 12Z,318 $ 1@,278 

Note 1 -

BOARD OF FOREIGN MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
December 31. 2001 and 2000 

Organization and summary of significant accounting oolicies 

The Board of Foreign Missions of the National Association of Free Will Baptists 
is a nonprofit organization affiliated with the National Association of Free Will 
Baptists, located in Antioch, Tennessee. The purpose of the Organization is to 
establish and support Free Will Baptist Mission Churches throughout the world. The 
Organization's support comes primarily from donor contributions. 

The Organization is exempt from federal income tax under section 50l(c)(3) of 
the Internal Revenue Code under a group exemption of the National Association of 
Free Will Baptists. In addition, the Organization has been determined by the Internal 
Revenue Service not to be a "private foundation" within the meaning of 509(a) of the 
Internal Revenue Code. There was no unrelated business income for 2001 and 2000. 

The following significant accounting policies have been followed in the 
preparation of the financial statements: 

Basis of accounting 

The Organization prepares its financial statements using the accrual basis of 
accounting, which involves the application of generally accepted accounting 
principles; consequently, revenues and gains are recognized when earned, and 
expenses and losses are recognized when incurred. 

Basis of presentation 

Financial Statements presentation follows the recommendations of the 
Financial Accounting Standards Board in its Statements of Financial Accounting 
Standards (SFAS) No. 117, Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Organizations. 
Under SFAS No. 117, the Organization is required to report information regarding its 
fmancial position and activities according to three classes of net assets; unrestricted 
net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently restricted net assets. 

Use of estimates 

The preparation of fmancial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles includes the use of estimates that affect the fmancial 
statements. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Contributions 

The Organization accounts for contributions in accordance with the 
recommendations of the Financial Accounting Standards Board in SFAS No. 116, 
Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions Made. 1n accordance with 
SFAS No. 116, contributions received are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily 
restricted, or permanently restricted support, depending on the existence or nature of 
any donor restrictions. 
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Note 1-

BOARp OF FOREIGN MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
Pecember 31. 2001 and 2000 

Organization and summary of simificant accounting oolicies (Continued) 

Contributions (continued) 

All donor-restricted support is reported as an Jncrease in temporarily or 
permanently restricted net assets depending on the nature of the restriction. When a 
restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose 
restriction is accomplished), temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to 
unrestricted net assets and reported in the Statements of Activities as net assets 
released from restrictions. 

Property and equipment and depreciation 

The Organization follows the practice of capitalizing, at cost, all expenditures 
for property and equipment in excess of $2000 and an estimated useful life of at least 
two years. Depreciation is computed on a stralght-line basis over the useful lives of 
the assets generally as follows: 

Automobiles 5 years 
Office furniture and equipment 3- 10 years 

The net property and equipment balance has been recorded as a separate component 
in unrestricted net assets. 

Investments 

Investments are composed of equity securities and are valued at quoted 
market price. 

Investments in Trusts 

Investments in Trusts are composed of six trusts established and maintained 
by the Free Will Baptist Foundation. The Foundation invests the two large3t trusts in 
debt securities and preferred stock and values the trusts at market value. The 
remaining trusts are invested in government securities and valued at cost, which 
approximates market value. 

Cash and cash equivalent§ 
. ·. 

· For purposes of the Statements of Cash Flows, the Board considers all cash on 
deposit, money market funds and highly liquid debt instruments with maturity of 
three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. · 

.. . . 

A -172 

Note 2-

· BOARD OF FOREIGN MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WlLL BAPTISTS 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
December 31. 200 1 and 2000 

Summary of significant concentrations of rmancial instruments 

f D ~- 31 2001 and 2000 the Board had deposits with a fmancial As o ecemucr • • . d I f 
· 1oc ted · th u 'ted States and the Board of Retu-ement an nsurance o institution a m e ru · 'och T 

th National Association of Free Will Baptists located tn Anb , ennessee. 
Ac~ounts at the financial institution are insured up to $1 00,000 by the Feder~ 'th a 
De sit Insurance Corporation. The Board has a cash m.anagement agreeme~ ·~ 
1~ bank which invests any excess cash overnight in U.S. Oovemme: securttie r th. 

re urchase ement. Any cash not insured should, under e terms o 1s 
under a pbe llate~zed by U S Government securities. Accounts at the Board of 
agreement, co · · . . Will Ba ti t are 

~~~~=:~~~ ~e~~~~na~::~~~e:=~~~ :e~~~~:~;;:;ployee':n ~~~!:aries 
and other receivables which are uninsured. The ~ollo~g 1s a sum . ~ . 
deposits, accounts receivable and the corresponding nsk of accounting oss. 

December 31.2001 

Account 
· Balance 

Amount Amount of 
Insured/ Accounting 
Secured Risk of Loss 

Interest bearing deposit accounts 
with financial institution $1.040.979 $100,000 $ 940,979 

940,979 Total cash and cash equivalents 1.040.979 

Interest bearing deposits on account 
with the Board of Retirement and 
Insurance of the National Association . 
of Free Will Baptists · 1,137,405 

Common stock 19.637 
Total investments 1.151.042 

Accounts receivable from employen 
and missionaries 
· Total 

90,800 
$2,288 821' 

100,000 

$100 000 

1,137,405 
19.637 

1.157.042 

90.800 
$2,188,821 

December 31. 2000 

Account 
Balance 

Amount Amount or 
Insured/ Accounting 
Secured Risk of Loss 

Intere~t bearing.deposi.t accounts . 
with financial institution $ 977.457 $100.000 $ 877.457 

877.457 Total cash and cash equivalents . 977.457 100,000 

Jnt~st bearing deposita on account 
with the Board of Retirement an.d . . . 

· Insurance of the National Association 
of Free Will Baptists 1,305,340 

Common stock 80.021 
Total in11estments 1 ,385.361 

Accounts receivable from employees 
and missionaries 

Total 
123.992 

$2.486,810 
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$100 000 

1,305,340 
80.021 

1,385.361 

123.992 
$2.386.810 

~~-~ . ~ . 
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Note 3-

Note 4 -

Note 5-

Note 6-

BOARD OF FOREIGN MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
December 31. 2001 and 2000 

Prooertv and equipment 

A summary of property and equipment is as follows: 

Office furniture and equipment 
Cameras and projectors 
Automobiles 
Computer equipment 

Less: Accumulated depreciation 

2001 
$ 68,851 

139,747 
134,900 
74.244 

417,742 
232.350 

$ 185.392 

2000 
$ 56,832 

132,717 
104,400 
79.23§ 

373,184 
214.246 

$ 158.938 

Depreciation expense, computed utilizing the straight-line method 
amounted to $71,528 ($56,443 in 2000). 

Restrictions on net assets 

Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the following purposes: 

Missionaries 
VISION campaign 

2001 
$1 ,963,841 

86.361 
$2.050.202 

2000 
$2,374,689 

265.777 
$2.108.912 

These net assets are restricted due to donor restrictions They are released 
when the donor restriction is satisfied. · 

Permanently restricted assets are restricted to: 

Support Services Endowment $ 25,031 $ 25,031 
MK Scholarship Endowment 1,21Q 1,210 

$ 26,241 $ 26 241 

§!uppor.t services alloc§!tion 

!he Board charges a fee against the foreign field accounts to reimburse the 
unrestncted net assets for support service expenses. These fees are presented as 
transfers from the temporarily restricted net assets to the unrestricted net assets. 

Pension plan 

. The Board participates in the master pension plan of the Board of 
Retirement and Insurance of the National Association of Free Will Bapti t The 
Board contributes 5% of gross salary for missionaries and administrativ: s. 
empl~yees. Employees ru:e allowed to contribute but are not required to 
contribute. Employees wttb two years of service may participate. Pension 
expe~ses .amounted to $87,566 ($91,113 in 2000). The pension plan is a defined 
contribution ~tan. Under the plan, an account is maintained for each participant 
and upon retirement the participant can either receive a lump-sum distribution or 
purchase one of several types of annuity contracts. 

-8-
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Note 7 -

Note 8 -

Note 9 -

I&ase 

BOARD OF FOREIGN MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
December 31 , 2001 and 2000 

The Board entered into a lease agreement on October 1, 1990 with the 
National Association of Free Will Baptists for office and storage space. The term of 
the lease expires when all mortgages on the building are satisfied; the mortgage 
was retired this year. The board entered into a new lease agreement on July l, 
2000. The term of the lease was July l, 2000 to August 31, 2000, and then 
beginning September 1, 2000 the lease became a year-to-year lease. The rent 
expense for the years amounted to $74,988 ($74,988 for the year ended December 
31, 2000). 

Commitments 

The Board provides health insurance for its 84 (84 in 2000) employees on a 
partially self-insured basis. The board has an insurance policy with International 
Medical Group for claims in excess of the deductible. The deductible is $2,500 
and the coinsurance is 80% of the next $5,000. The deductible and coinsurance 
are paid out of Missionary funds. All claims are processed by International 
Medical Group. During the year the Board paid $12 1,195 ($128, 925 in 2000) in 
benefit payments and $119,045 ($107,246 in 2000) in insurance premiums. 

The Board has entered into an Indemnity and Hold Harmless Agreement 
with AmSouth Bank. As part of the agreement, AmSouth Bank will guarantee to 
Citibank that it will honor checks written on the Board of Foreign Missions' 
AmSoutb Bank account by the Board of Foreign Missions' Cote d'lvoire Mission 
employees up to $20,000 per check. In exchange, the Board of Foreign Missions 
will indemnify and hold harmless AmSouth Bank from any and all claims, 
liabilities, actions or causes of action that arise as a result of AmSouth Bank's 
agreement to guarantee checks to Citibank. 

Fair values of fmancial instruments 

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Board in 
estimating its fair value disclosures for fmancial instruments: 

Cash, cash equivalents, investments in trusts, receivables and payables: 
The carrying amounts reported in the statements of financial position 
approximate fair values because of the short maturities of those 
instruments. 

Investments: The fair value of investments is based on quoted market price 
for those investments. 
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Note 10-

Note 11 -

BOARD OF FOREIGN MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
December 31. 200 1 and 2000 

Investments 

Investments are stated at fair value and consist of equity securities: 

December 31. 200 1 

Fair 
Cost Value 

Equity securities $ 79,520 $ 19,637 
Investment return is summarized as follows: 

Net realized and unrealized income 

Unrealized 
Appreciation 

(Depreciation) 
($ 59,883) 

($ 60,476) 

December 31. 2000 

Cost 
Equity securities $79.520 

Fair 
Value 

$ 80.021 

Investment return is summarized as follows: 

Net realized and unrealized income 

Financial statement presentation 

Unrealized 
Appreciation 

(Depreciation) 
$ 501 

l$ 95,778) 

, Duz:ing the year the Board restructured and consolidated the presentation 
of mfonnational and promotional, travel and board and administrative expenses. 
The~ expenses ~e now P,resented as support services expenses, Accordingly, 
certain amounts m the pnor year statement of activities and schedule of functional 
expenses have been reclassified to conform to the 2001 presentation, There was 
no charge in the 2000 decrease in net assets, 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

Board of Directors of the 
Board of Foreign Missions of the 
National Association of Free Will Baptists 

Antioch, Tennessee 

Our report on our audits of the basic financial statements of the Board of Foreign 
Missions of the National Association of Free Will Baptists for 2001 and 2000 appears on page 1. 
Those audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic fmancial statements 
taken as a whole. The schedule of functional expenses is presented for the purpose of additional 
analysis and is not a required part of the basic fmancial statements. Such information has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the basic fmancial statements and, 
in our opinion, is fairly stated in aU material respects in relation to the basic fmancial statements 
taken as a whole, 

April 5, 2002 
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BOARD OF FOREIGN MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Schedule of Functional Expenses 
For the Years Ended DeQember 31. 2001 and 2000 

Support services: 
Video and audio visual 
Heartbeat 
Other publications expense 
Postage 
Publicity 
Telephone 
Dues 
Paper and supplies 
Together Way Program 
Retreat 
Tracts and books 
Seminar and training 
Convention expense 
Department auto 
Board members 
Administrative - overseas travel 
Department insurance 
Department travel 
Travel insurance 
Honorariums 
Missions promotion 
Recruiting and candidate expense 
Salaries 
Housing 
Social Security 
Employer payroll taxes 
Retirement 
Hospitalization 
Office travel allowance 
Legal and professional 
Office rent 
Off-site storage expense 
Computer software expense 
Office equipment 
Maintenance of office equipment 
Office supplies 
Bank service charges 
Office help 
Staff recognition 
COLA indexes 
Benevolence 
Staff retreat 
Miscellaneous 
Depreciation 
Visitor meals, entertainment & lodging 
Mobilization network 

Total support services 

See accountants' report on supplementary information. 
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2001 

$ 66,204 
31,450 
15,987 
41 ,656 
20,190 
13,654 

300 
2,309 
2,976 

( 364) 
5,924 
1,005 
5,352 

31,072 
14,506 

3,468 
18,211 

3 ,067 
58,888 

3 ,750 
485,683 
64,600 
23,910 
25,764 
25,448 
84,118 

4,867 
15,640 
74,988 

1,540 
7 ,266 

10,448 
1,020 

15,253 
2,735 

240 
915 

4,575 
617 
721 

9,421 
71,528 

2,377 
939 

~1,274,218 

2000 

$ 26,818 
35,004 
23,752 
35,471 
23,971 
12,120 

789 
1,614 
5,940 

11,191 
5,254 
7,752 
8,340 

27,208 
20,311 

24 
3 ,933 

33,184 
320 

1,237 
10,277 

1,367 
415,619 

78,975 
29,389 
18,384 
21,933 
59,381 

2,815 
6 ,947 

74,988 
1,430 
6 ,438 

16,926 
1,849 

17,288 
1,118 

170 
1, 173 
4,330 

53 
775 

4,945 
56,443 

1,073 
1,172 

$1,119,498 

BOARD OF FOREIGN MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Schedule of Functional Expenses 
For the Years Ended December 31. 2001 and 2000 

2001 
Missionary expenses: 

Ivory Coast $ 835,813 
France 397,279 
India 227,462 
Brazil 638,956 

701,927 Japan 
205,145 Panama 
394,496 Spain 
265,210 Uruguay 
120,916 Commonwealth of Independent States 

Unreached people 11,118 
Korea 112,505 
Overseas Apprentices 147,459 
Other projects 175,771 
Missionary medical ( 32,2271 

Total missionary expenses 4,201.830 

VISION campaign expenses: 
221,276 Project expenses 
224,276 Total VISION campaign expenses 

Total expenses $5.700.324 

See accountants' report on supplementary information. 
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2000 

$ 899,080 
374,156 
176,139 
663,054 
482,284 
256,001 
294,380 
336,849 
109,406 

22,280 
134,870 
106,490 
224,017 

( 51,722) 
4,027,284 

§1~.30~ 
612,308 

$5.759 090 



Free Will Baptist Foreign Missions 
Consolidated 2003 Budget 

Fields and Projects 

Ivory Coast 
Brazil 
France 
Indio 
Japan 
Korea 
Russiw'CI.S. 
P.R.A.C. 
Po noma 
Spain 
Uruguay 
Cuba 
Other fields 

Personal 
Allowances 

673,884.93 
475,913.68 
509,895.57 
56,796.94 

451,336.69 
41,600.00 
47,118.80 

170,079.64 
390,278.62 
179,783.08 

Projected missionary appointments 
Other anticipated opportunities 

Total 6ekfs and proieds 2, 996,687.96 --

Ministry 
Allowances 

155,495.34 
62,410.00 
84,700.00 
53,600.00 

286,300.00 
25,300.00 
9,750.00 

19,000.00 
49,050.00 
28,300.00 

Administration 
Allocation 

80,904.85 
59,167.16 
65,213.06 
7,245.90 

43,475.37 
7,245.90 
7,245.90 

21,737.69 
37,429.48 
21,737.69 

13,600.00 
28,983.58 

Project 
Allowance~ 

172,491.00 
91,350.00 

146,068.76 
106,000.00 
120,000.00 
74,500.00 
84,500.00 
18,500.00 
58,500.00 
62,150.00 
55,600.00 
28,600.00 

694,203.50 
200,000.00 
100,000.00 

Total 
Fisdd Bud911 

1,082,77 6.12 
688,840.85 
805,877.39 
223,642.84 
901,112.06 
148,645.90 
148,614.69 
18,500.00 

269,317.33 
738,908.10 
285,420.76 
28,600.00 

707,803.50 
228,983.58 
100,000.00 

Administrative 
773,905.34 393,986.54 2,012,463.26 s 6,377,043.11 ----- ----

Office of the General Director 
Deportment of Field Operations 
Deportment of Stateside Development 
Deportment of Mobilization & Recruitment 
Deportment of Public Relations 
Deportment of Member Core 
Deportment of Financial Operations 
Total Administration 

Less: missionary/project allocations - 9% 
Net Administration 

Total Operational 

VISION Projects 
Special Projects 
Video & Film Division 
Grand Total Budget 

156,333.65 
114,332.63 
124,982.73 
153,468.18 
371,132.57 
94,690.32 

410,891.20 
1,425,831.29 
(393,986.54) 

1,031,844.74 

_s _l408,887.8i._ 

s 4,583,770.00 
s 120,000.00 
s 250,000.00 

- SlU62,657.ar-
= -

Note: Budgets for foreign expenditures ore subject to change where extreme fluctuations in the value of the dollar occur. 
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Support Servic~s Persor:-nel 
Compensation Detail 

Im- ~ 2iQl ~ 
Percent 

Increase lnqeqse 
General Director • 

Salary ... 
Housing and Uhhties 
Social Security 
Retirement 
Insurance 

Total Cost of Employment 

33,438 
20,000 
81617 
21672 
5,430 

701157 

31,576 
24,000 
81962 
21n9 
5,974 

731291 

351799 
221000 
91321 
21890 
8,099 

781109 

351799 
221000 
9,321 
21890 

10,691 
80,700 

361694 
22,550 
9,554 
21962 

12,000 
831760 

895 
550 
233 

72 
1,309 
31060 

Director of Public Relations • 32,076 331840 33,840 34
1
686 846 

Salary 2181~~~ 12 000 12,000 121000 12,300 310085 
Housing ond Utllilies 6:450 7:108 7 ;J92 7 ;J92 7 :;n 

57 ~c!ol Secutrity 2 000 2,204 21292 1201269921 122,34,0090 1,309 
JN~etl~re~me~n~r=~~~~W,6~--6[.8,0~997-~8~,09~9 --~~~~~-~--~-~ Insurance 7,3 1-487 63 623 661215 681912 2,697 Total Cost ofEm lo ent 55 813 6 1 1 -

Director of Field Operations • 
25 000 Salary 1 

Housing and Utilities 151000 
Social Security 6,450 
Retirement 2,000 
Insurance 5,430 

Total Cost of Employment 53,881 

291on 
15,000 
711 08 
21204 
8,099 

611488 

301840 
15,000 
7,392 
21292 
8,099 

63,623 

301840 
15,000 
7,392 
21292 

10,691 
66,215 

281986 
18,000 
7,sn 
21349 

12,000 
68,912 

(11854) 
31000 

185 
57 

1,309 
2,697 

25% 
2.5% 
25% 
25% 

121% 
3.8% 

25% 
25% 
2.5% 
25% 

12.2% 
4.1% 

-6.0% 
20.0% 
25% 
25% 

121% 
4.1% 

Director of Stateside Development • 
30

,24o 30
1
240 30,996 756 25% 

Salary 261800 291on 15 600 151600 15,990 390 25% 
Housing ond Ufililies 13,200 1; :: 7~92 7 ;J92 7 :;n 185 ~~ 
~al Secutrity ~·: 21204 2,292 201269921 122,340009 1135097 12.2% 
,,rmremen ' 74 . 51,.,9~74~~1 ~' H:-~~''ijl'!--~. ~-----'f.1liiio1cr0 Jl~ns~urag!)n~ce.....---.--:==:=;--~5[i,43~0-5Q'5'ji9 12~ 1~J..:498 66,215 68,912 21697 TOtal Cost of Em lo ent 53 881 59,362 6 ' -

45,844 
7,305 
2,292 

844 461990 11146 25% 4~;305 71487 183 2.5% 
2 292 2,350 57 25% 

I 1~9 12.2% 8~9 63 0 
1 o,69~1...--_1~2,(~oo~o ---7f

21
ro
9
t
5 
-~4u_1~%;-66,132 681827 

301240 
151600 
7,392 
2,292 
3,110 

58,634 

30,240 
151600 
71392 
2,292 
4,105 

59,629 

Director of Member Care • 
0 0 

45
1
844 45,844 

Salary 0 0 71305 71305 
Social Security 0 0 2

1
292 2

1
292 

Retirement 0 N74 10,691 
.-!lns~u~ra~nc;,e ~r==:;::;t--.:...~ ----ioo- -z6 I 15 ---..661132 Tota ost o mp oyment 

*Vehicle Provided . cl d · · d rsonally 
Note: Medical insurance amount does not rn u e portion pal pe 
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301996 756 25% 
15,990 390 25% 
7,5n 185 25% 
2 349 57 25% 

I 895 21 .8% 5,000~--~~~3;;18)0JoJ~ 61 ,912 21283 . 70 

461990 
7,487 
21350 

121000 
.~ 

681827 

11146 
183 
57 

1,309 
2,695 

25% 
25% 
25% 

121% 
4.1% 



Sunday School and Church Training 
Service Board Report 

I became General Director of the Sunday School and Church Training 
DepartmenVRandall House Publications of the National Association of Free 
Will Baptists on January 1, 1994. My job has been to oversee the publishing 
wing of the denomination, which involved the production and printing of a 
complete Sunday school curriculum in both English and Spanish. We have 
over 40 denominations using the materials we publish. During my tenure we 
have printed nearly 1 00 books, which were made available to both the 
Christian bookstore and American bookstore markets. These products were 
sold through Ingram Distributors, Barnes and Noble, and Borders Books­
along with other large book chains. They are also available over the Amazon 
Internet Website. Over 50 of our titles have been placed into three electronic 
book formats. Our books were recently made available to the British 
Commonwealth through a print-on-demand company in London, England. 

My role was to forecast, govern, and budget for our department and 
make my reports to a board of nine members. I was involved in the daily 
role of the company's organization and work. 

Other chores involved speaking at District, State and National meetings 
and conducting workshops and seminars in local churches or conventions. 
Writing articles, etc., also contributed to a good portion of my time. 

The countless accomplishments made by our staff have been the source 
of most of my pleasure here and the following will relate to some of them: 

Leadership adjustment: I attempted to transfer to every manager the 
leadership over, and the responsibility for, his/her employees. The teamwork 
concept of leadership has been a drastic change, but has produced owner­
ship in their roles. I do not regret the move to this type approach to leadership 
because it will enable my successor a better opportunity to assume his role, 
since he will probably know little about each department from the beginning. 

I have a sincere appreciation for every manager, my assistant, and all 
employees that have helped bring Randall House to its present status. They 
have all done well. 

Equipment and technology updates: In 1994 our technology was lack­
ing. Since that time we purchased at least 50 computers with companion 
printers. Many scanners and color printers for proofing of work were pur­
chased to give our workers the tools needed to fulfill their job. It is difficult 
to determine the thousands of dollars required to purchase software to 
operate them or programs to develop and create our materials. 

We purchased a collator, a folder, three printing presses, an image­
setter, a film processor, and a plate processor in the printing division. 

A new computer mainframe and software to completely link all our 
departments with order processing was purchased and recently another new 
updated system replaced the original one in the Order Processing Department 

A direct-to-envelope addresser printer, new tabber, labeling machine, insert­
er, and shipping computer system was added to our Shipping Department 

We leased a large multi-purpose photocopier to aid in our clerical 
duties, which was placed in our workroom. 

We can rejoice today because we are on the cutting edge of technology. 
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e same amount of employees in 1994 ~ 
Personnel: We had ~bou~ber of long-term employees retire. Thetr 

we do now. W.~ .have ha a n umed b our new employees, and our 
production abtlities have ~een as~ell to rJ'ake up the differences. 
managers have had to tram ~em ts· Many offices were remodeled 

Building and grounds tmpr<;>Vemen . ets have been laid in the busi-
with most having new work stati~n~~tr~e offices. New flooring has been 
ness, editorial, ~oo~store an~ admia'I:ed the parapet, sealed the roof, paved 
put in th~ upstmrs kitche~. 1 e ~~ lift for the back dock, and added a n~w 
the parking lot,. P';fl"ch~e ~ oa urchased a new phone system and voice 
sign to the bwldmg.. e so p unication abilities. 
mail equipment btol gtive ulsl btheett~~~the backside of our property, which 

' 1 'e were a e o se vv• . . . al time 
gave us some.capital at a ~ntic fane~ road in front of our property as ~ur-

We continue to see signs ':m to plot its route. However, no time 
veyors and road workers con ue . 
schedule has been rel~sed by th: ctty. hich had shown a steep decrease, 

Sales and ~arketing: Our san~s~~sions. We began to market beyond 
began to slow With our changes th d that had not been previously used. 
ourselves using many other met o ~ allowed us to keep our unit produc-
They gave us many new accoun s an ti.ti. 

· 1 than our compe on. 
tion steady ~d ol!r pnces owerh developed a Randall House Website to 

UkeWtse, this department a~ be used as a medium to sell our prod­
inform our people of change~ and I~temet capabilities to download photos 
ucts. This also enable~ us tof ~:r companies to better our production. 
or connect to the semces 0 0 h agazine to share ideas for church 

They also developed O~treac d ~ campaigns to help our churches 
growth and included the spnng an 

with growth programs. b . . g we had only about five quarterlies 
Product changes: At my egmruns da School and Church Training 

with colore? c~:>Vers. To?ay, all ~f th~ll :C ou~ Sunday school courses have 
Service penodtcals are m ~ull co ?r. the exce tion of the Nursery and Pre-
been revised or newly wntten With . thep ro· ection to be done next. 
School departmen~ co';ll"sesd. Thedsethar~~w se~es 1called Destination Reality 

Our youth editor mtro uce e 

for youth workers. · bl owth during this same 
Randall Bookstore: The booksto~~:~~~nt ~ romputerized inventory 

period. We were able to purc~e ~ ~e ~eeded product was in stock. 
system allowing the clerks to. I ow~p software that would enable the clerk to 

Later we added electror:tc .00 , ehouse enabling the clerk to advise 
see if that product was in OlJ! ~trtbut~r s war These capabilities helped the store 
the customer we could ship rrnmediatettisfied customers. This service was 
sales to accelerate and creat~ ~ products were requested over our 
enhanced also when non-Ran £ 0~ed to the bookstore for additional ~es. 
WATS lines and these orders were o~ ailings to its marketing area, provtde 

The store also began to. do vanous m onsor teacher-worker seminars. 
book tables at selected functio~, :d =~caused us to have a continued 

Spanish adjustments: This ep fi st the iving free to all our Spanish 
obsolescence each year ~0 w; be~an h~ping t~ reduce our obsolescence 
speaking Free Will Baptist c u;-~e~~cing it fast enough to help, so with the 
that way. However, that was no 
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advice of our auditor we removed it from inventory accounting. 
We still continue to give curriculum to our Free Will Baptist Spanish 

speaking churches at about $8,000 dollars yearly. 
External Ministries: It was my privilege to conduct over 100 seminars 

and workshops and speak at numerous Sunday school conventions, and 
state and national conventions during my tenure here. 

We have a yearly extension of our ministry at FWBBC in both the 
Pastoral Theology classes and the Christian Education Department. 

We have seen a continued growth in the NYC and SCM ministries see­
ing much fruit from their outreach. 

We print Co-Laborer and Contact magazines at a savings to both 
organizations. We have provided complimentary printing for the 
Stewardship Commission, print Integrity for the Commission for 
Theological Integrity, and have printed and given free books to our Russian 
and Korean brethren. We have 16 books that are being translated in Korea 
and two in Russia. 

We print and distribute free the Free Will Baptist Yearbook for all our 
churches. 

On the last printing of Rejoice hymnal, Dr. Melvin Worthington and I 
signed an agreement allowing us to store and distribute it. We also print the 
Treatise for the Executive Department and sell it on a royalty basis. 

We established a Heritage scholarship at Free Will Baptist Bible 
College on behalf of Dr. Roger C. Reeds. 

We have given surplus curriculum to Russia, various mission fields, 
rescue mission and prison chaplains. 

We give free literature to all home missionaries who request it for one 
year who are under the auspices of the state or national home mission boards. 

We continue with a number of other co-operative programs with oth­
ers within the National Association. 

Randall House Publications is celebrating its 40th armiversary in 2002. 
In 1994 we didn't have a lot of money with a heavy long-term indebtedness, 

but ending 2001 we had no long-term debts and our financial picture is good. 
These years spent at Randall House Publications have been enjoyable. The 

staff are great people, and I enjoyed working with them and appreciate the efforts 
and work they have done to see Randall House continue. The Sunday School and 
Church Training Service Board has been great to work with. They have been ded­
icated to this ministry. I will always remember everyone's kindness to me. 

Alton Loveless 
1994-2002 
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Summary of the Minutes . . 
For the Sunday School and Church Traanang B~ard 
The Board had four meetings and a telephon~ conferenc~ ~ ~ ~=~ 
The first two meetings were held at the National AsSOCIJd on m est in the 

year.. . ded at the first meeting what resumes we wo requ 
Michigan. We dea Ge raJ Director In the second meeting we elected officers 
search for o~~e-;~~ee ass~ents. In our telephone confere~ce call we 

~ ~e candidates to interview for the posi~on of ~eneral ~rre~:twille 
e e The third meeting was held at the Leadership Co ere~cnge ~e Generai 

.th the employees at RHP concerru 
December 3-5. We ~et ~ ed didates for the position. We then selected 
Director search and mteTVIeW . can d three new writers for RHP. 
Rev. Ron Hunter for G:neral D~~~~o~t'ii!nd~[~~use Publications on April 29-

The fourth meeting was . 003 b dget We authorized the 
30, 2002. We approved the ;~1 a~:·~:~ 2 Th~ and appreciation was 
publishing of a new teac er ~ ru. ht ea'rs at the helm of Randall House. 
expressed to Dr. Loveless for his eig Y . d thanks and appreciation. 
Outgoing Chairman David Sutton also receive 
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Jndependent Auditors' Report 

Board of Directors 
Sunday School and Church Training Board 

and Randall House Publications 

B~twood E><ecub~ c.r..e 
761 Old HICkory Bou~nl 
Sw~206 
Bmttwood, lN 7Jf1X1 
TEL: 615/377·3485 

We have audited the balance sheets of Sunday School and Church Training Board and 
Randall House Publications as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the related 
statements of activity and changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended. 
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Board's management. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the 
audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also 
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We 
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of Sunday School and Church Training Board and 
Randall House Publications as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and changes in its net 
assets and cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

April 16, 2002 
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AY SCHOOL AND CHUROI TRAINING BOARD 
sUND AND RANDALL HOUSE PUBliCATIONS 

Balance Sheets 

December 31,2001 and 2000 

Assets 

(urrent assets: . 
('.ash and interest bearing depossts 
CertificateS of deposit . . 
(',ash invested with the Free WiU Bapttst FouodaUOD 

Accounts receivable: 
Trade, net of allowance for doubtful acrounts 

of$7,000 
Employees and other 

Total receivables 

Inventmy 
Deferred charges and prepaid expenses 

Total current assets 

Property, plant and equipment, at cost: 

l.;uld 

Building 
Printing service equipment 
Office and administrative equip~nt 

Automobiles and trucks 

· · d amortization Less accumulated deprecsatson an 

Net property, plant and equipment 

<Urrent liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses 

L~bilities and Net Assets 

Current portion of long term debt 
Due to affiliated organization 

Total current liabilities 

Unrestricted net assets 

Commitments 

See acrompanying notes to financial sta~nts. 

2 

A- 187 

2001 

s 242,423 

50,000 
278,547 

74,620 
7,183 

81,803 

431r158 
9,262 

1,093,393 

110r141 
730,228 
569,612 
584,281 

51,698 

2,046,160 
1,$41,161 

504,999 

s 1~98,392 

$ 74,178 
40,766 

1,087 

116,031 

1,482,361 

1,598,392 

2000 

200,716 
50,000 

166,704 

112,818 

5,600 

118,418 -- -·-
443,198 

4,053 

983,089 

110,341 

728,696 
569,612 
571,313 

51,698 

2,031,660 
1,436,782 

594,878 

1.577,967 ----

70,461 
42,461 

9,841 
7970 

130,733 ---
1,447,234 -
1,577,967 



SUNDAY SCHOOL AND CHUROI TRAINING BOARD 
AND RANDALL HOUSE PUBliCATIONS 
Statements of Activity and Changes in Net Assets 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 

Revenues: 
Net sales: 

Curriculum 
Randall House books 
Merchandise 
Vacation Bible School 
Bookstore 
Printing 
Other sales 

Net sales 
Freight and handling 
Other income 
Interest income 
Gain on sale of assets 
Commission income on hymnal sales 

Expenses: 
Cost of sales: 

Inventory at beginning of year 
Merchandise purchases 
Depreciation 
Editorial 
Printing production 
Spanish department 

Less invent>ry at end or year 

Selling, general and administrative: 
Administrative 
Bookstore 
Bookkeeping 
Building 
Sales and promotion 
Shipping 
General 
Depreciation 
Interest e:xpcnse, including finance charges 

Total expenses 

Incrc.asc in net assets from operations 
Other expenses: 

Printing contributed 1o the denominatioo 
Youth department 

Total other expenses 

Increase (decrease) in net assets 
Net assets, beginning of year 

Net assets, end of year 

See acoompanying notes to financial statements. 

J 

$ 
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2001 

$ 1,947,477 
86,747 
29,644 
27,536 

337,987 
97,565 
40,032 

- 2,566,988 
122,378 
77,026 
20,149 
1,162 

33,298 
2,821,001 

443,198 
356,180 
45,515 

332,157 
691,594 
28,882 

1,897,526 
431,358 

1,466,168 

132,321 
126,607 
207,031 
143,901 
175,318 
233,738 
83,985 
58,865 

64 

1,161,830 

2,627,998 
193,003 

34,217 
123,659 

157,876 

35,127 
1,447,2.14 

1.482.~(d 

~ 

1,987,219 
66,915 
18,515 
25,()()() 

322,8.14 
156,467 
43,917 

2,620,867 
117,504 
45,162 
. 9,562 

38,906 
2,832,001 

422,.136 
318,518 
39,742 

362,712 
744,607 
26,878 

1,914,803 
443,198 

1,471,605 

133,882 
115,565 
241,336 
129,906 
250,486 
223,188 
69,820 
66,224 
4296 

1.234,703 
2,706,308 

125,693 

36,458 
l5l784 

188,242 

(62,549) 

1.,~09,783 

1,447,234 

sUNDAy SCHOOL AND CHURCH TRAINING BOARD 
AND RANDALL HOUSE PUBliCATIONS 

Statements of Cash Flows 

r'Or the Years Ended December 3 1, 2001 and 2000 

C.ash flows from Operating Activities 2001 

Increase (decrease) in net assets . 
$ 35,127 

Adjustments to reconcile increase {decrease) m net assets 

10 net operating activities 
104,380 Depreciation and amortization 

(Increase) decrease in: 
36,615 

Receivables 
11,840 

Inventories 
(5,209) Deferred charges and prepaid expenses 

Increase (decrease) in: 
3,717 

Accounts payable 
(1,695) 

Accrued expenses 
(6,883) Due 1o affiliated organization 

Net operating activities 177,892 

Cash flows from I.Dvesting Activities 

Cash invested with Free Will Baptists Foundati:>n 
(111,844) 

(14,500) 
Purchase of property, plant and equipnent 

Net investing activities (126,344) 

Cash Flows from F'mancing Activities 

Repayments of long term debt 
(9,841) 

Net financing activities (9,841) 

Net increase (decrease) in cash 41,707 

Cash at beginning of year 
200,716 

C'..asb at end of year $ 242,423 

Supplemental disclosures: 
Interest, including finanoo charges paid $ ====64:=::: 

See accompanying notes to fmancial statements. 
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2000 

(62,549) 

105,966 

10,327 
(20,862) 

9,411 

(322) 
1,851 
6,498 

50,320 

(16,704) 
{134,755) 

(151,459) 

(85,159) 

(85,159) 

(186,298) 

387,014 

200,716 

4,296 



SUNDAy SCHOOL AND CHURCH TRAIN1N 
AND RANDALL HOUSE PUBUCATIO<;,.:OARD 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2001 and 2000 

'fbc Boord operates under the auspices of the National A~--"- . 
Board of Directors ~aation of Free Will Baptists and . 

· as governed by a 

(I) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The Board adheres to the provisions o f Statement f Fi . 
~Uitemc~ts of NoK oH7o{it Organizations". Undcro SF:;ncJal Stan~ (SFAS~ No. 117 "Financial 
anfo~Jon regarding its finandal position and activities No. 1 ~ 7, the Board IS required to repon 
unrestricted net assets; temporarily restric•--' I aceording to Lhree classes of net asset . 
dd ·1· the . """ nc assets· and ""'nnane 11 • s. a 1 JOn, Board is rPL•uirod to ' r- 0 Y restricted net assets if 

. ~ present a statement of cash flows. ' any. Jn 

Accrual Basis 

'Inc financial statements of the Board ha bee 
vc n prepared on the accrwJ basis of aco:>untin 

Inventories g. 

Inventories are stated the 
at lower of cost or market 'th . 

fars1-out method. ' WJ COSt bcmg determined by use of the first-in, 

Pro~rty, Plant and Equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are stated t 
and betterments that do not . 'fi a cost Expenditures for maintenance and ......,.;,.., waJ 

. . . . . stgm acantly extend the useful .lives --r--~. rene s, 
DepreaatJon IS provtded usmg the straighHine method of assets are expense<~ as incwred. 

Income Taxes 

The Boord is exe~Jllt from Federal and stat . 
de · e mcane taxes· acco di 1 ma 10 the accounts. • r ng y, no provision for income taxes is 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

~r pu~scs of the statement of cash flows the . 
haghly hquid debt instruments pure!..----' .• ~ ~.rd consadcn! all cash funds, cash bank accounts and 

h . ~ WILU an onginal maturity f ,~.. _ _ 
cas equiValents. 0 u•n:c months or Jess to be cash and 

Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements . 
affect · reqwres management to mak ,; __ ,_ 

ccrtnjn reported amounts and disclosures . e cs ... ,"""'s and as..'>umptions that 
estimates. . 1\ccordmgly, actuaJ results could differ from those 

Changes in presentation 

Certain amounts in the 2000 Ci • 1 mancta statements have been reclass 'fed 
t J to conform to 2001 presentation. 

5 
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SUNDAY SCHOOL AND CHURCH TRAINING BOARD 
AND RANDALL HOUSE PUBUCATIONS 

Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

'The carrying value of cash, accounts receivable, inventory, accounts payable and accrued expenses 

approximate fair value because of the short maturity of the instruments. The canying values of liabilities 

arc not materially different from the estimated fair value of these instruments. 

(2) Concentration of Credit Risk 

The Roard is a distributor of Bible based Sunday school and church training curriculum, and other 
denominational publications. "Jlle l3oard extends credit to its customers which consist primarily of Free 

Will Baptist churches and religbus bookstores. These aceowtts are not collateralized and are subject to 

accounting risk of loss amounting to the out~Ulnding balance at any point in time. FUrther, funds invested 
with the Free Will Bap~1 Foundatnl in the amoont of $278,547 arc subject to risk o f accounting loss. 
Cash and certificates of deposit deposited in a local bank are insured by the FD.I.C. up to a maximum of 

$100,000. From time to time throughout the year, the Board's cash balances exceed the amount of I'DIC 
insur.mcc covemge. ' (be l3oard, however does not anticipale nonperformance by the financial 

institutions. 

(3) Agreement with Affiliated Organization to Distribute Hymnals 

During the year ended November 30, 1995 the Board agreed to wareoouse and distribute hymnals for the 

Executive Board of the NatiooaJ Association of Free Will Baptists. There are two types o f hymnaJs being 

warehoused and distributed by the Board; The Free Will Baptist Hymn Bcx.lk, Rejoice, and The Rejoice 
Hymn Book for the Oturch at Worship. 

The Free Will Baptist J lymn Book, Rejoice 

The Board will invoice the customer, collect funds and remit $6.32 to the Exerutive Board. As of 

December 31, 2001 the Board was wareboosing approximately 23,000 hymnals with an estimated 
replacement value of $113,000. The following summarizes the tra!l'!actions under this agreement as of 

December 31, 200 1. 

Since 
2001 Inception 

Amount due to Exerulive Office at beginning of period $ 7,970 

Total sales o f hymnals 62,648 627,002 
Less total fees earned (33,298) (317,663) 

Less remittances made to the Exerutive Office (36,233) (308,252} 

1087 Amount due to (from) Executive Office at end of period $ ====':!!::::::::'= 1.087 

JDc Rejoice Hy_m.n Book for lhe Olurcb of Worship 

1be Board will warehouse and distribute these hymnals and receive a commission of 5% plus costs of 

shipping per hymnal. As of December 31, 2001 the Board was warehousing approximately 2,300 
hymnaJs with an estimated replacement value of S 17,000. 
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SUNDAY SCHOOL AND CHURCH TRAINING BOARD 
AND RANDALL HOUSE PUBUCATIONS 

Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

(4) Pension 
'fhe Board participates in the master pension plan of the Board of Retirement and lnswanre of the 

National Association of Free WiiJ Baptists. The plan is contnbutory and is matched up to a ma:rcimum of 

5% of compensation. Employees with two years of service may participate. Pension expense omounled 

to $32,443 and $32,459 for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The pension 
plan is a defmed contribution plan. Under the plan, an account is maintained for each participant and 

upon retirement the participant can ei1her receive a Jump-sum distribution or purchase one of several 
types of annuity contracts. 

(5) Note Payable 

(6) 

(1) 

(8) 

The Board had a note payable with interest at 8.00%, with an outstanding balance at December 31, 2000 

of $9,841. This note was xcpaid during 2001. 

Youth Department 
1he purpose of the Youth Department is to provide ministries and services to youth and youth workers of 
the Association. 'Jhe following is a summary of the department's activities: 

Revenue from conferences and rela1ed services 

Expenditures for conferences and related services 
General and administrative expenses 

Total expenditures 

Excess of expenses over revenues 

~ontributed Services to Denominational Ministries 

2001 

177,406 

180,514 
120,551 

301,065 

(12.1,659) 

2000 

145,119 

154,027 

142,876 

296,903 

(151,784} 

During the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 the Board contributed printing costs to the 
Denomination as follows: 

Commitments 

Integrity 13ook 
Oturch Directay 
Outreach Magazine 
Together Way 

Korean Books 
Russian Books 

Total contributed services 

$ 
15,291 

17,068 

1,858 

$ 34,217 

2000 

6,142 

15,690 

12,666 

I ,.'i82 
378 

36,458 

'!he Board leases an autoroobile and equipment under noncanceUable leases. Minimum annual rentals 

under noncancelable operating leases are summarized as follows: $9,568 in 2002; $5,088 in 2003 and 
2004. 
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Budget 
2003 

RfVENUES 
Total Sales . ... ......... .. ........ . .. . .... . 

$ 3,224,863.52 

Other Income 
Freight & Handling .. · · .. · · · · · · · ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ 
Commission on Hymnals · · : · · · · · · 
Student and Children Ministnes · · · · · · · ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ 

135,000.00 
75,000.00 

190,000.00 
20,000.00 

Miscellaneous Income .. ..... . .... . . 

. . . . . . . . . $ 3,644,863.52 
Total Revenues . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 

COST OF SALES 

Cost of Outside Purchases · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ 
Creative Services . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . . . . 
Printing Production · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ~ ~ ~ ... . . . . . . 
Spanish . . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 

Total Cost of Sales Expenses · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . . 

$ 327,000.00 
390,200.00 
813,600.00 

5,000.00 
$ 1,535,800.00 

GENERAL EXPENSES $ 
Student and Children Ministries · · · · · · · ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ . . . . . . . . . . 
Sales D1v1S10n · · · · · · · · · · · · · 
Bookstore . . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . . ~ 
Denominational Ministries · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 
Administration · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · .. 
Accounting . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . . . . 
Shipping . . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . .. .. 
Building . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . . . . . . $ 

306,500.00 
277,300.00 
139,800.00 
108,200.00 
151,500.00 
241 ,100.00 
272,100.00 
189,100.00 
297,700.00 

General Expenses . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . 
. .... . . $ 1,983,300.00 

TOTAL GENERAL EXPENSES · · · .• . ......• . .... 

$ 3 ,519,100.00 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
GRAND TOTAL OF ALL EXPENSES 

.... . . $ 3 ,644,863.52 
TOTAL REVENUES · · · · · • · · · • . . . . . • . . . . . . . . . 

$ 125,763.52 
WoRKING CAPITAL .. .. · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 
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2 546 Learners Student 1 . 
2 .60 61619.60 

Bud~et 2003 4 .25 21592.50 

Sunday Sc ool Literature 
16 1 0 Adventurers Leader s GUide 2.60 71883.20 

Quantity Description Cost 
3 032 Adventurers Stu~ent 14.95 91717.50 

Revenue 
1650 Destination Reahty 221701 .25 2 .75 

41376 Nursery Teacher 4 .25 181598.00 8 255 Focus Student 2.60 21 l463.00 

171245 Make N Do 2.60 441837.00 s:255 Lifeline Student 

131607 My Bible Lesson Cards 2.60 351378.20 
Total c. T. S. Literature Sales 

$ 941758.80 

41424 Nursery-Preschool Flgraph 10.50 461452.00 
21534 Nursery-Preschool Teaching Pid 10.50 261607.00 Total Sunday School and C. T. S. Sales 

$ 217661863.52 

81285 Preschool Teacher 4.25 351211.25 
231169 Preschool Student 2 .60 601239.40 $ (4401000.00) 

34,435 Preschool Companion 2 .60 891531 .00 Less Discounts to Bookstores 

231182 Picture Lesson Cards 2 .60 601273.20 
Grand Total Literature Sales 

$ 213261863.52 

61898 Bible Times 2 .99 201625.02 
101554 Primary Teacher 2 .25 231746.50 
381726 Primary Student 2.60 1001687.60 OTHER SALES & INCOME $ 201000.00 

481382 Primary Companion 2.60 1251793.20 Spanish Curriculum 901000.00 

21982 Memory Verse Poe 9 .99 291790.18 RHP Books 501000.00 

91599 Primary Days 2.99 281701.01 Merchandise 381000.00 

31522 Primary-Junior Flgraph 10.50 361981.00 Bulletin Service 4001000.00 

31179 Primary-Junior Teaching Pid 10.50 331379.50 Bookstore Sales 1801000.00 

11 1910 Junior Teacher 4 .25 501617.50 Printing Sales 1201000.00 

541999 Junior Student 2 .60 1421997.40 Miscellaneous Sales 

521102 Junior Companion 2 .60 1351465.20 $ 8981000.00 

7,472 Junior Counselor 2 .99 221341.28 Total Other Sales & Income $ 312241863.52 

51112 Turning Point Teacher 4 .25 211726.00 Total All Sales 

11884 Turning Point Packet 10.50 191782.00 
231822 Turning Point Student 2 .60 61 1937.20 Other Income $ 1351000.00 

121785 Teen Power 2 .99 381227.15 Freight & Handling 751000.00 

71278 Horizon Teacher 4 .25 301931 .50 
Commission on Hymnals 1901000.00 

21388 Horizon Packet 10.50 251074.00 
Student and Children Ministries 201000.00 

361570 Horizon Student 2 .60 951082.00 Miscellaneous Income 

39,864 Bible Teacher 4.25 1691422.00 $ 420l000.00 

131946 Bible Challenge 2.60 361259.60 Total Other Income 

171506 Visitor's Lesson Leaflets 2.60 451515.60 $ 3,644,863.52 

41917 Power For Living 2 .99 141701 .83 TOTAL REVENUE 

181075 Depth 2.60 461995.00 3,000.00 
90,860 Bible Scholar 2 .60 2361236.00 Expenses Equipment & Maintenance 

1,000.00 
237,776 Bible Scholar LP 2.75 6531884.00 

Color Separations 
(OST OF 0U1SIDE PURCHASES 500.00 

352 Bible Teacher Cassette 22.95 81078.40 s 62,000.00 Freelance Artwork 
Curriculum 2,500.00 

Total Sunday School Literature Sales 216721104.72 15,000.00 Conventions & Seminars 
Merchandise 300.00 

250,000.00 Dues & Subscriptions 
Bookstore 300.00 

C. T. S. Literature s 327,000.00 Postage 2,100.00 
Quantity Description CQst Revenue OOTM SERVICES 

Telephone 19,200.00 

370 Helpers Leader's Guide 4 .25 Salaries s 230,000.00 FICA 12,000.00 
1 r572 .50 33,000.00 Retirement 

11084 Helpers Packet 4.25 Housing 46,400.00 
41607.00 4,000.00 Insurance 

535 Discovers Leader's Guide 4.25 Travel 900.00 
2,273.75 9,000.00 Miscellaneous 

2,294 Discovers Packet 5.50 12,617.00 Supplies s 390,200.00 
1,000.00 

638 Learners Leader's Guide 4.25 2,711 .50 
Curriculum Development 

25,000.00 Writers' Fees 
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PRINTING PRODUCTION NYC 2003 Salaries s 60,000.00 DENOMINATIONAL MINISTRIES SHIPPING 175,000.00 Truth & Peace 2003 Travel 55,000.00 Outreach Magazine s 22,000.00 Salaries s 92,500.00 
500.00 NYET 2003 Pressroom Supplies 5,500.00 Free Will Baptist Yearbook 20,000.00 Supplies 20,000.00 

22,000.00 Fund Raising Expense Pressroom Equip. Moint/Ports 12,000.00 1,000.00 Spanish Uterature Gifts 8,000.00 Equipment Maintenance 3,000.00 
Notional Student & Pressroom Stock Stewardship lessons 8,000.00 Equipment Rental 10,000.00 

120,000.00 Children Workers' Retreat 2003 Pressroom Ink 12,000.00 35,000.00 Together Way Printing 3,000.00 Freight 110,000.00 
Conventions & Seminars Bindery Supplies 6,000.00 300.00 Korean PrinHng 1,000.00 Postage 6,200.00 
Dues & Subscriptions Bindery MointenancEVPorts 3,500.00 400.00 Russian Printing 1,000.00 Telephone 2,100.00 
Postage Outside PrinHng 3,200.00 CE Church Training Team 43,200.00 FICA 6,800.00 

410,000.00 Telephone General Supplies 4,200.00 Scholarships 1,000.00 Retirement 3,200.00 1,500.00 FICA Telephone 2,100.00 Retirement 
7,100.00 RHP Ministers' Fund 1,000.00 Insurance 18,000.00 

FICA 3,000.00 s 108,200.00 Miscellaneous 300.00 12,500.00 Insurance Retirement 15,000.00 s 272,100.00 8,000.00 Miscellaneous 
ADMINISTRATM 

Insurance 3,000.00 Salaries s 76,000.00 BUILDING 26,000.00 T & P2 2003 Camero Supplies 2,500.00 16,000.00 Housing Allowance 28,000.00 Salaries s 51,500.00 
Camero MaintenoncEVParts s 306,500.00 In-house Printing 1,200.00 Housing 0.00 1,600.00 SAW DMSION Camero Film-Negatives Entertainment 1,200.00 Supplies 9,000.00 17,000.00 Salaries Plotey'Supplies s 52,000.00 Travel 12,000.00 Equipment Maintenance 5,000.00 

11,000.00 Housing In-House Printing (1 00,000.00) 14,000.00 Auto Expense 1,600.00 Building Maintenance 25,000.00 
Entertainment Depreciation 300.00 Auto lease 7,000.00 UHiities 55,000.00 70,000.00 Travel Dues & Subscripnons 5,000.00 Supplies 2,000.00 Insurance (Building) 25,000.00 

100.00 Supplies Miscellaneous 6,000.00 Equipment Maintenance 100.00 Telephone 2,100.00 
300.00 Advertising & Promonon 

$ 813,600.00 35,000.00 Equipment Rental 1,500.00 FICA 3,800.00 
Printing & Color Separations SPANISH 600.00 Conventions & Seminars 300.00 Renrement 2,400.00 

Salaries $ 0.00 
In-house PrinHng 85,000.00 Dues & Subscriptions 300.00 Insurance 10,000.00 
Dues & Subscripfions Travel 0.00 1,800.00 Postage 2,000.00 Miscellaneous 300.00 
Postage Supplies 40,000.00 Telephone 2,200.00 s 189,100.00 

0.00 Telephone Equipment Maintenance 2,000.00 FICA 2,200.00 GENERAL ExPENsES 0.00 FICA Redesign 2,300.00 Retirement 4,600.00 Auto Expense s 3,500.00 
0.00 Retirement Translotiorv'Editing 2,800.00 Insurance 9,000.00 Supplies 2,200.00 5,000.00 Insurance Postage 16,000.00 Miscello neous 300.00 Equipment Maintenance 6,000.00 
0.00 Convennons & Seminars Telephone 6,500.00 s 151,500.00 Equipment Rental 14,000.00 
0.00 Miscellaneous FICA 8 000.00 CUSTOMER SERVICE/ACCOUNTING/ BUSINESS OFFICE Equipment/lease/Purchase 75,000.00 
0.00 

Retirement 0.00 BOOKSTORE 
$ 277,300.00 Salaries s 155,000.00 Bod Debt 2,000.00 

Insurance Royalties 8,000.00 Boord Travel & Expense 15,000.00 
0.00 Salaries Dues & Subscriptions $ 90,000.00 Equipment Rental 400.00 legal & Audinng 11,000.00 
0.00 Entertainment Miscellaneous 100.00 Supplies 8,000.00 Taxes 16,000.00 
0.00 Travel s 5,000.00 Supplies 

2,000.00 Equipment Maintenance 3,000.00 Payroll Services 7,000.00 
Total Cost of Sales s 1,535,800.00 2,500.00 Dues & Subscriptions 200.00 Debt Renrement 50,000.00 

In-House Prinnng 300.00 Postage 5,700.00 Miscellaneous 10,000.00 
Software Yearly Feey'Services 

General Expenses 4,000.00 Telephone 5,000.00 Depreciation 75,000.00 
Postage 

STUDEifl' AND CHILDREN MINISTRIES 3,500.00 FICA 13,000.00 Interest Expense 5,000.00 
Telephone Salaries S 58,000.00 2,200.00 ReHrement 4,000.00 Service Charge Expense _QJ!OO.OO 
FICA Housing Allowance 7,000.00 Insurance 36,000.00 s 297/00.00 15,500.00 Renrement Convention Workers' Salaries 2,800.00 Travel 1,500.00 TOTAL GENERAL ExPENSES s 1,983,300.00 7,500.00 Insurance Entertainment 20,000.00 In-house PrinHng 1,000.00 300.00 Advertising & Promotion Travel 6,000.00 4,500.00 Miscellaneous 300.00 

Supplies Dues & Subscriptions 500.00 
-

7,500.00 s 241,100.00 
In-House Printing Miscellaneous 400.00 3,000.00 s 139,800.00 
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Nursery Teacher 
Teacher's Resource Packet 
Pupil's Handwork 
Bible lesson Cards 
Preschool Teacher 
Teacher's Resource Pocket 
Preschool Student 
Preschool Workbook 
Picture Lesson Cords 
Primary Teacher 
Visual Pocket 
Primary Student 
Primary Workbook 
Memory Verse Pocket 
Junior Teacher 
Visual Pocket 
Junior Student 
Junior Workbook 
Teen Teacher 
Visual Pocket 
Teen Student 
Teen Workbook 
High Teen Teacher 
Visual Packet 
High Teen Student 
High Teen Workbook 
Ufeline (Teen DevoHonal) 
Bible Teacher (Young Adults} 
Bible Challenge 
Bible Teacher 
Bible Scholar 
Bible Scholar Lorge Print 
Depth (Adult Devotional) 
Visual Pocket 
Visitor Lesson Leaflet 

SP 
5.29 

10.99 
2.99 
2.99 
5.29 

10.99 
3.19 
2.99 
0.00 
5.29 

10.99 
3.19 
0.00 
0.00 

_2.29 
10.99 
3.19 
0.00 
5.29 

~.99 
2.99 
0.00 
5.29 
0.00 
5.59 
0.00 
4.49 
5.59 
0.00 
5.29 
2.99 
4.19 
0.00 

10.99 
0.00 

Cost Comparisons 2002 

GL ST ••uGP AY 
4.99 5.29 

T 
0.00 5.29 

12.99 11.99 0.00 11.99 
2.89 2.99 0.00 3.19 
3.99 0.00 0.00 0.00 
4.99 5.29 1.45 5.59 

12.99 11.99 0.00 11.99 
0.00 0.00 1.50 3.19 
2.89 2.99 0.00 2.99 
0.00 2.29 0.85 0.00 
4.99 4.99 1.45 5.59 

10.99 11.99 6.25 11.99 
0.00 0.00 1.50 3.19 
2.89 2.99 0.00 2.99 
0.00 0.00 .0.00 .. 0.00 
4.99 4.99 1.45 4.25 

10.99 11 .99 6.25 0.00 
0.00 0.00 1.70 3.30 
2.89 2.99 0.00 3.30 

16.99 4.99 1.55 5.30 
0.00 11.99 0.00 0.00 
0.00 2.99 1.70 3.40 
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

16.99 4.99 1.75 5.30 
0.00 11.99 0.00 0.00 
0.00 2.99 1.70 3.40 -
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
0.00 ·-j).OO 0.00 0.00 
0.00 - f-- 0.00 1.85 5.30 
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

19.99 5.29 3.80 5.30 
6.99 2.99 1.85 3.80 
0.00 3.99 J.OO 4.50 
0.00 2.49 0.00 0.00 
0.00 11.99 0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 0.00 3.15 

DCC GR RHP 
5.59 14.99 I 4.00 

11.99 19.99 I 9.9r 
2.99 0.00 2."4f 
0.00 0.00 2.4f 
5.59 7.99 4.00'-

11.99 19.99 9.99 
3.19 4.29 2.~ 
2.99 0.00 I 2.~ 
0.00 0.00 2.40 
5.59 7.99 4.00 

11.99 19.99 9.99 
3.19 4.29 2.49-
2.99 0.00 i 2.4Q_ 
0.00 0.00 8.99 
5.59 7.99 4.00 

11.99 19.99 9.99 
2.99 4.29 2.4g_ 
0.00 0.00 I 2.40_ 
5.29 19.99 4.00 

11.99 0.00 9.9~-
2.99 0.00 2.55 
0.00 0.00 ... O.QO_ 
5.29 19.99 4.00_ 

11 .99 0.00 9.99 
2.99 0.00 2,~ 
0.00 0.00 ···o.oo 
0.00 0.00 ·2.40 
5.79 17.99 4.QQ_ 
0.00 0.00 ~.40 
5.79 17.99 4.QQ_ 
3.19 0.00 2.40_ 
3.69 0.00 2_.ML 
2.99 0.00 2.4!L 

11.99 0.00 0.00 
1 2.99 0.00 2.40 

SP = Scripture Press Gl = Gospel Ught ••uGP = Union Gospel Press ST = Standard 
AY = FWB Press DCC = David C. Cook RHP = Randall House PublicaHons GR = Group Publishing 

*Produced only by Randall House. 

••1n order for a price comparison to be accurate one needs to make a visual comparison. For instance it may appear that 
Union Gospel Press has lower prices than us or others, but they generally run quite a few pages shorter in their publications. 

•**The Teen course student book contains both the former student book and handbook. This gives you both books for the 
price of one. 

Please note that most companies ore charging for more for their products than Randall House Publications. Save money, 
receive quality, and preserve sound doctrine by purchasing your literature from Randall House Publications. 
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Salaries 

2001 2002 2003 
General Diredor s 39,307.15 s 39,307.15 s 33,467.73 

Salary 24,341.26 24,341.26 26,709.48 
Housing and Utilities 4,869.10 4,869.10 0.00 
Social Security 3,432.00 3,117.40 3,117.40 
Retirement 
Insurance: 375.12 375.12 436.43 

Disability 6,500.00 7,98314 4,464.00 
Medical 765.36 765.36 765.3.L 
Dental s 79,275.39 s 80,758.63 s 69,275.00 

(The Board either pays mileage or furnishes a travel cor.) 

Creative Services Diredor s 26,719.23 s 27,520.80 s 25,941.88 
Salary 19,352.11 18,241 .23 18,788.46 
Housing Allowance 3,380.01 3,481 .28 3,632.65 
Social Security 2,015.00 2,015.00 2,015.00 
Retirement 
Insurance: 164.76 164.76 164.76 

Ufe 6,500.00 7,983.24 7,983.24 
Medical 765.36 765.36 765.36 
Dental 270.24 270.24 270.24 -
Disability s 61,704.16 s 57,278.48 s 60,187.57 

Student and Children Ministries Diredor s 19,951 .40 s 22,387.77 
Salary 

s 19,370.30 
14,832.00 14,832.00 14,832.00 

Housing Allowance 2,616.47 2,740.75 2,847.31 
Social Security 1,560.00 1,560.00 1,560.00 
Retirement 
Insurance: 85.20 85.20 8510 

Ufe 6,500.00 7,983.24 7,983.24 
Medical 765.36 765.36 765.36 
Dental 18.00 18.00 18.00 
long-term Care 217.92 217.92 217.92 
Disability s 45,965.25 s 48,153.87 s 50,696.80 
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Commission for Theological Integrity 
Report 

The pUipOse of this commission is: (1) To alert our people to theological 
trends that could threaten our theological integrity as a denomination, (2) To pre­
pare materials that will contribute to the continued preservation of the theologi­
cal integrity of the denomination, and (3) As need and opportunity arise, to con­
duct seminars on subjects which are pertinent to the pUipOse of the commission. 

On November 5-6, 2001, we sponsored our sixth annual Theological 
Symposium It met at Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College in Moore, Oklahoma 
Papers were read on a variety of subjects. But the main focus was on 
Arrninianism vs. CaMnism Many thought that it was the best Theological 
Symposium to date. We continue to be encouraged by the quality of the papers 
that are read in our Symposiums. The Theological Symposium for 2002 will be 
conducted at Free Will Baptist Bible College in Nashville, Tennessee. It will begin 
Monday evening, November 4, and go through Tuesday evening, November 5. 

At the National Association in 2000, we introduced the first issue of Integrity: 
A Journal of Christian Thought. The publication of this journal is a joint venture of 
the Commission for Theological Integrity, Free Will Baptist Bible College, Hillsdale 
Free Will Baptist College, and Randall House Publications. Our second issue will 
be coming out later this year. Paul Harrison is serving as editor. It is our opinion 
that the production of Integrity is one of the best steps that The Commission for 
Theological Integrity has taken. It was enthusiastically received by our people. We 
are looking forward to this next issue. 

For several years we have been sponsoring a seminar at our National 
Association on areas of concern. In recent years, what is referred to as "The 
Openness of God" or "Free Will Theism" has gained considerable attention. 
At this year's National Association, we are addressing that area of concern. 
Ron Callaway will be conducting a seminar: "Does God Know the Future?" 
In the past, our seminars have been conducted on Tuesday afternoon from 
I :30-3:00. This year, our seminar will be conducted on Tuesday morning 
from 8:30- I 0:00. It will be in the Convention Center in the East Hall. 

We thank you for the privilege of serving you. 

In His Service, 

Leroy Forlines, Chairman 
Paul Harrison, Secretary 
Daryl Ellis 
Jeff Manning 
Matt Pinson 
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Financial Report 

Bank Balance- January 1' 2001 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

INCOME 

Commission Income: 
The Together Way 
Interest on Bank Account . 
Reg ish a lion Fees for Theological Symposium 

Total Commission Income 

Journal Income: 
From Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College 
Other Gifts 
From Sale of Journal 

Total Journal Income 

Total Income 

ExPENSES 

Commission Expenses: 
Bookkeeping 
Convention Speaker/Digest of Reports 
Annual 1-keting and Symposium Expenses 
Miscellaneous Office Expenses 

Total Commission Expenses 

Journal Expenses 

Total Expenses 

3,116.41 
30.26 

340.0Q_ 

3,486.67 

1,500.00 
70.00 
72.00 

1,642.00 

200.00 
402.31 

2,570.06 
7.14 

3,179.51 

0.00* 

5,007.04 

5,128.67 

Bank Balance - December 31, 2001 . . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 

3,179.51 

6,956.20 

*There were no Journal expenses because the expenses will not occur until 

the Journal is produced in 2002. 
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Income: 

Together Way 
For Integrity:* 

2003 Budget 

F~ee ~ill Baptist Bible College 
Registration Fees for Theological Sym osium 
Interest Income p 

Total Income 

Expenses: 

Annual Meeting 
Pub!icotion of Integrity 
Not1onol Convention 
Theological Symposium 
Bookkeeping 
Office 

Total Expenses 

3,000.00 

1 ,500.00** 
450.00 

50.00 

2,225.00 
3 ,000.00 

500.00 
450.00 
200.00 
125.00 

5,000.00 

6,500.00 

* The statement of income and the statement of 
and distribution of Integrity do not reflect th ~~nses for the publication 
printing and binding nor assistance in th e ~01• ntn uflon of Randall House for 

e mal ~ng cost by the Executive Office. 

** It will be noted that a contribution of $1 500 0 . . 
Report for 2001 wh' h · ' . · 0 was l1sted 1n the Financial 

IC was grven on the previous po AI h' . . 
why the "Expenses" are $1 500 00 h . ~e. s~, t IS wlfl expla1n 
already have this money in 'our ~cco~~;e t an antiCipated Income since we 
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Media Commission 
The Media Commission experienced many different emotions in 

2001 . The excitement of new products was evident again as we released 
He Keeps Me Singing: A Free Will Baptist Gathering. 

This video/CO/cassette package has thrilled the hearts of our Free 
Will Baptist family with stirring music and a look into the lives of some Free 
Will Baptists who have made our heritage so special. Many thanks to Scott 
Bullman for his hard work in directing this project for us. 

We continue to provide commercial products for TY, radio, and print 
media as well as logo and stationary design. The Church Video Brochure 
is also available and is one of the best tools on the market to show who 
Free Will Baptists are and what we believe. It is also available in a generic 
form as well as the customized version for your local church. 

The Media Commission has partnered with a group to provide cus­
tom web design for your church. ln this agreement, individuals may also 
utilize filtered internet service at a rate competitive with other ISP's. For in­
formation on this and any of our products, please feel free to call 1-615-731-
6812 or visit our web site at www.fwbmedia.com . 

We, along with the denomination, also mourn the loss of Commis­
sion member Bill Gardner who went home to be with the Lord in June 
200 I. An endowment has been set up and named in his honor to continue 
some of these dreams he worked so hard to see realized. 

Another hard working Commission member, Ron Hunter, has recent­
ly accepted the position as general director of Randall House Publications. 
Because of this, he has tendered his resignation from the Media Commis­
sion effective in early 2002. His replacement will be elected at the National 
Convention meeting in Memphis, Tennessee in July. 

The Media Commission receives one-half of one percent (.5%) of the 
undesignated Together Way funds. While this is insufficient to operate effect­
ively, we are grateful for those who have chosen to give to this ministry and 
utilize these products. That is what makes it possible to produce more for the 
Lord and Free Will Baptists. 

Thank you for allowing us to serve God 2003 Proposed Budget 
while serving Free Will Baptists. May His bless­
ings continue to shine on the Free Will Baptist 
denomination as we strive to work together for 
the building of His Kingdom. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Steve Faison (VA), Chairman 
Doug Kite (NC), Sec(freasurer 
Mike Jones (SC) 
Kevin Norris (MI) 
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Projected Income 
Together Way 
Sole of Product 
Services 
Designated 

Total 

Projected Expense 

s 2,500 
5,000 
2,000 

500 
s 10,000 

Promotion S l, 000 
Commission Expenses 2,000 
Convention Expenses 2,000 
Projects 5,000 

Total S 10,000 



-

FWB Music Commission Report 
National Association of Free Will Baptists 

July 21-25, 2002 

The Music Commission has been active in planning the music for the 2002 
national convention in Memphis, Tennessee. The commission held its annual 
meeting at riiSt FWB Church in Gastonia, North Carolina, on January 10-11, 2002. 
Our agenda at this meeting, as presented by Dr. Randy Sawyer, was as follows: 

1. Plan the whole music program for the 2002 National Association 
2. Discuss plans for a new hymnal 
3. Discuss future projects and vision 

I. 2002 National Convention 
A. Evaluated the 2001 convention 
B. Planned 2002 Convention 

- Sunday Evening: Homecoming Service 
- Monday Evening: Patriotic Service 
-Wednesday Evening: Missions Services 

II. Hymnal Discussion 
A. The NAFWB voted last year to investigate the possibilities of pub­

lishing a new hymnal. 
B. The commission voted that before we before we proceed any further, 

we should send out a survey to the denomination to get a per­
spective of its needs. 

For Example: 
Are churches buying hymnals? If so, what kind? 
Will our constituency pay the bill? 
With the current market, will other churches buy our hymnal vs. 

ones like the Celebration Hymnal? 
Will enough FWB churches buy enough hymnals to pay for the 

project? 
Would those who use hymnals buy a new one? Or did they just 

now buy Rejoice? 
How would we market this outside Free Will Baptists? 
Who would publish the hymnal? 
Do we need to orchestrate it? 
What if we did just a supplement to Rejoice? Within this supple­

ment we provide some medleys with orchestrations and mod­
ulations could be provided. 

Notes from conversation with Dr. Melvin Worthington concerning hymnal: 
1. We could develop a revised hymnal. The idea of a supplement or a 

revision may be a good idea. 
2. He is in favor of a survey. There were approximately 1,500 surveys 

filled out for the Rejoice Hymnal survey. 
3. As of January 2002, the Executive Office had sold almost 200,000 

copies of Rejoice. 

Notes from conversation with Dr. Vernon Whaley concerning hymnal: 
1. The life of a hymnal is approximately 1 0 years. 
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2. We may have to change the name to avoid conflict with the current 
Rejoice Hymnal. . . . 

3. A study committee was chosen back m 1983-1984 f?r the ReJorce J-!Ymnal. 
4. Time line: Should plan for 3-4 years for completion of the proJect. 

Hymnal Summary: We propose to do an extensive survey, before proceeding 
any further, to assess need, content, etc. The Educational Task ~orce had 
computers set up at the 2001 National Association to do th~rr survey. 
Maybe we could do the same. Upon approval from Dr. Worthingtor:t, we 
would conduct a survey to find out the answers to the above questions. 

We discussed consulting Mark McPeak, from Donelson Church, about 
helping us with such a survey. We must consi~er U:e co~t ~f produc­
ing the survey, designing it, establishing an online site, pnnting, etc. 

Commission's follow-up conversation: 
1. Discussed possible editors of the hymnal 
2. Discussed instrumental editors 
3. Discussed Steering Committee 
4. Discussed a financial plan for hymnal 

III. 2002 Project . 
The Worship Leaders Cookbook: SO Recipes for Blended Worshtp . 
Members of the commission submitted 20 of their "best" orders of ~~c­
es. This resource book will contain several orders from each c~mmissi<:~n 
member along with other music ministry related ide~ and will be ~vail­
able at the Music Commission Seminar at the 2002 National Convention. 

We would like to thank those who shared in the convention music this 
year. The participation was tremendous, and it was a joy ~o see and he~ 
God's people praising Him in song. Because so many uruted to use their 
gifts and talents for the Lord, the hearts of our people were blessed, and 
God was honored. 

There are many opportunities to participate in the music every year. We 
trust that even more will join us in the future as we exalt Christ thro~h 
music. Look for an advance schedule of rehearsals in the 2003 convention 
edition of Contact, and make plans to be involved. 

Respectfully submitted, 
The Free Will Baptist Music Commission 

Randy Sawyer, Chairman 
Doug Little 
Scott Bullman 
Jerry Carraway 
Chris Truett 
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FWB Music Commission 
7/17/02 

1/I l/02 
I/28/02 
2/ I3/02 
3/ I4/02 
3/ 17/02 

4/18/02 

5/17/02 
6/5/02 

6/14/02 
6/25/02 

6/25/02 

7/ 18/02 

Beginning Balance 
Deposit (Together Way) 
Deposit (Together Way) 
Deposit (Together Way) 
Check to NAFWB 
Convention Booth 
Deposit 
168.I9 (Together Way) 
185.00 (Product) 
Deposit (Together Way) 
Check to NAFWB 
Digest of Reports 
Deposit (Together Way) 
Check to Chris Truett 
Trip to Tulsa 
Check to Jerry Carraway 
Trip to Tulsa 
Deposit (Together Way) 

328.32 
256.10 
185.98 

-350.00 

353.I9 

228.0I 
-45. I 6 

205.I1 
-306.90 

-40.00 

I94.2I 

Income 
Co-op 

Proposed Budget for 2003 

Family Ministry Offering 
Music Sales 
States and Churches 
Tracks and CD sales 
Loan 

Total Income 

Expenses 
National Convention 
Purchase of Music 
Board Meetings 
Office Expense 
Loan Payment 
National Choir Project 

TotaJ Expenses 
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$ 2,000.00 
25.00 

2,000.00 
350.00 

27,000.00 
2,685.00 

$ I ,000.00 
2, 725.00 
1,500.00 

650.00 
2,685.00 

25,000.00 

$ 792.76 
1,121.08 
1,377.18 
1,563.I6 
I ,213.16 

I ,566.35 

1,794.36 
I,749.20 

I ,954.31 
1,647.4I 

I ,607.41 

I,801 .62 

$34,060.00 

$34,060.00 

2002 Historical Commission Report 
The Commission's two on-going projects are to publish a Free Will Baptist 

historical guidebook and to help furnish a "history" room on the campus at Free 
Will Baptist Bible College. Darrell Holley will coordinate the guidebook project 
The Corrunission has committed $20,000 to help furnish the "history" room 

The Commission prepared an '~plication for Free Will Baptist Historical 
Grant" Persons doing historical research regarding Free Will Baptists may 
obtain an application by writing the secretary of the Historical Commission. 

The Commission's 2003 project is to lay the groundwork to publish a 
pamphlet series highlighting important historical issues and distinctives 
among Free Will Baptists. The Commission will also consider sponsoring a 
history writing contest. 

We encourage state and district associational clerks to send copies of 
minutes to the Historical Collection at Free Will Baptist Bible College. 

Free Will Baptist Historical Commission 
Fmancial Report, 200 I 

Balance on hand, December 31,2000 •••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• S 24,144.81 

Deposits/Earnings for 2001 
The Together Way (Designated and Undesignated, 9 months) . . ... . ...... $1,829 .1 0 
The Together Way (Rest of the Family Offering) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 39.27 
Interest (AmSouth Bank) ..... . .............. . ..................... 58854 
Arkansas State Assoc. (on loan) . . ........ . ............. . ...... .. .... 530.00 

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . S 2,986.91 

Expenditures for 2001 
Check # 1037: Paul Kennedy (Travel) .............................. $ 398.20 
Check # 1038: Thomas Marberry (travel) .. . ........ . ........... .. ... . 39351 
Check # 1039: Baptist History/Heritage Society• . . ..... . . . ....... . .. . .. 223.89 

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . S 1,015.60 
• For a complete set of the journals of that society to place in the Historical Collection. 

Balance in bank, December 31, 2001 

2003 Budget 

Income 
Gifts (The Together Way) 
Interest (AmSouth Bank) 
loan Repayment (Arkansas State Assoc.) 

Total 

Expenses 
Books, materials, labor for Historical Commission 
Historical Guidebook Project 
Research Grant 
Travel 
Executive Office (Digest Fee) 

Total 
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s 26,116.12 

$2,000.00 
600.00 

2,000.0Q_ 
$4,600.00 

$1 ,800.00 
500.00 

1,000.00 
1,250.00 

50.00 
$4,600.00 



Publications Committee 
The Publication Committee was appointed to study the feasibility of 

combining the following publications into one national publication: AIM 
magazine, Contact magazine, Heartbeat magazine, Master's Men 
Newsletter, Free Will Baptist Bible College Bulletin, Outreach. 

The Committee began its work by meeting with the editors of the above 
named publications during the 200 I Leadership Conference in December 
200 I . The meeting was spent in a frank and informative discussion on the 
pros and cons of changing to a single national publication. The committee 
commends the editors for their cooperative spirit and their willingness to 
provide the committee with needed information. Mter meeting with the 
editors, the committee conduded the following: 

1. That the committee will not be able to make a aeditable recommendation to the body without a mre­
ful study of the many fooors involved in dlanging to a single publication. In order to do this, it will require 
a great deal of time to gather all the infonnation needed. The work of this committee must be ongoing. 
2. That the comminee will need to arrive at a consensus of how Free Will Baptists feel about 
changing to a single publication. Therefore, after consulting with Executive Secretary Melvin 
Worthington concerning finances, the comminee has requested Mark McPeak to take a survey of 
the readers of the various publications. He stated the following objectives in his proposal: 

Research Obiedives 
The committee is proposing a research study directed to current end­

users of Free Will Baptist publications. The proposed research will be con­
structed to m eet the following overall purpose: To assess the feasibility that 
the combining of current Free WI11 Baptist publications into one publica­
tion would be well received and embraced by constituents 

More specifically, the proposed research will be designed to meet the 
following objectives: 

To understand current readership patterns, such as: 
Percent of publication(s) read regularly by recipients 
Extent of cross-readership (individuals reading multiple publications) 

To assess interest level in a combined publication 

To identify primary concerns and objections related to a combined publication 
To understand specific desirable components of a combined publication 
To assess readers' tolerance for advertising in a combined publication 
To understand respondents' willingness to subscribe to a combined publication 
To understand delivery preference (individual at home or drop-shipment to church) 

The committee welcomes any constructive input, and if you receive a 
survey sheet, please complete it and return it. 

In His Service, 

Nathan Ruble, Chairman 
Wimam Smith, Secretary 
David Williford 
Edwin Hayes 
Jim Marcum 

A- 208 

Minutes 
of the 

Sixty-Seventh Annual 
Session 

of the 

Women Nationally 
Active for Christ 

Convention 
of the 

National Association of 
Free Will Baptists 

when convened in 

Memphis, Tennessee 
July 21-25, 2002 
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WNAC 
P. 0. Box 5002 

Antioch, TN 37011-5002 
Executive Committee 

President 
Debe Taylor 

1 03 Chisholm Trail 
Hot Springs, AR 71913 
Phone: 501-760-4824 

E-mail: taylorgolf@juno.com 

Vice President 
Joanne King 

426 Woodlawn Extension 
Cramerton, NC 28032 
Phone: 704-827-9772 

E-mail: 
joanneking@carolina.rr.com 

Secretary 
Debbie Burden 

3441 Shakertown Road 
Antioch, TN 37013 

Phone: 615-361-0560 
E-mail: burd7913@bellsouth.net 

Members at Large 

Yvonne Brown 
4881 East Normal 
Fresno, CA 93703 

Phone: 559-456-2879 
E-mail: 

yvonnebrown2000@cs.com 

Dawn Sweeney 
I 00 1 Lisa Drive 

Church Hill, TN 37642 
Phone: 423-357-5420 

E-mail: dswee32437@aol.com 

Carolyn Hendrix 
138 Lewis Lane 

Madison, AL 35 758 
Phone: 256-461-7453 

E-mail: RTH50@Yahoo.com 

Executive Secretary-Treasurer 
Marjorie Workman 

1408 Revenna Court North 
Antioch, TN 37013 

Phone: 615-366-0573 
E-mail: Marjorie@nafwb.org 

Theme: For Such A Time As This 
Scripture: Esther 4:14 

Music Coordinator: Susan Forlines 
Pianist: Debbie Mouser 

Organist: Carol Reid 

Proceedings 
WNAC Seminars 

W Monda'(t July 22, 2002 
NAC Drama, .1 :30 p.m., Memphis Marriott Heritage Ballroom 

Joanne King presided at th · La Th. D. B 'd e seminar: ura lgpen led in prayer: 
lane n gman and women of the Grifton FWB Ch h N rth C . . 

presented a drama enfi~ed "I Th H ~ urc ' o arollno, 
were in attendance. s ere ope or Me?" Approximately 400 
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PasfOI'S wrvet Semina~ 3:00 p.m., Memphis Maniott Heritage Ballroom 
Joanne King presided at the seminar "Having a Difficult Time?" 

Mary Kay Joslin led in prayer. Speaker Debe Taylor focused on dealing 
with problems common to pastors' wives. Over 250 women attended. 

Business Session 
Tuesday, July 23, 2002, 8:30 a.m. 

Memphis Convention Center 
President Debe Taylor opened the 67th Annual Session of the 

Women Nationally Active for Christ. Susan Forlines led the congregation 
in singing "This Is The Day," "I Will Enter His Courts With Thanksgiving," 
"Standing On The Promises," "I Will Sing Of The Mercies Of The Lord," 
and "Great Is Thy Faithfulness." Susan Forlines sang "He Makes No 
Mistakes." Rebecca Pugh gave a welcome from the state of Tennessee 
and presented a $2500 check to Ma~orie Workman, WNAC's 
Executive Secretary-Treasurer for the WNAC general fund. 

The national Youth Evangelistic Team presented a musiddrama pro-
gram that included the songs "We Believe" and "Shout To The Lord." 

Sarah Fletcher presented the Creative Arts Awards. 

Poetry 

Art 

1st Place 
2nd Place 
3rd Place 
Honorable Mention 

1st Place 
2nd Place 
3rd Place 
Honorable Mention 

Skits 
1st Place 
2nd Place 
3rd Place 
Honorable Mention 

Articles 
1st Place 
2nd Place 
3rd Place 
Honorable Mention 

Programs 
1st Place 
2nd Place 
3rd Place 
Honorable Mentlon 
Honorable Mention 

Waiting For Hope 
Beautiful Mind 
The Stronger 
God's Groce 

Afghan Refugee (amp 
Girl and Baby 
Church 
Girl in Gym 

My Nome is Christian 
Stolen Joy 
An Easter Rehearsal 
Let Your Ught Shine 

Terror of the Middle East 
Worry 
The Sparrow 
The Ironing Board 

How To Build A Snowman 
Parable of the Wild Gropes 
Reflecting the Son 
MIA's 
Hanging of the Greens 
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Rachel Sekulich, Brunswick, GA 
Angel C. Hall, Greeneville, TN 
Ruth Bivens, Rio Grande, PR 
Judy Delong, Hoger Hill, KY 

Janis Williams, Nashville, TN 
Bonnie Kerr, Memphis, TN 
Janis Williams, Nashville, TN 
Bonnie Kerr, Memphis, TN 

Rachel Sekulich, Brunswick, GA 
Sandi Roberts, Smithville, MS 
Betty G. Jones, Kirksville, MO 
Nodine Hood, Sapulpa, OK 

lorena Freemon, Roland, OK 
lee Ann Wilfong, Pork Hills, MO 
Ruth Bivens, Rio Grande, PR 
Darla Trimble, Greeneville, TN 

Penny Walsh, locust Grove, OK 
Ruth Bivens, Rio Grande, PR 
Judy Delong, Hager Hill, KY 
Monico Bryon, Garner, NC 
Dione Willey, Madison, TN 



. Shirley Jackso~ led in prayer and gave the Credenti 
mrttee report. Motron carried to seat the delegates. als Corn. 

Debe Taylor presented a cookbook a d ·ft . 
for work on the WNAC cookbook Ihe c n.t gfr to HDebbre Burden 

M · · W rkm ' tTUt o our ands 
M a~on.e ~ k an gave the Executive Secretary-Treasure;' s rep rt 

aqone or man honored and presented ifts t o . 

i~~'::h;'~~~Co~~~~.utive Assistant, for 15 years
9
of fai~hf~~~~~~ 

Motion carried to receive the E . S 
report and adopt the budget. xecutrve ecretary-Treasurer's 

I R
La.udrie Horne gave a PowerPoint presentation on the M. . 

n esr ence House project. rssronary 

~iana Bryant gave the Resolutions Committ R . 
corned to accept the report and d t I . ee. eport. Matron 

I 
a op reso utrons rtem by item 

tem #1 · We ~ d h · 
. ecom~en t at scholarships be given from the Cl 

$1 Pursell forerg~ ?tudent Scholarship Fund as follows · eo 

p~~IOA~i~~ ~~vl~~b b~~een two lvorian students, .Pastor 
j P. k ) e ousessou. (As recommended by 
erry rn erton 

$1,000 ~or Osmir, a Brazilian seminary student who . 

~~~f~:d)g for the ministry. (As recommended by Cu~ 
$1,000 to be divided amo th · h 

at the Cedars of ng e erg teen seminary students 

Lebanon Seminary in Pinar del Rio Cuba (A d 
. ed by Steve Lytle) ' · s recommen -

Motron carried to adopt Item # 1. 
Item #2: 

. Be it resolved that we, as Free Will Ba f t 
rn opposition to same sex m . dp rs women, go on record 
c t ct I . . ornages an encourage our ladies to 

onMa _our egr.slotron to encourage traditional family I 
otron earned to adopt Item #2. va ues. 

Item #3: 
Be it resolved that w th w N . 

be committed to pray fo:~ureyou~h~hn t thatronally Active for Christ, 
knowledge of Christ at an I a ey may come to a saving 
corry the torch of the gospeiat r yf at ge so that ~hey may continue to 

M . o u ure generatrons 
otron carried to adopt Item # 3 . · 

Lisa Bowden gave the A · · C 
carried to accept the report. pprecratron ommittee Report. Motion 

Rebecca Pugh go rt· 1 
tee. Motion carried toveaca pat trah report from the Registration Commit-

cep e report. 
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Debe Taylor read Romans 15:13. Recessed until 11 :00 a.m. 

11 :00 A.M. Missionary Service 

Phyllis York led in prayer. Karen pfeiffer encouraged women to support 
deaf ministries. Susan Forlines led the congregation in singing "Under the 
Spirit's Control," "He Leadeth Me," and "Be GloriRed." Joanne King 
received the offering. The offertory was a piano duet by Debbie Mouser and 
Susan Forlines. The congregation sang "Sanctuary," "Is There Anything I 
Can Do?" and "Open Our Eyes Lord." Carol Reid read a passage from 
Luke 7. Beverly Riggs sang '~abaster Box." The message was given by Tim 
and Kristi Johnson, missionaries to Spain, using John 4:37-38 as their text, 
comparing Spain's saffron harvest to a spiritual harvest. The service was dis­
missed with the congregation singing "May The Mind of Christ My Savior." 
The WNAC fellowship luncheon in the Memphis Mamott followed the serv­
ice. Teri Peacock of Bell-Peacock Ministries, Memphis, TN, presented a mes­
sage in drama and music. 

Committee Reports 

Resolutions Committee Report 
We, your Resolutions Committee, submit the following recommen­

dations to the WNAC Convention: 

Item #1 : We recommend that scholarships be given from the Cleo 
Pursell Foreign Student Scholarship Fund as follows: 
$ 1 000 to be divided between two lvorian students, Pastor 
Paul Amiezi and Robert Housessou (as recommended by 
Jerry Pinkerton); $1 000 for Osmir, a Brazilian seminary 
student who is preparing for the ministry (as recommend­
ed by Curt Holland); $1 000 to be divided among the 18 
students at the Cedars of Lebanon Seminary in Pinar Del 
Rio, Cuba (as recommended by Steve Lytle). 

Item #2: Be it resolved that we as FWB women go on record in 
opposition to same sex marriages and encourage our 
ladies to contact our legislators to encourage family val­
ues. 

Item #3: Be it resolved that we, the WNAC, be committed to pray 
for our youth that they may come to a saving knowledge 
of Christ at an early age so that they may continue to carry 
the torch of the gospel to future generations. 

Respectfully submitted: Diana Bryant, FL (Chairperson), Bonnie 
Doggett, IL, Joanna Felts, CA, Terra Smith, GA 
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Registration Committee Report 

We, your Registration Committee submit the followin . 
Number of Persons Registered: g partial report: 

WNAC Na!ional Officers (Standing Delegates) 6 
State P!esrdents (Standing Delegates) 13 
State Freid Workers (Standing Delegates) 1 0 
State Delegates (Elected Delegates) 136 
Local WNAC Delegates (Paying $5 Rep. Fee) 50 Total Delegates 

Non-voting Attendees: 
215 

Visitors 
Missionaries (U.S. and foreign) 

Grand Total Registered 

699 
27 

941 

R~spectfully Submitted: Rebecca Pu h TN ( . 
H1ckle, OH, Jamie Cason NC Ph 

11
. § 'k Ch01rperson), lisa 

, , y 1s 10r , KY 
Appreciation Committee Report 

We the Appreciation Com ·tt b . h 
mendations: ml ee su mit t e following recom-

We wish to express our sincere th k h f 
whose efforts will make this , an .s to t e ollowing people 

1) Th E 
. years convention and session a success: 

e xecut1ve Committee 

2) The ~~:r~sStaff: Marjorie Workman, Yvonne Hampton, Sarah Fletcher and Martha 

3) Our hostesses, the Tennessee Wome Act· t Ch . t 
ity. We appreciate the fellow h~ I IVhe or rdlst, or their ~enerous hospital-

4) All the . . s 1P unc eon an the centerpieces 
mUSICians. · 

5) The women of Grifton FWB Ch ch N rth C 1. . 
Rouse Deid~ Alb . ur , o oro ma: Dlan.e Bridgman, Beth Mitchell, Mary 
God's hope ;;th u~~n, ~m~ladCobb, ~eresa Denms, and Rhonda Davis for sharing 

6) 0 k roug e ramatic presentation "Is There Hope for Me?" 
ur sp~a. ers: Debe .Taylor, Pastors Wives' Seminar; Tim and Kristi Johnso~ the 

MISSionary Service; and Teri Peacock, the WNAC Fellowship luncheon , 
Respectfully Submitted· Li B d . · 
IN and Dot Gore, MS. sa ow en, AR (ChOJrperson), Sherri Sloan, 

Credentials Committee Report 
We, the Credentials Committ b . h ~ . 

following 19 state f h ee, su mit t e ollowmg report: The 
Alabama, Arkansa~on~~~if~~ia ave s~bmitted re~orts and paid dues: 
Kentucky. Michigan' M· . . ~ FMionda, Georgia, Illinois, Indiana 
Oklaho~a South Caro/SSISS!fP'' issouri, North Carolina, Ohio' 
Th r II ' ma, 1ennessee Texas Viii · · \A/ V ' 

e ro owing 3 district ·th ' . ' gm1a, vvest irginia. 
s WI no state conventrons have submitted reports 
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and paid dues: First Arizona, Kansas, New Mexico. The following 4 local 
groups with no district or state conventions have submitted reports and 
paid dues: Oregon Trail, Oregon; West Jordon, Utah; St. Croix, Virgin 
Islands; and Kennewick, Washington. In addition there are 50 delegates 
from local groups in good standing with their representing higher body 
(district or state) who have paid their $5 representation fees. 

Respectfully submitted: Shirley Jackson, MO {Chairperson), Undo Harvey, 
AZ, Rebekah Bragan, SC, June Hersey, AL and Jody Sullivan, VN. 

Synopsis of the 
WNAC Executive CommiHee Meeting 

December 4-5, 2001 

An open forum was conducted December 4, 2001, at the Regal Max­
well House Hotel, Nashville, TN with women who were attending the na­
tional Leadership Conference. All WNAC committee members were pres­
ent. Discussion focused on CoLaborer magazine and ideas for conven­
tions and retreats. 

The committee reconvened December 5, 2001, in the WNAC confer­
ence room. All WNAC committee members were present. The Executive 
Secretary!freasurer's report was received. 

The committee approved: (1) the adoption of the Faith Promise Plan as 
an adclitional means of support for WNAC, (2) an increase in the CoLaborer 
subscription price (in increments of fifty cents per year) until such time the 
circulation is adequate to fund it or the increase seems unreasonable when 
compared to the cost of other Christian magazines, (3) the 2003 budget and 
( 4) the Hinton, Warren, Denney & Wallace auclit proposal. 

Plans were made for the 2002 Convention and the 2002 Ridgecrest retreat 

Synopsis of the Minutes of 
WNAC Executive CommiHee Meeting 

Sunday, July 21, 2002 

The Executive Committee of WNAC met at the Memphis Marriott Hotel 
Board Room. Members present were: Marjorie Workman, Debe Taylor, 
Joanne King, Debbie Burden, Dawn Sweeney, Yvonne Brown and Carolyn 
Hendrix. The Executive Secretary-Treasurer's report was received. 

The committee approved: (1) the adoption of "Set Your Hearts" for the 
WNAC 2006 theme, (2) reimbursement of Executive Committee mem­
bers' expenses for the Branson retreat in the amount of $125 each plus reg­
istration fee waiver, (3) honorariums for 2002 Ridgecrest retreat speakers 
(Ashley Hartley $1,000 and Ronda Freeman $500), and ( 4) recommenda­
tion to the WNAC Convention regarding 2003 disbursements from the Cleo 
Pursell Foreign Student Scholarship Fund. 

Plans were made for the 2003 Branson Retreat. 
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Report of 

Women Nationally Active for Christ 
to the National Association of Free Will Baptists 

July 2002 
By Marjorie Workman, Executive Secretary-Treasurer 

The year 2001 will forever be remembered as 9/ 11. Pictures of the World 
Trade Center's Twin Towers exploding with billowing balls of fire and smoke 
are inedibly etched in our memory. However, long before the news broke on 
TY, our Sovereign God knew the fate of the towers and the people in them. 
He also knew WNAC's theme for 2001-"Sharing Hope and Healing" and for 
2002, "For Such A Time As This." Just as He knew Queen Esther's moment of 
destiny in history, He knows WNAC's too. 

WNAC is a service organization. Our goal is to partner with our church­
es, families, and denomination to be Great Commission women reaching 
people for Christ and encouraging them in their walk with Christ. 

To strengthen our families, WNAC partnered with Master's men to host 
our first National Marriage Enrichment Conference this past spring in Pigeon 
Forge, Tennessee. Eighty-six couples came to hear Drs. Richard and Rebekah 
Land speak on various topics relating to building stronger marriages. 

For the second year in a row, WNAC has given scholarships through the 
Cleo Pursell Foreign Student Scholarship Fund to Osmir, a Brazilian seminary 
student; Pastor Paul Amiezi, an lvorian student; and the ministerial students at 
the Cedars of Lebanon Seminary in Pinar del Rio, Cuba. We are pleased to 
partner with our sister churches in foreign countries in training future leaders. 

Our most current team, Foreign Missions, Master's Men, FWBBC, and 
WNAC, is refurbishing the missionary-in-residence house on the campus of 
Free Will Baptist Bible College. WNAC's part is to purchase all furniture, small 
appliances, window treatments, and decorations. 

Every year we partner with Home and Foreign Missions to promote prayer 
and fmancial support for our missionaries. We sponsor a special week of prayer 
each fall for Home Missions and each spring for Foreign Missions. Cash and 
non-cash support for these two departments totaled $379,984 in 2001. 

Not to be overlooked is the support for our four children's home, our Bible 
Colleges, and our WNAC office. Total giving to all missions objectives was $548,87 4. 

You can financially partner with WNAC by purchasing our new cookbook, 
"The Fruit of our Hands." It features twelve hundred recipes from 850 of our 
finest cooks. Also, included are international recipes from our missionaries. 

Pastors can partner with us by putting us in their church budgets. WNAC is 
not included in the percentages of the Together Way Plan. However, you can des­
ignate gifts to us. You can also put CoLaborer magazine in your church's literature 
budget CoLaborer is a magazine written by and published for Free Will Baptist 
women. Editor Sarah Fletcher is doing a great job in making the content practical 
and helpful. Her creative layouts and design make it attractive and appealing. 

For a great opportunity to worship and be encouraged, plan to attend 
the WNAC National Retreat at Ridgecrest, North Carolina, September 19-21. 
The bubbly personality of Ashley Hartley and her Scripture- packed messages 
wiJl be both challenging and encouraging. 

Esther partnered with her Uncle Mordecai and the Jewish people for a 
common cause-to save a nation. Will you partner with WNAC to save a 
world through a Great Commission outreach? 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Executive Committee of the 
Women Nationally Active for Christ 

We have audited the accompanying statements of financial position of the Women Nationally 
Active for Christ (an auxiliary of the National Association of Free Will Baptiets) (a nonprofit organization) 
as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the related statements of activities and cash flows for the years 
then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Organization's management. Our 
responsibility is to expre88 an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatements. An audit includes 
examining, on a teet basis, evidence supporting the amounts and dieclosuree in the financial statements. 
An audit also includes a88e88ing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statements presentation. We believe that our 
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the Women Nationally Active for Christ as of December 31, 2001 and 2000 and the 
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

~~~~~~~ 

February 12, 2002 
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(An Auxil st:tA;ments of FjnAncial Posttj,on 
n:;;b;r 31. 2001 and 2000 

Cash N te 1 AccOunts receivable - 0 

I to""' - Note 1 nven •J fall wance for 

~o:::::t::~ ~1,66~ ($1,669 in 2000) 

A~ed interest receivable 
Pro rty and equipment at cost, less 
ac!:nulated depreciation of $32,144 
($30,260 in 2000) - Notes 1 & 2 

Total assets 

ASSETS 

I lABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Deferred revenue - Note 8 

Total liabilities 
Commitments - Notes 5 

Net assets 
Unrestricted - (deficit) 
Temporarily restricted 
Permanently restricted 

Total liabilities and net assets 

rt d accomnanving See accountants' reoo an 
;;;t.Oihe financial statements. 

-2-
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2001 
$189,266 

7,741 
8,802 

5,157 
1,703 

10.524 

i221U93 

$ 32,417 
42.163 
74.580 

( 18,066) 
151,462 

16.211 
148.613 

$223 193 

2000 
$198,858 

6,346 
9,918 

8,367 
2,377 

11,583 

$231.448 

$ 41,636 
35.992 
77.628 

5,461 
140,759 

13,600 
159,820 

$237 448 



WOMEN NATIONAl .T .y ACTIVE FOR C 

Unrestricted 
Revenue and other support: 

Dues and fees 
Designated contributions 
Magazine and literature sales 
~nvention and retreat income 
Gifts and offerings 
Interest income 
Recovery of bad debts 
Net assets released from restrictions· 
Satisfaction of program restrictions. 

Total revenue and other support 

Expenses: 
Salaries and wages 
Payroll taxes and employee benefits 
Cost of magazine and literature printing 
Travel and promotion 
Conventions and retreats 
Office expense 
Postage 
Rent expense 
Professional fees 
Administrative expense 
Depreciation 
Amortization 
Insurance expense 
Dues and subscriptions 
Special projects 
Continuing education 
Designated contributions 
Miscellaneous 

Increase (decrease) in unrestricted net assets 

See accountant§' report and accompanvinr 
notes to the financial statements. 

·3· 
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2001 

$ 65,964 
319,379 
84,056 
8,328 

69,552 
910 

3.356 

551.545 

2009_ 

$ 64,877 
314,735 
83,821 
17,998 
75,660 
2,834 
1,686 

1,31§ 

562,926 

WOMEN NATIONALLY ACTIVE FOR CHRIST 
(An Auxiliary of the National Association of Free Will Baptists) 

Statements of Activities 
For the Years Ended December 31. 2001 and 2000 

<Continued) 

Temporarily restricted 
Gifts and offerings 
Interest income 
Net assets released from restrictions: 
Satisfaction of program restrictions 

Increase (decrease) in temporarily restricted net assets 

Permanently restricted 
Gifts and offerings 

Increase in permanently restricted net assets 

$ 

( 

( 

2001 

6,170 
7,889 

3.356) 

1Q,7Q3 

1.617 

1,617 

11,207) 

159,820 

11~ 6la 

See accountants' report and accompanying 
potes to the financial statements, 
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2000 

$ 7,244 
6,561 

( 1.315) 

12.~90 

967 

967 

205 

169,615 

1 1Cia.a2a 



Onerating actiyitieg 

In~ease (decrease) in net assets 
AdJustment to reconcile incre 

net cash provided (used) b ase (de~ease) in net assets to 
Depreciation y operating activities: 

Amortization 
Write off of bad debts 
Chan · ges lD operating assets and liabili . . 

(Increase) decrease . ties. 
<Increase) deere ~ ~ccounts receivable 
(T aae m mventory 

ncrease) decrease in a . 
Increase (decrease) in ccrued mterest receivable 
Increase (deere . accounts payable 

Net cash provided (used) b ase). m deferred revenue 
Y operating activities 

Inveatipg activitiea 

Purchase of equipment 
Collection of loans receivable 

Net cash provided ( d) b . 
U8e Y mvesting activities 

Increase (decrease) · h 
m cas and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at becri ...... ;_ f 
"~'""'""go years 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of years 

~~accountant§' report d 
notes to the financiaiBti:;:::npanying 
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2001 

($ 11,207) 

1,884 

( 1,396) 
1.U6 

674 
( 9,219) 

6.171 
( 11.977) 

( 825) 
3.210 

2.385 

( 9,592) 

198.858 

$189 266 

2QQQ -
$ 205 

2,510 
5,648 

( 202) 

569 
2.322 

( 272) 
21,782 

( 1.739) 
3Q.823 

1.926 

1.926 

32,749 

166.109 

s 198,a§a 

Note 1· 

WOMEN NATIONAI.J.YAQTIVE FOR CHRIST 
<An Auxiliarv of the National Association of free Will Baptists) 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
December 31. 2001 and 2000 

Organization and summary of significant accounting policies 

The Women Nationally Active for Christ is a nonprofit organization and an 
auxiliary of the National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. located in Antioch, 
Tennessee. The purpose of the Organization is to publish the Free Will Baptists' 
magazine for women. to receive and disburse funds for missionaries and provide other 
services to Free Will Baptist women. The Organization's support comes primarily from 
do.nor contributions, dues and fees, and magazine sales. 

The Organization is exempt from federal income tax under section 501{c)(3) of 
the Internal Revenue Code under a group exemption of the National Association of Free 
Will Baptists, Inc. In addition, the Organization has been determined by the Internal 
Revenue Service not to be a "private foundation" within the meaning of 609(a) of the 
Internal Revenue Code. There was no unrelated business income for 2001 and 2000. 

The following significant accounting policies have been followed in the 
preparation of the financial statements: 

Basis of accounting 

The Organhation prepares its financial statements using the accrual basis of 
accounting, which involves the application of U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; 
consequently, revenues and gains are recognized when earned, and expenses and losses 
are recognized when incurred. 

Basis of presentation 

Financial statements presentation follows the recommendations of the Financial 
Accounting Standards Board in 1ts Statements of Financial Accounting Standards 
(SFAS) No. 117, Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Organizations. Under SFAS No. 
117, the Organization is required to report information regarding its financial position 
and activities according to three classes of net assets; unrestricted net assets, 
temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently restricted net assets. 

Use of est.; mates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with. U.S. generally accepted 
accounting principles includes the use of estimates that affect the financial statements. 
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 
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Note 1-

December 31. 200 an 

Organization and summary ofsimjficant accounting ooliciea (Continued) 

Contributions 

The Organization accounts for contributions in accordance with the 
recommendations of the Financial Accounting Standards Board in SF AS No. 116, 
Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions Made. In accordance with 
SFAS No. 116, contributions received are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily 
restricted, or permanently restricted support, depending on the existence or nature of any donor restrictions. 

All donor-restricted support is reported a8 an increase in temporarily or 
permanently restricted net aasets depending on the nature of the restriction. When a 
restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction 
is accomplished), temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net 
assets and reported in the statements of activities as net assets released from restrictions. 

Prooertv, equipment. and depreciation 

The Organization follows the practice of capitalizing, at cost, all expenditures for 
property and equipment in excesa of $500 with a useful life of at least two years. 
Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the useful lives of the assets generally as follows: 

Equipment 6- 20years 

The net property and equipment balance has been recorded a8 a separate component in unrestricted net assets. 

Accounts and notes receivable and al]owance for doubtful accounts 

The Organization issues credit to churches and individuals for the purchase of 
magazines and literature. These churches and individuals are loeated all across the United States. 

The Organization loans money to Bible college students for the payment of 
college tuition. The student is required to sign a note for the money. These notes are 
uncollateralized. These students are loeated across the United States. There are 
numerous loans with varying interest rates and maturity dates. Accordingly, the fair 
value of these notes approximates the carrying value net of the allowance for doubtful accounts. 

Management considers accounts receivable to be fully collectible; aCCOrdingly, no 
allowance for doubtful accounts is required for accounts receivable. Management 
considers the notes receivable that are overdue to be only Partially collectible and 
accordingJ,y has recorded an allowance for doubtful accounts in the amount of $1,669 ($1,669 in 2000). 

-7-
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Note 1-

Note 2-

Note 3-

Note 4-

CTIVE FOR CHRIST 
WQMEN NATIO~ALLY A . ti of .Free Will Baptists) . . f th N t1onal As80Cla on 

<An Aupharv oea th Finapgal Statements Notes to e 
December :n, 2001 and 2QQQ 

. . ting policies (Continued) . . d ummarv of s&mtfit:ant accoun Orgamz.ation an a 

Cash equivalents ts 'th a maturity of 
'd all highly liquid investmerr Wl · ...: cons1 era ts 

The Orgamza~on based to be cash equivalen . three months or lesa when pure 

Inventorv . first out method) or market. 
. tated at the lower of cost (f'ust m, Inventory 18 s 

Propertv and equipment 

~ rty and equipment follows: A summary o~ prope 

Equipment .. 
Less: Accumulated depreo.atlon 

Z001 
$4Z,668 

( 32.144) 

$ 10.524 

2000 
$41,843 

( 30.260) 

$ 11 583 

Capitalized leaae . urchased an office building to 

'ation of Free Will Baptists, Inc. p . 0 anization entered 
The National AsSOCI . of the denomination. The rgtrib te to the debt . artments and agenoes . . d ed to con u 

house vanous dept to lease space in this new building ~nn :~til the debt is retired. The 
into an agreeme~ h truction period and to C?n u d re to be amortized over . ts dunng t e cons 'talized m 1991 an we . . 
servlce cos -od ts of $9 8Z2 were capt d rdingly the remammg 

cti pen cos • · the year an acco rc th constru on b Th debt was retired dunng Am rtization expense ,or e the life of the de t . e ... :-ed during the year. o . 'od costs were amo~..u. 
constructiontep;~ $-0- ($5,648 in 2000). year amoun 

Restrictions on net asaets . oses: 

ailable for the followmg purp ~-:1.. tricted net assets are av Tempor .... ......,. res 2000 

2001 -
$126 624 $117•751 

8.474 9,317 
16:364 13.691 

462 $140 759 $151 -

Student Loan . 
Foreign scholarship F d 
Free Will Baptist College Organ un 

. ted to· tricted assets are restnc . Permanently res 

Endowment Trust $ 15.217 $ 13 600 

-8-
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Note 5-

Note 6-

Note 7-

Note 8-

Note 9-

l&ase 

WOMEN NATIONALLY ACTIVE FOR CHRIST 
<An Amjljary of the National Association of Free Will Baptista) 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
December 91. 2001 and 2000 

The Organization entered into a lease agreement on October 1, 1990 with the 
National Association of Free Will Baptiste, Inc. for office and storage space. The term o! 
the lease expires when all mortgages on the building are satisfied; the mortgage was 
retired in 2000. The organization entered into a new lease agreement on July 1, 2000. 
The term of the lease was July 1, 2000 to August 31, 2000, then beginning September 1, 
2000 the lease became a year-to-year lease. The rent expense for the year amounted to 
$24,600 ($24,600 for the year ended December 31, 2000). 

Pension plan 

The Organization participates in the master pension plan of the Board of 
Retirement and Insurance of the National Association of Free Will Baptiste. The plan ia 
a defined contribution plan. The Organization contributes 5% of gross salary for all 
employees with five or more years of service and 3% of gross salary for employees with 
less than five years of service. Employees are allowed to contribute to the plan but are 
not required to contribute. Pension expense for the year amounted to $5,234 ($4,473 in 
2000). Under the plan, an account is maintained for each participant and upon 
retirement the participant can either receive a lump sum distribution or purchase one of 
several types of annuity accounts. 

Concentration of credit risk 

The Organization maintains cash deposits at a financial institution located in 
the United States. Accounts at the institution are insured by the Federal Deposit 
Insurance Corporation up to $100,000. At December 31, 2001 the excess amount over 
the federally insured limit was $-0- ($-0- in 2000). 

The Organization also has $152,706 ($137,305 in 2000) on deposit with the Free 
Will Baptist Foundation. These funds are uninsured. 

Deferred revenue 

Deferred revenue resulted from magazine subscriptions received for 2002 issues. 

Fair values of financial instruments 

The following methods and aBBumptions were used by the Organization in 
estimating its fair value disclosures for financial instruments: 

Cash, accounts receivable, accrued interest receivable, payables, and 
deferred revenue: The carrying amounts reported in the statement of 
financial position approximate fair values because of the short maturities of 
those instruments. 

Notes receivable: Based on current interest rates, the carrying value 
approximates the fair value of the notes receivable at December 31, 2001 and 
2000. 

-9-
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. · · ry Obiectives 
Gifts to Miss•ons/M•ss•ona b 31 2001 

1 2001 to Decem er ' January ' 

Cosh Gifts 
. Missions Total 

Foreign h WNAC 
Sent Throug 
Sent Direct 

Missions Total 
Ho~~t Direct Not Available 

State Proiects 

~~lw~~~~~e~tudent Loan Fund 

147,145.18 
27,401 .26 

174,546.44 

96,67 4.10 

35,059.77 
11 ,542.01 

2,946.87 
38,674.66 

OthFer ~gi~s Student Scholarship Fund ore . 
Missions Obiectlves 

Provision Closet . 

2,155.86 
36,518.80 

12,578.28 
105,301 .97 

WNAC Opera1ing G1~s 
Gen Fund Offe~ang 
Emphasis Offenng 
Endowment Fund . 
Rest of Family Offenng 

Dues . t d) 
Together Way (Deslgna e 

26,318.62 
10,407.43 

617.00 
1,983.19 

65,078.90 
896.83 

Non-Cash Gifts 

Provision Closet 

$ 71 ,550.00 

$548,87 4 .10 

Total Cash and Non-Cosh Gifts 

2001 Top Ten Contributors to WNAC . . . 
Per Capata GaVtng 

Emphasis Offering 
General fund Offering 1. Michigan $13.94 

1,951.00 1250 4,316.48 1. Tennessee 2. Virgin Islands 1. Tennessee 2. North Carolina 1,402.00 12.41 
2. North Carolina 3,561.70 

3. Alabama 1,346.21 3. Tennessee 
11 .85 

3. Michigan 3,450.00 
4. South Carolina 1,10650 4. Virginia 

8.65 
4. Arkansas 2,811 .72 

5. Oklahoma 949.13 5. New Mexico 
7.84 

5. Oklahoma 2,130.34 
6. Missouri 844.19 6. North Carolina 

7.29 
6. Georgia 1,83856 838.00 7. Alabama 5.61 7. Arkansas 
7. Missouri 1,808.04 

8. Georgia 755.30 8. Missouri 
5.32 

8. Alabama 1,600.04 465.10 9. Georgia 
4.72 

9. Virginia 1,157.97 9. Virginia 
150.00 10. Arkansas 

762.51 10. Kentucky 
10. Ohio 
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Women Nationally Adive for Christ 

Suggested Budget 

For the Year Ending December 31, 2003 

Estimated Income 
General Fund Offering 
Convention Offering 
Convention Expense Gift 
Delegate Fees 
Dues 
Interest Income 
Literature Sales 
Magazine Subscriptions 
Miscellaneous 
Rest of the Family Offering 
WNAC Emphasis Offering 

Total Income 

Estimated Expense 
Salaries 
Employee Benefits 

Payroll Tax Expense 
Employee Retirement 
Health and Life Insurance 
Christmas Bonus 

Insurance-General & Workers' Com t• L 1 . pensa •on 
ega and Professional Services 

Convention Expense 
Executive Committee Expense 
Co-Laborer Magazine Expense 

Mailing 
Miscellaneous 
Printing 
Postage 

Miscellaneous Expense 
Office Rent 
Office Supplies and Materials 
Phone 
Postage 
Printing 
Service Contracts 
Subscriptions 
Travel and Promotion 
Continuing Education 
Equipment (additions and repairs) 
Special Projects 

Total Expense 
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8,460.00 
5,050.00 

23,431.00 
2,127.00 

3,600.00 
500.00 

35,900.00 
4,500.00 

-
$ 40,000.00 

2,500.00 
10,000.00 

500.00 
85,000.00 

7,500.00 
13,000.00 
90,000.00 
5,000.00 
3,500.00 

14,000.00 
$ 271 ,000.00 

110,581.00 
39,068.00 

1,000.00 
4,500.00 

15,000.00 
4,500.00 

44,500.00 

1,151.00 
24,000.00 

3,000.00 
3,000.00 
4,000.00 
4,500.00 
3,500.00 

200.00 
4,500.00 
1,500.00 
2,000.00 

500.00 

-

$ 271,000.00 

The General Board Report 
The General Board of the National Association of Free Will Baptists met July 22, 

2002, in the Heritage Ballroom of the Marriott Hotel, Memphis, Tennessee. As a 
result of this meeting, we offer the following information and recommendations: 

1. We heard the reports of the Executive Office, WNAC, Free Will Baptist 
Foundation, Board of Retirement, Home Missions Department, Mas­
ter's Men Department, Free Will Baptist Bible College, Foreign Missions 
Department, Sunday School and Church Training Department, Com­
mission for Theological Integrity, Media Commission, Music Com­
mission and Historical Commission. We recommend that the reports 
be received and the budgets adopted. 

2. We recommend Keith Burden as executive secretary of the National 
Association of Free Will Baptists. 

3. We recommend that effective 2003 registration badges be required for 
attendance at all national convention events. 

4. We recommend that the Liberty Free Will Baptist Church of New Berlin, 
Wisconsin, be received as a member of the National Association of 
Free Will Baptists and be listed in the Free Will Baptist Yearbook. 

5. We recommend that effective 2004 the national representation fee be 
increased to $1 00 per church per year. 

6. We recommend that the Executive Office be authorized to secure 
finances to fund the 2003 convention. 

7. We recommend that the grievance filed by Dale Weaver be referred to 
the Free Will Baptist Bible College Board of Trustees for resolution. 

8. We recommend the adoption of the following investigative report­
After meeting with the Home Missions Board, the Executive Com­

mittee makes the following statement: 
It appears to the Executive Committee that the Home Missions Depart­

ment made some procedural errors in their dealings with James Munsey. 
Statements regarding local church autonomy were made, both 

verbally and in print, that would not now be made in the light of 
subsequent events in Mexico. 

The Home Missions Board did not slander nor intend to slander 
James Munsey. 

9. In light of action taken by the National Association of Free Will Baptists 
in Detroit in July 2001 concerning Item # 4 of the Arbitration Commit­
tee Report, we recommend that the Mexican Association of Free Will 
Baptists be placed on probation for one year. If the Mexican Associa­
tion brings its documents into conformity with the Treatise regarding 
autonomy of the local church, probation will be removed. 

I 0. We recommend that we accept the application of the Association of 
the Free Will Baptists of Mexico for membership within the National 
Association of Free Will Baptists as a district association. 
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Nominating Committee Report 
Free Will Baptist Bible College Trustees 

2004 Replacing Richard Bowers CAL) ] Pi 
2008 Replac~ng Archie Ratliff (NC) .. ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~~~e ~~~~/~~) 

Replacmg Larry Montgomery ( GA) Ed 
Replacing Gene Outland (IL) .. G warOd Moody, Jr. (NC) 

· · · · · . . ene utland (IL) 
Foreign Missions Board 

2004 Replac~ng Terry Eagleton (TN) ...... Dann . 
2008 Replac!ng Bill ~ones (TX) ........ . .. Bill J~n';';~~s (AL) 

Replacmg DaVId Williford (TN) D · . 
Replacing BiJI Van Winkle (TN)~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ B~~~ W~~~~ ~~~ 
Sun~ay ~chool and Church Training Board 

2004 RRep1ac!ng Bna_n Hampton (TN) ..... Tim Owen (FL) 
2008 eplacmg DaVId Sutton (OK) D 

Replac~ng David Reece (VA) . ~~~~~~~ D=R~=r~t) 
Replacmg Nu:l ~rown (CA) . . ... . .. Nuel Brown (CA) 

CommiSSion for Theological Integrity 
2007 Re I · L 

p acmg eroy ForJin~s (TN). · · ~ · · . Leroy Forlines (TN) 
Med1a Comm1ssion 

2006 Replacing Ron Hunter (TN) M 
2007 Re 1 · K . . · · · · · · · · · onte McKenzie (TN) 

P acmg eVIn Norns (MI) . ... . ... Kevin Norris (MI) 

Music Commission 
2007 Replacing Doug ~ittle ~AR) .. . ...... Doug Little CAR) 

H1stor.cal Commission 
2007 Replacing Jack Williams (TN) . ...... Jack WiiHams (TN) 

General Board 
2003 Replacing Delmar Sparks ( OH) . . . ... Mike Stok 
2004 New Entry (Assoc of Mexi ) . . es . 

Replacing Tim ~en (F ) co .... . .. LUJ~ Felipe TiJerina 
L · · · · · · · · · . DaVId Womack 

2005 (To he eleded in 2002) 
Indiana (replacing Chris Clay) ....... Chris Cia 
Kansas (replacing Dale McCoy . . .... Zane Bro~ks 
Ken~cky (repl~cing ~ames Patton) .. James Patton 
M~Xl~o (replacm~ LuJs Felipe Tijerina) Carlos Rubio 
M!chigan ~replacing. Gene Norris) . . . . Gene Norris 
M!d-~tl~~c (replacmg Jay Baines) .. Jay Baines 
M!ssissJ.pPI (replacing J. L. Gore) .... J. L. Gore 
Missoun (replacing Nathan Ruble) ... Nathan Ruble 
New Jers~y (replacing WiiJiam Brown) WiHiam B 
New Mexico (replacing Tim Byers) .. Mark Shores rown 

Executive Committee 
2005 Replac~ng J. L. Gore (MS) ........ . . J. L. Gore 

Replacmg Gene Norris (MI) G N . 
Replacing Nathan Ruble (MO). ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ : N=~~ ~~le 
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General Officers 
(To be e/eded in 2002) 

Moderator: Replacing Carl Cheshier (OK) . . . . . . Carl Cheshier (OK) 
Assistant Moderator: Tim York (KY) ..... . ........ . . Tim York (KY) 
Clerk: Replacing Keith Burden (OK) ........ . .. John Hibbard (CA) 
Assistant Clerk: Replacing John Hibbard (CA) . .. Randy Bryant (FL) 

Nominating Committee 
Nathan Ruble (MO)- Chairman 
Tim Campbell (AR) 
Billy Hanna (GA) 
Glen Johnson (VA) 
Terry Eagleton (TN) 
Ron Helms (MI) 
David Sutton (OK) 

Credentials Committee Report 
We, the Credentials Committee, have examined the letters from the 

following states, districts and local churches and found them to be in 
order as presented below. 

1. From the following state associations which are entitled to be repre­
sented by five delegates: Alabama, Arkansas, California, Florida, 
Georgia, Idaho, Illinois, Indiana, Kansas, Kentucky, Mexico, Michi­
gan, Mississippi, Missouri, North Carolina, Ohio, Oklahoma, South 
Carolina, Tennessee, Virginia, West Virginia and Texas. 

2. From the following district associations, which are entitled to be rep­
resented by three delegates: Arizona, Atlantic-Canada, Colorado, 
Mid-Atlantic, New Jersey, New Mexico, Northeast and Northwest. 

3. From the following local churches entitled to be represented by one del­
egate: Hawaii, Montana, Puerto Rico, Vrrgin Islands and Wisconsin. 

4. We recommend that the delegates from the state associations, district 
associations and local churches listed above be seated for this ses­
sion, along with their other delegates who are properly registered. 

5. We recommend that all lay delegates entitled to represent by virtue of 
their positions on standing boards be seated if properly registered. 

6. We recommend that the delegates from Idaho and Mid-Atlantic be 
seated based on assurance for full payment of representation fees. 

Submitted by your Credentials Committee, 
Jim Marcum (NC) - Chairman 
Gene Norris (MI) 
Ernie Lewis (IL) 
Tim Owen (FL) 
Tim Hall (KY) 
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Registration Report 
The 2002 Memphis Convention registered the following: 

National Convention ...... .. ... . ...... . .. 3,593 
Board/Commission Members . .. . 4 7 
State Delegates .. . . .. . . ... . ... 84 
Local Church Delegates .. .. .... 50 
Foreign Missionaries ... .. ... . .. 28 
Home Missionaries . ....... . ... 56 
Ordained Deacons . . . . . . . . . . . 144 
Ordained Ministers . . .. . ..... . 720 
Licensed Ministers . ... .. .. . .. .. 22 
Visitors ... ... .. . ... .. ... .. . 2,442 

Women Nationally Active For Christ .. . ... .. .. 968 
National Officers ... .. .. ....... . 6 
State Presidents .. ............ . 13 
State Field Workers . . ... . ... . .. I 0 
State Delegates .. . ... .. ... . .. 137 
Local WNAC Delegates ... .. ... . 50 
Missionaries ..... . . .. .. . ...... 28 
Visitors ....... .. . . .. . ....... 724 

National Youth Conference ......... .. ..... 3,398 
Grades 1-12 . ... .. . ........ . I ,589 
Pre-School . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 121 
Staff . .. .. . . .. ....... ... .. . . 129 
Visitors. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . I ,559 

Total Registered ..... .. . ........ . ... . 7,959 

Resolutions Committee Report 
I. Be it resolved that we as Free Will Baptists boldly and without apol­

ogy proclaim our stand to the world on the doctrine of Jesus Christ 
by reaffirming our strong Scriptural stand as stated in chapters five 
and six of the Treatise of the Faith and Practice of the National 
Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. 

2. Be it resolved that we as Free Will Baptists join the Master's Men 
Department in ''America Bless God Day," a special day of recognition 
for the past blessings of God to be held Sunday, September 8, 2002. 

3. Be it resolved that we extend a standing ovation of appreciation to 
the Tennessee Free Will Baptists for a fine job hosting the 66th 
annual National Association of Free Will Baptists. 

Resolutions Committee 
Paul Thompson (AZ) - Chairman 
Nuel Brown (CA) 
Russell Wright (WV) 
Edwin Hayes (OH) 
Bill Van Winkle (TN) 
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Budget Committee Rep~rt . . 
. . f F w·n Baptists lnt has approved in this convention the followmg for 2003. The Notional Assooation a ree I , , 

Exe<utive Office ~~~dud~s) · · · · · · . ........ ~ : : ~ ~ ~: : : ~ : S. 42s,ooo.'oo· .. 
s 796,897.91 

Admm1strot1ve · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 93 1 05.00 
Contod · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 278,792.91 
Convention .. · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ' 4,661 ,090.00 

Free Will 8"1~~~"~:
1S~.;~~~~OO .OO · i~ · ~~;.~,irt~d Qitisi · . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

7
.408,887.85 

Foreign Mis{~;;; ~~~ i~~~~d~· Vi;;~~ ~~d ~ih~; p;~i~~ i~t~ii~g . $4: 953.770:0.0) 
5 
,OOO,OOO.OO 

Home Missions . . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 135,920.00 
Moster's Men . ... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · : : : : : : : : ~ : : : ~ : : 391 ,359.00 
Retirement and Insurance. · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . . . . . . . . . 135,200.00 
Free Will Baptist Foundot1on · : ·. · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . . . . . . . . . 3,644,863.52 
Sunday School and Church Tromm~ · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . . . . . . . . 6,500.00 
Commission for Theologicollntegnty · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 4,600.00 
Historical Commission . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 34,060.00 
Music Commission ... . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · : ~ : : ~ : : : ~ 10,000.00 
Media Commission ... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · .... . ... $ 22,229,378.28 
Tot a I . . . . . . . . . . . . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . . . . . . . . . . 

All these ministries receive funds through The Together Way Pion except for the Sunday School and Church 

Training Department which is self-sustointhing. ifts . d th ough The Together Way Pion be allocated to the 
The Budget Committee reco~mends. ot g receive r 

notional ministries on the fol~owm~ basis: . . . B d t bove designated gifts, not to exceed 45% of coop-
1. Underwrite the Executive Offire AdmtmstrotiVe u ge 0 

erotive gifts. . 'fts th f II ·ng no~onol ministries according to these percentages: 
2. Disburse the balance of cooperat1ve gl to e 0 owl 

23
_
0
% 

Free Will Baptist Bible College · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · : ~ : : : : : : : : : : : : ~ : ~ : : : ~ : : : : : 23.0% 
Foreign Missions ....... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18.0% 
Home Missions ........ · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . 14.0% 
Retirement and Insurance.···· · ································· · ········:~:. 14.0% 
Master's Men ........ · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . · · . 6.0°/o 
Free Will Bop~st Foundation · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ~ : : ~ : : ~ : . 05% 
Commission for Theological Integrity · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 05% 
Historical Commission .... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . . . . . . 05% 
Music Commission ..... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ... ~ : : ~ 05% 
Media Commission ..... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · : : : : : : : ~ .... l 00.0% 
Toto ......... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · I ......................... .. 

Respectfully Submined, Your Servants, 
Melvin Worthington, Executive Secretory. . 
Man Pinson President of Free Will Baptist Bible College 
James Forli~es General Director of Foreign Missions Deportment 
lorry Powell General Director of Home Missions Deportment 
Bill Evans G~nerol Director of Retirement and Insurance Deportment 

' f M st ' Men Deportment 
Kenneth Akers, General D!rector of S o der ~ hool and Church Training Deportment 
Alton loveless, General Director o un oy c 
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Educational Task Force Report 
Higher Education Survey 

. Preliminary Report to the 
National Association of Free Will Bapt· t M h. ISs 

emp IS, TN -July 2002 

The purpose of the surveys: 
The purpose of the surveys · t . . 

groups who have significant int~~e~ ~eceJve mput from individuals and 
Will Baptist institutions of higher edu'::a:f'e s~cessful operation of Free 
designed for the following constituenc· ~n.. e surveys are specifically 
students, ministers, plus donors and pa::~ts~h school students, college 

The process for distributing the survey • 
Master copies of the four surve s 'S. . 

the Executive Office database with~ ~re. mailed to local churches using 
ticipate in the surveys and return thms ctions to the pastor on how to par­
s~rveys were posted on the Nation~ ~mp!et~d surveys for tabulation. The 
site. The completed surveys were sub~?ttciadtioln of Free Will Baptists' web­
Th 1 e e ectronically 

1' e preliminary results of the survey· · 
o date nearly 600 surveys have bee~ b . . 

comprising the largest group folio d b su rrutted With college students 
students, and ministers The parti ~e y parents and donors, high school 
The respondents at pr~sent are ~~:nts wer~ from Canada and 21 states. 
eastern portion of the United St t rwhelrrungly from the southern and 

The pattern for the results is ~ti~t~ . 
enough information from vario orrrung, but the questions are yielding 

• Colfeoe Stud t . Th us groups to allow a preview: 
o en s. ey expressed a de . t h 

options for their majors in a Chri ti srre 
0 

ave more educational 
desired choices. The top choices t~ :t:~e~sphere and listed their 

1. Teacher education (secondary and special . 2. Business education were often listed separately) 

3. Computer related fields 
4. Pastoral Training 
5. Medical Training (i.e., nursing) 
6. Missions 
7. Professional studies (pre-med law engin . ) 
8. Specialized ministry (Christi I Ed , eenng, etc. 

9 M 
. an ·1 Youth etc) 

. USJC I • 

1 O. ~m~!~~~7(~} ~:~~~~ngli~h, History, Psychology, etc.) 

ing, (2) Need more class~~t~~~s ::a~he co(~)ege t~e student is attend-
• High School Stud t . Th r . ors, nee more scholarships. 

th en s. e .ocus IS on what th ll 
e prospective student in financial hel d e co ege ~~.to offer 

career choices of the hi h sch P an campus actiVIties. The 
~ess.io~al studies and s~cializ~l .st~dent ten~ to focus on the pro­
Institutions as havmg· mode t JO s. They VIew Free Will Baptist 

rae appeal. 
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• Ministers: The clergy was the smallest group of respondents. They are 
concerned with the general lack of young people entering the ministry. 

• Parents and donors: The parents' main concerns are about the cost 
of education and the career options available to their children after 

receiving a degree from a FWB college. 
Comments: (1) Perceive institutions as limited, (2) Need more offer-
ings for non-ministers, (3) A telling quote, "What college? I did no! 

know we had anyl" 
'Jhe procedures for finalizing the survey results: 

The opportunity to respond is still open to those who wish to participate. 
The surveys can be accessed through the National Association of Free Will 
Baptists' website at www.nfwb.org and will be updated monthly until the 
end of the calendar year. The final results will be presented to the Higher 
Education Task Force and incorporated into its report to the National Asso-

ciation of Free Will Baptists in Tampa (2003). 

2002 National Youth Conference Report 
The 2002 National Youth Conference met for its 35th annual confer­

ence in Memphis, TN, July 21-24. Our theme was 24/7 . .. Jesus .. . All His 
Ways ... All My Days. A total of 1,710 student participants and 1,688 adults 
and staff were registered for a total registration of 3,398. 

A total of 740 competitive entries were conducted during the four-day 
conference, with a total of 1,719 young people participating in the competi­
tive activities. A complete list of NYC winners will be sent to each state office. 

Worship services were conducted for Preschool (ages 3-5), with an average 
of 83 attending, Children (1st-3rd grade) and Tweeners (4th-6th grade) with an 
average of 300 attending, and Youth (7th-12th grade) with an average of 1,200 
attending Sunday morning through Tuesday nigh~ with Mruk Roberts speaking. 
Over 250 decisions were made, including several for salvation 

Over 600 students participated in Impact Memphis, our area service 
projects. Projects included the Memphis Food Bank, a blood drive, Knowl­
edge Quest and the Memphis Family Shelter. Individuals and entire youth 

groups joined the projects. A total of 34 workshops were presented during the conference for 

children, youth, children's workers and youth workers. 
We will not leave the city of Memphis untouched. Rather, we leave 

having shown the light of Christ to a needy city. We also leave with many 
people knowing that Christ makes a difference in the lives of our students. 

The 36th annual National Youth Conference is scheduled for Tampa, 

Florida in July 2003 where our theme will be Stand Still. 
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Obituary Committee Report 
The foJJowing names were submitted in s 

memory of their lives, labor and Jove for our Lord ~fu~~hriC:Od precioUs 
st. 

Arizona 
Kenneth Boner, deacon 

Georgia 

Emmitt McDuffie, minister 
Kentucky 

Willie Daugherty, minister 
Robert Parsons, minister 
James E. Fraley, deacon 
Charles Campbell, deacon 

Mississippi 
Curtis Briley, minister 
Wayne Yarbough, minister 

North Carolina 
L. B. Coley, minister 
Mrs. Lois Reagan, minister 's wife 
VoJena Wilson , missionary 

Ohio 

Pete Maynard, minister 
C. A. Newman, minister 

Oklahoma 
Bill Mann, minister 

Obituary Committee 
Herbert Waid (GA) _Chairman 
Danny Williams (AL) 
James 0. Brew er (KS) 
Charles Marshall (AZ) 
Bobby Shepherd (AR) 
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Ward Fellabaum, rninister 
C. A. Brown, minister 
Eual Garman, minister 
Ernie Hale, minister 
Dalton Beene, minister 
Robert Carter, minister 

South Carolina 

Wilburn Beasley, minister 
Sam Truett, minister 
Mike Creech, minister 
L. H. Clayton, m inister 

Tennessee 

L. C. Johnson, minister 
Glenn Mulkey, m inister 

Virginia 

Dan Merkh, minister 

West Virginia 
J. W Cooper, minister 
Bert Willis, minister 
Raymond Dingess, minister 
Robert Kessinger, deacon 
John Carter, deacon 

Cll en 
c c 
1: 1: 
8. 8. 

~ ~ ~ 0 ; ~ ... ... 
Jl 0 .J ~ ·g e ~ E ::0 ... ::0 ~ ::0 .:c z: ..... z: 

Alabama 14 14 161 161 

AcllOOO 1 1 8 6 

Arkansas 15 15 216 202 
Assoc}~co 1 1 18 18 
California 8 7 55 45 
Conodo 1 1 10 10 
Colorodo 1 1 7 7 
Florida 9 9 70 70 
Georgia 10 10 121 114 
Howoii 1 1 1 1 
Idaho 2 2 8 
Illinois 7 7 44 42 
India no 3 3 25 25 
kansas 2 2 10 10 
Kentucky 10 10 149 149 
louisiana 
Mid-Ari. Assoc 7 5 7 5 
~Assoc. 2 2 19 19 
Michigan 6 4 45 39 
Mississippi 3 3 52 49 
Missouri 18 18 187 177 
Montano 1 1 
New Jersey 2 2 2 2 
New Mexico 1 1 4 4 
North Carolina 8 6 190 118 
Ha1fmst fsx. 1 1 3 3 
NooiMeSt fsx. 1 1 6 6 
Ohio 19 18 150 148 
Oklahoma 22 22 241 217 
Puerto Rico 2 2 
South Carolina 7 7 118 118 
South Dokoto 
Tenn~ 9 9 228 195 
Texos 6 6 so so 
Virgin l~onds 1 1 1 1 
Virginia 8 8 93 93 
West Virginia 21 21 186 186 
Wisconsin 1 1 
Totals 227 219 2,489 2,294 

Statistical Report 
Reporting Period 2001 

t'! 
0 

i t'! 
~ 0 

§ct. t; -a ] 0 ~ tf. c N,.:C 0 

~ li 
... ~t'! j t'! E Jl t.J ~ ~ 
... 

e a i.E e E 
~ -s • Gl Gl :1 ::0 a; 0 ~~ ~ ..... GO: .... CD 

52 109 92 47 315 17,060 683 298 
4 2 5 1 31 297 24 31 

91 125 105 92 607 20,564 1,094 810 
18 18 
45 10 38 11 430 2,834 322 116 
3 7 5 s 14 432 45 3 
7 7 27 125 47 28 

41 29 45 25 408 6,374 513 246 
45 76 80 41 296 9,293 567 299 
1 1 5 49 s 10 
8 3 s so 245 36 10 

26 18 26 12 162 3,624 136 68 
20 5 14 8 63 550 78 29 
10 2 7 45 282 43 4 
40 109 38 89 797 15,807 980 670 

7 
7 7 so 617 33 35 

19 19 4 
30 9 28 11 194 2,577 225 84 
14 36 35 14 140 3,609 267 143 
82 98 99 73 565 15,719 792 689 
1 1 2 16 2 
2 2 108 s 
2 2 3 1 4 59 15 

61 57 99 19 1,143 22,317 1,032 399 
1 2 3 15 213 23 7 
6 6 l 52 178 38 

64 86 62 74 763 10,168 812 589 
149 84 140 81 844 23,032 1,447 478 

2 2 31 
64 54 87 31 173 4,861 404 231 

111 107 126 87 783 19,594 1,081 574 
35 15 25 25 160 2 556 360 103 

1 1 15 199 
26 67 43 so 146 5,459 225 156 
42 144 73 113 589 9,040 118 
1 1 5 34 

1,123 1,259 1,322 946 8,924 197,919 11,329 6,233 
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II) ct. E .:c - 8 ; 
8 ct. t'! 

-~ 
c ~ 

Jl ... - ... 
g~ N.:C. ~ ;; 

~~ .... ; "CC t'! 
~Jl 

c~ _...., 
-..a ..a-c o E 8.E e• -- l:l Gl 0 

~· o -Z:c:l ..... 0 

385 17,445 17,977 42,295,408 
_m 290 202 385,148 
284 20,848 19,451 10,352,415 

206 3,040 2,548 2,854,117 
42 474 303 303,364 
19 144 300 619,481 

267 6,641 6,104 2,681,559 
268 9,561 9,374 5,779,117 
(S) 44 44 82,411 
26 271 322 165,132 
68 3,692 3,944 2,152,346 
49 599 677 
39 321 304 177,042 

310 16,117 16,115 2,519,706 

(2) 625 724 
1,131 

141 2,718 2,037 1,860,306 
124 3,733 4,005 1,175,303 
103 15,822 15,719 8,812,719 

2 18 18 
(S) 103 63 
15 74 85 37,803 

633 22,950 10,569 10,150,644 
16 239 225 
38 216 263 290,623 

223 10,391 10,307 5,463,226 
969 24,001 23,924 12,708,752 

0 0 8,000 
173 5,034 3,930 8,578,122 

507 20,101 22,500 6,943,411 
257 2.813 2 880 1 544 039 

0 199 199 
69 5,528 5,679 540,529 

(118) 8,922 8,922 1,820,164 
0 34 29 58,330 

5,096 203,008 190,874 130,359,317 
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Alnhnmn 14 34 1" 447 7?0 

Arizono 5 1 2 043 301 
Arkansas 44 67 122,054,910 

Assoc/Mexico 
Cnlifnrnin ?3 18 184"3801 
CnnnAn 4 4 1 ?04 530 

Colorado 6 
Florida 32 36 17 494 481 
('. 51 64 3 ?1." 7 .5.3.f! 
U . .. 1 1 3500000 

Idaho 3 3 1189000 

Wllinois. 23 17 14 1000 
I.~' 

Knn~~ 1 1 1 499 "50 
KP.nh1rlcv H " 71 075 770 

Louisiana 
Mid-Ari. Asw 4 1 1430 MO 

MAxi rn A~~nr 

Michiaan 7 9 11 964 000 
Mississiooi 8 27 6 897 000 
Missouri 53 49 40 337104 
II . 150 non 
New Jersev 
NPw 11 · • 1 7 c;~n nnn 
North Carolina 72 46 15 284188 
" ... ·Am_ 1 1 
" .. ·Awv 1 7 7nn nnn 
Ohio 30 21 41 051 491 
I'\ ILl 79 74 74.952.847 
Puerto Rico 1 150 000 
South Carolina 38 21 12 567.000 
<;m1th Onknm 

Ten 52 66 54.537.376 
TAms 2S 10 141180000 

Viroin Islands 1 1 7 350 000 
,, . . . 

12 11 16.103.670 
West Virainio 42 10 17190 000 .. ~. l 486000 

Totals 651 601 565,454,327 

Statistical Report 
Reporting Period 2001 

I ~ ~ 

'E ~ 

Jl 
·-

~~ 
c 

J :e c e iE e c 1 1 ow 
li"- c v ~~ "''CC - ow 

~ 
c; 

J.! 5 :1 .. 5 e .5 ::1 

n"8 1709 ~711 82 ?34 ~4 

178 lll 61 30 8 
11,510 2 356 990 170 332 62 

20 
? 9?? 4 ?19 51 85 ?3 

333 30 /,R ? 

151 7 10 5 10 1 
3107 633 423 169 103 24 
5291 959 852 321 148 19 

74 32 2 1 
337 12 10 3 

2369 627 245 74 70 13 
40 

7114 75 37 71 17 3 
7 883 llftB. "51 143 399 "' 

447 21 9 6 1 
9 73 

1190 80 210 35 55 10 
2101 618 237 142 64 11 

10077 933 732 193 302 29 
30 1 
52 2 
1.7 R 13 c; 1 

13 443 172 843 330 176 50 
175 3 
1R7 41\ 41. 1/, " 1 

8,278 202 679 191 334 31 
18.878 2.334 1.320 399 375 50 

30 2 
3.867 907 395 304 206 9 

14.819 1.897 983 292 437 62 

"'"0 207 753 ~4 "0 77 

170 70 15 4 1 
3.683 502 539 169 188 31 
8 010 431 679 136 434 20 

25 1 
130,171 15,682 11 I 104 3,336 4,143 583 

A- 240 

1 1 

i I ~ i ... ~ ICI c 
j c .f ICI c 0~ s " :a -Q) jf 2 ! c ·c ;g ~ Q i2 0 CD 

475 " 5 5 

2 
497 4 8 7 985,947 

1 
79 5 8 1 

2 
134 4 2 1 
410 2 2 2 

3~nn nnn 
5 1 

103 1 2 2 1 r~n nnn 
16 
~ 

..3JB. 1 1 

9 
1 

48 3 1 1 
136 2 2 2 1 
349 4 2 2 2 1 450,000 

1 
2 
3 

403 6 9 9 1 
7 
3 1 1 1 

231 2 2 
484 5 6 7 1 3.750 ono 

2 
143 4 4 3 4 1 725 000 

528 7 3 4 5 1 
83 

2 1 1 1 

U.8. I 1 1 1 
352 1 1 1 1 

5,089 54 57 60 17 6 11,160,947 
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